

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2019                                                                                   EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 20, 2019 - Page 1 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.2. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (Govt. 
Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.3. Conference With Legal Counsel Anticipated 
Litigation (Govt. Code Section 54956.9): Specify 
facts that lead to exposure to litigation 


Number of Cases: 1 


Case: California Voting Rights Act – Trustee Area Elections 


2.4. Student Expulsion 1-18-19 Information for a vote in Open Session 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2 Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's/Students’ Reports  


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


5.2. Students’ Reports  


1/567







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2019                                                                                   EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 20, 2019 - Page 2 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


 There are no minutes to be approved.  


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items: These 
matters may be passed by one roll call 
motion.  


 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes  


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Budget Transfers  


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Educational Services: Low Performing Students 
Block Grant 


 


8.2.2. Educational Services/Santa Cruz High: 
Overnight Field Trip 


 


8.2.3. Business Services: Pacific Collegiate School 
Memorandum of Understanding 


 


8.2.4. Business Services: City of Santa Cruz 
Memorandum of Understanding 


 


   


8.3 Consent Agenda: Bond Projects Contracts, 
Agreements, Proposals, Bids & Change 
Orders 


 


2/567







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2019                                                                                   EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 20, 2019 - Page 3 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.1. Alioto Construction Inspections: Contract: 
Natural Bridges Gym Modernization Phase 2 


 


8.3.2. Earth Systems: Quote: Santa Cruz High Sports 
Complex Upgrades 


 


8.3.3. Max Builders Inc.: Estimate: Mission Hill Middle 
School Mod Phase 1: Main Building 


 


8.3.4. Monterey Peninsula Engineering: Bid & Contract: 
Branciforte Small Schools 


 


8.3.5. Moore Twining Associates, Inc.: Proposal: Santa 
Cruz High School Modernization Phase 2 


 


8.3.6. M3 Environmental Consulting LLC: Proposal: 
Branciforte Middle School - Music/MPR 


 


8.3.7. Schreder & Brandt Mfg., Inc.: Bid & Contract: Bay 
View Elementary School New Classroom 
Building & Site Work 


 


8.3.8. CWS Construction Group: Change Order #1: 
Harbor High Student Locker Improvements 


 


8.3.9. Andy's Roofing: Change Order #4: Branciforte 
Middle School Re-Roof 


 


 
 


 


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


8.5.1 Governance/Superintendent  


8.5.1.1. Public Hearing: Potential Composition of Trustee 
Areas Prior to Drawing of Maps 


 


8.5.1.2. Resolution 19-18-19: Consideration and Potential 
Adoption of Establishing Criteria for Developing 
Trustee Area Boundaries 


 


 
 


 


8.5.2. Educational Services  


8.5.2.1. Harbor High School International Baccalaureate 
Program Update 


 


3/567







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2019                                                                                   EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 20, 2019 - Page 4 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.2.2. School Safety Plans  


   


8.5.3. Business Services  


8.5.3.1. Tech Task Force Update 
 


8.5.3.2. Resolution 21-18-19: Final Mitigated Negative 
Declaration: Branciforte Small Schools 
Modernization Project 


 


8.5.3.3. Resolution 22-18-19: Final Mitigated Negative 
Declaration: Mission Hill Middle School 
Modernization Project 


 


8.5.3.4. Resolution 20-18-19: County of Santa Cruz 
Temporary Cash Loans 


 


   


8.5.4. Human Resources  


8.5.4.1. 2018-19 SCCS/GSCFT Tentative Agreement  


   


8.5.5. Governance/Superintendent  


8.5.5.1. 2019 CSBA Delegate Assembly Ballot  


8.5.5.2. 
Board Policy 3515: Campus Security – 2nd and 
Final Reading  


The Governing Board is committed to providing a school 
environment that promotes the safety of students, 
employees, and visitors to school grounds. The Board also 
recognizes the importance of protecting district property, 
facilities, and equipment from vandalism and theft. 


8.5.5.3. 
Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting 
Agendas 


At the May 23, 2018 Governance Session, the Board of 
Education agreed that each board meeting agenda would 
include an opportunity for discussion of future agenda items. 


9. Adjournment  


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


11. 
Closed Session Action Report (if necessary)  


12. Adjournment 
 


  
 


   
   
 


4/567







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2019                                                                                   EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting February 20, 2019 - Page 5 of 5 


The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95006.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Sarah Miller by 
telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por favor 
haga arreglos por anticipado con Sarah Miller por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Governance Session on April 25, 2019, 6:00p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library,  
300 La Fonda Ave., Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on May 29, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
 
AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 
  
DATE:                                   February 20, 2019 
  
FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
  
THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 
  
BACKGROUND: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 
California Education Code and the negotiated contract. 
  
This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
  
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
  
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
  
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
  
  


6/567







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


2018-2019 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 
 
Certificated: 


 Judith Grijalva, Home & Hospital Teacher, Special Education, 1/30/19 - 3/30/19, not to 
exceed 100 hours. 


 Carina Wandel, Saturday School Supervisor, Soquel High, 1/26/19 - 6/1/19, not to 
exceed 32 hours. 


 
 
 
RELEASE OF TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES (EC 44954): 


 
 
 


7/567







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


2018-2019 ATHLETIC COACHES: 
 


 Benjamin Meyer-  JV Volleyball - Girls-  HRHS-  Fall 


 Cameron Cox-  Soccer - Boys-  MHMS-  Fall 


 Byron Williams-  Football, Freshman-  SCHS-  Fall 


 Caleb Terzich-  Varsity Water Polo - Boys-  SCHS-  Fall 


 Eric Naber-  Football, Asst. Varsity-  SQHS-  Fall 


 Joe Grubbs-  Football, JV-  SQHS-  Fall 


 Jeffrey Ritchie-  Football, JV Asst.-  SQHS-  Fall 


 Ellie Cary-  Volleyball - Boys-  B40MS-  Spring 


 Maureen Wyland-  Volleyball - Girls-  B40MS-  Spring 


 Hollis O'Brien-  Baseball, Varsity Assistant-  HRHS-  Spring 


 Chad Muller-  Softball, Varsity-  HRHS-  Spring 


 Alex York-  JV Volleyball - Boys-  SCHS-  Spring 


 Tre Braquet-  Lacrosse, Varsity - Girls-  SCHS-  Spring 


 Meredith Walsh-  Swimming, Asst. - Boys-  SCHS-  Spring 


 Roland Nagel-  Swimming, Varsity - Boys-  SCHS-  Spring 


 Kimberly Gomez-  Swimming, Varsity - Girls-  SCHS-  Spring 


 Jeremy McGirr-  Basketball - Boys-  B40MS-  Winter 


 Jose Montesinos-  Soccer - Girls-  B40MS-  Winter 


 Kananiomalama "Kanani" Thomas-  Basketball, JV - Girls-  HRHS-  Winter 


 Joseph Mentillo-  Basketball, Varsity - Boys-  HRHS-  Winter 


 Dylan Vahradian-  Soccer, JV - Boys-  HRHS-  Winter 


 Nate Lackey-  Soccer, JV - Girls-  HRHS-  Winter 


 Byron Windsor-  Basketball - Boys-  MHMS-  Winter 


 Micheal Rodriquez-  Soccer - Girls-  MHMS-  Winter 


 Cameron Cox-  Soccer - Girls-  MHMS-  Winter 


 Duran Shipstead-  Basketball, Freshman - Boys-  SCHS-  Winter 


 Brian Terwilleger-  Soccer, JV - Boys-  SCHS-  Winter 


 Brian Terwilleger-  Soccer, JV - Girls-  SCHS-  Winter 


 Peter Gustafson-  Wrestling Girls-  SCHS-  Winter 


 Jose Rodriguez-  Basketball, Freshman - Boys-  SQHS-  Winter 


 Miguel Torres-  Soccer, Freshman - Boys-  SQHS-  Winter 
 
 


8/567







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


 


AGENDA ITEM:         Classified Personnel Actions 


  
MEETING DATE:    February 20, 2019 


 


FROM:                    Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  
THROUGH:             Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 
           
BACKGROUND: 
The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, SCCCE 
Agreement and the Merit Rules. 
  
This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career 
opportunities. 
  
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
  
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 
within the SCCS student community. 
  
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 
teaching. 
  
 
 
  
  
 
  
  
 


 


 
 


9/567







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 
Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director: Keneé Houser 2/12/2019 


 


 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 


 Baez, Natalie, Food Service Worker I - BM, 17.5hrs/9mos, effective 2/5/19 


 Ciccone, Bronwyn, Paraeducator Academic Intervention, 15hrs/9mos and Yard Duty Monitor - 
4.5hrs/9mos - GA, effective 2/11/19  


 Ortiz, Luis, Maintenance Specialist - MO, 40hrs/12mos, effective 2/11/19 


Re-Hired:  


None 


Promotion: 


None 


Reclassification: 


None 


Demotion:  


None 


Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 


 Carranza, Helena, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, from 19.5/9mos to 19.8/9mos, effective 2/4/19 


Additional FTE/Position:  


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  


None 


63-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


Transfer:  


None 


Transfer W/Increase FTE: 


 Stanford, Keyana, from Campus Safety Supervisor- MH, 31.5hrs/9mos to Campus Safety 
Supervisor - BM, 40hrs/9mos, effective 2/6/19  


Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  


None 


Leave of Absence:  


None 


Separation from Service: 


 Shulman, Brian, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, Resignation, 2.5hrs/9mos, effective 1/31/19 


10/567







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


Retirement: 


None 


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


New Temporary Employees/EWA: 


 Fuentes, Olivia, Substitute - Various Sites, effective, 2/1/19 


Existing Temporary Employees/EWA: 


 Sierra, Pedro, Paraeducator - SMSC, not to exceed 84hrs, 1/30/19 to 6/6/19   


 Vega, Israel, Program Coordinator - ASES - CU, not to exceed 15hrs, 1/7/19 to 1/15/19    


Existing Regular Employees/EWA: 


 Adam, Monika, Paraeducator, Special Ed - WL, not to exceed 2hrs, 1/16/19 


 Carranza, Helena, Paraeducator, Academic Intervention - DL, not to exceed 34hrs, 2/4/19 to 
6/3/19 


 Chavez, Audrey, Paraeducator, Academic Intervention - WL, not to exceed 30hrs, 1/14/19 to 
6/3/19 


 Coddington, Veronica, Paraeducator, SPED - DL, not to exceed 2hrs, 1/16/19 


 DeLeon, Elizabeth, Paraeducator, SPED - DL, not to exceed 2hrs, 1/1/6/19 


 Espinoza-Saldana, Efrain, Paraeducator, Academic Intervention - BS, not to exceed 63hrs, 
1/28/19 to 6/6/19 


 Forsyth, Geoffrey, Behavior Technician, SPED - SE, not to exceed 9hrs, 11/19/19 to 11/20/19 


 Gonzales, Elisa, Parent Community Coordinator/BV - CU, not to exceed 30hrs, 12/3/18 to 
1/15/19 


 Ledbetter, Dorothee, Library/Media Assistant - CU, not to exceed 30hrs, 1/10/19 to 5/31/19 


 Limas, Rosalie, Paraeducator, Special Ed - WL, not to exceed 2hrs, 1/16/19 


 Lucero-Brown, Jo-Ann, Paraeducator, Special Ed - WL, not to exceed 2hrs, 1/16/19 


 Miller, Lisa, Behavior Technician/PBIS - WL, not to exceed 16hrs, 1/21/19 to 6/30/19 


 Parks, Lucy, Behavior Technician - PBIS - GA, not to exceed 68hrs, 1/23/19 to 3/15/19 


 Sierra, Pedro, Paraeducator - SMSC, not to exceed 84hrs, 1/30/19 to 6/6/19 


Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 


 Clark, Hermanita, Substitute Benefits Specialist - BS, effective 2/8/19 


Out of Class: 


None 


•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 


Stipend: 


None  


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


 Health Office Assistant  


 Administrative Assistant  


 Food Service Worker I 


 Paraeducator - Academic Intervention  


 Program Coordinator - After School Programs  


 


11/567







 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $92,600 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $92,600 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 


12/567







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


February 20, 2019 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


      
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-68FF3E6E75674031AB2373313FC85755.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


     


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-02846 Adult Ed $3,824.00 American Modular Confirming for Payment – 
Retention due on Modular 
Classroom.  Insurance. 


19-02825 Harbor High $12,138.50 BSN Sports Athletic Field Equipment.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-02830 Harbor High $4,661.89 BSN Sports Athletic Field Equipment.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-02820 Westlake  $3,045.45 Benchmark Reader’s Workshop Grade K 
Pilot.  Unrestricted. 


19-02891 Santa Cruz High $3,000.00 Boardwalk Open Order for Student Bowling. 
Student Payments. 


19-02889 Transportation $17,712.21 Buswest Child Safety Systems Installation. 
Transportation – Home to 
School, Special Ed. 


19-02877 Harbor High $3,034.07 CDW 10 Chromebooks.  Title I. 


19-02800 B40SS $59,550.00 CRW  Modernization Phase I - 
Waterproofing.  Bond, Measure 
B. 


19-02792 Harbor High $4,284.00 Central Coast Sports Confirming for Payment – 
Basketball Officials.  Measure O. 


19-02826 Soquel High $7,500.00 Continental Athletic Confirming for Payment – 
Football Equipment 
Reconditioning.  Unrestricted. 


19-02848 Harbor High $10,485.80 Convergeone 35 Chromebooks.  Title I. 


     


19-00123 Transportation $5,000.00 Dieselworks Change Order to cover Repairs.  
Transportation – Home to 
School. 


19-02835 Westlake $9,000.00 Discovery Charters Prepay – Transportation for Field 
Trip.  Donations. 


19-02801 B40 Middle $13,602.76 Division of State 
Architect 


Confirming for Payment – DSA 
Submittal.  Bond, Measure A. 


19-02824 B40 Middle $18,625.12 Division of State 
Architect 


Confirming for Payment – DSA 
Submittal.  Bond, Measure A. 


13/567







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


February 20, 2019 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


      
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-68FF3E6E75674031AB2373313FC85755.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


     


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-02875 Facilities $4,281.00 First Alarm Confirming for Payment – 
Cameras for Palm St.  Ongoing 
and Major Maint. 


19-02864 Harbor High $5,182.76 Fisher Athletic 
Equipment 


Athletic Equipment.  Donations, 
Measure O. 


19-00205 Various $5,000.00 Geo. H. Wilson Change Order for HVAC services 
as needed.  Ongoing and Major 
Maint. 


19-02838 Harbor High $2,779.32 Henry Schein Inc. Spot Vital Sign for CTE Medical 
Occupations.  Perkins. 


19-00192 Facilities $5,500.00 Kelly Moore Change Order for Paint and 
Supplies.  Ongoing and Major 
Maint. 


19-02876 Santa Cruz High $14,437.40 Kone Inc. Confirming for Payment – 
Elevator Repairs.  Insurance. 


19-00899 Finance $5,000.00 Jerene Lacey Additional Consulting Services 
for 18/19.  Unrestricted. 


19-02827 Mission Hill $44,736.00 Max Builders Modernization Phase I – Stair 
Tread Installation.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-02855 Special Ed $2,515.00 May Institute Confirming for Payment – Fees 
for Assessment Services.  Special 
Ed. 


19-02817 Mission Hill $3,790.00 Montano Plumbing Modernization Phase I – Ground 
Penetrating Radar and Findings 
Report.  Bond, Measure A. 


19-02758 Soquel High $5,752.67 Print Gallery Logo Apparel.  Unrestricted. 


19-02890 B40 Middle $7,833.22 SNA Sports Group Volleyball Net Equipment, 
Custom Lettering, Folding Ref 
Stand.  Facility Use Fees. 


19-02865 Bay View $6,477.66 Scholastic Guided Reading Books.  Title I. 


19-02857 Harbor High $2,573.59 Sports Attack Aerial Attack – Football Throwing 
Machine.  Facility Use Fees. 


 


14/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 1/25/19 – 2/7/19. Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


15/567







16/567







17/567







18/567







19/567







20/567







21/567







22/567







23/567







24/567







25/567







26/567







27/567







28/567







29/567







30/567







  


                        


                      


                                                                                                                          AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.5  
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   February 20, 2019 
  
FROM:               Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent of Business 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve 2018-2019 budget transfers dated from 1/1/19 through 1/31/19, BE#193528 – 
198321.  The report follows.  Hard copy of the report is available for public review at the Board 
Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  


31/567







32/567







33/567







34/567







35/567







36/567







37/567







38/567







39/567







40/567







41/567







42/567







43/567







44/567







45/567







46/567







47/567







48/567







49/567







50/567







51/567







52/567







53/567







54/567







55/567







56/567







57/567







58/567







59/567







60/567







61/567







62/567







63/567







64/567







65/567







66/567







67/567







68/567







69/567







70/567







71/567







72/567







73/567







74/567







75/567







76/567







77/567







78/567







79/567







80/567







81/567







82/567







83/567







84/567







85/567







86/567







87/567







88/567







89/567







90/567







91/567







92/567







93/567







94/567







95/567







96/567







97/567







98/567







99/567







100/567







101/567







102/567







103/567







104/567







105/567







106/567







107/567







108/567







109/567







110/567







111/567







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


Agenda Item:  Low Performing Student Block Grant Application 
      
Meeting Date:  February 20, 2019 
 
From:   Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
Through:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve both the Elementary and Secondary Low Performing Student Block Grant applications. 
 
Background: 
The Low-Performing Students Block Grant is a state education funding initiative with the goal of 
providing grant funds to local educational agencies serving pupils identified as “low-
performing” on state English language arts or mathematics assessments, who are not otherwise 
identified for supplemental grant funding under the local control funding formula or eligible for 
special education services. 
 
The state determined per pupil funding formula to fund each district in the state of California is 
based on the number of pupils each district has that the state deemed as “low-performing.” For 
districts to access their Low Performing Student Block Grant apportionment, each district needs 
to develop a plan describing how the funds will increase or improve evidence-based services for 
the identified pupils.  The purpose of these funds is to accelerate increases in academic 
achievement, including measurements of effectiveness. The plan is required to be discussed 
and adopted at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Local Educational Agency's governing 
board. Below are the Elementary and Secondary Low Performing Student Block Grant 
respective plans:  
 


Elementary Low Performing Block Grant LEA Plan 
 
The Elementary Low Performing Student Block Grant apportionment is $114,609 based on a 
count of 58 low performing students. 
 
Summarize how the above funds will be used to increase or improve evidence-based services 
for pupils identified. 
TK-5 classrooms will be implementing new English Language Arts/English Language 
Development materials in the 2019-2020 school year. We will be using the Low Performing 
Student Block Grant funds for professional development in Universal Design for Learning in our 
literacy classrooms. Universal Design for Learning is our district wide initiative to train teachers 
in a way of thinking about teaching and learning that helps give students an equal opportunity 
to succeed by providing access to the curriculum for all. Our aim is to have a robust Tier 1 


112/567







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1. 


classroom program that meets the needs of 80% of our students, thereby enabling us to 
adequately serve the students needing Tier 2 intervention. Currently we have a well-developed 
Tier 2 Walk to Read program in our elementary schools; however, we are not able to 
successfully serve the high number of students currently needing Tier 2 intervention in literacy. 
By implementing Universal Design for Learning district wide, our low performing students will 
receive the necessary support they need in their general education classrooms at every grade 
level. 
 
How will the effectiveness of the evidence-based services be measured?  
We will measure the effectiveness of our program by growth in the California Assessment of 
Student Progress and Performance (CAASPP), Northwest Evaluation Association Measure of 
Academic Progress assessments (NWEA MAP assessments are our local, nationally normed 
progress monitoring assessments we administer 3 times per year to every student in grades 1 - 
5 to monitor growth in mathematics and reading), classroom assessments such as the 
Development Reading Assessment and Fountas and Pinnell, which is a reading comprehension 
assessment.  Other measures will include classroom observations, and teacher and student 
surveys. 
 


Secondary Low Performing Block Grant LEA Plan 
 
The Secondary Low Performing Student Block Grant apportionment is $211,435 based on a 
count of 107 low performing students. 
 
Summarize how the above funds will be used to increase or improve evidence-based services 
for pupils identified.  
After reviewing our low performing student CAASPP data, we determined that many of our low 
performing students are 2 or more grade levels below in their math fluency skills and number 
sense. Similarly, many of our low performing students are 2 or more grade levels below in 
reading. To meet our low performing student needs, we believe our students would greatly 
benefit from both Tier 2 Math Interventions as well as Tier 3 Math and Reading Interventions. 
These interventions will use evidence-based curriculum and instruction to support growth in 
math and reading. These intervention classes will focus on both building students’ basic skills as 
well as providing support for students’ math/English courses. Students will concurrently enroll 
in the intervention and their core academic math/English classes. We will also use the Block 
Grant funds to support teachers teaching our low performing students by allowing them to 
attend high quality professional development related to the instruction of Mathematics, 
Reading, and/or instructional strategies that support struggling learners.  
 
How will the effectiveness of the evidence-based services be measured?  
We will measure the effectiveness of our evidence-based Reading and Math Interventions by 
measuring our low performing student growth data on the California Assessment of Student 
Progress and Performance (CAASPP), Northwest Evaluation Association Measure of Academic 
Progress assessments (NWEA MAP assessments are our local, nationally normed progress 
monitoring assessments we administer 2-3 times per year to every student to monitor growth 


113/567







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1. 


in mathematics and reading), and student math/English semester grade data. We know these 
students need to make multiple years growth in one year’s time, and will be using this as our 
basis for determining if our interventions have the necessary impact on student performance. 
We will measure the effectiveness of the professional development our teachers attend 
through administrator walkthroughs and observations, as well as looking at our student 
achievement data on CAASPP and the Northwest Evaluation Association Measure of Academic 
Progress.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$114,609 Total Elementary Allocation (to be spent over 3 school years, 2019-20, 2020-21, 
2021-22)  


● $30,000/year for sub costs for 1 full day professional development day for 98 
elementary teachers, spread over three years, 2019-20, 2020-21, 2021-22 


● $8,203 for materials, books, conferences, and other materials needed to support 
professional learning, spread over three years, 2019-20, 2020-21, 2021-22 


 
$211,435 Total Secondary Allocation (to be spent over 2 school years, 2019-20 & 2020-21) 


● $100,000/year for 5 sections of Math Plus, 1 section per secondary school, spread over 
two years, 2019-20 and 2020-21 


● $5,717.50  Professional Development in Math, Reading, and/or evidence-based 
instruction spread over two years, 2019-20 and 2020-21 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
  
 


114/567







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT  
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Out-of-State Field Trip Santa Cruz High School 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:   Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the request for Santa Cruz High School Black Student Union to participate in an out-of-
state field trip to Georgia and Alabama from March 31, 2019 – April 3, 2019.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz High School’s Black Student Union is requesting approval for an out of state field trip 
planned for March 31, 2019 - April 3, 2019, to Atlanta, Georgia. 19 students and 5 chaperones 
(4 parents and 1 staff member) plan on attending this field trip.  The trip is during Spring Break 
and students will not miss any school.  
 
Students will have the opportunity explore options for higher education at Historically Black 
Colleges and Universities, specifically Morehouse, Spelman, and Emory University. 
Students also plan to visit the Equal Justice Initiative Museum and Memorial in Montgomery, 
Alabama, along with other historic locations, such as the Edmund Pettus Bridge in Selma, 
Alabama. This will provide students with an opportunity to delve deep into African American 
history and culture, and build community through a better understanding of our nation’s 
history. Students will participate in guided discussions to help process what they see, and 
complete academic work to further their understanding of the historical component of the trip. 
Furthermore, this work supports our school’s mission statement:  
 
The vision of SCHS is to nurture life-long learners who demonstrate critical thinking, creativity, 
integrity and personal responsibility as members of our school and greater community. We 
collaborate to ensure equity to achieve college and career readiness for all students. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The trip is optional, and costs will be covered by participating families, fundraising, and 
donations.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary educational 
and career opportunities.  


115/567







Goal # 2: SCCS will create positive, engaging, school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well being of students.  
Goal # 3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 


116/567







Black Student Union: Spring Trip to Atlanta, GA, 2019 


 


Monday, April 1, 2019 


6:15am Eat breakfast at hotel 


7:15am Depart hotel for Montgomery, Alabama: EJI (Equal Justice Initiative) Institute 


9:30am Arrive EJI Institute 


10:00am EJI Institute Tour 


11:30am EJI Memorial Tour 


1:00pm Lunch (together in Montgomery) 


2:00pm Drive from EJI to SELMA, AL 


2:25pm Arrive Selma, AL—Visit Edmund Pettus Bridge and 16th Street Baptist Church (bombed 
in 1963) 


4:00pm Depart Selma, AL for Atlanta, GA 


7:00pm Arrive Fairfield Inn and Suites in Atlanta, GA 


8:00pm Dinner at Louisiana Bisteraux 1375 Virginia Ave (4.5 stars on Yelp) 


10:00pm Return to room assignments and lights out 


 


Tuesday, April 2, 2019 


8:00am Breakfast 


9:15am Depart for college tours at Spelman and Moorhouse College 


9:45am Arrive Moorehouse and Spelman College (boys and girls have separate tours) 


10:00am Tours begin 


12:30pm Lunch 


1:45pm Depart to Emory 


2:15pm Arrive Emory 


2:30pm Emory University tour 


4:00pm Depart Emory to Fairfield Inn and Suites 


4:30pm Rest Time 


7:00pm Dinner PITT BOSS BBQ 856 Virginia Avenue 


10:00pm In rooms—lights out 


Sunday, March 31, 2019 


5:50am Report to Santa Cruz High School 


6:00am Depart Santa Cruz High to SJC Airport 


6:45am Arrive SJC – Check in luggage/TSA 


7:30am Eat breakfast in terminal—buy breakfast and buy snack 


9:15am Board flight WN3506 to STL 


2:55pm Arrive STL—eat snack 


4:50pm Board flight WN4070 to ATL 


7:25pm Arrive ATL, collect baggage 


8:00pm Board Shuttle to Fairfield Inn 


8:30pm Check in Fairfield Inn and Suites/Marriott (1255 Walker Ave, East Point, GA) 404-767-
5374 


9:00pm Eat dinner and go to bed 


117/567







 


Wednesday, April 3, 2019 


9:00am Pack up/Breakfast 


10:30am Check out of hotel 


11:00am Depart for Hip Hop Museum/Peachtree Center/Lunch/Souvenirs 


1:00pm Depart museum to Peachtree Center Mall 


3:00pm Depart museum to ALT airport 


3:45pm Arrive ALT airport/check in 


5:00pm Dinner at ATL airport terminal 


6:30pm Depart ATL to DEN flight WN2400 


7:55pm Arrive Denver 


9:00pm Depart DEN to SJC Flight WN2199 


10:40pm Arrive San Jose Airport 
 


118/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.3. 
  


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Memorandum of Understanding between District and Pacific Collegiate 


School Regarding Use of District Facilities 
 
MEETING DATE: February 20, 2019 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Memorandum of Understanding between District and Pacific Collegiate School 
regarding use of District facilities. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is an extension of our existing Memorandum of Understanding with Pacific Collegiate 
School for use of athletic and visual and performing arts spaces on District property.  This new 
agreement will take effect when the current agreement expires on June 30, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
PCS will pay 25% of the direct cost for each use of District Facilities, with related hourly costs 
open and close the facility.   
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


119/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 1 of 12 


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 


 


THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) is made on this 20th day of 


February, 2019, by and between the Santa Cruz City Schools, a California public school district, 


(“District”); and Pacific Collegiate School, a California public charter school (“PCS” or “Charter 


School”).  The District and PCS are jointly referred to herein as “the Parties.” 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, District, a school district existing under the laws of the State of California 


owns certain real property located at 255 Swift Street, Santa Cruz, California 95060 (“Natural 


Bridges site”), and at 415 Walnut Avenue, Santa Cruz, California 95060 (“Santa Cruz High 


School”); 


WHEREAS, PCS is a charter school organized under the laws of the State of California 


that operates education programs for students in grades 7-12;  


WHEREAS, an existing Facilities Use Agreement was entered into by and between PCS 


and the District in October, which shall terminate on June 30, 2019 (“FUA”); 


WHEREAS, PCS has athletic and visual and performing arts facility needs, and PCS 


seeks use of space both for practice, performance and competition related activities.   


WHEREAS, District desires to grant PCS use of District facilities for their athletic and 


visual and performing arts programs for practices, performances and competition related 


activities.  


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set 


forth, District and PCS enter into this MOU and agree as follows: 


1. USE OF DISTRICT FACILITIES FOR ATHLETICS, DRAMA, AND MUSICAL 


PERFORMANCES. 


(a) Santa Cruz High School Gymnasium and Pool:  Beginning June 30, 2019, 


District does hereby grant to PCS use of the Santa Cruz High School Gymnasium 


and Pool, with the following prioritization:  (1) Santa Cruz High School students 


receive first priority for Gymnasium or Pool use; (2) PCS students receive next 


priority over other users for Gymnasium or Pool use.   


PCS agrees to schedule its usage of the Gymnasium of Pool with Santa Cruz High 


School. 


Further, PCS agrees to and shall secure appropriate insurance coverage, including 


for competition-related activities, naming the District as an additional insured in 


connection with its use of the Gymnasium or Pool. 


120/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 2 of 12 


District agrees that, if the Santa Cruz High School Gymnasium and Pool are 


unavailable to PCS for the date and time that PCS wishes to use either facility, 


then PCS may use another District facility, provided that such facility is  not 


being used by  District students for that date and time. 


(b) Natural Bridges Gymnasium and Playing Fields:  Beginning June 30, 2019, 


District does hereby grant to PCS use of the Natural Bridges site as follows: 


(i) The Natural Bridges Gymnasium shall be made available to PCS on a 


priority basis between the hours of 3:30 p.m. through 5:30 p.m., and 


further subject to the agreement between the City School District and the 


City Parks and Recreation Department granting the Parks Recreation 


Department priority use of the Gymnasium Tuesdays, Wednesdays, and 


Thursdays from 6:30 p.m. to 10:30 p.m., and Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 


12:00 p.m. 


(ii) The Natural Bridges Playing Fields shall be made available to PCS on a 


priority basis for activities during the weekday hours of 3:30 p.m. until 


5:30 p.m. 


PCS shall schedule its usage of the Natural Bridges site with the Santa Cruz City 


Schools Facilities Department. 


PCS shall be subject to and compliant with both the Civic Center Act (as set forth 


in Section 13 below) and the Reciprocal Facilities Use Agreement and the 


addendum thereto (“Reciprocal Use Agreement”) that exists between the City of 


Santa Cruz and the District as they relate to the Natural Bridges site. 


Further, PCS agrees to and shall secure appropriate insurance coverage naming 


the District as an additional insured in connection with its use of the Natural 


Bridges Gymnasium or Playing Fields. 


2. WAIVER OF PROPOSITION 39.  PCS hereby waives any and all rights under 


Education Code section 47614 and the implementing regulations (“Proposition 39”) for 


the duration that this MOU is in force and effect. It is understood and acknowledged by 


the parties that PCS’s use of the District Facilities is not being granted pursuant to 


Proposition 39 and is not governed by Proposition 39, its implementing regulations, or 


case law interpreting same.  Rather, the parties agree that this MOU is made in-lieu of 


PCS’s Proposition 39 facility requests.    Both parties agree that PCS will be eligible to 


apply for District owned facility space for its programs pursuant to Education Code 


Section 47614 (“Proposition 39”) for the 2024-2025 school year. 


3. ENROLLMENT.  PCS agrees that it shall not preferentially target in-District students, 


that it shall continue recruitment outside the District and that it shall continue to employ a 


weighted lottery through the Term of this MOU.   


4. RECRUITMENT.  PCS shall seek to increase diversity by pursuing students from a 


wider area, including areas outside the District’s boundaries.  PCS shall demonstrate 


121/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 3 of 12 


meaningful recruitment in:  Watsonville, Scotts Valley, and San Lorenzo Valley.  PCS 


shall furnish to the District PCS recruitment materials and enrollment data related to 


grade and residence. 


5. TERM.  The MOU shall be in full force an effect from June 30, 2019, and unless sooner 


terminated under any provision hereof, this MOU shall end on June 30, 2024. 


Either PCS or the District may terminate this MOU and extinguish the rights and 


obligations of the Parties hereunder upon providing the other party with three hundred 


and sixty five (365) days prior written notice of said termination. 


6. PURPOSE OF MOU.  The purpose of this MOU is for District to provide PCS the use of 


the District Facilities as described above.  PCS warrants that it will conduct its Program 


in compliance with all applicable law, rules, and/or regulations. 


7. FEES.  For and in consideration of the use of the District Facilities, PCS agrees to pay the 


District the fees (“Fees”) as follows:  


(a) The Fees for each use of District Facilities (as defined herein) shall be 25% of the 


direct cost, with related hourly costs to open and close the facility, as set forth in 


Exhibit A (rate sheets), attached hereto.  


(b) PCS shall pay promptly to District the Fees on the first day of each month in 


advance during the Term and any Extended Term of the MOU, without deduction, 


setoff, prior notice or demand. 


(c) PCS acknowledges that late payment by PCS to District of the Fees and other 


sums due hereunder will cause District to incur costs not contemplated by this 


MOU, the exact amount of which will be extremely difficult to ascertain.  Such 


costs include, but are not limited to, processing and accounting charges.  


Accordingly, if District does not receive any payment of Fees or any other sum 


due from PCS by 4:00 p.m. within ten (10) days after such amount is due, PCS 


shall pay to District, as additional fees (“Additional Fees”), a late charge equal to 


five percent (5%) of such overdue amount or the maximum amount allowed by 


law, whichever is less.  The parties hereby agree that such late charges represent a 


fair and reasonable estimate of the costs District will incur by reason of late 


payment by PCS.  Acceptance of such late charge by District shall in no event 


constitute a waiver of PCS’s default with respect to such overdue amount, nor 


prevent District from exercising any of its other rights and remedies granted 


hereunder. 


(d) Late charges, costs and expenses which PCS is required to pay hereunder, 


together with all interest and penalties that may accrue thereon in the event of 


PCS’s failure to pay such amounts, and all reasonable damages, and costs and 


expenses which District may incur by reason of any Event of Default of PCS, 


shall be deemed to be Additional Fees and, in the event of nonpayment by PCS, 


122/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 4 of 12 


District shall have all of the rights and remedies with respect thereto as District 


has for the nonpayment of the Fees.  


8. INDEMNITY 


(a) PCS shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the District, its trustees, officers, 


employees and agents against and from any and all claims, demands, actions, 


suits, losses, liability, expenses and costs for any injury, death or damage to any 


person or property arising from the PCS’s use of the District Facilities or from the 


conduct of its business or from any activity, work, or other things done, permitted 


or suffered by PCS in or about the District Facilities, excepting those claims, 


demands, actions, suits, losses, liability, expenses and costs arising out of or 


relating to obligations of District as they relate to the District Facilities or caused 


by the active negligence or wrongful intentional actions of the District, its 


employees, agents, officers and invitees. 


 


 PCS shall further indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the District against and 


from any and all claims arising from any breach or default in the performance of 


any obligation on PCS’s part to be performed under the terms of this MOU, or 


arising from any act, omission or negligence of the PCS, or any officer, agent, 


employee, guest, or invitee of PCS, and from all costs, attorney’s fees, and 


liabilities incurred in or about the defense of any such claim or any action or 


proceeding brought thereon. If any action or proceeding is brought against District 


by reason of such claim (regardless of whether a claim is filed), PCS upon notice 


from District shall defend the same at PCS’s expense.  PCS shall give prompt 


written notice to District’s Risk Manager in case of casualty or accidents in or on 


the District Facilities. 


(b) District shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend PCS, its trustees, officers, 


employees and agents against and from any and all claims, demands, actions, 


suits, losses, liability, expenses and costs for any injury, death or damage to any 


person or property arising from the District’s active negligence or wrongful 


intentional acts, excepting those claims, demands, actions, suits, losses, liability, 


expenses and costs arising out of or relating to obligations of PCS as they relate to 


the District Facilities or caused by the negligence or intentional acts of the PCS, 


its employees, agents, officers and invitees. 


9. DEFAULT. 


(a) Events of Default.  A breach of this MOU shall exist if any of the following 


events (hereinafter referred to as “Event of Default”) shall occur: 


(i) Default in the payment when due of any installment of Fees or other 


payment required to be made by PCS hereunder, and the default shall not 


have been cured within ten (10) business days after receipt of written 


notice from District; 


123/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 5 of 12 


(ii) PCS’s failure to perform any other term, covenant or condition contained 


in this MOU and the failure shall have continued for thirty (30) days after 


receipt of written notice of such failure is given to PCS unless, however, 


the Parties agree in writing that the nature of the default is such that the 


same cannot reasonably be cured within said 30 day period. Charter 


School shall not be deemed to be in default if Charter School shall within 


such agreed period commence such cure and thereafter diligently 


prosecute the same to completion.  


(iii) Any case, proceeding, or other action against PCS or any guarantor of 


PCS’s obligations hereunder shall be commenced seeking to have an order 


for relief entered against it as debtor, or seeking reorganization, 


arrangement, adjustment, liquidation, dissolution or composition of it or 


its debts under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization 


or relief of debtors, or seeking appointment of a receiver, trustee, 


custodian or other similar official for it or for all or any substantial part of 


its property, and the case, proceeding or other action (i) results in the entry 


of an order for relief against it which is not fully stayed within seven (7) 


business days after the entry thereof or (ii) remains undismissed for a 


period of forty-five calendar (45) days. 


(iv) Revocation, non-renewal or termination of the PCS charter or cessation of 


the PCS program for any reason; however, the Charter School shall not be 


in default under this provision pending any appeal, statutory or otherwise, 


of a non-renewal or revocation of its charter; 


(v) The failure by PCS to utilize the District Facilities for the sole purpose of 


the safe operation of athletics, drama, and musical performances, as 


authorized by this MOU or additional need, as authorized by the District. 


(b) Remedies.  Upon any Event of Default, District shall have the following 


remedies, in addition to all other rights and remedies provided by law, to which 


District may resort cumulatively, or in the alternative: 


(i) Termination.  District may terminate this MOU by giving PCS written 


notice of termination.  On the giving of the notice all of PCS’s rights in the 


District Facilities shall terminate.  This MOU may also be terminated by a 


court order or judgment specifically providing for termination.  Any 


termination under this section shall not release PCS from the payment of 


any sum then due District or from any claim for damages or rent 


previously accrued or then accruing against PCS.  In no event shall any 


one or more of the following actions by District constitute a termination of 


this MOU: 


 


  (a) maintenance and preservation of the District Facilities; 


  (b) efforts to relet the District Facilities; 


124/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 6 of 12 


(c) appointment of a receiver in order to protect District’s interest 


hereunder; 


(d) consent to any assignment of this MOU by PCS, whether pursuant 


to provisions hereof concerning assignment or otherwise; or, 


(e) any other action by District or District’s agents intended to 


mitigate the adverse effects from any breach of this MOU by PCS; 


(f) authorization of use of the District Facilities; 


(g) entry upon the District Facilities. 


(ii) Damages.  In the event this MOU is terminated, District shall be entitled 


to damages in the following sums: 


 


(a) the worth at the time of award of the unpaid Fees which has been 


earned at the time of termination; plus, 


(b) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid 


Fees which would have been earned after termination until the time 


of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that PCS proves 


could have been reasonably avoided; plus, 


(c) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid 


Fees for the balance of the term after the time of award exceeds the 


amount of such loss that PCS proves could be reasonably avoided; 


and, 


(d) any other amount necessary to compensate District for all 


detriment proximately caused by PCS’s failure to perform PCS’s 


obligation under this MOU, or which in the ordinary course of 


business would be likely to result therefrom including, without 


limitation, the following:  (i) expenses for cleaning, repairing or 


restoring the District Facilities; (ii) real estate broker’s fees, 


reasonable advertising costs and other expenses of reletting the 


District Facilities; (iii) costs of carrying the District Facilities and 


insurance premiums thereon, utilities and security precautions; (iv) 


expenses in retaking possession of the District Facilities; (v) 


reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs; and, (vi) any 


unamortized real estate brokerage commission paid in connection 


with this MOU; 


(e) the “worth at the time of award” of the amounts referred to in 


Subsections (a) and (b) of this section, is computed by allowing 


interest at the rate of Bank of America’s or its successor reference 


rate plus three percent (3%) per annum.  The “worth at the time of 


award” of the amounts referred to in Subsection (c) of this section 


is computed by discounting such amount at the discount rate of the 


Federal Reserve Board of San Francisco at the time of award plus 


one percent (1%).  The term “rent” as used in this section shall 


include all sums required to be paid by PCS to District pursuant to 


the term of this MOU.  


125/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 7 of 12 


10. NOTICES.  Any notices which either of the parties hereto is required or may desire to 


send or deliver to give to the other party, shall be mailed, certified mail, return receipt 


requested, postage prepaid, or delivered, with all charges prepaid, to such other party at 


the address listed below, or to such address as either party may designate to the other 


from time to time in writing. 


 


District:  Superintendent  


  Santa Cruz City Schools 


  405 Old San Jose Road 


  Soquel, CA 95073 


  


PCS:  Board President 


  Pacific Collegiate Charter School 


  255 Swift Street 


Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


  


The date of service of any notice mailed as aforesaid, shall be deemed to be five (5) days 


after the date of such mailing, and the date of service of any notice hand delivered, as 


aforesaid, shall be deemed to be one (1) day after delivery thereof to the delivery service 


office. 


11. ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  In the event either party shall bring any action or legal 


proceeding for damages for any alleged breach of any provision of this MOU, to recover 


fees or possession of the District Facilities, to terminate this MOU, or to enforce, protect 


or establish any term or covenant of this MOU or right or remedy of either party, the 


prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, 


reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs, including attorneys’ fees and costs for appeal, 


as may be fixed by the court or jury.  The term “prevailing party” shall mean the party 


who received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, 


summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise. 


12. CIVIC CENTER ACT COMPLIANCE.  After 5:30 pm during the week and all day on 


weekends and holidays, and subject to the use limitations and priorities identified in 


Section 1, the District Facilities shall be subject to use by the public pursuant to the Civic 


Center Act and/or any joint use or recreational program use that has been established by 


the District.  Civic Center Act use requests for use of the District Facilities by users other 


than PCS shall be evaluated and handled by the District.   If not otherwise scheduled for 


use under the Civic Center Act, the play areas shall be open to the public at all times that 


school is not in session and in accordance with the normal practices of the District. 


13. TITLE TO PROPERTY.  The parties acknowledge that title to the District Facilities is 


held by the District and shall remain in the District at all times. 


14. ASSIGNMENT/SUBLEASING.  PCS may not assign and/or sublet this MOU or any 


portion of the District Facilities.  Any assignment or sublease in violation of this Section 


shall be void and of no effect.  PCS agrees that the District may assign any interest in this 


126/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 8 of 12 


MOU, as required or desired at any time, provided that the assignment will not disturb 


PCS’s possession and quiet enjoyment of the District Facilities.  


15. MUTUAL COVENANTS.  The parties covenant, warrant and represent that they each 


respectively have full right and power to execute and perform this MOU, and to grant and 


accept the estate demised herein. 


16. BROKERAGE.  District and PCS agree that no broker was involved in any of the 


negotiations that preceded this MOU or in the procuring of same.  District and PCS agree 


that if any claim be made for brokerage fees by, through or on account of any acts of 


District or PCS or their respective representatives, the party upon whose acts such claim 


is made will hold the other harmless from any and all liabilities and expenses in 


connection therewith. 


17. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.  District and PCS agree as follows with respect to the 


existence or use of Hazardous Materials on the District Facilities including any 


improvements made by PCS. 


(a) Definition.  As used herein, the term “Hazardous Materials” means any hazardous 


or toxic substance, material or waste that is or becomes regulated by any local 


governmental authority, the State of California or the United States Government.  


The term “Hazardous Materials” includes, without limitation, petroleum products, 


asbestos, PCB’s, and any material or substance which is (i) defined as hazardous 


or extremely hazardous pursuant to Title 22 of the California Code of 


Regulations, Division 4.5, Chapter 11, Article 4, Section 66261.30 et seq. (ii) 


defined as a “hazardous waste” pursuant to Section (14) of the federal Resource 


Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 6901 et. seq. (42 U.S.C. 6903), or (iii) 


defined as a “hazardous substance” pursuant to Section 10 of the Comprehensive 


Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et. 


seq. (42 U.S.C. 9601).  As used herein, the term “Hazardous Materials Law” shall 


mean any statute, law, ordinance, or regulation of any governmental body or 


agency (including the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the California 


Regional Water Quality Control Board, and the California Department of Health 


Services) which regulates the use, storage, release or disposal of any Hazardous 


Material. 


(b) Hazardous Materials.  PCS shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Material to be 


generated, brought onto, used, stored, or disposed of in or about the District 


Facilities and any improvements by PCS or its agents, employees, contractors, 


subtenants, or invitees, except for limited quantities of standard office, classroom 


and janitorial supplies (which shall be used and stored in strict compliance with 


Hazardous Materials Laws).   


(c) Responsibility of PCS.  From and after the Commencement Date, PCS shall be 


solely responsible for all environmental matters predicated upon its use of the 


District Facilities.  Without limiting the preceding sentence: 


127/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 9 of 12 


(i) Any handling, transportation, storage, treatment, disposal or use of 


Hazardous Materials in or about the District Facilities by PCS shall strictly 


comply with all applicable Hazardous Materials Laws and the provisions 


of this MOU. 


(ii) It shall be the duty of PCS to insure that its activities on the District 


Facilities are at all times in strict compliance with all Hazardous Materials 


Laws and that all activities conducted in or about the District Facilities and 


improvements comply in every respect with all applicable Hazardous 


Materials Laws including, but not limited to, all notification, record 


keeping, and maintenance requirements of such Hazardous Materials 


Laws. 


(iii) During the Term of this MOU, PCS shall have and discharge all of the 


duties and obligations of the owner of the District Facilities and 


improvements under applicable Hazardous Materials Laws related to 


PCS’s use thereof, including, but not limited to, response and remediation; 


and 


(iv) PCS shall be responsible for all liability to third parties who may be 


harmed or claim harm resulting from an environmental condition on or 


about any PCS improvements to the District Facilities. 


(d) Indemnification.  PCS shall indemnify, defend upon demand with counsel 


reasonably acceptable to District, and hold harmless District and its trustees, 


agents and employees from and against any liabilities, losses, claims, damages, 


lost profits, consequential damages, interest, penalties, fines, monetary sanctions, 


attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, court costs, remediation costs, investigation costs, 


and other expenses which result from or arise in any manner whatsoever out of 


PCS’s use, storage, treatment, transportation, release, or disposal of Hazardous 


Materials on or about the District Facilities.  


(e) PCS Action.  If the presence of Hazardous Materials on the District Facilities 


brought on to the District Facilities or allowed upon the Premised by PCS results 


in contamination or deterioration of water or soil resulting in a level of 


contamination greater than the levels established as acceptable by any 


governmental agency having jurisdiction over such contamination, and if PCS is 


responsible therefore under applicable law, then PCS shall, at its sole cost and 


expense, promptly take any and all action necessary to investigate and remediate 


such contamination if required by law or as a condition to the issuance or 


continuing effectiveness of any governmental approval which relates to the use of 


the District Facilities and any improvements or any part thereof.  PCS shall 


further be solely responsible for, and shall defend, indemnify and hold District 


and its agents harmless from and against, all claims, costs and liabilities, 


including attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of or in connection with any 


128/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 10 of 12 


investigation and remediation required hereunder to return the District Facilities 


and any improvements to full compliance with all Hazardous Materials Laws. 


(f)  Notice.  District and PCS shall each give written notice to the other as soon as 


reasonably practicable of (i) any communication received from any governmental 


authority concerning Hazardous Materials which relates to the District Facilities 


and any improvements, and (ii) any contamination of the District Facilities and 


any improvements by Hazardous Materials which constitutes a violation of any 


Hazardous Materials Law.  PCS may use small quantities of household chemicals 


such as adhesives, lubricants, and cleaning fluids in order to conduct its Program 


on the District Facilities and such other Hazardous Materials as are necessary for 


the operation its Program.  At any time during the Term, PCS shall, within thirty 


(30) days after written request therefore received from District, disclose in writing 


all Hazardous Materials that are being used by PCS on the District Facilities and 


any improvements, the nature of the use, and the manner of storage and disposal. 


(g) Monitoring Wells.  In the event that District has reason to believe that Hazardous 


Materials may be present on the District Facilities as a result of PCS’s use during 


the Term of this MOU and in violation of this MOU, District may require that, at 


PCS’s expense, testing wells be installed on the District Facilities and any 


improvements, at locations determined by District and PCS, and may cause the 


ground water to be tested to detect the presence of Hazardous Materials by the use 


of such tests as are then customarily used for such purposes.  PCS shall comply 


promptly with any such request. 


(h) Survival.  The obligations of PCS under this Section shall survive the expiration 


or earlier termination of this MOU.  The rights and obligations of District and 


PCS with respect to issues relating to Hazardous Materials are exclusively 


established by this Section.  In the event of any inconsistency between any part of 


this MOU and this Section, the terms of this Section shall control. 


(i) In the event that PCS causes any Hazardous Materials to be released, spilled or 


otherwise exposed through its use and occupancy of the District Facilities, such 


as, but not limited to remodeling or other construction, PCS shall be solely 


responsible for all costs associated with the proper handling, mitigation, 


remediation and disposal of the Hazardous Materials and all related cleanup. 


18. SUCCESSORS.  This MOU contains all of the covenants, agreements, representations 


and provisions thereof and shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the respective 


heirs, legal representatives, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the 


parties hereto, except as provided in the preceding Section.  


19. WAIVER.  The waiver by District or PCS of any breach of any term, covenant or 


condition or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition 


herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of the term, covenant or condition or 


any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein 


contained. 


129/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 11 of 12 


20. CAPTIONS.  The captions and section headings used in this MOU are for the purposes of 


convenience only.  They shall not be construed to limit or extend the meaning of any part 


of this MOU.  


21. TIME OF THE ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence for the performance of each term, 


covenant and condition of this MOU. 


22. AGREEMENT TO TERMS.  The Parties hereby expressly agree to all terms and 


conditions set forth in this MOU and recognize that the terms and conditions are not 


severable.  The Parties further waive any claim of illegality of any and all terms and 


conditions in this MOU and neither Party shall be permitted to disregard or otherwise fail 


to comply with any term in this MOU on the ground that such term is illegal and/or 


invalid.    


23. APPLICABLE LAW.  This MOU shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 


laws of the State of California. 


24. JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY.  If PCS is more than one person or entity, each 


such person or entity shall be jointly and severally liable for the obligations of PCS 


hereunder. 


25. NO SUBORDINATION.  PCS agrees that District’s fee interest shall at all times be and 


remain unsubordinated to any leasehold mortgage which may be imposed upon PCS’s 


leasehold interest hereunder or upon the improvements, and that nothing contained in this 


MOU shall be construed as an agreement by District to subject its fee interest to any lien.  


Nothing in this Section or in any other provision of this MOU shall be construed as an 


agreement by District to subordinate its fee interest in the District Facilities to any 


leasehold mortgage or other lien or right.  No leasehold mortgage shall impair District 


from enforcing its rights and remedies herein or by law provided. 


26. COOPERATION WITH OTHER OCCUPANTS OF THE PROPERTY.  It is understood 


and recognized by PCS that the District Facilities will be used by other parties, including 


District, and PCS shall cooperate with the other parties in reaching amicable 


arrangements concerning the schedule of use as identified in Section 1 herein. 


27. INDEPENDENT STATUS.  This MOU is by and between two independent entities and 


is not intended to and shall not be construed to create the relationship of agent, servant, 


employee, partnership, joint venture, or association. 


28. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This MOU constitutes the entire understanding between the 


parties hereto and no addition to or modification of, any term or provision of this MOU 


shall be effective until set forth in writing signed by both District and PCS.   


29. SEVERABILITY.  If one or more of the provisions of this Agreement is found to be 


invalid, illegal, or unenforceable by a court of law, except for the payment of rent, the 


Agreement will remain in effect without that offending clause through the duration of the 


Term of this Agreement, at which time this Agreement will terminate, unless renegotiated 


130/567







 


 


MOU District Facilities – February, 2019  


Page 12 of 12 


otherwise by the Parties.  PCS agrees that all clauses in this Agreement are valid, legal, 


and enforceable, and also agrees that it will not challenge the enforceability of any clause 


in this Agreement.   Should a third party challenge any of the terms of this Agreement, or 


initiate litigation that calls into question the validity, legality or enforceability of any of 


the clauses in this Agreement, PCS agrees to defend in good faith any challenge brought 


against the Agreement. 


30. MEDIATION.  All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the 


interpretation, application or enforcement of this MOU may be submitted to mediation as 


the first method of resolution if agreeable to both Parties.   


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, District and PCS have executed this MOU, through their 


respective officers or representatives, duly authorized, as of the day and year shown below. 


 


District:     PCS: 


Santa Cruz City Schools,    Pacific Collegiate Charter School 


a California public school district  a public charter school 


    


By:    __________________________    By:____________________________ 


 


Name:  ________________________  Name:_________________________ 


 


Title: __________________________  Title:___________________________ 


 


Date:  _________________________    Date:__________________________ 


 


Attachments: 


Exhibit “A” 


131/567







Board Policy 1330


New rates as of July 1st 2019


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $35.00 $52.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Outdoor Basketball Court $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Baseball/Softball (Artificial Turf) $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $75.00 $100.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field (Artificial Turf) $0.00 $40.00 $60.00 $90.00 $100.00


Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Gym $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Outdoor Basketball Court / each $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $30.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Blacktop Area $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $35.00 $52.00 $50.00


Exhibit A


SCCS  Fee Schedule


DeLaveaga Elementary School


Facility - Adult Education


Bay View Elementary School


Branciforte Middle School


Branciforte Small Schools


132/567







Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Baseball Batting Cage $0.00 $10.00 $15.00 $20.00 $25.00


Baseball Field Artificial Turf $0.00 $40.00 $60.00 $100.00 $100.00


Big Gym $0.00 $35.00 $50.00 $100.00 $50.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Artificial Turf Field $0.00 $50.00 $75.00 $100.00 $100.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $35.00 $45.00 $50.00


Parking Lot $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $25.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Small Gym $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00 $50.00


Softball Batting Cage 1 $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Softball Batting Cage 2 $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Softball Field 1 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00 $50.00


Softball Field 2 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00 $50.00


Stadium lighting per hour $0.00 $20.00 $20.00 $40.00


Stadium / grandstands only $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00


Swimming Pool $0.00 $60.00 $110.00 $150.00 $100.00


Winter startup fee $400.00 $400.00 $400.00


Pool lighting $0.00 $10.00 $10.00 $20.00


Tennis Court $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $20.00 $25.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Theatre / plus staff $0.00 $45.00 $75.00 $100.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Artificial Turf Socer/Baseball $0.00 $40.00 $75.00 $100.00 $100.00


Gym $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Gault Elementary School


Harbor High School


Mission Hill Middle School


133/567







Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Blacktop Area


Field $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00


Classroom


Gym $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Auditorium / plus staff $0.00 $60.00 $90.00 $150.00 $50.00


Baseball Batting Cage $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Baseball Field $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Basketball Court A $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Basketball Court B $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Bleachers $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field (artificial turf) $0.00 $50.00 $75.00 $100.00 $100.00


Gym / both $0.00 $50.00 $80.00 $120.00 $75.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Softball Batting Cage $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $19.00 $25.00


Softball Field $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Stadium / grandstands only $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00


Stadium lighting per hour $0.00 $20.00 $20.00 $40.00


Swimming Pool $0.00 $60.00 $100.00 $120.00 $100.00


Winter startup fee $500.00 $500.00 $500.00


Pool lighting $0.00 $10.00 $10.00 $20.00


Tennis Court $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $9.00 $25.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Baseball Batting Cage $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Baseball Field $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field grass $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00


Stadium Field (Artificial Turf) $0.00 $60.00 $85.00 $100.00 $100.00


Gym $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $22.50 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Natural Bridges Elementary School


Santa Cruz High School


Soquel High School


134/567







Locker/Shower $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Parking Lot $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Softball Batting Cage 1 $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00 $25.00


Softball Batting Cage 2 $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00 $25.00


Softball Field 1 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Softball Field 2 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Softball Field 3T $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00 $25.00


Stadium / grandstands only $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $75.00


Stadium lighting per hour $0.00 $20.00 $20.00 $40.00


Swimming Pool $0.00 $80.00 $130.00 $150.00 $100.00


Winter startup fee $600.00 $600.00 $600.00


Pool lighting $0.00 $10.00 $10.00 $20.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Tennis Court $0.00 $10.00 $15.00 $20.00 $25.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field upper $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $25.00


Field lower $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $25.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $35.00 $52.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


As available Deposit


Chairs, each $0.00 $3.00 $4.00 $6.00


Tables, each $0.00 $5.00 $7.00 $10.00


Other equipement - TBD $0.00


Projector / TV / sound system-per use $30.00 $35.00 $50.00


Other Charges per hour 2 hour min Deposit


Custodian 0.00 47.00 47.00 60.00


Food Service 0.00 45.00 45.00 60.00


Maintenance & Operations 0.00 47.00 47.00 60.00


AV Technician / lighting tech 0.00 31.00 31.00 40.00


Theatre Manager 0.00 35.00 35.00 45.00


Masonite floors for theatre 0.00 200.00 200.00 250.00


Processing Fee per request for change 0.00 10.00 10.00 25.00


profit groups serving District students and families and providing free services to low income children


* Credit Card use will add a 3.5% proccessing fee


* Reduced fee status granted annually by Assistant Superintendent,  Business Services or Designee for non-


Westlake Elementary School


135/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.4. 
  


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Agreement for Reciprocal Use of Facilities between the City of Santa Cruz 


and the District 
 
MEETING DATE: February 20, 2019 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve agreement for Reciprocal Use of Facilities between the City of Santa Cruz and the 
District. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Santa Cruz and Santa Cruz City Schools have enjoyed a reciprocity agreement that 
has been in existence since 1963.  We are bringing forward to the Board for their approval an 
updated reciprocity agreement. City facilities may be used by the District for educational 
purposes and for recreational activities sponsored and conducted by the District. The District 
owns athletic fields and indoor/outdoor school facilities which may be used for community 
educational and recreational activities sponsored and conducted by the City. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


136/567







Page 1 of 7 


AGREEMENT 
(For Reciprocal Use of Facilities between City and School District) 


 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into, and is effective as of this _____ day of  
____________, 2019, by and between the CITY OF SANTA CRUZ, a municipal corporation of the 
State of California, hereinafter called "City", and the SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, 
hereinafter called "District"(City and District are also referred to individually as a “Party” and 
collectively, as the “Parties”):  
 


RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, City owns, operates and/or maintains certain public parks and indoor/outdoor 
recreational facilities, hereinafter collectively called "City Facilities ", which are capable of being 
used by the District for educational purposes and for recreational activities sponsored and 
conducted by the District; and District owns, operates and/or maintains certain school athletic 
fields, and indoor/outdoor school facilities, hereinafter collectively called "District Facilities", 
which are capable of being used for community educational and recreational activities 
sponsored and conducted by the City;  
 
WHEREAS, City and District desire to provide by contract for the use of such District Facilities by 
City for community educational and recreational activities, and for the use of City Facilities for 
educational purposes and recreational purposes sponsored and conducted by District in order 
to provide for a program of community education and recreational activities pursuant to 
Chapter 4, Division 12 of the Education Code; 
 
WHEREAS, by entering into this Agreement, the Parties intend that this Agreement supersedes 
and replaces all prior agreements and understandings between the Parties relating to the 
reciprocal use of City Facilities and District Facilities, including the original reciprocal use 
agreement entered into between them on December 26, 1963, and the supplemental 
agreement dated April 15, 1989 regarding the reciprocal use of the Natural Bridges Multi-
Purpose Facility, the construction of which was partly funded by the City.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above Recitals incorporated herein by reference, the 
terms and conditions hereafter set forth in this Agreement, and pursuant to the provisions of 
the Education Code herein referred to, it is agreed as follows: 
 


TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
 


1. USE OF DISTRICT FACILITIES.  District agrees to make available to City, District Facilities 
for community educational and recreational activities, as agreed upon between the 
Director of Parks and Recreation of City, hereinafter called "Director", and the 
Superintendent of District, hereinafter called "Superintendent”.  


 
a. City shall provide all materials and equipment to be used in such community 


educational and recreational activities, it being understood and agreed, 


137/567







Page 2 of 7 


however, that all permanent equipment owned by District at the District 
Facilities may be used for such community educational and recreational 
activities.  


 
b. City shall provide supervisory personnel whenever City or City sponsored 


activities are being conducted at the District Facilities. 
 
c. City shall assume any and all risks related to the condition of District Facilities.  


District makes no representations or warranties that the District Facilities are 
suitable for any activities sponsored or conducted by the City, including the 
use of permanently installed recreation and play equipment situated at the 
District Facilities. 


 
d. City agrees to use District Facilities in such a manner so that the District 


Facilities remain in the pre-existing condition after the City’s use thereof.  City 
shall be responsible for any damage to District Facilities, except for ordinary 
wear and tear which may result from any community educational and 
recreational activities being conducted at the District Facilities. 


 
e. District agrees to maintain and repair the District Facilities and be responsible 


for all utility costs of the District Facilities. District will not seek any 
contribution from the City related to ordinary wear and tear resulting from 
use of the District Facilities. 


 
f. District shall provide administrative staff to open and close indoor District 


Facilities used by City, at no cost, if usage is during hours that the District is 
regularly staffed.  If the District has to hire staff beyond normal staffing hours, 
the City will pay the established District e hourly rate to cover overtime costs.  
To the extent that custodial services are required relating to the City’s use of 
District Facilities, District will charge City only for any overtime costs. 


 
g. District operated facilities for which a rental fee has been established will be 


available to City at no charge.  
  
h. In scheduling use of District Facilities, except for the site known as the Natural 


Bridges Multi-Purpose Facility/Gymnasium located at 255 Swift Street, Santa 
Cruz, District-related events and programs including legal obligations required 
by State law to District’s charter schools shall be first priority; recreation 
programs and events established by City, second priority; and other events by 
other groups shall have third priority.  


 
i. The priority usage of the Natural Bridges Multi-Purpose Facility/Gymnasium 


located at 255 Swift Street will be as follows.  District-related events and 
programs including legal obligations required by State law to charter schools 
shall be first priority from 7:00 am – 5:30 pm weekdays.  Recreation programs 


138/567







Page 3 of 7 


established by the City will have second priority during those hours.  The City 
will have first priority use in the evenings, weekends, and summer provided 
that there is no emergency need for SCCS students created due to a school 
gym becoming unusable.    


 
 


2. USE OF CITY FACILITIES.  City agrees to make available to District, City Park and 
recreation facilities for educational purposes and recreational activities sponsored 
and conducted by District, as agreed upon between the Director and Superintendent.  


  
a. District shall provide all materials and supplies to be used for educational 


purposes and recreational purposes, it being understood and agreed, 
however, that all permanent equipment owned by City at the City Facilities 
may be used for such purposes. 


 
b. District shall provide supervisory personnel whenever District or District 


sponsored activities are being conducted at the City Facilities. 
 


c. District shall assume any and all risks related to the condition of City Facilities.  
City makes no representations or warranties that the City Facilities are 
suitable for any activities sponsored or conducted by the District, including 
the use of permanently installed recreation and play equipment situated at 
the City Facilities. 


 
d. District agrees to use City Facilities in such a manner so that the City Facilities 


remain in their pre-existing condition after the District’s use thereof.  District 
shall be responsible for any damage to City Facilities, except for ordinary 
wear and tear, which may result from any District sponsored or conducted 
activities at the City Facilities.  


 
e. City agrees to maintain and repair City Facilities and be responsible for all 


utility costs of the City Facilities. City will not seek any contribution from the 
District related to ordinary wear and tear resulting from use of the City 
Facilities. 


 
f. City shall provide staff to open and close indoor City Facilities used by the 


District, at no cost, if usage is during hours that the City is regularly staffed.  If 
the City has to hire staff beyond normal staffing hours, the District will pay a 
reasonable hourly rate to cover overtime costs. To the extent that custodial 
services are required relating to the District’s use of City Facilities, City will 
charge District only for any overtime costs. 


 
g. City operated facilities for which a rental fee has been established will be 


available to District at no charge.  
 


139/567







Page 4 of 7 


h. In scheduling use of City Facilities, City-related events and programs shall be 
first priority; recreation programs and events sponsored or conducted by the 
District, second priority; and other events by other groups shall have third 
priority.  


 
3. INSURANCE.  City and District mutually agree to provide to each other a letter or 


certificate of self-insurance in conformance with the requirements below, and name 
each other as additional insureds as specified as follows:  


 
a. Commercial General Liability: $1 Million each occurrence for bodily injury, 


property damage, personal and advertising injury, including products and 
completed operations (aggregate shall be twice the required occurrence 
limit). 
 


b. Endorsement on CGL and automobile insurance policies naming the other 
Party, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, as additionally 
covered parties. 


 
c. Automobile Policy: $1 Million per accident for bodily injury and property 


damage. 
 


d. Worker’s Compensation Policy and Employers Liability Insurance of $1 Million 
per accident for bodily injury or disease. The Workers’ Compensation policy 
shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the other Party for 
all work performed by that Party’s respective employees. 


 
4. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION.  


a. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each Party (“Indemnitor”) 
agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other Party, its respective 
officials, officers, employees and agents (collectively, “Indemnitees”) from 
any and all claims, demands, losses, damages, legal defense costs, liability of 
any kind or nature (collectively, “Claims”), which Indemnitee may sustain or 
incur or which may be imposed upon it, but only in proportion to and to the 
extent such Claims result from, arise out of, or in any manner are caused by 
Indemnitor’s negligent or intentional acts or omissions relating to 
Indemnitor’s obligations under this Agreement. 


 
b. Indemnitor further agrees to waive any rights of subrogation against 


Indemnitee. 
 


c. District and City mutually agree to require that the other Party be included as 
an indemnified party in any waiver or release and as an additional insured in 
connection with an activity or event that either Party or either Party’s agent 
conducts or sponsors which occurs at or on the other Party’s Facilities.  
 


140/567







Page 5 of 7 


 
5. GENERAL PROVISIONS 


a. Amendment. This Agreement and any of its terms may not be amended in any 
respect except by a written instrument agreed upon by both Parties. 


 
b. Assignment.  This Agreement shall not be assigned without first obtaining the 


express written consent of the other Party. Neither Party may assign this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is amended in accordance with its terms. 


 
c. Force Majeure.  Neither Party hereto shall be considered in default in the 


performance of its obligation hereunder to the extent that the performance of 
any such obligation is prevented or delayed by any cause, natural disaster, or 
other peril, existing or future, which is beyond the reasonable control of the 
affected party.  Each Party hereto shall give notice promptly to the other of the 
nature and extent of any Force Majeure claimed to delay, hinder or prevent 
performance of the services under this Agreement.   


 
d. Complete Agreement. This Agreement, along with any attachments, is the full 


and complete integration of the Parties’ agreement with respect to the matters 
addressed herein, and that this Agreement supersedes any previous written or 
oral agreements between the parties with respect to the matters addressed 
herein. 


 
e. Notices.  If either party shall desire or is required to give notice to the other 


such notice shall be given in writing, via email or facsimile and concurrently 
by prepaid U.S. certified or registered postage, addressed to recipient as 
follows: 


 
 


To CITY: 
Director of Parks and Recreation 
Department 
Tony Elliot 
323 Church Street 
telliot@cityofsantacruz.com 
831-420-5270 


To DISTRICT: 
Superintendent 
Kris Munro 
133 Mission Street 
kmunro@sccs.net 
831-429-3410 
 


 
Changes to the above information shall be given to the other Party in writing ten 
(10) business days before the change is effective.  
 
f. Severability.  The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of 


this Agreement shall not render the other provisions unenforceable, invalid or 
illegal. 


 
g. Waiver.  Waiver by any party of any portion of this Agreement shall not 


141/567







Page 6 of 7 


constitute a waiver of the same or any other portion hereof.   
 


h. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in 
accordance with California law. 


 
i. Contract Interpretation.  Each Party acknowledges that it has reviewed this 


Agreement and that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any 
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed 
in the interpretation of this Agreement. 


 
j. Counterparts.  The parties may execute this Agreement in two or more 


counterparts, which shall, in the aggregate, be deemed an original but all of 
which, together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.  A scanned, 
electronic, facsimile or other copy of a party’s signature shall be accepted and 
valid as an original. 


 
k. Warranty of Authority. The signatories to this Agreement warrant and represent 


that each is authorized to execute this Agreement and that their respective 
signatures serve to legally obligate their respective representatives, agents, 
successors and assigns to comply with the provisions of this Agreement. 


 
[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 


  


142/567







Page 7 of 7 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
hereinabove written. 
 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS   CITY OF SANTA CRUZ 
         
 
 
By____________________________  By       
 Superintendent     City Manager 
                  
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________         
District Counsel      City Attorney  


143/567







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Alioto Construction Inspections Contract for Onsite DSA 
Inspection of the Natural Bridges Restroom  


      
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Alioto Construction Inspections contract for onsite Division of State Architecture 
inspection services of the restroom building at Natural Bridges Elementary School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is based on the requirements to have a Division of State Architecture (DSA) 
inspector of record for the new restroom building at Natural Bridges Elementary school. The 
proposal is based on the schedule of work provided by the architect and is a best estimate at a 
billable hourly rate.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$6,000.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.11% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


144/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 1 


 
INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


(PROJECT INSPECTION SERVICES) 
 


This Independent Consultant Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”) is made and 
entered into as of the 1st day of February, 2019 by and between the SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS, 
(“District”) and ___Ross Alioto (“Consultant” or “Inspector”), (together, “Parties”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 


1. Services.  The Consultant shall, as requested by the District, act as the project inspector for 
the Project and provide project inspection services as described herein and as further 
described in Exhibit "A," attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
(“Services”). 


The Services shall be performed on the following project(s)/sites(s) (“Project”):   
 
 PC Restroom: Natural Bridges DSA # 102476 


The Consultant’s Service at any one of sites or combination thereof may be changed, including 
terminated, in the same manner as the project, as indicated herein, without changing in any 
way the remaining Consultant’s Services at other site(s).  The provisions of this Agreement 
shall apply to the Consultant’s Services at each site, without regard to the status of the 
remaining component(s). 


 
2. Term.  Consultant shall commence providing services under this Agreement on  February 


1,2019 and will diligently perform as required and complete performance by    April 30, 2019, 
unless this Agreement is terminated and/or otherwise cancelled prior to that time. 


 
3. Submittal of Documents.  The Consultant shall not commence the Services under this 


Agreement until the Consultant has submitted and the District has approved the certificate(s) 
and affidavit(s), and the endorsement(s) of insurance required as indicated below:   


 
  X  Signed Agreement  
  X  Fingerprinting/Criminal Background Investigation Certification 
  X  W-9 Form 
    Other:           
 
4. Compensation.  District agrees to pay the Consultant for services satisfactorily rendered 


pursuant to this Agreement an hourly rate of ninety Dollars ($90.00) with a two hour 
minimum.  District shall pay Consultant according to the following terms and conditions:  


 
4.1. Payment for the Work shall be made for all undisputed amounts based upon the 


delivery of the work product as determined by the District.  Payment shall be made 
within thirty (30) days after the Consultant submits an invoice to the District for Work 
actually completed and after the District’s written approval of the Work, or the portion 
of the Work for which payment is to be made.   


4.2. The itemized invoice shall reflect the hours spent by the Consultant in performing its 
Services pursuant to this Agreement.  The Services shall be performed at the hourly 
billing rate. 


4.3. If Consultant works at more than one site, Consultant shall invoice for each site 
separately. 


145/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 2 


5. Expenses.  District shall not be liable to Consultant for any costs or expenses paid or incurred 
by Consultant in performing services for District, except as follows:   


 
5.1. Not applicable.  


 
6. Independent Contractor.  Consultant, in the performance of this Agreement, shall be and 


act as an independent contractor.  Consultant understands and agrees that it and all of its 
employees shall not be considered officers, employees, agents, partner, or joint venture of the 
District, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of 
the District and/or to which District's employees are normally entitled, including, but not 
limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker's Compensation.  Consultant shall 
assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local taxes or contributions, 
including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to 
Consultant's employees.  In the performance of the work herein contemplated, Consultant is 
an independent contractor or business entity, with the sole authority for controlling and 
directing the performance of the details of the work, District being interested only in the 
results obtained. 


 
7. Materials.  Consultant shall furnish, at its own expense, all labor, materials, equipment, 


supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant to this 
Agreement, except as follows:  


 
7.1. ___________________ 


 
8. Performance of Services. 


 
8.1. Standard of Care.  Consultant represents that Consultant has the qualifications and 


ability to perform the Services in a professional manner, without the advice, control or 
supervision of District.  Consultant's services will be performed, findings obtained, 
reports and recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently 
accepted principles and practices of its profession for services to California school 
Districts.  


 
Consultant shall carefully study and compare all documents, findings, and other 
instructions and shall at once report to District, in writing, any error, inconsistency, or 
omission that Consultant or its employees may discover.  Consultant shall assist the 
AOR for discovery of errors, inconsistencies, or omissions. 


 
8.2. Meetings.  Consultant and District agree to participate in regular meetings on at least 


a monthly basis to discuss strategies, timetables, implementations of services, and any 
other issues deemed relevant to the operation of Consultant’s performance of Services. 


 
8.3. District Approval.  The work completed herein must meet the approval of the District 


and shall be subject to the District’s general right of inspection and supervision to 
secure the satisfactory completion thereof. 


 
8.4. New Project Approval.  Consultant and District recognize that Consultant’s Services 


may include working on various projects for District.  Consultant shall obtain the 
approval of District prior to the commencement of a new project. 


 


146/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 3 


9. Inspector’s Authority. 


9.1. Full-Time Inspector under Direction of Architect.  The Inspector shall act as 
project inspector on a full-time, constant basis, including during off hours, and weekend 
hours as deemed necessary by the Inspector, the Architect and/or the District.  The 
Inspector shall be under the direction of the Architect and is subject to the supervision 
of Division of the State Architect (“DSA”). 


9.2. Authority to Reject Construction Work.  The Inspector shall not direct a contractor 
in the execution of the Construction Work.  The Inspector does not have the authority 
to stop work on the Project.  The Inspector shall have the authority to reject defective 
materials and to suspend any specific Construction Work that is being improperly 
performed, subject to the ultimate decision of the Architect and the District. The 
Inspector will have the authority to approve, disapprove, observe, and report matters 
pertaining to the Construction Work performed on the Project.   


 
9.3. Conflict of Interest.  The Inspector shall not have a financial or investment interest in 


any person, contractor, entity, or their employees, agents, or subcontractors with 
responsibilities for the construction of, design of, or other work or duties related to the 
Project.  The Inspector shall not have the authority to assist any person, contractor, 
entity, or their employees, agents, or subcontractors in the performance of the any 
work on the Project.  The Inspector shall not undertake any responsibilities of any 
person, contractor, entity, or their employees, agents, or subcontractors.  It shall be 
understood, however, that the Inspector shall make every attempt to remove obstacles 
preventing the orderly progress of work on the Project. 


 
10. On-Site Presence.  The Inspector shall be physically present at each Site at all times 


necessary for performance of its duties as project inspector.  The Inspector shall have 
personal knowledge of the Construction Work at all stages.  The Inspector shall accompany 
the Architect, the District, the construction manager, or other consultants when any of them 
are observing the Construction Work.  The Inspector shall be physically present for all 
concrete work and masonry work. 


11. Inspector’s General Obligations, Duties, and Responsibilities.  The Inspector shall 
provide personal, competent, adequate and continuous construction inspections of all aspects 
of the Construction Work. 


 
11.1. The Inspector shall endeavor to guard the District and the State of California (“State”) 


against apparent defects and deficiencies in the Construction Work and shall act on 
behalf of the District to see that the Construction Work is executed and completed in 
accordance with the Contract Documents and applicable laws and regulations. 


11.2. The Inspector shall submit the form DSA 151, or more current form, to the DSA prior to 
commencement of construction. 


11.3. The Inspector shall ensure that the correct quantity of project inspection cards (form 
DSA 152, or more current form) is issued for the project.  The Inspector shall obtain the 
forms DSA 152 prior to commencement of the construction and enter the “Card Start 
Date” on the forms DSA.  The Inspector shall sign off applicable blocks and sections of 
the forms DSA 152 when: 


11.3.1. The completed work is in compliance with the DSA approved construction 
documents. 


11.3.2. All necessary testing and inspections are complete. 


147/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 4 


11.3.3. Any deviations from the DSA approved plans are resolved. 


11.3.4. Any DSA field trip note issues are resolved. 


11.3.5. All necessary documents are received by the Inspector. 
 


11.4. The Inspector shall obtain a copy of the DSA approved Construction Documents from 
the Architect prior to the commencement of construction.  The Inspector shall study and 
fully comprehend the requirements of the Construction Documents in order to provide 
competent inspection of the Construction Work.  The Inspector shall consult the 
Architect to resolve any uncertainties in the Inspector’s comprehension of the plans and 
specifications.  The Inspector shall possess a thorough understanding of the 
requirements of the plans and specifications for each portion of Construction Work 
before that portion of Construction Work is performed. 


 
11.5. The Inspector shall obtain a copy of the DSA approved Statement of Structural Tests 


and Special Inspections (form DSA 103, or more current form) from the Architect prior 
to commencement of construction.  The Inspector shall meet with the District, design 
professionals, and contractor as needed to mutually communicate and understand the 
testing and inspection program and the methods of communication appropriate for the 
project.  The Inspector shall meet with the Laboratory of Record to mutually 
communicate and understand the testing and inspection program and the methods of 
communication appropriate for the project.  The Inspector shall monitor the work of the 
Laboratory of Record and Special Inspectors to ensure the testing and special inspection 
programs is satisfactorily completed, including verify code-compliant implementation of 
the materials testing and special inspection program, as applicable, including 
notification of materials testing labs, the performance of material sampling and special 
inspections, and the review of all material sampling and special inspection reports.  The 
Inspector shall not be required to conduct tests that are specified in the Contract 
Documents to be performed by a testing or inspection laboratory or firm. 


 
11.6. Inspector shall comply with all the requirements of a DSA project inspector including, 


without limitation, all the requirements included and/or referenced in the following 
forms: 


 
11.6.1. Form DSA IR A-7, Project Inspector: Certification and Approval. 


 
11.6.2. Form DSA IR A-8, Project Inspector and Assistant Inspector: Duties and 


Performance Rating by DSA.  
 


11.6.3. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process Procedure. 
 


11.6.4. DSA 152 Manual. 
 


11.7. The Inspector shall identify all non-compliant Construction Work as work on the Project 
progresses in order to facilitate timely corrective action. 


11.8. The Inspector shall not authorize deviations from the Contract Documents. 


148/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 5 


12. Inspector Maintenance of Records, Job File, and Building Codes 
 


12.1. Inspection Records.  The Inspector shall maintain detailed, comprehensive, 
organized, accessible, and timely documentation of all inspections of the Construction 
Work (“Inspection Records”).  The Inspection Records shall identify all compliant and 
non-compliant Construction Work.  The Inspection Records shall include, without 
limitation: 


 
12.1.1. A systematic record of the inspection of all Construction Work required by the 


Construction Documents.  The Inspector shall perform this by marking 
properly completed Construction Work on a set of Construction Documents to 
verify that the requirements of the plans and specifications have been met. 


12.1.2. Construction Procedure Records (Title 24, Part 1, Section 4-342(6)) including, 
without limitation, concrete placement operations, welding operations, pile 
penetration blow counts, and other records specified on the approved 
Construction Documents. 


12.1.3. The resolution of reported deviations. 
12.1.4. Daily job log of the Inspector’s time spent on the Site(s). 


 
12.2. Job File.  The Inspector shall maintain a record of its attendance on the Site(s) and 


shall maintain files of schedules, notes, communications, records, documents, and 
drawings on behalf of the District.  The schedules, notes, communications, records, 
documents, and drawings shall be regularly reviewed with the District, shall be kept in 
an order as directed by the District (e.g. by date or type of transaction).  The Inspector 
shall assist District staff in preparing quarterly progress reports to the governing board 
of the District.  In addition, the Inspector shall organize and maintain a complete 
system of construction records, including, but not limited to: 


 
12.2.1. Form DSA 152 – Project Inspection Card, or more current form, 
12.2.2. DSA approved plans and specifications 
12.2.3. Form DSA 103 – Statement of Structural Tests and Special Inspections, or 


more current form, 
12.2.4. Deferred submittals as required by the DSA approved plans. 
12.2.5. Addenda and Revisions. 
12.2.6. Construction Change Documents and log. 
12.2.7. Contractor submittals (construction schedule, shop drawings, materials 


certificates, product labels, concrete trip tickets, etc.), as required by DSA 
approved specifications. 


12.2.8. Communication log; all communications and project related meeting 
minutes/notes. 


12.2.9. Notices of Deviations/Resolution of Deviations (form DSA 154, or more 
current form,), as delivered to the DSA, architect and contractor with log 
listing all notices with resolution status. 


12.2.10. Evidence of continuous inspection, such as inspector daily reports. 
12.2.11. Laboratory test and inspection reports. 
12.2.12. Special inspection reports. 
12.2.13. Records of concrete placing operations. 
12.2.14. Records of welding operations. 
12.2.15. Records of pile driving operations. 
12.2.16. Verified Reports from all parties required to file Verified Reports using form 


DSA 6, or more current form. 
12.2.17. Completed Semi-monthly Reports. 
12.2.18. DSA Field Trip Notes. 
12.2.19. Applicable codes and referenced standards. 
12.2.20. Any other documents required to provide a complete record of construction. 


149/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 6 


 
The job file shall be kept on the job site until completion of the project and readily 
accessible to DSA personnel during site visits.  Upon request, Inspector shall make a 
copy of the entire Job File available to the DSA. 
 
All these records and all documents kept by the Inspector shall be and remain the 
property of the District.  At the completion of the construction, Inspector shall provide a 
copy of the Job File, with the exception of the building codes and standards, to the 
District.  If the Inspector is, for any reason, terminated prior to the completion of the 
project, Inspector must ensure transfer of the Job File to the assuming Project Inspector 
and to the District. 
 
If any of the following events occur, the Inspector shall submit a copy of a portion of 
the Job File to the DSA: 
 


 The services of the Inspector are terminated for any reason prior to completion 
of the project. 


 When the construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA 
approved construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the 
project. 


 Work on the project is suspended for a period of more than one year. 
 Upon request by the DSA. 


 
The portion of the Job File to be submitted to the DSA shall consist of the following 
forms, or more current form: 


 DSA 152 – Project Inspection Card 
 DSA 6-PI from all Project Inspectors involved in the project including in-plant 


inspector (if applicable) 
 DSA 6-AE from the architect/engineer 
 DSA 6-C from each contractor having a contract with the District 
 DSA 292 form all special inspectors contracting directly and individually with the 


District 
 DSA 291 from the engineering manager of the laboratory of record 
 DSA 293 from the geotechnical engineer of record 
 DSA 130 – Certificate of Compliance for Bleacher/Grandstand Fabricator (if 


applicable) 
 


12.3. Building Codes.  In addition to the above documents, the Inspector shall keep at the 
Site(s), a copy of all applicable building codes and regulations necessary to perform 
required inspections, including, without limitation, the following parts of Title 24 of the 
California Code of Regulations in the edition referenced in the Contract Documents:  


 
12.3.1. Title 24, Part 1 (Administrative Code) 
12.3.2. Title 24, Part 2, Volumes 1, 2, and 3 (Building Code) 
12.3.3. Title 24, Part 3 (Electrical Code) 
12.3.4. Title 24, Part 4 (Mechanical Code) 
12.3.5. Title 24, Part 5 (Plumbing Code) 
12.3.6. Title 24, Part 6 (Energy Code) 


150/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 7 


13. Communications, Reporting, and Notifications 
 


13.1. DSA Notification.  The Inspector shall notify DSA: 
 


13.1.1. At least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the start of any Construction Work at 
each Site. 


13.1.2. At least forty-eight (48) hours prior to completion of any foundation 
excavations/trenches. 


13.1.3. At least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the first concrete pour/placement at 
any Site. 


13.1.4. At least forty-eight (48) hours prior to significant concrete pour/placement at 
any Site. 


13.1.5. When Construction Work has been suspended for a period of more than one 
(1) month. 


 
Notification shall be made on form DSA 151, or more current form, and shall be sent 
electronically to the DSA.  A copy of each notification shall be kept in the Inspector’s Job 
File. 


 
13.2. Notification of District and Architect.  The Inspector shall immediately report to the 


District, the Architect, and the construction manager any failure by any contractor or 
subcontractor to comply with the Contract Documents, or any attempted substitutions 
of required materials and/or workmanship in any portion of the Construction Work.  The 
Inspector shall inform the District, the Architect, and the construction manager of any 
conflicts, ambiguity, and/or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents and of any 
interpretations, suggestions, comments, and/or criticisms the Inspector has related to 
the Project or the Contract Documents.  The Inspector shall advise the District of 
needed inspections related to the status of the Construction Work, and the District shall 
provide the schedule of Construction Work to the Inspector so that both Parties arrange 
timely inspections. 


 
13.3. Deviation Notification of Contractor(s).  The Inspector shall notify a contractor 


verbally and in writing of any deviations from the approved Contract Documents by that 
contractor or its subcontractors.  Deviations include both construction deviations and 
material deficiencies.  If the contractor does not correct the deviation within a 
reasonable time frame after the verbal notice, then the Inspector shall promptly issue a 
written notice of deviation to the contractor using form DSA 154, or more current form, 
with a copy sent to the District, the Architect, the construction manager, if any, and the 
DSA.  The Inspector shall promptly issue a written notice of resolution to the contractor 
using the original form DSA 154 that reported the deviations, with a copy sent to the 
District, the Architect, the construction manager, if any, and the DSA.  Notices shall be 
sent electronically to the DSA and kept in the Job File. 


 
13.4. Contractor Inquiries.  Contractors are expected to direct inquiries regarding 


Construction Document interpretation to the Architect through the Inspector or the 
Construction Manager (if applicable), including the contractor’s uncertainties regarding 
the Construction Documents.  The Inspector shall document these inquiries and 
immediately forward them to the Architect for response.  


 
13.5. Construction Manager.  The Inspector shall also work with the construction manager 


if the District uses a construction manager on any portion of the Project.  If the District 
does not use a construction manager on the Project, then all references to a 
construction manager herein shall mean the District.   


 


151/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 8 


14. Inspector Responsibilities for Forms and Reports   
 


14.1. Semi-Monthly Reports.  The Inspector shall submit semi-monthly reports using form 
DSA 155, or more current form, on the 1st and the 16th of each month to the District, 
the Architect and the project structural engineer, and DSA.  Reports shall be sent 
electronically to the DSA and kept in the Job File. 


 
14.2. Verified Reports.  The Inspector shall submit verified reports directly to the DSA, the 


Architect and the District upon any of the following events occurring: 
 


14.2.1. Work on the project is suspended for a period of more than one (1) month. 
14.2.2. The services of the Inspector are terminated for any reason prior to the 


completion of the project. 
14.2.3. At the time of occupancy of any building, or portion of a building, involved in 


the project prior to the completion of the entire DSA approved scope of work. 
14.2.4. When the construction is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the DSA 


approved construction documents, so that the District can occupy or utilize 
the project. 


14.2.5. DSA requests a verified report. 
 


Each verified report shall be on form DSA 6-PI and forms DSA 152, or more current 
form, as appropriate.  Reports shall be sent electronically to the DSA and kept in the 
Job File. 


 
14.3. All Other Reports.  In addition, the Inspector shall initiate and file with DSA prior to 


their due date, any other Project-related, forms, required of contractors, 
subcontractors, testing and inspection laboratories, and the District.  The Inspector 
shall prepare and forward to the District, Architect, and DSA all other reports required 
by Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, the State, and/or DSA. 


15. Inspector Responsibilities for Laboratory Structural Tests.  The Inspector shall initiate 
and expedite testing by independent test laboratories and shall maintain all necessary back up 
information for special inspection invoice processing, and shall be responsible for the 
sequential progress of the Project related to the test lab reports. 


16. Inspector Responsibilities at Beginning of Occupancy.  The Inspector shall observe the 
District’s occupancy or movement of District-furnished equipment to each Site before 
completion and record and report any damages occurring so any claims may be fully 
documented.  


17. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The Inspector shall conform to the following specific 
rules and regulations as well as all other applicable laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations.  
Nothing in the drawings, plans and specifications is to be construed to permit Construction 
Work not conforming to these codes. 


 
17.1. California Code of Regulations, Title 24, including amendments, in the edition 


referenced in the Contract Documents. 
17.2. Regulations of the State Fire Marshall (Title 19, California Code of Regulations) and 


applicable local fire safety codes. 
17.3. Labor Code of the State of California - Division 2, Part 7, Public Works and Public 


Agencies. 
17.4. Education Code of the State of California 
17.5. Industrial Accident Commission's Safety Orders, State of California. 
17.6. National Electrical Safety Code, U. S. Department of Commerce. 
17.7. National Board of Fire Underwriters' Regulations. 


152/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 9 


17.8. Manual of Accident Prevention in Construction, latest edition, published by the American 
General Contractors of America. 


 
The Inspector certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code, the California 
Code of Regulations, and/or precedential decisions of the California Department of Industrial 
Relations and/or any of its subsidiary divisions that require the payment of prevailing wage 
rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “maintenance” 
projects (“Prevailing Wage Laws”).  Since the Inspector is performing Services as part of an 
applicable “public works” or “maintenance” project, and since the total compensation is 
$1,000 or more, the Inspector agrees to fully comply with and to require its consultant(s) to 
fully comply with all applicable Prevailing Wage Laws. 


18. Facilities/Equipment.  The District shall provide for the Inspector’s operational needs, such 
as office supplies, telephone, and fax machine. 


19. Extended Services.  The Inspector shall provide additional extended Services for the Project 
made necessary by Construction Work damaged by fire or other Acts of God during 
construction, or prolongation of the initial construction contract time beyond the construction 
contract time schedule. 


20. Inspector Certification.  The Inspector shall provide the District a copy of documents 
satisfactory to the District certifying that the Inspector holds proper state certification and 
approval by DSA to perform the required Services for this Agreement.  The Inspector shall 
also provide any other documents or certification requested by the District.  The Inspector 
shall initiate and provide the District with Form DSA-5, or more current 
qualification/certification form. 


21. Substitute Inspector and/or Assistant Inspector.  The Inspector shall provide the 
Services throughout the term of this Agreement, and shall not delegate its duties without the 
full knowledge and prior written consent of the District.  In the event of the Inspector’s 
absence for more than two (2) consecutive days or unavailability for scheduled inspections, 
the Inspector, at no cost to the District, shall secure a substitute inspector and/or assistant 
inspector who shall be appropriately certified, approved by DSA, and pre-approved in writing 
by the District, to perform the Services.  Certification documents for the approved substitute 
inspector(s) and/or assistant inspector(s) shall be presented to the District within thirty (30) 
working days after the date of this Agreement.  All substitute inspector(s) and assistant 
inspector(s) shall be obligated to perform the Services while performing any work on the 
Project.  The Inspector shall provide technical guidance and monitoring of all substitute 
inspector(s) and assistant inspector(s). 


22. Other Jobs Outside of the Project.  The Inspector shall be required to work full-time on the 
Project, and shall not work on or be under contract for another project without prior written 
approval from the District, and without a reduction in compensation proportionate to the 
amount of time Inspector is required to be absent for responsibilities to another project. 


 
22.1. In the event that this Agreement involves a company of inspectors, a DSA-approved 


inspector shall be designated as the Inspector for the District, and shall be on constant 
duty at each Site as described in this Agreement. 


 
22.2. The Inspector shall have the right to request and obtain an uncompensated release for 


a reasonable amount of time to fulfill unavoidable duties on other incomplete projects in 
progress at the beginning of the Project. 


 
23. Audit.  Consultant shall establish and maintain books, records, and systems of account, in 


accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, reflecting all business operations of 


153/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 10 


Consultant transacted under this Agreement.  Consultant shall retain these books, records, 
and systems of account during the Term of this Agreement and for five (5) years thereafter.  
Consultant shall permit the District, its agent, other representatives, or an independent 
auditor to audit, examine, and make excerpts, copies, and transcripts from all books and 
records, and to make audit(s) of all billing statements, invoices, records, and other data 
related to the Services covered by this Agreement.  Audit(s) may be performed at any time, 
provided that the District shall give reasonable prior notice to Consultant and shall conduct 
audit(s) during Consultant’s normal business hours, unless Consultant otherwise consents. 


 
24. Termination.   
 


24.1. For Convenience by District.  District may, at any time, with or without reason, 
terminate this Agreement and compensate Consultant only for services satisfactorily 
rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by District shall be sufficient to stop 
further performance of services by Consultant.  Notice shall be deemed given when 
received by the Consultant or no later than three days after the day of mailing, 
whichever is sooner. 


 
 


24.2. With Cause by District.  District may terminate this Agreement upon giving of written 
notice of intention to terminate for cause.  Cause shall include:   


24.2.1. material violation of  this Agreement by the Consultant;  or   


24.2.2. any act by Consultant exposing the District to liability to others for personal 
injury or property damage; or 


24.2.3. Consultant is adjudged a bankrupt, Consultant makes a general assignment for 
the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed on account of Consultant's 
insolvency.   


 
Written notice by District shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and 
unless within three (3) calendar days after that notice the condition or violation shall 
cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this Agreement 
shall upon the expiration of the three (3) calendar days cease and terminate.  In the 
event of this termination, the District may secure the required services from another 
Consultant.  If the expense, fees, and/or costs to the District exceed the cost of 
providing the service pursuant to this Agreement, the Consultant shall immediately pay 
the excess expense, fees, and/or costs to the District upon the receipt of the District’s 
notice of these expense, fees, and/or costs.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to 
and not a limitation of any other rights or remedies available to District.   
 


25. Indemnification.  To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Consultant shall 
defend, indemnify, and hold free and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, 
representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers (“the indemnified 
parties”) from any and all claims that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant, its officers, employees, subcontractors, 
consultants, or agents.  The District shall have the right to accept or reject any legal 
representation that Consultant proposes to defend the indemnified parties. 


 
26. Insurance. 
 


26.1. The Consultant shall procure and maintain at all times it performs any portion of the 
Services the following insurance with minimum limits equal to the amount indicated 
below.   


154/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 11 


 
Type of Coverage Minimum 


Requirement 
Commercial General Liability Insurance, including Bodily 
Injury, Personal Injury, Property Damage, Advertising Injury, 
and Medical Payments 


Each Occurrence 
General Aggregate         


 
 
 
$ 1,000,000 
$ 1,000,000 


Automobile Liability Insurance -  Any Auto 
Each Occurrence 
General Aggregate 


 
$ 1,000,000 
$ 1,000,000 


Professional Liability                            $ 1,000,000 
Workers Compensation Statutory Limits 
Employer’s Liability $ 1,000,000 


 
26.1.1. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance.  


Commercial General Liability Insurance and Any Auto Automobile Liability 
Insurance that shall protect the Consultant, the District, and the State from all 
claims of bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, death, advertising 
injury, and medical payments arising performing any portion of the Services.  
(Form CG 0001 and CA 0001, or forms substantially similar, if approved by the 
District.) 


 
26.1.2. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance.  Workers’ 


Compensation Insurance and Employers’ Liability Insurance for all of its 
employees performing any portion of the Services. In accordance with 
provisions of section 3700 of the California Labor Code, the Consultant shall be 
required to secure workers’ compensation coverage for its employees.  If any 
class of employee or employees engaged in performing any portion of the 
Services under this Agreement are not protected under the Workers’ 
Compensation Statute, adequate insurance coverage for the protection of any 
employee(s) not otherwise protected must be obtained before any of those 
employee(s) commence performing any portion of the Services. 


 
26.1.3. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions).  Professional Liability 


Insurance as appropriate to the Consultant’s profession. 
 
26.2. Proof of Carriage of Insurance.  The Consultant shall not commence performing any 


portion of the Services until all required insurance has been obtained and certificates 
indicating the required coverage have been delivered in duplicate to the District and 
approved by the District.  Certificates and insurance policies shall include the following:  


 
26.2.1. A clause stating:  “This policy shall not be canceled or reduced in required limits 


of liability or amounts of insurance until notice has been mailed to the District, 
stating date of cancellation or reduction.  Date of cancellation or reduction shall 
not be less than thirty (30) days after date of mailing notice.” 


 
26.2.2. Language stating in particular those insured, extent of insurance, location and 


operation to which insurance applies, expiration date, to whom cancellation and 
reduction notice will be sent, and length of notice period. 


 
26.2.3. An endorsement stating that the District and its Board of Education, agents, 


representatives, employees, trustees, officers, consultants, and volunteers are 
named additional insured under all policies except Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance, Professional Liability, and Employers’ Liability Insurance.  An 


155/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 12 


endorsement shall also state that Consultant’s insurance policies shall be 
primary to any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District.  An 
endorsement shall also state that there shall be a waiver of any subrogation. 


 
26.2.4. All policies except the Professional Liability, Workers’ Compensation Insurance, 


and Employers’ Liability Insurance Policies shall be written on an occurrence 
form. 


 
26.3. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. 


Best’s rating of no less than A: VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the District.  
 
27. Assignment.  The obligations of the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall not be 


assigned by the Consultant.  
 
28. Compliance with Laws.  Consultant shall observe and comply with all rules and regulations 


of the governing board of the District and all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances and 
regulations.  Consultant shall give all notices required by any law, ordinance, rule and 
regulation bearing on conduct of the Work as indicated or specified.  If Consultant observes 
that any of the Work required by this Contract is at variance with any such laws, ordinance, 
rules or regulations, Consultant shall notify the District, in writing, and, at the sole option of 
the District, any necessary changes to the scope of the Work shall be made and this Contract 
shall be appropriately amended in writing, or this Contract shall be terminated effective upon 
Consultant’s receipt of a written termination notice from the District.  If Consultant performs 
any work that is in violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations, without first 
notifying the District of the violation, Consultant shall bear all costs arising therefrom. 


 
29. Certificates/Permits/Licenses.  Consultant and all Consultant's employees or agents shall 


secure and maintain in force such certificates, permits and licenses as are required by law in 
connection with the furnishing of Services pursuant to this Agreement.  


 
30. Employment with Public Agency.  Consultant, if an employee of another public agency, 


agrees that Consultant will not receive salary or remuneration, other than vacation pay, as an 
employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are actually being 
performed pursuant to this Agreement.  


 
31. Anti-Discrimination.  It is the policy of the District that in connection with all work 


performed under Contracts there be no discrimination against any employee engaged in the 
work because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religious creed, physical disability, 
medical condition, marital status, sexual orientation, gender, or age and therefore the 
Consultant agrees to comply with applicable Federal and California laws including, but not 
limited to the California Fair Employment and Housing Act beginning with Government Code 
Section 12900 and Labor Code Section 1735 and District policy.  In addition, the Consultant 
agrees to require like compliance by all of its subcontractor(s). 


 
32. Fingerprinting of Employees.  The Fingerprinting/Criminal Background Investigation 


Certification must be completed and attached to this Agreement prior to Consultant’s 
performing of any portion of the Services.  


 
33. No Rights in Third Parties.  This Agreement does not create any rights in, or inure to the 


benefit of, any third party except as expressly provided herein. 
 
34. District’s Evaluation of Consultant and Consultant’s Employees and/or 


Subcontractors.  The District may evaluate the Consultant in any way the District is entitled 
pursuant to applicable law. The District’s evaluation may include, without limitation: 


 


156/567







 


Independent Consultant Agreement (Project Inspection Services)        Page 13 


34.1. Requesting that District employee(s) evaluate the Consultant and the Consultant’s 
employees and subcontractors and each of their performance. 


 
34.2. Announced and unannounced observance of Consultant, Consultant’s employee(s), 


and/or subcontractor(s). 
 
35. Limitation of District Liability.  Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s 


financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the 
compensation provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, in no event, shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on 
contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but 
not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement for 
the services performed in connection with this Agreement. 


 
36. Confidentiality.  The Consultant and all Consultant’s agents, personnel, employee(s), and/or 


subcontractor(s) shall maintain the confidentiality of all information received in the course of 
performing the Services.  Consultant understands that student records are confidential and 
agrees to comply with all state and federal laws concerning the maintenance and disclosure of 
student records.  This requirement to maintain confidentiality shall extend beyond the 
termination of this Agreement. 


 
37. Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed 


to have been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally delivered or 
deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt required, or sent by overnight delivery service, or facsimile transmission, addressed as 
follows: 


 
District: 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street 
Santa Cruzl, California 95060 
ATTN: Trevor Miller 


Consultant: 
 
Alioto Construction Inspections 
3131B North Main St. 
Soquel CA 95073 
ATTN: Ross Alioto 


 
Any notice personally given or sent by e-mail shall be effective upon receipt.  Any notice sent 
by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next following delivery thereof 
to the overnight delivery service.  Any notice given by mail shall be effective three (3) days 
after deposit in the United States mail. 


 
38. Integration/Entire Agreement of Parties.  This Agreement constitutes the entire 


agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, and 
agreements, whether oral or written.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a 
written instrument executed by both Parties. 


 
39. California Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and the rights, duties and obligations 


of the Parties shall be determined and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California.  The Parties further agree that any action or proceeding brought to enforce the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be maintained in the county in which the 
District’s administrative offices are located. 


 
40. Waiver.  The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition herein 


contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, condition, or any 
subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition herein contained. 


 


157/567







158/567







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Earth Systems Quote for Geotechnical Letter for the Santa Cruz 
High School Sports Complex Upgrades 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Earth Systems quote for geotechnical letter for the Santa Cruz High School sports 
complex upgrades.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services, it consists of a geotechnical letter regarding the 
foundation parameters for a softball scoreboard that is within a flood zone as part of the sports 
complex upgrades at Santa Cruz High school.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,000.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.003% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


159/567







160/567







161/567







Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services    AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Monterey Peninsula Engineering Bid and Contract for Site Work at 
Branciforte Small Schools PC Classroom  


      
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Monterey Peninsula Engineering bid and contract for site work at Branciforte Small 
Schools PC classroom. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The project consists of excavation and pad preparation for new modular building by others, site 
utilities, flatwork, building fire alarm and low voltage work at Branciforte Small Schools. 
 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors, noticed to the builder’s plan room and 
advertised in the local newspapers. Seven bids were received. Galeb Paving, Inc. withdrew their 
bid due to a clerical error. Monterey Peninsula Engineering was the successful low bidder.  


Bid Summary 


 
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to Monterey Peninsula Engineering, the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$648,000.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 4.85% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 


Monterey Peninsula Engineering Monterey $648,000.00 


Commercial Plumbing & Building San Jose $943,850.00 


CRW Industries, Inc. Scotts Valley $669,228.00 


ESR Construction, Inc. Los Altos $848,395.00 


Shreder & Brandt Mfg., Inc Chico $736,000.00 


Guerra Construction Group Santa Clara $738,100.00 


Galeb Paving, Inc. Saratoga $524,000.00 


LOW BID Monterey Peninsula Engineering $648,000.00 


162/567







163/567







164/567







165/567







166/567







167/567







168/567







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Moore Twining Associates, Inc. Proposal for Geotechnical 
Engineering of Buildings C & D at Santa Cruz High School for the 
Modernization Phase 2 Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Moore Twining Associates, Inc. proposal for geotechnical engineering of buildings 
C and D at Santa Cruz High School for the modernization phase 2 project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services. The intent of this investigation is to provide 
geotechnical engineering parameters for use in project design and to also satisfy the 
requirements of the 2016 California Building Code (CBC),  California Administrative Code, DSA 
IR A-4, and California Geological Survey (CGS) Note 48.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$11,200.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.03% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


169/567







www.mooretwining.com
PH: 559.268.7021
FX:  559.268.7126
2527 Fresno Street
Fresno, CA 93721


January 31, 2019 MTP 19-0085


Mr. Trevor Miller
Director of Facilities 
Santa Cruz City Schools
133 Mission Street, Suite 100
Santa Cruz, California 94518


Subject: Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering and Geologic/Seismic Hazards  Investigation
Existing School Building Addition and Remodel (Building C and D) 
Santa Cruz High School
415 Walnut Avenue
Santa Cruz, California


Dear Mr. Miller:
    


We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal to conduct a geotechnical engineering and
geohazards investigation for the above referenced project.  This proposal outlines our understanding
of the proposed project, describes our scope of services, provides our estimate of fees for our
services, and details the terms and limitations of our work.  Our fee estimate assumes that the work
will be subject to California Prevailing Wage Laws.


PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION


The following project description is based on information provided by Mr. Laszlo Petrik (Bartos
Architecture), including plan sheets (A0.1, A0.2, A0.3, A2.0, A2.1, A5.0 & A6.0) prepared by Bartos
Architecture, provided on January23, 2019, discussions with Mr. Petrik; and our review of a satellite
site image showing the desired boring locations.


Santa Cruz High School is located at 415 Walnut Avenue in Santa Cruz, California.  The plans
provided indicate the western portion of the existing building is identified as Building C
(classrooms) and the eastern side is identified as Building D (cafeteria and kitchen).  It is understood
that Building C includes a raised wood floor and Building D includes a slab on grade floor.  Based
on the information provided, a new, approximately 750 square foot bathroom addition is planned on
the eastern side of the Building D area.  In addition, an existing bearing wall within Building C may
be removed and replaced with new columns supported on shallow spread footings and various
seismic upgrades may be constructed as part of the improvements.  Furthermore, the existing entry
stairs on the north and south sides of Building C will be removed and new entry stairs, ramps, etc.
will be constructed.


170/567







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 19-0085
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation
Existing School Building Addition and Remodel January 31, 2019
Santa Cruz High School, Santa Cruz, California Page 2


ANTICIPATED SOIL CONDITIONS


Based on our review of soil survey maps prepared by the United States Department of Agriculture,
Natural Resources Conservation Service, the near surface soils at the subject site are anticipated to
consist of lean clays, fat clays, silts and clayey sands to a depth of about 5 feet site grade.


Based on our review of Santa Cruz County online GIS map for liquefaction areas, the subject site
is located in an area of potential liquefaction hazards. 


PURPOSE OF INVESTIGATION


The purpose of the investigation will be to conduct an exploration program for the proposed project,
evaluate the data collected during the field and laboratory operations, and provide geotechnical
engineering parameters for use in project design.  The intent of this investigation is also to satisfy
the requirements of the 2016 California Building Code (CBC), as related to geotechnical
investigations.  


If desired, this proposal includes an add/alternate scope of work to include a geologic/seismic
hazards assessment.  The intent of the geohazards (if this scope is authorized) is to satisfy the
requirements of the California Administrative Code, DSA IR A-4, and California Geological Survey
(CGS) Note 48 as related to geohazards investigations. 


SCOPE OF SERVICES


Moore Twining Associates, Inc. will provide the following services in connection with this project.


A. Research


Moore Twining will review existing soil survey reports, geologic maps, existing flood plain maps,
dam and tsunami inundation maps, volcanic hazard maps, etc. and existing geotechnical engineering
report(s) previously prepared at the campus which are made available by the client. 


B. Field Investigation


Based on the desired boring location plan provided and our subsequent discussions with Mr. Laszlo
Petrik (Bartos Architecture), four (4) borings will be drilled for the field exploration.  Due to access
constraints, it is anticipated two (2) of the borings will be drilled using a CME-75 drill rig with
hollow stem augers to depths of 20 and 50 feet below site grades (BSG) and two (2) of the borings
will be drilled with hand auger equipment to a depth of about 4 to 5 feet BSG.  One boring will be


171/567







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 19-0085
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation
Existing School Building Addition and Remodel January 31, 2019
Santa Cruz High School, Santa Cruz, California Page 3


drilled in the restroom addition area, one boring will be drilled north of Building C and two (2)
borings will be drilled south of Building D.  This proposal does not include subsurface exploration
inside the existing building footprint.  Prior to the start of the field investigation, Moore Twining will
mark the site for Underground Service Alert for public utility clearance and clearance by Santa Cruz
City School staff for known facilities.  In addition this proposal includes the services of a private
utility locating service to reduce the potential for damage to existing unmarked utilities at the boring
locations. 


This estimate is preliminary, the exact location, number, and depth of borings may be revised based
on site constraints, and the soil conditions encountered.  At the completion of the drilling and
sampling operations, the boring holes will be backfilled with soil cuttings.  Excess cuttings will be
spread in landscaped areas at the site.  Borings placed through existing asphalt will be patched  with
asphalt cold patch material to restore the pavement surface.   During our field exploration, standard
penetration testing will be conducted and both bulk and relatively undisturbed samples will be
obtained for laboratory analysis and standard penetration testing will be performed.  The field
investigation will be conducted under the direction of a registered geotechnical engineer from our
firm.


It should be noted that during drilling operations, noise disruption may occur and pedestrian access
would have to be restricted around the work area to safe distance.  Therefore, it may be advantageous
to conduct the field investigation either after school hours or on a weekend.  So, an optional cost is
provided for crew overtime to conduct the field investigation outside of normal business hours.   


C. Laboratory Testing


We will perform laboratory tests to determine pertinent engineering and index properties of the soils
at the site.  These will include tests for moisture and density, sieve analyses, shear strength, Atterberg
Limits, expansion index, and consolidation.  In addition, we will conduct pH, resistivity, sulfate
content, and chloride content tests on near-surface soil samples to evaluate soil corrosivity.  The
types of tests conducted may be adjusted based on the subsurface soil conditions encountered.


D. Analysis and Recommendations


We will consult with your design professionals concerning our findings and to discuss
recommendations and alternatives (if needed). 


The geotechnical engineering report will contain our findings, analysis, conclusions, and
recommendations for project design, including the following:


1. A description of general subsurface soil and groundwater conditions encountered;


2. Soil profile type, site coefficients and adjusted Maximum Considered Earthquake spectral
response acceleration parameters in accordance with the 2016 California Building Code; 


172/567







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 19-0085
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation
Existing School Building Addition and Remodel January 31, 2019
Santa Cruz High School, Santa Cruz, California Page 4


3. Recommendations for earthwork construction, including site and subgrade preparation, and
engineered fill;


4. Recommendations for temporary excavations, trench excavation, trench backfill, and
excavation stability;


5. Foundation design parameters including allowable soil bearing capacity, foundation depth,
coefficient of friction, active and passive soil pressures;


6. Estimates of static settlement for foundation design;


7. Evaluation of liquefaction and seismic settlements;


8. Recommendations for exterior concrete flatwork;


9. Evaluation of soil corrosivity potential; and


10. Final test boring logs and laboratory test results.


If desired, the geohazards portion of the report will contain at least the following:  


1. Evaluation of geologic/seismic hazards including distance from site to nearest active faults,


2. Regional geology and regional fault maps, preparation of a geologic map of the site and
geologic cross sections (using boring data from the geotechnical engineering investigation),


3. Evaluation of historic seismicity, preparation of a historical earthquake epicenter map
relative to the site, and 


4. Evaluations of other potential geologic hazards such as flooding, landslides, seiches,
tsunamis and volcanic activity in accordance with the CGS requirements.


Moore Twining’s professional services will be performed, our findings obtained, and our
recommendations prepared in accordance with generally-accepted geotechnical engineering
principles and practices at the time the work is performed.  This warranty is in lieu of all other
warranties either expressed or implied.


173/567







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 19-0085
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation
Existing School Building Addition and Remodel January 31, 2019
Santa Cruz High School, Santa Cruz, California Page 5


DELIVERABLES


Upon project completion, an electronic copy of the report will be provided to the client.  If desired,
hard copies of the report can be distributed by Moore Twining. 


FEE ESTIMATE


Based on the information provided, the geotechnical engineering investigation be provided for an
estimated base fee of $8,950 as indicated in Table No. 1 with an add/alternate for a geologic/seismic
hazards assessment for a fee of $850 (if required).  Thus, the base fee for the geotechnical
investigation and geologic/seismic hazard assessment would be $9,800.  Also, the “add” fee for
performing the geotechnical engineering investigation outside of regular business hours would be
$1,400 (if required) as noted in Table No. 2.


Table No. 1
Summary of Tasks and Estimated Fee for Geotechnical Engineering and Geohazard


Investigation


Description of Service Estimated Fee


Private Utility Locator $1,250


Drilling Soil Borings with a Drill Rig to depths of 25 to 50 feet BSG $3,350


Field Engineer to Log Soil Borings and Collect Soil Samples $1,600


Laboratory Testing $1,100


Engineering Analysis and Report Preparation $1,650


Estimated Fee (Geotechnical Engineering Investigation Only) $8,950


ADD/ALTERNATE (If desired) - Geologic/Seismic Hazards
Assessment Report


$850


Estimated Fee (Geotechnical Engineering Investigation and
Geologic/Seismic Hazards Assessment)


$9,800


174/567







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 19-0085
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation
Existing School Building Addition and Remodel January 31, 2019
Santa Cruz High School, Santa Cruz, California Page 6


Table No. 2
Summary of Fees for Performing the Geotechnical Engineering Investigation Outside of


Regular Business Hours (if Required by Owner)


Description of Optional Service Estimated Fee


Shift Differential for Weekend or Holiday Work $1,400


The fee in this proposal is valid for a period of 60 days from the date of this proposal.  If site
conditions differ significantly from those anticipated as stated in this proposal, additional studies
may be necessary.  All additional work will be done only after the situation has been discussed and
client authorization had been obtained.


Soil samples collected during this investigation will be retained for thirty days from the date of the
final report, at which time samples will be discarded unless a written request is received from the
client to retain the samples longer.  Moore Twining will retain the samples for a longer period of
time, at the request of our client, at a nominal charge for storage.


The cost in this proposal includes transmitting the final copies of the report to the client via first class
U.S. Mail.  If it is desired that reports be express mailed or transmitted via facsimile machine, the
additional cost will be charged in addition to the above lump sum fee on the final invoice.


Payment is due upon receipt of invoice.  A finance charge may be added to all balances over thirty
days old.  This is computed at a rate of 1.5% per month which is an annual percentage rate of 18%.
A monthly progress invoice will be issued for work completed during each month.  A final invoice
will be issued upon project completion.


SCHEDULE


It is anticipated that our field investigation will begin within about seven (7) to ten (10) days from
authorization to proceed.  Additional time may be required to schedule drilling for weekend work,
if this is required by the client.  The geotechnical engineering investigation report and
geologic/seismic hazard assessment report (if desired) is anticipated to be completed about four (4)
weeks from completion of the field investigation.  If the report is desired sooner, Moore Twining
should be notified of the project schedule requirements and a revised proposal can be prepared.


175/567







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 19-0085
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation
Existing School Building Addition and Remodel January 31, 2019
Santa Cruz High School, Santa Cruz, California Page 7


TERMS


This proposal and the enclosed Agreement set forth the terms and conditions under which Moore
Twining Associates, Inc., will conduct the proposed Geotechnical Investigation.  If you find these
to be acceptable, please complete the client block and sign on the space provided on page 1 of the
agreement, initial in the client space provided at the top of page 2 and return.  Upon receipt of the
contract, we will sign and return a copy for your records.  Receipt of the signed agreement, or written
notice to proceed will serve as our notice to proceed and constitute permission to enter the site.  To
enter a property not owned by our client, Moore Twining would require written permission from the
property owner or his agent.


Moore Twining will not begin the investigation discussed in this proposal unless: 1) an executed
contract from the client, or 2) written authorization which is subject to the terms of the agreement,
is received.  A professional services agreement is attached to this proposal.  


ADDITIONAL SERVICES


Moore Twining can provide additional services related to the project, if desired.  Our firm can
provide construction inspection services in support of the project.  In addition, our firm can conduct
a review of the foundation and grading plans for conformance with the recommendations of the
geotechnical report.  However, these services are not included within the scope of this fee estimate.
A fee proposal can be provided when the plans have been received and a construction schedule is
known.


LIMITATION OF PROPOSAL


The client shall provide the right of entry to the project site.  This proposal assumes reasonable site
access by a truck mounted drilling rig.  The base fee in this proposal assumes the field exploration
will be conducted during normal business hours.  Items to be provided by the client, if available,
include a site plan showing structure locations, site grading, clearance of boring locations from
known underground utilities, and any special design requirements. 


No liability is assumed for damage to underground facilities or other site features that are not
accurately marked on the campus or shown on available site plans.  


This proposal specifically excludes environmental assessment.  If this service is desirable, our firm
would be pleased to prepare a separate proposal for such an assessment.  Hazardous materials or
certain types of hazardous materials may exist at a site where there is no reason to believe they could
or should be present.  The discovery of unanticipated hazardous materials constitutes a changed
condition mandating a renegotiation of the scope of work or termination of services.  We will notify
you as soon as practically possible should unanticipated hazardous materials or suspected hazardous
materials are encountered.  We will take any and all measures that in our professional opinion are


176/567







Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering MTP 19-0085
and Geologic/Seismic Hazards Investigation
Existing School Building Addition and Remodel January 31, 2019
Santa Cruz High School, Santa Cruz, California Page 8


justified to preserve and protect the health and safety of our personnel and the public, and/or the
environment.  The additional cost of such work would be charged on a time-and-expense basis over
and above the lump sum fee for the geotechnical study.


CLOSING


We appreciate being considered for this work.  If you have any questions regarding this proposal,
please contact me at (800) 268-7021.


Sincerely,
MOORE TWINING ASSOCIATES, INC.


Read L. Andersen, RGE 2810 
Manager
Geotechnical Engineering Division


enclosure: Professional Services Agreement


177/567







PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT


Santa Cruz City Schools and Moore Twining Associates, Inc.


Agreement entered into at      Fresno, California                                                                                                                              


made this                                                                   day of                                                                   , 2019, by and between


Client: Consultant:


Name Santa Cruz City Schools  Name Moore Twining Associates, Inc. 


Address 133 Mission Street, Suite 300 Address 2527 Fresno Street
Santa Cruz, California 95069 Fresno, California  93721


Phone   Phone (559) 268-7021
FAX          FAX (559) 268-7126


Santa Cruz City Schools and Moore Twining Associates, Inc. agree as follows:


Santa Cruz City Schools (hereafter called Client) intends to:


Retain consultant to provide geotechnical engineering services, as detailed in the attached proposal, identified as MTP 19-0085 dated January 31, 2019,
hereinafter called "project".


A. Moore Twining Associates, Inc. (hereafter called Moore Twining) agrees to perform the following scope of services:


Provide Geotechnical Engineering services for the project outlined in the attached proposal, identified as  MTP 19-0085 dated January 31, 2019. 


B. Client agrees to compensate Moore Twining for such services as follows:


Pursuant to the attached proposal, MTP 19-0085 dated January 31, 2019.    Payment is due upon receipt of invoice.  A finance charge may be added to
all balances over 30 days old.  This is computed at a rate of 1.5% per month which is an annual percentage rate of 18%.


C. This Agreement is subject to provisions 1 through 19 attached herewith and made a part hereof. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this agreement on the dates and upon the provisions stated.


Client Santa Cruz City Schools Consultant Moore Twining Associates, Inc.


By By


Name/Title Name/Title Read Andersen,  Geotechnical Engineering Manager


Date Signed Date Signed


11th February


2/11/2019


178/567







Provisions of Agreement (Reference MTP 19-0085)                                      Client Initial_______        Moore Twining ________


Client and Moore Twining agree that the following provisions shall be part of their agreement:


1. This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of client and Moore Twining.  This agreement shall not be assigned by either client
or Moore Twining without the prior written consent of the other.


2. All documents produced by Moore Twining under this agreement shall remain the property of Moore Twining and may not be used by client for any other endeavor without the
written consent of Moore Twining.


3. Unless otherwise stated, Moore Twining will have access to the Site for activities necessary for the performance of their services.  Moore Twining will take precautions to minimize
damage due to these activities, but have not included in the fee the cost of restoration of any resulting damage.


4. Unless otherwise specified, this agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.


5. Client agrees not to permit any other person to use plans, drawings, or other work product prepared by Moore Twining, which plans, drawings, or other work product are not final
and which are not signed, and stamped or sealed by Moore Twining.  If Moore Twining's work product exists in electronic or computerized format, or is transferred in electronic
or computerized format, the stamp, seal and signature shall be original and may not be a computer-generated copy, photocopy, or facsimile transmission of the original.


6. Client agrees that if client requests services not specified pursuant to the scope of services description within this agreement, client agrees to pay for all such additional services
as extra work according to Moore Twining's current fee schedule.


7. This agreement may be terminated by the client or Moore Twining should the other fail to perform its obligations hereunder. In the event of termination, client shall pay Moore
Twining for all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses, and reimbursable termination expenses.


8. Client acknowledges that Moore Twining is not responsible for the performance of work or Site safety by third parties including, but not limited to, the construction contractor and
its subcontractors.


9. Client shall pay the costs of checking and inspections fees, zoning and annexations applications fees, assessment fees, soils engineering fees, soils testing fees, aerial topography
fees, and all other fees, permits, bond premiums, title company charges, blueprints and reproductions, and all other charges not specifically covered by the terms of this agreement.


10. Moore Twining is not responsible for delay caused by activities or factors beyond Moore Twining's reasonable control, including but not limited to, delays by governmental agencies,
acts of God, failure of client to furnish timely information or approve or disapprove of Moore Twining's services or work product promptly, faulty performance by client or other
contractors or governmental agencies.  When such delays beyond Moore Twining's reasonable control occur, client agrees Moore Twining is not responsible for damages nor shall
Moore Twining be deemed to be in default of this agreement.


11. Moore Twining shall not be liable for damages resulting from the actions or inactions of governmental agencies including, but not limited to permit processing, environmental impact
reports, dedications, general plans and amendments thereto, zoning matters, annexations or consolidations, use or conditional use permits, project or plan approvals, and building
permits.  


12. Moore Twining makes no representation concerning the estimated quantities and probable costs made in connection with maps, plans, specifications, reports or drawings other than
that all such costs are estimates only and actual costs will vary.  It is the responsibility of client to verify costs.  In addition, estimates of land areas provided under this agreement
are not to be considered precise unless consultant specifically agrees to provide the precise determination of such areas.


13. Client agrees that in accordance with generally accepted construction practices, construction contractor will be required to assume sole and complete responsibility for job site
conditions during the course of constructionof the project, including all safety of all persons and property; that this requirement shall be made to applycontinuously and not be limited
to normal working hours, and client further agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Moore Twining harmless from any and all liability, real or alleged, in connection with the
performance of service on this project, excepting liability arising from the sole negligence of Moore Twining.


14. Moore Twining makes no warranty, either expressed or implied, as to its findings, recommendations, plans, specifications, or professional advice except that the service or work
product were performed pursuant to generally accepted standards of practice in California in effect at the time of performance.


15. In the event the client agrees to, permits, authorizes, constructs or permits construction of changes in the plans, specifications, and documents or does not follow recommendations
or reports prepared by Moore Twining pursuant to this agreement, which changes are not consented to in writing by Moore Twining, client acknowledges that the changes and their
effects are not the responsibility of Moore Twining and client agrees to release Moore Twining from all liability arising from the use of such changes and further agrees to defend,
indemnify and hold harmless Moore Twining, its officers, directors, principals, agents and employees from and against all claims, demands, damages or costs arising from the changes
and their effects.


16. In the event client discovers or becomes aware of changed field or other conditions which necessitate clarification, adjustments, modifications or other changes during any phase
of the project, client agrees to notify Moore Twining and engage Moore Twining to prepare the necessary clarifications, adjustments, modifications or other changes to Moore
Twining's services or work product before activities commence or further activity proceeds.  Further, client agrees to have a provision in its construction contracts for the project
which requires the contractor to notify client of any changes in field or other conditions so that client may in turn notify Moore Twining pursuant to this paragraph.


17. Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Moore Twining and all of its personnel from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including reasonable attorney
fees) arising out of or resulting from the performance of the services, provided that any such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in whole or in part by the negligent act,
omission, and/or strict liability of client, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the client (except Moore Twining), or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.


18. In recognition of the relative risks, rewards, and benefits of the project to both client and Moore Twining, the risks have been allocated such that client agrees that, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, Moore Twining's total liability to client and to all contractors and subcontractors for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages, or claim
expenses arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes, shall not exceed ten (10) times Moore Twining’s fee or $50,000.00, whichever is less.  Such causes include, but
are not limited to, Moore Twining’s negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, or breach of warranty.


19. (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement and except for the provisions of (b) and ©, if a dispute arises regarding Moore Twining's fees pursuant to this contract,
and if the fee dispute cannot be settled by discussions between client and Moore Twining, both client and Moore Twining agree to attempt to settle the fee dispute by mediation
through the American Arbitration Association [or other mediation service] before recourse to arbitration. If mediation does not resolve the fee dispute, such dispute shall be settled
by binding arbitration in accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association, and judgment upon the award rendered by the
Arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. (b) does not preclude or limit Moore Twining's right to elect to file an action for collection of fees if the amount
in dispute is within the jurisdiction of the small claims court. ©) does not preclude or limit Moore Twining's right to elect to perfect or enforce applicable mechanics lien remedies.


179/567







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC Proposal for Hazardous 
Materials Inspection and Specification Development for the 
Branciforte Middle School Music/MPR Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC proposal for hazardous materials inspections 
and specification development for the Branciforte Middle School Music/Multi-Purpose Room 
project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services. It is based on require compliance with regulations 
issued by the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), California OSHA 
(Cal/OSHA), the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and the MBARD. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$6,110.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.35% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


180/567







181/567







182/567







183/567







184/567







 
 


9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Suite 100 Monterey, CA 93940 T: 831-649-4623 www.M3environmental.com 


February 5, 2019 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller       Via email: 
Director of Facilities       trevormiller@sccs.net 
Santa Cruz City Schools   
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.429.3904 (p) 
 
 
Subject: Proposal for Hazardous Materials Inspection and Specification Development for the MPR 


Remodel at Branciforte Middle School Located at 315 Poplar Avenue in Santa Cruz, 
California. 


 M3 Proposal No. 192557 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
M3 Environmental Consulting (M3) is pleased to present this proposal to provide a hazardous material 
(primarily asbestos and lead) inspection services and subsequent abatement specification development for 
the remodel and painting of the Multipurpose Room (MPR) at Branciforte Middle School located at 315 
Poplar Avenue in Santa Cruz, California.   
 
Project Understanding 
 
M3 understands that interior of the MPR is to be renovated and the exterior painted.  The building is a single-
story building containing the multipurpose room, a hallway, storage areas and an office.  Renovation 
activities will disturb suspect asbestos containing materials (ACM) and lead containing paint (LCP).  M3 
have received renovation plans for the project.  Per your request, the roof and mechanical areas will not be 
sampled.  The survey areas will exclude the kitchen areas.  A lift will be supplied to access the ceiling areas.   
 
The Santa Cruz City Schools District (SCCS) is requesting this quote for a survey of the building prior 
to the renovation.   
 
Scope of Work 
 
This proposal presents the services needed to successfully complete this project based on the above 
understanding.  M3 will provide the following services needed to successfully complete this project: 
 
Task 1 - Hazardous Materials Inspection 
 


Asbestos and Lead 
 


• Conduct a walk-through inspection of building spaces (interior and exterior per plans) to delineate 
the scope of work, and to sample suspect ACM and LCP. 


 
• The inspection will be non-destructive in nature, in that we will not sample or inspect above hard 


ceilings, in wall cavities, layers of flooring etc.   
 


• Analyze collected samples in an American Hygiene Association-accredited laboratory  
 


Other Hazardous Materials 
 
• Conduct an inspection for other hazardous materials, including, polychlorinated bi-phenyls (PCB) 


light ballasts, fluorescent light tubes and mercury containing switches. 
185/567







 
SCCS 


Hazardous Material Inspection & Specification 
Branciforte MS MPR Renovation 


M3 Proposal No. 192557 
Page 2 


 


 
• Prepare and submit a written report at the completion of the project that will include field floor plans 


showing sample locations, laboratory documentation for all samples collected, and 
recommendations as appropriate.  ACM and lead will be identified by type/component but not 
quantified.  Quantity estimates must be made by contractors submitting bids to remove these 
materials or determined during the development of bid documents.   


 
Task 2 - Hazardous Materials Abatement Specification 
 
The specification will identify the materials (primarily ACM and LCP) to be removed during this project and 
will require compliance with regulations issued by the Federal Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA), California OSHA (Cal/OSHA), the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA), and the MBARD.  The specification will describe the scope of work and procedures to be followed, 
including: 
 


• Required notifications 
• Applicable regulations 
• Air monitoring 
• Work area preparation 
• Work practices 
• Methods of removal 
• Decontamination 
• Condition of occupancy 
• Waste disposal requirements 


 
Fees 
 
All services described will be provided based on the following schedules: 
 
Task 1 - Hazardous Materials Inspection 
 
All services described will be provided for a fee of $3,290 based on the following fee schedule: 
 


Staff/Expense Budget Unit Total 
Principal Hygienist 1 hour $225/hour $225.00 
Staff Environmental Consultant 16 hours $95/hour $1,520.00 
(includes prep, travel, survey, report writing) 
Clerical 1 hour $75/hour $75.00 
Asbestos Bulk Samples (3-day turnaround) 60 samples $14 each $840.00 
Lead paint samples (3-day turnaround) 50 samples $16 each $800.00 
FedEx, mileage, supplies, copies, etc. cost plus 15%  $150.00 


 Estimated Total Fee  $3,610.00 
 
**If rush analysis is needed, samples can be analyzed with 24-hour turnaround time for an additional 
fee of $21 per asbestos sample and $24 per sample for lead paint.   
 
Our estimated fee is based on the following assumptions: 
 


• M3 will have unfettered access to the building. 
• Some damage to building materials will be caused by inspection and sampling activities. 
• M3 will not patch sample locations. 
• This inspection does not include asbestos point counting or lead waste profiling. 


186/567







 
SCCS 


Hazardous Material Inspection & Specification 
Branciforte MS MPR Renovation 


M3 Proposal No. 192557 
Page 3 


 


 
Task 2 – Hazardous Materials Abatement Specification 
 
 Fixed fee   $2,500.00 
 Abatement Specification Total Fee  $2,500.00 
 
 Project Total  $6,110.00 
 
Limitations 
 
Although a reasonable effort will be made to identify suspect materials, this does not guarantee that all 
possible sources of hazardous materials will be identified as certain building materials may be inaccessible 
or hidden by walls, flooring, partitions, etc.  During demolition or renovation operations, building materials 
may be uncovered that may be suspect.  These materials should be sampled and identified before activities 
resume.  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to you.  If you have any questions please call me at 
831.649.4623. 
  
Sincerely, 
M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC 


 
Chris G. Gatward 
Principal 
California CAC No. 92-0216 


 


187/567







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Schreder & Brandt Mfg., Inc. Bid and Contract for Site Work at Bay 
View Elementary School for the New Classroom Building 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Schreder & Brandt Mfg., Inc. base bid and alternate 1, and include approval of 
alternate 2 pending State Water Board funding for site work at Bay View Elementary School for 
the new classroom building.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The project consists of excavation and pad preparation for new modular building, site utilities, 
flatwork, building fire alarm and low voltage work at Bay View Elementary School. Alternate 1 is 
for the installation of a fire marshal required additional hydrant on the campus.  Alternate 2 is 
for the DROPS Grant which includes grading, irrigation and rain water collection in the Life Lab 
and rain garden pathways and rainwater collection in the front of the campus, as well as bio 
swells to collect and clean parking lot runoff.  
 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors, noticed to the builder’s plan room and 
advertised in the local newspapers. Seven bids were received. This project award is based on 
the lowest combined price of the base bid and alternate 1. Schreder & Brandt Mfg., Inc. was the 
successful low bidder. 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID Alt. 1 Alt. 2 


Schreder & Brandt Mfg., Inc.  Chico $697,000.00 $88,000.00 $557,000.00 


CRW Industries, Inc.  Scotts Valley $1,079,525.00 $318,872.00 $489,127.00 


Galeb Paving, Inc. Saratoga $727,500.00 $270,600.00 $948,000.00 


ESR Construction Inc. Los Altos $1,312,200.00 $265,000.00 $820,950.00 


Guerra Construction Group Santa Clara $960,000.00 $295,000.00 $820,000.00 


Monterey Peninsula Engineering Monterey $825,000.00 $250,000.00 $695,000.00 


Robert A. Bothman Construction Santa Clara $1,046,000.00 $189,700.00 $519,500.00 


LOW BID Schreder & Brandt 
Mfg., Inc. 


$697,000.00 $88,000.00  


188/567







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7. 


Bid Summary 
 
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to Schreder & Brandt Mfg., Inc. the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$785,000.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 5.62% of the overall site budget 
$557,000.00, Pending approval of funds from the State Water Board DROPS Program 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


189/567







190/567







191/567







192/567







193/567







194/567







195/567







196/567







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: CWS Construction Group, Inc. Change Order #1 for Harbor High 
School Student Locker Improvements 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the CWS Construction Group, Inc. change order #1 for the Harbor High School student 
locker improvements project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional framing to bolster the structure for the security grilles. 
The previously approved contract amount was $136,000.00 and the new total contract, 
including this change order, will be $140,457.00. 
  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$4,457.00, (3.27% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
  


197/567







198/567







199/567







200/567







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Andy’s Roofing Company, Inc. Change Order #4 for the Branciforte 
Middle School Re-roof Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Andy’s Roofing Company, Inc. change order#4 for the Branciforte Middle School Re-
roof project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of cleaning, repair and replacement of gutters outlets and 
downspouts. The need for this change order was identified once the project was underway 
because the issue was internal rust.  The previously approved contract amount was 
$1,143,623.57 and the new total contract, including this change order, will be $1,173,023.57. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #4     $29,400.00, (2.57% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


201/567







202/567







203/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Public Hearing Regarding Potential Composition of Trustee Areas 


Prior to Drawing of Maps 


  
MEETING DATE:                   February 20, 2019 


  
FROM:                                  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


  
  
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Education Code 35012, the District’s Board of Education is currently elected under 
an “at-large” election system, where Trustees are elected by voters of the entire District. 
Trustees are elected in even-numbered years and serve staggered, four-year terms, such that 
the next election for two Trustee seats is scheduled for November 20, 2022.  
 
On January 16, 2019, the Board adopted Resolution 14-18-19, declaring its intent to transition 
from at-large to  by-Trustee area Board elections, where each Board member must reside 
within the designated Trustee area boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that Trustee 
area. 
 
The District’s demographers, the National Demographics Corporation, will present information 
on the process and criteria for drawing the Trustee-area map creation process, pursuant to 
Elections Code section 10010, subdivision (a)(1). 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 


  
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


204/567







 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 


Second Hearing for the Potential Composition of 
Trustee Areas Prior to Drawing of Maps 


 


DATE:  


Wednesday, February 20, 2019 


LOCATION:  


SCCS Board of Trustees Meeting 


Santa Cruz County Office of Education 


Board Room – 400 Encinal St. Santa Cruz 


Open Session Begins at 6:30pm 
 


The purpose of this hearing is to provide a public forum for 
community input regarding the potential composition of 


Trustee Areas prior to the drawing of maps.  
All are invited to attend. 


205/567







 


AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PUBLICA 
 


COMPOSICION POTENTCIAL DE LAS AREAS DEL 
FIDEICOMISO ANTES DEL DIBUJO DE MAPAS 


 


FECHAS:  


MIERCOLES, FEBRERO 20, 2019 


LUGAR:  


Junta de la Mesa Directiva de SCCS 


Santa Cruz County Office of Education 


Board Room – 400 Encinal St. Santa Cruz 


Sesion abierta comienza a las 6:30pm 
 


El propósito de la audiencia es proporcionar un foro 
público para la opinión de la comunidad sobre la posible 


composición de las Áreas de Fideicomisarios antes de 
dibujar los mapas. Usted está invitado a asistir. 


206/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Resolution 19-18-19: Consideration and Potential Adoption for 


Establishing Criteria for Developing Trustee Area Boundaries 
  
MEETING DATE:                   February 20, 2019 


  
FROM:                                  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt resolution 19-18-19 to establish criteria to guide the demographer and District staff in 
the development of draft trustee-area maps.   
  
BACKGROUND: 
On January 16, 2019, the Board adopted Resolution Number 14-18-19, declaring its intent to 
transition from at-large elections, where each trustee is elected by all voters within the District, 
to by-trustee area elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated trustee-area 
boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that trustee-area.   


This resolution will establish criteria to guide the demographer and District staff in the 
development of draft trustee-area maps for Board and public consideration.   The criteria 
options are identified in a checklist format as Exhibit A to the resolution, allowing for Board 
choice.  


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 


  
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 


207/567







Santa Cruz City Schools 
Resolution # 19-18-19 


CRITERIA FOR DEVELOPING TRUSTEE-AREA BOUNDARIES 


 


 WHEREAS, the Board of Education (“Board”) of Santa Cruz City Schools (“District”) 


is elected under an “at-large” election system where trustees are elected by voters of the entire 


District; and 


  


 WHEREAS, at its Wednesday, January 16, 2019 meeting, the Board adopted Resolution 


Number 14-18-19, declaring its intent to transition from at-large elections to by-trustee area 


elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated trustee-area boundary, and is 


elected only by the voters in that trustee-area; and   


 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code, section 10010, subdivision (a)(1), the Board 


held public hearings on February 6, 2019 and February 20, 2019, to gather public input regarding 


potential trustee-area boundaries; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Federal Voting Rights Act (42 U.S.C. section 1973) prohibits the use of 


any voting qualification, or prerequisite to voting, or standard, practice, or procedure, in a 


manner which results in a denial or abridgement of the right of any citizen of the United States to 


vote on account of race or color; and  


 


 WHEREAS, federal law and the Equal Protection Clause require that each trustee-area 


be equal in population; however, deviations (less than five percent [5%] greater than or less than 


the ideal, for a total of ten percent [10%] deviation) are presumptively constitutional under the 


Equal Protection Clause where required to meet an official criteria; and 


 


 WHEREAS, the Board has instructed its demographer and District staff to develop draft 


maps to identify trustee-areas that fully comply with legal requirements; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board wishes to provide official criteria for any needed deviations from 


the general rule of equal population; and 


 


WHEREAS, the draft maps will be used by the Board to study the possible change to by-


trustee area elections, and to inform and solicit further input from the public. 


 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Education of Santa Cruz City 


Schools hereby resolves as follows:  


 


1. The above recitals are correct and true.  


 


2. The Board hereby adopts the following criteria, identified in the attached Exhibit A, to 


guide the demographer and District staff in the development of draft maps and in relation 


to any necessary deviations as described above. 


 


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Education of SANTA CRUZ CITY 


SCHOOLS, at a regular meeting of the Board of Education held February 20, 2019, by the 


following vote: 


 


 


208/567







AYES:  _____ 


NOES:  _____ 


ABSTAIN: _____ 


ABSENT: _____ 


 


 


 


I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly introduced, passed, 


and adopted by the members of the Board of Education of Santa Cruz City Schools, at a public 


meeting of said Board held on February 20, 2019. 


 


 


 


 


________________________                                    ________________________     


President, Board of Education    Clerk, Board of Education 
   


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Exhibit A 


Criteria to Guide the Establishment of Trustee-Areas 


 


All items designated below by a shaded-in box shall be included. Criteria numbers 1-3 are 


legally mandated, and therefore have been automatically shaded-in.   


 


209/567







1. The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be established so that the trustee-areas are at least 


as nearly equal in population as required by law. 


2. The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall not be gerrymandered in violation of the principles 


established by the United States Supreme Court in Shaw v. Reno, 509 U.S. 630 (1993), 


and other applicable law.   


3. The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be established so that the trustee-areas do not 


result in a denial or abridgement of the right of any citizen to vote on account of race or 


color as provided in Section 2 of the federal Voting Rights Act.  


4. The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be compact, insofar as practicable. 


5. The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall be created to contain contiguous territory, insofar 


as practicable. 


6. The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall observe communities of interest, such as the 


District’s underlying elementary and high school attendance areas, rural or  urban 


populations, municipalities, social interests, agricultural, industrial or service industry 


interests, and the like, insofar as practicable. 


7. The boundaries of the trustee-areas may take into account visible features, such as 


topography and geography, including mountains, flat land, forest lands, man-made 


geographical features such as highways and canals, etc., insofar as practicable. 


8. The boundaries of the trustee-areas may consider avoiding pairing two or more incumbents 


in a single trustee-area, to the extent legally allowable. 


9. To maintain a longer-term population balance, trustee-areas known to be areas of higher-


than-average population growth following redistricting may be under-populated within the 


population deviation amounts allowed by law.  To the extent legally allowed, this shall 


include consideration of anticipated future growth under applicable general plans. 


10. The boundaries of the trustee-areas shall comply with such other factors which become 


known during the redistricting process and are formally adopted by the Board. 


 


11. ________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________


_______________________________________________________________________ 


 


12. ________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________


________________________________________________________________________ 


 


210/567







                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  International Baccalaureate Diploma Programme  
      
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the needed staffing and program fees to implement the International Baccalaureate 
(IB programme) at Harbor High School.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Harbor High School began exploring the International Baccalaureate (IB) programme two years 
ago when several teachers initiated the idea. Harbor was then in the process of a Western 
Association of Schools and Colleges self-study, and revised the mission, vision, staff values, and 
student learner outcomes. As we worked on our self-study and IB exploration, it became 
evident that Harbor High School’s philosophy and goals almost exactly matched the philosophy 
and goals of the International Baccalaureate Organization.  
 
Harbor has been approved for candidacy for the IB Diploma Programme by the International 
Baccalaureate Organization. The school has researched the program and 96% of Harbor 
teachers voted (52 voting with two abstentions) to endorse the IB Diploma Programme. Harbor 
High will continue working toward authorization until approval by the International 
Baccalaureate Organization, likely in fall 2020 and possibly fall 2021. Authorization and 
implementation of the IB Diploma Programme at Harbor High will be facilitated with the 
philosophical and financial support of the Board of Education. 
 
Harbor High has researched the IB Diploma Programme over the past two years. The Harbor 
High Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership team has visited and observed IB classrooms at other 
schools, while staff has participated in presentations, investigated curriculum, and explored the 
details of IB within their departments.  
  
The Harbor team strongly believes that the IB Programme would be wholly complementing to 
their current programs. Harbor teachers believe in the IB philosophy and IB teaching and 
learning standards. Harbor is already a school whose staff collaborates, has aligned curriculum, 
follows consistencies like the Organized Binder, hosts the largest AVID program in the county, 
an incredible Spanish program that results in the highest number of students who earn the Seal 
of Biliteracy, and has 58% of students participate in sports. Harbor’s IB Diploma program would 
surely draw students. 
 


211/567







                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1. 


The Harbor staff has voted to support IB. The staff is keenly aware of the training and time it 
will take to switch from teaching AP classes to IB classes, along with the support needed for 
students attempting to earn an IB Diploma. This is an exciting moment for Harbor High School. 
 
Key Details of IB: 


● The IB Diploma Programme would affect many students at Harbor High with a focus on 


grades 11 and 12, where IB courses are offered.  


● The number of students served is potentially 100%. Curriculum in IB would affect 


courses at lower grade levels with professional learning community collaboration 


connecting courses in the subject sequence.   


● The curriculum is comprised of the Diploma Programme core, and six subject groups.  


Core Elements: 


1. Theory of knowledge, in which students reflect on the nature of knowledge and 


on how we know what we claim to know. 


2. The extended essay, which is an independent, self-directed piece of research, 


finishing with a 4,000-word paper. 


3. Creativity, activity, service, in which students complete a project related to 


those three concepts. 


Subject groups: 


1. Studies in language and literature 


2. Language acquisition 


3. Individuals and societies 


4. Sciences 


5. Mathematics 


6. Arts 


 


● One goal of the Diploma Programme is to “develop students who have excellent 


breadth and depth of knowledge – students who flourish physically, intellectually, 


emotionally and ethically.” 


● The IB Programme is a cohesive academic program that would focus the Harbor 


instructional programs and, for some students, provide a product in the form of the 


prestigious IB Diploma. Students enrolled in one or more IB courses would earn an IB 


Certificate for the courses completed. Harbor’s current curriculum is strong and diverse, 


including comprehensive college preparatory requirements and electives, a full AVID 


program, Newcomer, and Therapeutic Special Education (SAIL) programs on the 


campus. These programs currently operate independently.  


● For more information on IB, please visit: www.ibo.org 


 


 


 


212/567







                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1. 


Exploration and Staff Involvement 


● January 30, 2017:  Informational meeting with administrators, Harbor teacher, and 


representative teacher from Del Mar High School to discuss IB and how it fits with the 


AVID program. 


● March 17, 2017: Representative teacher from Del Mar High School came to Harbor to 


share with interested teachers her site’s reasons for moving to and experience 


becoming an IB school. 


● March 8, 2018: A team of teachers from math, science, English, social studies, world 


language, and art visited Sequoia High School in Redwood City to visit IB classes, and 


talked to teachers and administrators. 


● March 13, April 10, and May 1, 2018:  Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership explored and 


discussed the IB program and shared with departments and administrators feedback 


and questions regarding IB. 


● March 14, 2018: Overview of the main characteristics of IB schools provided at a staff 


meeting and staff debrief of Sequoia High School visit. 


● March 22, 2018: Four teachers from Del Mar High School in Campbell presented an 


overview of IB at their school and held a question/answer session with 20 Harbor 


teachers. 


● April 16, 2018: Department meetings held to explore potential IB courses. 


● May 2, 2018: Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership explored and discussed IB program, 


feedback, and questions. 


● May 9, 2018: Staff meeting held where all teachers learned about the IB program more 


in depth; there was a question and answer session. 


● September 17, 2018: Del Mar High School staff representatives visited Harbor staff 


meeting with questions and answers regarding IB. 


● October 1, 2018: Application for candidacy submitted to International Baccalaureate 


Organization. 


● October 22, 2018: Several teachers and Harbor High School principal visited IB 


Educational Forum at Monte Vista Christian High School. 


● November 24, 2018: Harbor accepted for IB Candidacy. 


● November 20-12/18, 2018: Principal IB Diploma Programme training. 


● December 4, 2018: Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership examined and identified best 


matches for IB courses. 


● December 10, 2018: Departments examined and identified best matches for IB courses. 


● February 2019: Teachers from Social Studies, English, Health, Visual and Performing Arts 


began online IB Diploma Programme training.   


213/567







                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1. 


Program Evaluation: 
● The process to become an IB World School begins with a candidacy period, application 


for authorization, verification by the International Baccalaureate Organization, and 
authorized teaching. The program and elements are evaluated by the International 
Baccalaureate Organization throughout the candidacy process and implementation 
period after verification for authorization. 


● The International Baccalaureate Organization reviews IB schools to support and identify 
strengths and areas of improvement every few years. 


● The IB program will be evaluated by measures including California Dashboard Data, IB 
enrollment and test scores, number of students who earn IB Diplomas, number of AVID 
students who enroll in IB courses, student and parent surveys, and teacher surveys. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The following are estimates of ADA for additional students: 
25 additional students at $9,968 amounts to $249,200 
50 additional students at $9,968 amounts to $518,336 
 


Year 1 (2019-2020) Candidacy Year* 


Title Funding Source Proposal Estimated Amounts 


.6 IB Coordinator LCFF base  (Unrestricted) $60,000.00 


Candidacy Fee LCFF Base (Unrestricted)  $9,500.00 


Annual School Fee for Diploma 
Program after candidacy period 


LCFF base (Unrestricted) $11,650.00 


Teacher Training Title 1 PD (Restricted) Average 
$1500.00/person 
(est. $18,000.00) 


Textbooks  Lottery  (Restricted) $15,000.00 


Total Costs:  2019-2020 Candidacy Year requested funding 
(Unrestricted) 


$71,650.00 


Total Costs:  2019-2020 Candidacy Year site funded (Restricted) $42,500.00 


 
 


Year 2 (2020-2021) Authorized Year* 


Title Possible Funding Sources Estimated Amounts 


.8 IB Coordinator  LCFF base (Unrestricted) $80,000.00 


Annual School Fee for Diploma 
Program 


 LCFF base (Unrestricted $11,650.00 


Teacher Training Title 1 PD (Restricted) $1500.00/person 
(est. $10,000)  


Textbooks  Lottery (Restricted) $9,000.00 


Fee Waivers for student exams Title 1 OR College and Career Grant, 
OR IB Grant (Restricted) 


$30,000.00 


Total Costs: 2019-2020 Authorized Year requested funding 
(Unrestricted) 


$91,650.00 


Total Costs: 2019-2020 Authorized Year  site funded (Restricted)  $49,000.00 


214/567







                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1. 


 


Year 3 (2021-2022) Authorized Year* 


Title Possible Funding Sources Estimated Amounts 


.8 IB Coordinator  LCFF base (Unrestricted) $80,000.00 


Annual School Fee for Diploma 
Program 


 LCFF base (Unrestricted) $11,650.00 


Teacher Training Title 1 PD (Restricted) Average 
$1500.00/person 
(est. $7,000.00) 


Textbooks  Lottery / LCFF Base (Restricted / 
Unrestricted) 


$5,000.00 


Fee Waivers for student exams Title 1 OR College and Career Grant, 
OR IB Grant (Restricted) 


$30,000.00 


Total Costs: 2021-2022 Authorized year requested funding 
(Unrestricted) 


$91,650.00 


Total Costs: 2021-2022 Authorized year  site funded (Restricted) $42,000.00 


*all costs 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by Tracey Runeare, Principal of Harbor High School 


215/567







The International Baccalaureate 
(IB)Program 


February 20, 2019
216/567







Harbor Learner Profile


217/567







Academic Connections


The IB Learner profile aims to develop learners 


who are:


● Inquirers


● Knowledgeable


● Thinkers


● Communicators


● Principled


● Open-minded


● Caring


● Risk-takers


● Balanced


● Reflective 


Harbor High Student Learning Outcomes 
What students will be able to know, do or demonstrate 
when they have completed Harbor High School.


Communicate
● Collaborate in groups
● Use technology thoughtfully and effectively 
● Express ideas and understanding through writing, 


speaking, presenting and listening
Learn


● Set goals, plan and anticipate
● Access resources
● Persist through personal obstacles 
● Embrace academic challenges


Think
● Apply prior knowledge
● Solve complex problems
● Experiment and create
● Evaluate multiple perspectives and sources of 


information
Contribute


● Actively engage in and add to the school and larger 
community


● Welcome and include everyone
● Respect self and others


218/567







IB Learner Profile


219/567







IB Programme Student Benefits
● UC system gives 30 quarter units or 20 semester credits 


to diploma students with IB exam scores of 30 or higher


● International opportunities for secondary and post-
secondary education


● Based on IB score earned, many major colleges and 
universities grant college credits (eg. sophomore 
standing, elective or academic credit)


● Based on IB exam score earned, possibly skip a lower 
division course requirement


220/567







Certificate: 
● Complete one or more IB course and pass 


exam(s)
● Take one course from each of the 6 subject 


groups


Diploma:
● 6 Exams (one in each subject area) 
● Complete Creativity/Action/Service (CAS), 


Extended Essay, and Theory of Knowledge (TOK) 
requirements


Increased Flexibility:
Certificates and Diplomas


221/567







Two of the following, using topic examples from 
more than one region of the world: 


1. Society and economy (750–1400) 
2. Causes and effects of medieval wars (750– 1500) 
3. Dynasties and rulers (750–1500) 
4. Societies in transition (1400–1700) 
5. Early Modern states (1450–1789) 
6. Causes and effects of Early Modern wars (1500–1750) 
7. Origins, development and impact of industrialization (1750–2005)
8. Independence movements (1800–2000) 
9. Evolution and development of democratic states (1848–2000) 
10. Authoritarian states (20th century) 
11. Causes and effects of 20th-century wars 
12. The Cold War: Superpower tensions and rivalries (20th century)


Increased Flexibility:
IB History Topics


222/567







Increased Flexibility:
IB History Essay Questions


• “Examine the impact of industrialization on standards of living 
and working conditions in one country.”


• “Compare and contrast the impact on women of the policies of 
two authoritarian states, each chosen from a different region.” 


• “Compare and contrast the role of technology in determining the 
outcome of two 20th-century wars.” 


• “Examine the impact of the US policy of containment on 
superpower relations between 1947 and 1964.”


223/567







International Baccalaureate Organization 


Supports Implementation 


● Guidance related to how an IB education 
supports the goals of Common Core 


● Mapping studies conducted on IB programmes
● Online curriculum tools
● Professional development
● Research studies
● Engagement with key experts
● Representation and consultation at multiple 


levels


224/567







Harbor Process


Vote!


● Stop the process 


of adopting IB


75% endorse


● Results: 52 teachers; 2 abstentions


○ 36 Endorsements: 72%


○ 12 Endorsements with minor reservations : 24%


○ Endorsement total: 96%


○ 2 No Endorsement: 4%


● Addressed minor reservations with PAL 


union partners & SCIL; shared with staff


● Determine training needs and start teacher 


training


● Apply for candidacy March 1


● Consultant support starting in March
○ Determine detailed next steps


<75% endorse


225/567







Staff IB Training


● Principal--Completed online training in November


● Social Studies--Currently training online


● Drama--Currently training online


● VAPA--March online training


● English--Currently training online and summer and fall 2019


● Health--Currently training online


● Counseling--Spring and summer 2019


● Math--Summer and fall 2019


● Librarian--Summer 2019


● Science--Summer and fall 2019


● Music--Summer and fall 2019


● World Language--Summer and fall 2019226/567







● Greater academic alignment


● Essential accelerated program characteristics


● Added benefits of certificates and diplomas


● Increased customizability in course design


● Multiple measures of student program success


Investing in IB


227/567







● Comprehensive, internationally recognized, 


and prestigious 


● Increased student access to accelerated 


classes in general


● AVID with IB increases underrepresented 


students in advanced classes


● Many elements essential to successful IB 


implementation currently in place


Investing in IB


228/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Comprehensive School Safety Plans 
 
MEETING DATE: February 20, 2019 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
 Approval of 2018-2019 Safety Plans  
 


BACKGROUND: 
Beginning in the 2018-2019 school year, all schools in Santa Cruz County, with direct support and 
guidance from the Santa Cruz County Office of Education are implementing a consistent template and 
subsequent format for the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
Each plan will consist of the following components: 
 


 Part  1: Public Components (Information regarding the data analysis, planning, adoption, and 
implementation of school safety measures) 


 Part  2: Internal Components (Ingress/Egress/Emergency/Crisis response information used 
solely by school personnel in in coordination with emergency personnel) 


 
Each school site revises the Comprehensive School Safety Plan annually based on a review of 
pertinent data from multiple sources.  Data considered includes review of local and national events, 
attendance and discipline reports, the California Healthy Kids Survey, the Social Emotional Health 
Survey (UCSB Partnership), as well as ongoing input from School Safety Committees, School Site 
Council and law enforcement.  Plans are monitored and revised as needed.  
 
Students Served:  All Santa Cruz City School Students 
Evaluation Criteria: Data metrics are identified in applicable sections (Part 1), with specific next steps 
to address areas of concern. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary 
college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by Greg O’Meara, Director of Student Services 


229/567







2019-2020


Comprehensive School Safety Plans


Santa Cruz City Schools


Board of Trustees


February 20, 2019
230/567







Annual Requirement to Review, Approve by March 1


Ca. Educational Code: 32280 - 32288


“Any schools operating any kindergarten any grades 1-


12, inclusive, to write and develop Comprehensive 


School Safety Plan relevant to the needs and resources 


of that particular school.”


231/567







Safety Plan Components New for 2019-2020


Consistent templates for all Santa Cruz County Schools 


containing all Ca. Ed. Code requirements.


Part 1: Public Components (Available for public view)


Part 2: Internal Components (Not available to the public)


232/567







PART 1: Public Components


Allows public access to general school information in regards to safety and 


school climate.


● Specific efforts to build positive school climate 


● Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment


● Discrimination/harassment policies


● Specific efforts to support LGBTQ 


● Attendance data


● Discipline/social emotional indicators


233/567







PART 2: Internal Components


Emergency Response procedures and protocol that is not accessible to the 


general public.


● Incident Command Structure (Specific roles of staff during 


crisis/emergency)


● Disaster Procedures (Routine and Emergency)


● Threat Assessment Plans


● Evacuation/Staging Protocol


● Inventory of Emergency/Crisis materials and supplies


234/567







SCCS District Safety Committee


District Administrators, Technology, Transportation, Maintenance


Monthly Meetings to address safety needs of the entire district. 


Topics include:


● Security Cameras


● Safety Related Signage


● Radio Communications


● Community “Tip-Reporting”


● Visitor Identification System


● Mass Communication (i.e. Blackboard)
235/567







Incident Command System (ICS)


11.14.18 ICS Training provided by Law Enforcement/Fire (SCCOE)


All Schools in SCCS follow ICS Protocol within larger scope of Emergency 


Response Crisis Management (ERMS)


To ensure accountability for emergency response procedures, personnel 


are assigned specific duties to perform in the event of an emergency. These 


roles are clearly designated as required in each Safety Plan.


Roles include: Incident Commander, Public Information Officer (PIO), 


Operations/Logistics Chief, Planning/Admin, First Aid Asst. 


236/567







Support from Santa Cruz County Office of 


Education


2018-2019 Safety Trainings to ensure consistent, practical, efficient protocol 


among County Schools.


● Incident Command Training: 11.14.18


● Safety Plan Component/Template Training: 12.12.18


● Threat Assessment Training: 1.16.19


● LGBTQ Safety Training: 2.13.19


● “Code Red” Emergency Response Training: 3.13.19


● Drug Recognition Training: 4.10.19


237/567







Frequency of Required Safety Drills


Fire Drill(s) - Once per month at the elementary level and four times per year 


at the secondary level


Lock Down Drill - 2x Year


Code Red Drill - 1x Year


Shelter in Place Drill - 1x Year


Threat Assessment Drill - 1x Year


Earthquake Drop Drill - 1x Year


238/567







Questions...


239/567







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 


Address:  840 North Branciforte Ave. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


Principal:  Michelle McKinney 


Phone Number: 831-429-3898 


E-mail Address: mmckinney@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: 831.429-3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


240/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................3 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................4 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................5 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................7 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................8 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .......................................................................................................9 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 ...........................................................................................9 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ....................................................................................................................9 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 ......................................................................................9 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .......................................................................................................9 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................10 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................10 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........10 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................10 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................11 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................11 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................12 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................12 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................13 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................13 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................13 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................13 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................13 


 


241/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Alternative Family 
Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus office, and online at http://bssc.sccs.net/cms/one.aspx?pageId=9004517. 
 
 


242/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been 
developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
 School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Michelle McKinney Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Peter Deutsch Teacher from Alternative Family Education/Branciforte 
Small Schools Campus 


Lori Kintz Parent whose child attends the School 


Gail Mabrouk Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


Hayley Kintz Other 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan February 4, 2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan February 6, 2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan February 6, 2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan February 20, 2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review  


 


243/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the 
Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus campus and at school-related functions. Data presented 
include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 0 0 0 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 0 0 0 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) n/a n/a 8.4% 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
1 0 0 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
0 0 0 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
0 0 0 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement 0 0 0 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
As an Independent Studies K-12 school, students earn attendance hours for K-8 and high school credits. As this is not a 
daily program and a school of choice, absenteeism is most often managed by students enrolling in more appropriate 
educational settings. 
AFE has very few instances of bullying, harassment, fighting or physical harm in recent years. As a school community 
committed to Positive Discipline, Trauma Informed practices, and Restorative practices, most behavioral issues can be 
addressed in a timely manner. 
As a small independent studies school, substance abuse is very rare, as every student is known well by a team of caring 
adults at the BSS campus. 
As Positive Discipline, Trauma Informed practices, and Restorative practices are applied at AFE, there have been no 
incidents involving law enforcement. 


244/567







Family and student survey 
results: 
1. Safety of the physical 
environment = 94% 
satisfied/very satisfied 
2. Safety of the 
socio-emotional 
environment = 92% 
3. Student respect 
towards one another = 
89% satisfied/very 
satisfied 
4. Feeling welcome at 
school/on campus = 
95% satisfied/very 
satisfied 
 


 


245/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and 
visitors. Many strategies and programs provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. 
Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus prepares students to be self-disciplined and 
responsible citizens who can meet the challenge of living in an ethnically and socio-economically diverse 
community. Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus promotes caring and nurturing relationships 
and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other community agencies. 
Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares 
students to handle conflict, anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Alternative Family Education/Branciforte 
Small Schools Campus discipline policy provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California 
Education Code and district policies. School-wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule 
infractions provide students with clear expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to 
build protective factors leading to student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Alternative Family Education/Branciforte 
Small Schools Campus implements programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning 
using research-based strategies. Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus implements multi-
tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that promote high expectations, maintain student 
engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that provide a safe 
learning environment for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
1. Restorative justice 
2. Trauma-informed schools 
3. Positive Discipline training for all families and staff 
4. LGBTQ support- School mental health counselor, Rainbow Alliance Club 
 
 


246/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


247/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus will provide all students and staff with 
emergency/disaster preparedness training in a variety of procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures 8/17/2018 


Lock Down Procedures 8/17/2018 


Code Red Procedures 8/17/2018 


Shelter in Place Procedures 8/17/2018 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures 8/17/2018 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 


248/567







10


Strategies and programs unique to Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that provide a safe 
school environment for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 
Principal attended 12/12/18 training provided by Santa Cruz County Office of Education. Principals and assistant 
principals meeting time in SCCS was allocated to creating these plans. Districtwide collaboration on 1/17/19 


 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that prevent bullying 
for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Administration responds immediately to all reports of bullying, conducts an investigation, and acts to provide support to 
the victim and aggressor. 
 


249/567







 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
In 2017-18, staff and families completed campus climate surveys that demonstrated improvement in understanding of 
NSM (Neuro Sequential Model) and positive effects for students when they use of grounding strategies. 
 
 
1. Community circles/Class Meetings 
2. Positive Discipline 
3. Trauma Informed Schools 
4. Restorative Justice practices 
5. Social/emotional curriculum 
 


 
 
1. School counselor - meets with students on rotating schedule related to social and emotional issues like creating and 
maintaining friendships, family issues, etc. 
2. SRO - the officer visits the campus regularly and assists in safety trainings and drills. 
3. Consultants - provide professional development and parent education on topics related to school climate and safety. 
 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that create a positive 
school climate for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
At Alternative Family Education, there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and support 
by and for the whole school. This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as expected 
behavior and interactions between students and staff. During a staff meeting in the fall, the principal presents a Power 
Point presentation on the Santa Cruz City Schools' policies regarding nondiscrimination and sexual harassment. To 
specifically address support for LGBTQ students, we have hired a mental health counselor who has expertise in 
supporting LGBTQ students. The school registrar is also in the process of establishing a Rainbow Alliance Club that will 
be open to students at all four schools on our site. 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Alternative Family Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that encourage early 
resolution of complaints for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 


250/567







 
If a complaint were to be brought to the school, the administration would work with SCCS personnel to support the 
complainant's needs. They might include Human Resources, Business and/or Educational Services departments. 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 


Site-based collaboration is conducted to support any student who has witnessed a violent act and who needs support. 
 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Alternative Family 
Education/Branciforte Small Schools Campus, the following procedures should be followed when traveling to and from 
the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
Several procedures are in place to ensure the safety of students, parents, and employees who are traveling to and from 
Branciforte Small Schools Campus. Orange cones are placed in the rear parking lot during student drop-off and pick-up 
to ensure an orderly drop-off and pick-up. The campus security supervisor monitors drop-off and pick-up in the rear 
parking lot. The rear parking lot is well-lit during after-school hours and on weekends. The principal, school community 
coordinator, and/or school counselor are present in front of school during student pick-up. Costanoa is also a closed 
campus. 
 
 
  


251/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


252/567







 
 
 
 
 


253/567







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Ark Independent Studies 


Address:  840 North Branciforte Ave. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


Principal:  Steve Hambright 


Phone Number: 831-429-3898, ext. 229 


E-mail Address: shambright@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: 831 429-3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


254/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................3 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................4 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................5 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................6 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................7 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .......................................................................................................8 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 ...........................................................................................8 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ....................................................................................................................8 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 ......................................................................................8 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .......................................................................................................8 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ....................................................................................................................................................9 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 ...................................................................................................9 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ..........9 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ....................................................................................................................................9 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................10 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................11 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................11 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................11 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................13 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................13 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................13 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................13 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................13 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................13 


 


255/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Ark Independent 
Studies office, and online at http://sccsbssc.ss8.sharpschool.com/schools/ark. 
 
 


256/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Ark Independent Studies Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
 School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Steve Hambright Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Margi Ilic Teacher from Ark Independent Studies 


Barbara Mason Parent whose child attends the School 


Gail Mabrouk Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


Nick Mason Other 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan February 4, 2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan February 6, 2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan February 6, 2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan February 20, 2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review March 1, 2019 


 


257/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the Ark 
Independent Studies campus and at school-related functions. Data presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 0 0 0 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 0 0 0 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) n/a n/a n/a 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
0 1 0 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
0 0 0 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
0 0 0 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement 0 0 0 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
Since the Ark is an independent studies program, there have been almost no issues related to school discipline since 
the 2015-16 school year. The only incident that occurred over the past three years involved a student who was 
involved in a cyberbullying incident with a student from another high school. 


 
 


258/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Ark Independent Studies is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and programs 
provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
At the Ark Independent Studies we connect with students as individuals, inspire students to find meaning, motivate 
students to take responsibility, and support students to discover and pursue their interests. 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. Ark 
Independent Studies prepares students to be self-disciplined and responsible citizens who can meet the challenge of 
living in an ethnically and socio-economically diverse community. Ark Independent Studies promotes caring and 
nurturing relationships and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other 
community agencies. Ark Independent Studies stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares students to 
handle conflict, anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Ark Independent Studies discipline policy 
provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California Education Code and district policies. School-
wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule infractions provide students with clear 
expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to build protective factors leading to 
student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Ark Independent Studies implements 
programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning using research-based strategies. Ark 
Independent Studies implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that promote 
high expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Ark Independent Studies that provide a safe learning environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Ark teaching staff have received extensive training on trauma-informed school principles and practices. One teacher is 
also attending training this year related to restorative justice tenets and practices. Teachers explicitly teach self-
regulation strategies to their students and practice them as appropriate. In terms of our 2017-18 goal related to student 
use of grounding/self-regulation techniques, 73% of Ark students were able to name three self-regulation strategies that 
they employed during the school year. This is a 27% increase from 2016-17. 80% of students reported that they were 
positively impacted after use of grounding strategies. 
 
In order to maintain a safe learning environment for Ark students, three parent-student-teacher conferences are held 
during the course of the year. 95% of parents/guardians attended fall and spring semester conferences. These 
conferences ensure that students' academic and social needs are attuned to during the course of the school year. 
 
To specifically address support for LGBTQ students, we have hired a mental health counselor who has expertise in 
supporting LGBTQ students. The school registrar is also in the process of establishing a Rainbow Alliance Club that will be 
open to students at all four schools on our site. 
 
 


259/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


260/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Ark Independent Studies will provide all students and staff with emergency/disaster preparedness training in a variety of 
procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures 8/17/2018 


Lock Down Procedures 8/17/2018 


Code Red Procedures 8/17/2018 


Shelter in Place Procedures 8/17/2018 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures 8/17/2018 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 


261/567







9


Strategies and programs unique to Ark Independent Studies that provide a safe school environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
During a staff meeting in the fall, the principal presents a Power Point presentation on the Santa Cruz City Schools' 
policies regarding nondiscrimination and sexual harassment.  To specifically address support for LGBTQ students, we 
have hired a mental health counselor who has expertise in supporting LGBTQ students. The school registrar is also in the 
process of establishing a Rainbow Alliance Club that will be open to students at all four schools on our site. 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 
The Branciforte Small Schools principal attended a 12/12/18 safety plan training provided by Santa Cruz County Office 
of Education. The BSSC Principal and Assistant Principal were also able to review safety plan requirements and discuss 
plan development with other site administrators during Santa Cruz City Schools' leadership meetings. The SCCS 
Director of Student Services led a 90-minutes districtwide administrator safety plan collaboration meeting on 1/17/19. 
Finally, the SCCS Director of Student Services met with the Ark Principal and Assistant Principal to review plan 
requirements on 1/31/19. 


 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


262/567







No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Ark Independent Studies that prevent bullying for all students, including specifically 
for LGBTQ students. 
The Ark administrator responds immediately to all reports of bullying, conducts an investigation, and acts to provide 
support to the victim and aggressor. 
 
 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Ark students do not take the UC-Santa Barbara Social Emotional Health Survey (SEHS) or the California Healthy Kids 
Survey (CHKS). However, the Ark does administer a staff-created parent and student survey annually in the spring. In 
May 2018, a majority of the Ark students completed the year-end staff-created survey. Student responses 
overwhelmingly averaged between the agree (3) and strongly agree (4) response. For the second consecutive year, 100% 
of students "Agree" or Strongly agree" that they are respected in their individual meetings with their teacher. The fall 
2016 Parent and Student surveys identified a discrepancy between parent/guardian and student responses in the key 
area of students’ ability to complete at least 20 hours of work weekly at home. Whereas only 78% of students 
responded (Strongly Agree and Agree) that they were able to complete their work, 94% of parents/guardians believed 
that students were able to. The year-end 2017-18 surveys indicate that there has been an improvement in students' 
perception of their ability to complete 20 hours of work on time as the percentage of students who agree or strongly 
agree rose to 90%. 
 
 
Ark students have access to a school mental health counselor. This counselor has provided direct services (informal 
check-ins, weekly counseling) to at least three Ark students during the course of the year. The counselor participates in 
weekly attendance/counseling meetings. 
 
Ark staff may discuss students of concern in monthly staff meetings. Staff discuss attempted interventions and identify 
new interventions and supports for students. 
 


 
 
The Ark has an experienced, full-time academic counselor on staff. She works closely with many students to ensure 
they are making necessary progress to reach academic and career goals. 
 
Ark students have access has a part-time school mental health counselor. This counselor has provided direct services 
(informal check-ins, weekly counseling) to three Ark students during the course of the year. The counselor participates 
in weekly attendance/counseling meetings. 


263/567







11


 
Our school works closely with the SCCS school resource officer to maintain a safe school environment. The SRO 
maintains regular contact with the principal and observes Code Red drills to provide feedback. 
 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Ark Independent Studies that create a positive school climate for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
At Ark Independent Studies, there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and support by 
and for the whole school . This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as expected 
behavior and interactions between students and staff.To specifically address support for LGBTQ students, we have 
hired a mental health counselor who has expertise in supporting LGBTQ students. The school registrar is also in the 
process of establishing a Rainbow Alliance Club that will be open to students at all four schools on our site. 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Ark Independent Studies that encourage early resolution of complaints for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
All student complaints are taken seriously by Ark staff. Staff report complaints to the principal or assistant principal. The 
principal(s) immediately commence an investigation to gather details about the nature of the complaint. The 
administrators report back to the individuals involved in the complaint regarding the proposed resolution(s). If any 
outstanding issues are present, the administrators seek the support of district office personnel to assist with the 
resolution of the complaint. LGBTQ student complaints are treated with the same level of seriousness as other student 
complaints. To specifically address support for LGBTQ students at our site, we have hired a mental health counselor who 
has expertise in supporting LGBTQ students. 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 


Site-based collaboration is conducted to support any student who has witnessed a violent act and who needs support. 
 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Ark Independent Studies, the following 
procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 


264/567







 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
Procedures are in place to ensure the safety of students, parents, and employees who are traveling to and from 
Branciforte Small Schools Campus. Orange cones are placed in the rear parking lot during student drop-off and pick-up 
to ensure an orderly drop-off and pick-up. The campus security supervisor monitors morning drop-off and afternoon 
pick-up in the rear parking lot. The rear parking lot is well-lit during after-school hours and on weekends. The principal, 
school community coordinator, and/or school counselor are present in front of school during student pick-up. 
 
 
  


265/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


266/567







 
 
 
 
 


267/567







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Bay View Elementary School 


Address:  1231 Bay St. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-4708 


Principal:  Yvette Garcia 


Phone Number: 831.429.3991 


E-mail Address: ygarcia@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


268/567







Phone Number: 831.429.3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


269/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................4 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................5 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................6 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................7 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................8 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .......................................................................................................9 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 ...........................................................................................9 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ....................................................................................................................9 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 ......................................................................................9 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .......................................................................................................9 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................10 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................10 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........10 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................10 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................11 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................12 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................12 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................12 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................14 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................14 


 


270/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Bay View 
Elementary School office, and online at http://bayview.sccs.net. 
 
 


271/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Bay View Elementary School Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
 School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Yvette Garcia Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Karen Fitzsimmons Teacher from Bay View Elementary School 


Steve Kingsley Parent whose child attends the School 


Elisa Gonzales Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan 1/22/19 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan 1/15/19 


School Site Council approval of the Plan 2/7/19 


School District Board approval of the Plan 2/20/19 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review  


 


272/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the Bay View 
Elementary School campus and at school-related functions. Data presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 8 1 9 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 0 0 0 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) 11 17 16 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
 0 2 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
 0 6 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
 0 0 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement  0 0 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 


Data shows a significant increase in suspension from 1 in 2016-2017 to 9 in 2017-2018. 


Data shows no expulsions for the past three years.  We attribute this to the numerous safety supports here at Bay 
View. 
Chronic absenteeism has declined from 17% in 2016-2017 to 16% in 2017-2018.  Efforts at Bay View to address chronic 
absenteeism include communication with parents via telephone and meetings to provide education around 
importance of attendance, collaboration with Student Services and adherence to SARB process.  More effort is needed 
to provide parent education regarding the importance of regular attendance. 


 


273/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Bay View Elementary School is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and 
programs provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
Bay View School is a safe and welcoming community where everyone is respected and learning is valued. Our school is a 
dynamic learning environment where everyone is engaged and inspired to do their personal best. Our rich academic 
curriculum includes the arts, field trips, library, Life Lab, nutrition, and music. Diversity is embraced; it enriches our 
learning community. Students, families, and staff work together as a team to ensure academic success and social 
responsibility for everyone. 
 
 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. Bay 
View Elementary School prepares students to be self-disciplined and responsible citizens who can meet the challenge of 
living in an ethnically and socio-economically diverse community. Bay View Elementary School promotes caring and 
nurturing relationships and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other 
community agencies. Bay View Elementary School stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares students to 
handle conflict, anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Bay View Elementary School discipline policy 
provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California Education Code and district policies. School-
wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule infractions provide students with clear 
expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to build protective factors leading to 
student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Bay View Elementary School implements 
programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning using research-based strategies. Bay 
View Elementary School implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that 
promote high expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Bay View Elementary School that provide a safe learning environment for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
All staff has been trained in gender identify from Santa Cruz County Safe Schools Project.  Teachers committed to 
incorporating inclusive literature to their class libraries.  Safe Space signs are visible throughout our school site.  Our 
school counselor and teachers provide opportunities for students to talk about issues related to gender identity. 
 


274/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


275/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Bay View Elementary School will provide all students and staff with emergency/disaster preparedness training in a 
variety of procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures 9/15/18 


Lock Down Procedures 11/7/18 


Code Red Procedures 9/25/18 


Shelter in Place Procedures 12/5/18 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures 10/18/18 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 


276/567







10


Strategies and programs unique to Bay View Elementary School that provide a safe school environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 


District-wide Safety Plan collaboration on 1/17/2019. 
 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Bay View Elementary School that prevent bullying for all students, including 
specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Teachers use Second Step Curriculum to help students understand the harmful affects of bullying and explicitly teach 
students how to responsibly act as an "up-stander."  In addition, our Library Media Teacher provides instruction to 
students regarding cyber safety and appropriate cyber etiquette. 
 


277/567







 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
2017-2018 Student Wellness Survey Findings: 
86% of fourth graders and 73% of fifth graders report that they feel like they are a real part of the school. 
72% of fourth graders and 83% of fifth graders report that there is a teacher or an adult at school that they can talk to if 
they have a problem. 
65% of fourth graders and 74% of fifth graders report that they feel included in a lot of school activities. 
 
 
 
Our school has adopted a tiered Positive Behavior Intervention System (PBIS) to promote positive school climate.  We 
have identified the follow school-wide expectations:  Be safe, Be responsible, Be Respectful.  At the beginning of the 
year, we hold a school-wide assembly where the expectations are explicitly taught by members of the PBIS team and 
other staff members.  Expectations are reinforced throughout the year in the classroom and in shared spaces by staff.  
"Bobcat Bucks" are distributed to students who demonstrate adherence to the expectations.  "Bobcat Bucks" are used 
in the classroom as a token reward system and school-wide in weekly raffles. 
 
All teachers provide lessons that support students' social-emotional growth using the district adopted "Second Step" 
curriculum at least once a week.  In addition, students engage in ongoing activities that explicitly teach the definition of 
and provide opportunities for students to demonstrate Bay View Life Skills:  "Compassion, Participation, Gratitude, 
Optimism, Integrity."   To promote a sense of connectedness, our school provides school-wide celebrations when our 
"Bobcat Buck" jar is full.  In addition, we have music and dance every Friday at lunch and monthly school spirit days. 
 
Tier 2 and Tier 3 supports include opportunities for students to reflect on behavioral choices with staff members using 
our PBIS developed think sheet.  Students requiring additional support sometimes participate in Check In/Check out 
systems where students get daily feedback on social goals established by the student and a staff member.  We also 
offer weekly "Lunch Bunch" opportunities where students have lunch with staff members and discuss strategies for 
positive social interactions.  Our school staff's a full time counselor that offers 1:1 and small group counseling services 
for students requiring more intensive support.  We have a system for communicating with families of students 
experiencing challenges coming to school each day and on time that includes: mailing attendance letters, telephone 
and office conferences with the school administrator, and attendance meetings to explore resources that might help 
improve attendance. 
 
 
 


 
 
Our school staffs one full-time and one part time mental health specialist that provide 1:1 services to students that 
qualify.  We also staff a full-time counselor that supports the social-emotional needs of our students by taking an active 
leadership role in the developing and sustaining key elements of our PBIS systems and structures such as delivery of 


278/567







12


the Second Step Curriculum and overseeing our Check In/Check Out system.  Our district school resource officer 
provides assistance to our students on an as needed basis and is available to the site administrator for consultation on 
issues that promote school safety and positive school climate. 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Bay View Elementary School that create a positive school climate for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
In the 2018-2019 school year, our Response to Intervention Coordinator, the teaching and literacy support staff, and 
the school administrator actively worked to augment the school's leveled book library with a specific intention to be 
more inclusive regarding the characters and people depicted in books students read at our school.  We strategically 
purchased books at all reading levels that reflected the diversity our community and neighboring communities and 
promoted inclusion. 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Bay View Elementary School that encourage early resolution of complaints for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
Site administrator will conduct a thorough investigation of all complaints.  Parents of both victims and perpetrators will 
be notified about the incident and informed about available supports (if appropriate). 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 
Our Student Success Team provides a systems for assessing social emotional needs and determining appropriate 
interventions and referrals.  The team consists of: the principal, psychologist, Resource teacher, counselor, PBIS coach, 
bilingual community coordinator, response to intervention, general education teachers, general education teachers, 
support staff, and parents.  Relevant team members meet with family to discuss student need and describe resources 
available, including counseling services. 


 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Bay View Elementary School, the 
following procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


279/567







 
Students arriving to school by bus are dropped off and picked up at the parking lot on Bay Street.  Staff wait in the 
parking lot to escort students from the bus onto campus at arrival time, and wait and supervise students until they 
board the bus at dismissal time. 
 
Students arrive/leave via Bay St. and Palm St. Students are dropped off either in loading zone of front parking lot (Bay 
and Mission), or some parents park and escort their children on to campus. Kinder end time on Wednesdays is 10 
minutes earlier than the rest of the school in order to reduce the number of cars in the parking lots during dismissal 
times. There are two crossing guards at the corners of Bay and Mission and one at Bay and Seaside. 
 
Gates are closed and locked during the school day and in the evenings, weekends, and on non-school days unless 
permission to use the school facilities has been established by the site administrator. 
 
 
 
  


280/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


281/567







 
 
 
 
 


282/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Dress And Grooming BP  5132


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684342/5 1/2


Santa Cruz City Schools |  BP  5132  Students


Dress And Grooming   


The Governing Board believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to a productive learning
environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to wear clothes that
are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a health or
safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process.


(cf. 4119.22 - Dress and Grooming)


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)


Students and parents/guardians shall be informed about dress and grooming standards at the beginning of the
school year and whenever these standards are revised. A student who violates these standards shall be subject to
appropriate disciplinary action.


(cf. 5144 - Discipline)


Gang-Related Apparel


The principal, staff and parents/guardians at a school may establish a reasonable dress code that prohibits
students from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens
to disrupt the school's activities. Such a dress code may be included as part of the school safety plan and must be
presented to the Board for approval. The Board shall approve the plan upon determining that it is necessary to
protect the health and safety of the school's students.


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)


(cf. 5136 - Gangs)


Legal Reference:


EDUCATION CODE


32281 School safety plans


35183 School dress codes; uniforms


35183.5 Sun-protective clothing


48907 Student exercise of free expression


49066 Grades; effect of physical education class apparel


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5


302 Pupils to be neat and clean on entering school


COURT DECISIONS


Marvin H. Jeglin et al v. San Jacinto Unified School District et al, (C.D. Cal. 1993)


827 F.Supp. 1459


Arcadia Unified School District v. California Department of Education, (1992) 2 Cal. 4th 251283/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Dress And Grooming BP  5132


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684342/5 2/2


Hartzell v. Connell, (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


adopted: February 23, 2011 Soquel, California


284/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Discipline BP  5144


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/935895/5 1/4


Santa Cruz City Schools |  BP  5144  Students


Discipline   


The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive school environment which is
conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by fostering self-discipline
and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use of effective
school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention and support, and parent
involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that exclude students from instruction as a means
for correcting student misbehavior.


(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)


(cf. 5131 - Conduct)


(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)


The Superintendent or designee shall develop effective, age-appropriate strategies for maintaining a positive
school climate and correcting student misbehavior at district schools. The strategies shall focus on providing
students with needed supports; communicating clear, appropriate, and consistent expectations and consequences
for student conduct; and ensuring equity and continuous improvement in the implementation of district
discipline policies and practices.


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)


In addition, the Superintendent or designee's strategies for correcting student misconduct shall reflect the Board's
preference for the use of positive interventions and alternative disciplinary measures over exclusionary
discipline measures.


Disciplinary measures that may result in loss of instructional time or cause students to be disengaged from
school, such as detention, suspension, and expulsion, shall be imposed only when required or permitted by law
or when other means of correction have been documented to have failed. (Education Code 48900.5)


(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))


(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)


(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)


School personnel and volunteers shall not allow any disciplinary action taken against a student to result in the
denial or delay of a school meal. (Education Code 49557.5)


285/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Discipline BP  5144


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/935895/5 2/4


(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)


(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)


The Superintendent or designee shall create a model discipline matrix that lists violations and the consequences
for each as allowed by law.


The administrative staff at each school may develop disciplinary rules to meet the school's particular needs
consistent with law, Board policy, and district regulations. The Board, at an open meeting, shall review the
approved school discipline rules for consistency with Board policy and state law. Site-level disciplinary rules
shall be included in the district's comprehensive safety plan. (Education Code 32282, 35291.5)


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)


At all times, the safety of students and staff and the maintenance of an orderly school environment shall be
priorities in determining appropriate discipline. When misconduct occurs, staff shall attempt to identify the
causes of the student's behavior and implement appropriate discipline. When choosing between different
disciplinary strategies, staff shall consider the effect of each option on the student's health, well-being, and
opportunity to learn.


Staff shall enforce disciplinary rules fairly, consistently, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination
policies.


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)


The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as necessary to assist staff in developing
the skills needed to effectively implement the disciplinary strategies adopted for district schools, including, but
not limited to, consistent school and classroom management skills, effective accountability and positive
intervention techniques, and development of strong, cooperative relationships with parents/guardians.


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)


District goals for improving school climate, based on suspension and expulsion rates, surveys of students, staff,
and parents/guardians regarding their sense of school safety, and other local measures, shall be included in the
district's local control and accountability plan, as required by law.


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)


(cf. 3100 - Budget)


At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board regarding
disciplinary strategies used in district schools in the immediately preceding school year and their effect on
student learning.


286/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Discipline BP  5144


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/935895/5 3/4


Legal Reference:


EDUCATION CODE


32280-32288 School safety plans


35146 Closed sessions


35291 Rules


35291.5-35291.7 School-adopted discipline rules


37223 Weekend classes


44807.5 Restriction from recess


48900-48926 Suspension and expulsion


48980-48985 Notification of parent/guardian


49330-49335 Injurious objects


49550-49562 Meals for needy students


52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan


CIVIL CODE


1714.1 Parental liability for child's misconduct


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5


307 Participation in school activities until departure of bus


353 Detention after school


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42


1751-1769j School Lunch Program


1773 School Breakfast Program


Management Resources:


CSBA PUBLICATIONS


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming
Students, Policy Brief, February 2014


Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011


Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity during the School Day, Fact Sheet, 2009


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PROGRAM ADVISORIES


Classroom Management: A California Resource Guide for Teachers and Administrators of Elementary and
Secondary Schools, 2000


287/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Discipline BP  5144


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/935895/5 4/4


STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICIES


01-02 School Safety, Discipline, and Attendance, March 2001


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS


Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January 2014


WEB SITES


CSBA: http://www.csba.org


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov


Public Counsel: http://www.fixschooldiscipline.org


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


adopted: February 13, 2013 Soquel, California


revised: May 21, 2014


revised: May 9, 2018


288/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan BP  3516


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684091/3 1/3


Santa Cruz City Schools |  BP  3516  Business and Noninstructional Operations


Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan   


The Governing Board recognizes that all district staff and students must be prepared to respond quickly and
responsibly to emergencies, disasters, and threats of disaster.


The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a disaster preparedness plan which details provisions
for handling emergencies and disasters and which shall be included in the district's comprehensive school safety
plan. (Education Code 32282)


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)


(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System)


The Superintendent or designee shall also develop and maintain emergency plans for each school site.


In developing the district and school emergency plans, the Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with city
and county emergency responders, including local public health administrators.


The Superintendent or designee shall use state-approved Standardized Emergency Management System
guidelines and the National Incident Command System when updating district and site-level emergency and
disaster preparedness plans.


The Board shall grant the use of school buildings, grounds, and equipment to public agencies, including the
American Red Cross, for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting the
public health and welfare. The Board shall cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. (Education Code 32282)


(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)


School employees are considered disaster service workers and are subject to disaster service activities assigned
to them. (Government Code 3100)


(cf. 4112.3/4212.3/4312.3 - Oath or Affirmation)


(cf. 4119.3/4219.3/4319.3 - Duties of Personnel)


Legal Reference:


EDUCATION CODE


32001 Fire alarms and drills


32040 Duty to equip school with first aid kit


32280-32289 School safety plans


32290 Safety devices


39834 Operating overloaded bus


46390-46392 Emergency average daily attendance in case of disaster


49505 Natural disaster; meals for homeless students; reimbursement
289/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan BP  3516


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684091/3 2/3


GOVERNMENT CODE


3100 Public employees as disaster service workers


8607 Standardized emergency management system


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5


550 Fire drills


560 Civil defense and disaster preparedness plans


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 19


2400-2450 Standardized emergency management system


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42


12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act


Management Resources:


CSBA PUBLICATIONS


Avian Influenza, Governance and Policy Services Fact Sheet, April 2006


911! A Manual for Schools and the Media During a Campus Crisis, 2001


CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS


Pandemic Influenza Planning Checklist, 2006


CONTRA COSTA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION


Pandemic Flu School Action Kit, June 2006


GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES


School Emergency Response: Using SEMS at Districts and Sites, June 1998


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS


Practical Information on Crisis Planning: A Guide for Schools and Communities, May 2003


WEB SITES


CSBA: http://www.csba.org


American Red Cross: http://www.redcross.org


California Department of Education, Crisis Preparedness: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/cp


California Emergency Management Agency: http://www.calema.ca.gov


California Seismic Safety Commission: http://www.seismic.ca.gov


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov
290/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan BP  3516


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684091/3 3/3


Contra Costa County Office of Education, Pandemic influenza resources:
http://www.cccoe.k12.ca.us/about/flu/resources_flu_action_kit


Federal Emergency Management Agency: http://www.fema.gov


U.S. Department of Education, Emergency Planning: http://www.ed.gov/admins/lead/safety/emergencyplan


U.S. Department of Homeland Security: http://www.dhs.gov


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


adopted: February 23, 2011 Soquel, California


291/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting BP  5141.4


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684346/5 1/3


Santa Cruz City Schools |  BP  5141.4  Students


Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting   


The Governing Board is committed to supporting the safety and well-being of district students and desires to
facilitate the prevention of and response to child abuse and neglect. The Superintendent or designee shall
develop and implement strategies for preventing, recognizing, and promptly reporting known or suspected child
abuse and neglect.


The Superintendent or designee may provide a student who is a victim of abuse with school-based mental health
services or other support services and/or may refer the student to resources available within the community as
needed.


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)


(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)


Child Abuse Prevention


The district's instructional program shall include age-appropriate and culturally sensitive child abuse prevention
curriculum. This curriculum shall explain students' right to live free of abuse, include instruction in the skills and
techniques needed to identify unsafe situations and react appropriately and promptly, inform students of
available support resources, and teach students how to obtain help and disclose incidents of abuse.


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)


(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)


The district's program also may include age-appropriate curriculum in sexual abuse and sexual assault awareness
and prevention. Upon written request of a student's parent/guardian, the student shall be excused from taking
such instruction. (Education Code 51900.6)


The Superintendent or designee shall, to the extent feasible, seek to incorporate community resources into the
district's child abuse prevention programs and may use these resources to provide parents/guardians with
instruction in parenting skills and child abuse prevention.


Child Abuse Reporting


The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for the identification and reporting of known and
suspected child abuse and neglect in accordance with law.


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)


Procedures for reporting child abuse shall be included in the district and/or school comprehensive safety plan.
(Education Code 32282)


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)


District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and administrative regulation, are obligated to
report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect.


292/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting BP  5141.4


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684346/5 2/3


The Superintendent or designee shall provide training regarding the duties of mandated reporters.


Legal Reference:


EDUCATION CODE


32280-32288 Comprehensive school safety plans


33195 Heritage schools, mandated reporters


33308.1 Guidelines on procedure for filing child abuse complaints


44252 Teacher credentialing


44691 Staff development in the detection of child abuse and neglect


44807 Duty concerning conduct of students


48906 Notification when student released to peace officer


48987 Dissemination of reporting guidelines to parents


49001 Prohibition of corporal punishment


51220.5 Parenting skills education


51900.6 Sexual abuse and sexual assault awareness and prevention


PENAL CODE


152.3 Duty to report murder, rape, or lewd or lascivious act


273a Willful cruelty or unjustifiable punishment of child; endangering life or health


288 Definition of lewd or lascivious act requiring reporting


11164-11174.3 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE


15630-15637 Dependent adult abuse reporting


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5


4650 Filing complaints with CDE, special education students


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42


11434a McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; definitions


COURT DECISIONS


Camreta v. Greene (2011) 131 S.Ct. 2020


Management Resources:


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
293/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting BP  5141.4


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684346/5 3/3


Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve


Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve


WEB SITES


California Attorney General's Office, Suspected Child Abuse Report Form:
http://www.ag.ca.gov/childabuse/pdf/ss_8572.pdf


California Department of Education, Safe Schools: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/ap


California Department of Social Services, Children and Family Services Division:
http://www.childsworld.ca.gov


U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Child Welfare Information Gateway:
https://www.childwelfare.gov/can


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


adopted: February 23, 2011 Soquel, California


revised: May 20, 2015


294/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Employee Security BP  4158


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684279/4 1/4


Santa Cruz City Schools |  BP  4158  Personnel


Employee Security   


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe, orderly working environment for all employees. As part of the
district's comprehensive school safety plan, the Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies for
protecting employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations and for assisting them in the event of an
emergency situation.


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)


(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)


(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in accordance with law, regarding
crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom.


When violence is directed against an employee by any individual and the employee so notifies the
Superintendent or designee, the Superintendent or designee shall take steps to ensure that appropriate legal
measures are instituted. When the employee notifies the Superintendent or designee of a threat of bodily harm,
the district shall take appropriate measures to enable the employee to request assistance if a threat occurs on
school grounds.


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are trained in crisis prevention and intervention
techniques in order to protect themselves and students. Staff development may include training in classroom
management, effective communication techniques and crisis resolution.


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)


The Board recognizes that access to two-way communications devices allows employees to call for assistance
from their supervisor or law enforcement in the event of a threat of violence or medical emergency. The district
shall provide such communications devices in classrooms to the extent possible.


(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)


Employees may possess pepper spray that meets the requirements of Penal Code 1203.7 on school property at
school activities for their own safety. Any employee who is negligent or careless in the possession or handling of
pepper spray shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary measures.


(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)


Reporting of Injurious Objects


The Board requires school employees to take immediate action upon being made aware that any person is in
possession of an injurious object on school grounds or at a school-related or school-sponsored activity. The
employee shall use his/her own judgment as to the dangerousness of the situation and, based upon this analysis,
shall do one of the following:


295/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Employee Security BP  4158


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684279/4 2/4


1. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal immediately


2. Immediately notify the principal, who shall take appropriate action


3. Immediately notify the local law enforcement agency and the principal


(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)


(cf. 5144. - Discipline)


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))


When informing the principal about the possession or seizure of a weapon or dangerous device, the employee
shall report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the circumstances of any seizure.


Legal Reference:


EDUCATION CODE


32210-32212 Willful disturbance, public schools or meetings


32225-32226 Communication devices


35204 Contract with attorney in private practice or use of administrative advisor


35205 Contract for legal services


35208 Liability insurance


35213 Reimbursement for loss, destruction or damage of school property


44014 Report of assault by pupil against school employee


44807 Duty concerning conduct of students


48201 Transfer of student records


48900-48926 Suspension or expulsion Grounds for suspension or expulsion


49079 Notification to teacher; student who has engaged in acts constituting grounds for suspension or expulsion


49330-49335 Injurious objects


CIVIL CODE


51.7 Freedom from violence or intimidation


CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE


527.8 Workplace violence safety act


GOVERNMENT CODE


995-996.4 Defense of public employees


296/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Employee Security BP  4158


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684279/4 3/4


3543.2 Scope of representation


PENAL CODE


71 Threatening public officers and employees and school officials


240 Definition of assault


241.2 Assault on school or park property against any person


241.3 Assault against school bus drivers


241.6 Assault on school employee includes board member


242 Definition of battery


243 Battery; definition of "injury" and "serious bodily injury"


243.2 Battery on school or park property against any person


243.3 Battery against school bus drivers


243.6 Battery against school employee includes board member


245.5 Assault with deadly weapon; school employee includes board member


290 Registration of sex offenders


601 Trespass by person making credible threat


626.9 Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995


626.10 Exceptions to bringing weapons on school grounds


646.9 Stalking


12403.7 Weapons approved for self defense


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE


827 Juvenile court proceedings; reports; confidentiality


828.1 District police or security department, disclosure of juvenile records


Management Resources:


CDE CORRESPONDENCE


0401.01 Protecting Student Identification in Reporting Injurious Objects


WEB SITES


California Department of Education, Safe Schools and Violence Prevention Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/


CSBA: http://www.csba.org


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS
297/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Employee Security BP  4158


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684279/4 4/4


adopted: May 25, 2011 Soquel, California


298/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Nondiscrimination/Harassment BP  5145.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684357/5 1/5


Santa Cruz City Schools |  BP  5145.3  Students


Nondiscrimination/Harassment   


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that allows all students equal access and
opportunities in the district's academic, extracurricular, and other educational support programs, services, and
activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying, targeted at any student by anyone, based on the student's
actual or perceived race, color, ancestry, national origin, nationality, ethnicity, ethnic group identification, age,
religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity,
or gender expression or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived
characteristics.


This policy shall apply to all acts related to school activity or to school attendance occurring within a district
school, and to acts which occur off campus or outside of school-related or school-sponsored activities but which
may have an impact or create a hostile environment at school.


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)


(cf. 5131 - Conduct)


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)


Unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may result from
physical, verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on any of the categories listed above. Unlawful
discrimination also includes the creation of a hostile environment through prohibited conduct that is so severe,
persistent, or pervasive that it affects a student's ability to participate in or benefit from an educational program
or activity; creates an intimidating, threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect of
substantially or unreasonably interfering with a student's academic performance; or otherwise adversely affects a
student's educational opportunities.


Unlawful discrimination also includes disparate treatment of students based on one of the categories above with
respect to the provision of opportunities to participate in school programs or activities or the provision or receipt
of educational benefits or services.


The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who reports or participates in the
reporting of unlawful discrimination, files or participates in the filing of a complaint, or investigates or
participates in the investigation of a complaint or report alleging unlawful discrimination. Retaliation complaints
shall be investigated and resolved in the same manner as a discrimination complaint.


The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students' access to the educational program by publicizing the
district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, parents/guardians, and
employees. He/she shall provide training and information on the scope and use of the policy and complaint
procedures and take other measures designed to increase the school community's understanding of the
requirements of law related to discrimination. The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the
implementation of the district's nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to


299/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Nondiscrimination/Harassment BP  5145.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684357/5 2/5


remove any identified barrier to student access to or participation in the district's educational program. He/she
shall report his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review.


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)


(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities)


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)


Regardless of whether a complainant complies with the writing, timeline, and/or other formal filing
requirements, all complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying, shall be investigated and prompt action taken to stop the discrimination, prevent
recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students.


Students who engage in unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation,
or bullying, in violation of law, Board policy, or administrative regulation shall be subject to appropriate
consequence or discipline, which may include suspension or expulsion when the behavior is severe or pervasive
as defined in Education Code 48900.4. Any employee who permits or engages in prohibited discrimination,
including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall be subject to disciplinary action,
up to and including dismissal.


(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)


(cf. 5144 - Discipline)


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)


Record-Keeping


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of unlawful discrimination,
including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, to enable the district to monitor, address, and
prevent repetitive prohibited behavior in district schools.


(cf. 3580 - District Records)


Legal Reference:


EDUCATION CODE
300/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Nondiscrimination/Harassment BP  5145.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684357/5 3/5


200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination


48900.3 Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence


48900.4 Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment


48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct


48907 Student exercise of free expression


48950 Freedom of speech


48985 Translation of notices


49020-49023 Athletic programs


51500 Prohibited instruction or activity


51501 Prohibited means of instruction


60044 Prohibited instructional materials


CIVIL CODE


1714.1 Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor


PENAL CODE


422.55 Definition of hate crime


422.6 Crimes, harassment


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5


432 Student record


4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures


4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20


1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972


12101-12213 Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29


794 Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42


2000d-2000e-17 Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended


2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964


6101-6107 Age Discrimination Act of 1975
301/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Nondiscrimination/Harassment BP  5145.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684357/5 4/5


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28


35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34


99.31 Disclosure of personally identifiable information


100.3 Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin


104.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504


106.8 Designation of responsible employee for Title IX


106.9 Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex


COURT DECISIONS


Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567


Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3d 1130


Management Resources:


CSBA PUBLICATIONS


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming
Students, Policy Brief, February 2014


Final Guidance Regarding Transgender Students, Privacy, and Facilities, March 2014


Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011


FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS


Public Schools and Sexual Orientation: A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common Ground, 2006


NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS


Dealing with Legal Matters Surrounding Students' Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity, 2004


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS


Dear Colleague Letter: Transgender Students, May 2016


Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016


Dear Colleague Letter: Title IX Coordinators, April 2015


Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010


Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999


WEB SITES


CSBA: http://www.csba.org


302/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Nondiscrimination/Harassment BP  5145.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/684357/5 5/5


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov


California Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org


First Amendment Center: http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org


National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


adopted: November 12, 2014 Soquel, California


revised: March 8, 2017


303/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Bullying BP  5131.2


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/746248/5 1/5


Santa Cruz City Schools |  BP  5131.2  Students


Bullying   


The Governing Board recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student learning and school attendance and
desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from physical and emotional harm. District
employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate bullying of any student.


No individual or group shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, threaten,
intimidate, retaliate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any student or school
personnel.


(cf. 5131 - Conduct)


(cf. 5136 - Gangs)


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)


Cyberbullying includes the creation or transmission of harassing communications, direct threats, or other
harmful texts, sounds, or images on the Internet, social media, or other technologies using a telephone,
computer, or any wireless communication device. Cyberbullying also includes breaking into another person's
electronic account and assuming that person's identity in order to damage that person's reputation.


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)


Strategies for addressing bullying in district schools shall be developed with involvement of key stakeholders,
including students, parents/guardians, and staff, and may be incorporated into the comprehensive safety plan, the
local control and accountability plan, and other applicable district and school plans.


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)


(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)


As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate with law enforcement, courts, social services,
mental health services, other agencies, and community organizations in the development and implementation of
joint strategies to promote safety in schools and the community and to provide services for alleged victims and
perpetrators of bullying.


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)


Bullying Prevention


304/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Bullying BP  5131.2


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/746248/5 2/5


To the extent possible, district schools shall focus on the prevention of bullying by establishing clear rules for
student conduct and implementing strategies to promote a positive, collaborative school climate. Students shall
be informed, through student handbooks and other appropriate means, of district and school rules related to
bullying, mechanisms available for reporting incidents or threats, and the consequences for engaging in bullying.


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)


As appropriate, the district shall provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other educational settings,
that promotes effective communication and conflict resolution skills, social skills, character/values education,
respect for cultural and individual differences, self-esteem development, assertiveness skills, and appropriate
online behavior.


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)


(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction)


(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology)


Staff shall receive related professional development, including information about early warning signs of
harassing/intimidating behaviors and effective response.


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)


Based on an assessment of bullying incidents at school, the Superintendent or designee may increase supervision
and security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as classrooms, playgrounds, hallways, restrooms,
and cafeterias.


Intervention


Students are encouraged to notify school staff when they are being bullied or suspect that another student is
being victimized. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop means for students to report threats
or incidents confidentially and anonymously.


School staff who witness an act of bullying shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when it is safe to do
so. (Education Code 234.1)


When appropriate based on the severity or pervasiveness of the bullying, the Superintendent or designee shall
notify the parents/guardians of victims and perpetrators and may contact law enforcement.


The Superintendent, principal, or principal's designee may refer a victim, witness, perpetrator, or other student
affected by an act of bullying to a school counselor, school psychologist, social worker, child welfare attendance
personnel, school nurse, or other school support service personnel for case management, counseling, and/or
participation in a restorative justice program as appropriate. (Education Code 48900.9)


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)


Reporting and Filing of Complaints


Any student, parent/guardian, or other individual who believes that a student has been subjected to bullying or
who has witnessed bullying may report the incident to a teacher, the principal, a compliance officer, or any other
available school employee. Within one business day of receiving such a report, a staff member shall notify the
principal of the report, whether or not a uniform complaint is filed. In addition, any school employee who


305/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Bullying BP  5131.2


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/746248/5 3/5


observes an incident of bullying involving a student shall, within one business day, report his/her observation to
the principal or a district compliance officer, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint.


Within two business days of receiving a report of bullying, the principal shall notify the district compliance
officer identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)


When the circumstances involve cyberbullying, individuals with information about the activity shall be
encouraged to save and print any electronic or digital messages that they feel constitute cyberbullying and to
notify a teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the matter may be investigated. When a student uses a
social networking site or service to bully or harass another student, the Superintendent or designee may file a
request with the networking site or service to suspend the privileges of the student and to have the material
removed.


When a report of bullying is submitted, the principal or a district compliance officer shall inform the student or
parent/guardian of the right to file a formal written complaint in accordance with AR 1312.3. The student who is
the alleged victim of the bullying shall be given an opportunity to describe the incident, identify witnesses who
may have relevant information, and provide other evidence of bullying.


Investigation and Resolution of Complaints


Any complaint of bullying shall be investigated and, if determined to be discriminatory, resolved in accordance
with law and the district's uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3.


If, during the investigation, it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory bullying, the principal or
designee shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to resolve the complaint.


Discipline


Corrective actions for a student who commits an act of bullying of any type may include counseling, behavioral
intervention and education, and, if the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code 48900, may
include suspension or expulsion in accordance with district policies and regulations.


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)


(cf. 5144 - Discipline)


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))


(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)


Any employee who permits or engages in bullying or retaliation related to bullying shall be subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)


Legal Reference:


EDUCATION CODE
306/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Bullying BP  5131.2


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/746248/5 4/5


200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination


32282 Comprehensive safety plan


32283.5 Bullying; online training


35181 Governing board policy on responsibilities of students


35291-35291.5 Rules


48900-48925 Suspension or expulsion


48985 Translation of notices


52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan


PENAL CODE


422.55 Definition of hate crime


647 Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor


647.7 Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; punishment


653.2 Electronic communication devices, threats to safety


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5


4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47


254 Universal service discounts (e-rate)


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28


35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34


104.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504


106.8 Designation of responsible employee for Title IX


110.25 Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age


COURT DECISIONS


Wynar v. Douglas County School District, (2013) 728 F.3d 1062J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District,
(2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094


Lavine v. Blaine School District, (2002) 279 F.3d 719


Management Resources:


CSBA PUBLICATIONS


307/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Bullying BP  5131.2


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/746248/5 5/5


Final Guidance: AB 1266, Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students, Privacy, Programs, Activities &
Facilities, Legal Guidance, March 2014


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming
Students, Policy Brief, February 2014Addressing the Conditions of Children: Focus on Bullying, Governance
Brief, December 2012


Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011


Building Healthy Communities: A School Leaders Guide to Collaboration and Community Engagement, 2009


Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS


Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2008


Bullying at School, 2003


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS


Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013


Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010


WEB SITES


CSBA: http://www.csba.org


California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss


Common Sense Media: http://www.commonsensemedia.org


National School Safety Center: http://www.schoolsafety.us


ON[the]LINE, digital citizenship resources: http://www.onthelineca.org


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


adopted: November 12, 2014 Soquel, California


revised: October 14, 2015


308/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process BP  5144.1


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/935897/5 1/6


Santa Cruz City Schools |  BP  5144.1  Students


Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process   


The Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational opportunities in an orderly school
environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes their
learning and development. The Board shall develop rules and regulations setting the standards of behavior
expected of district students and the disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those
standards, including suspension and/or expulsion.


(cf. 5131 - Conduct)


(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)


The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, and/or
implementing suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law, in this policy, and in the
accompanying administrative regulation.


Except when otherwise permitted by law, a student may be suspended or expelled only when his/her behavior is
related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within any district school or another school district,
regardless of when it occurs, including, but not limited to, the following: (Education Code 48900(s))


1. While on school grounds


2. While going to or coming from school


3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus


(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus)


4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity


District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly, consistently, equally,
and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies.


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)


Appropriate Use of Suspension Authority


Except when a student's act violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e), as listed in items #1-5 under "Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" of the accompanying administrative regulation, or when his/her
presence causes a danger to others, suspension shall be used only when other means of correction have failed to
bring about proper conduct. (Education Code 48900.5, 48900.6)


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)


(cf. 5144 - Discipline)


(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)
309/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process BP  5144.1


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/935897/5 2/6


(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)


A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating pattern of
misbehavior that could lead to on-campus or off-campus suspension.


No student in grades K-3 may be suspended for disruption or willful defiance, except by a teacher pursuant to
Education Code 48910. (Education Code 48900)


Students shall not be suspended or expelled for truancy, tardiness, or absenteeism from assigned school
activities.


(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)


(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)


On-Campus Suspension


To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any of the reasons
enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent danger or threat to anyone at
school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not been initiated, the Superintendent or designee may
establish a supervised suspension classroom program which meets the requirements of law.


Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, supervised suspension
shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct. (Education
Code 48900.5)


Authority to Expel


A student may be expelled only by the Board. (Education Code 48918(j))


As required by law, the Superintendent or principal shall recommend expulsion and the Board shall expel any
student found to have committed any of the following "mandatory recommendation and mandatory expulsion"
acts at school or at a school activity off school grounds: (Education Code 48915)


1. Possessing a firearm which is not an imitation firearm, as verified by a certificated employee, unless the
student had obtained prior written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the
principal or designee's concurrence


(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)


2. Selling or otherwise furnishing a firearm


3. Brandishing a knife at another person


4. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058


5. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286, 288, 288a, or
289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4


6. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921


For all other violations listed in the accompanying administrative regulation under "Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion: Grades K-12" and "Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12," the
Superintendent or principal shall have the discretion to recommend expulsion of a student. If expulsion is
recommended, the Board shall order the student expelled only if it makes a finding of either or both of the
following: (Education Code 48915(b) and (e))


310/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process BP  5144.1


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/935897/5 3/6


1. That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about proper conduct


2. That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing danger to the physical
safety of the student or others


A vote to expel a student shall be taken in an open session of a Board meeting.


The Board may vote to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion order pursuant to the requirements of law and
the accompanying administrative regulation. (Education Code 48917)


No student shall be expelled for disruption or willful defiance. (Education Code 48900)


Due Process


The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and/or expulsion by
affording them their due process rights under the law. The Superintendent or designee shall comply with
procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law and administrative regulation. (Education Code
48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918)


(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))


Maintenance and Monitoring of Outcome Data


The Superintendent or designee shall annually present to the Board a report of the outcome data which the
district is required to collect pursuant to Education Code 48900.8 and 48916.1, including the number of students
recommended for expulsion, the grounds for each recommended expulsion, the actions taken by the Board, the
types of referral made after each expulsion, and the disposition of the students after the expulsion period.


In presenting the report to the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall disaggregate data on suspensions and
expulsions by school and by numerically significant student subgroups, including, but not limited to, ethnic
subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth,
and homeless students. Based on the data, the Board shall address any identified disparities in the imposition of
student discipline and shall determine whether and how the district is meeting its goals for improving school
climate as specified in its local control and accountability plan.


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)


Legal Reference:


EDUCATION CODE


212.5 Sexual harassment


233 Hate violence


1981-1981.5 Enrollment of students in community school


17292.5 Program for expelled students


32261 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985


35145 Open board meetings


35146 Closed sessions (regarding suspensions)
311/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process BP  5144.1


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/935897/5 4/6


35291 Rules (for government and discipline of schools)


35291.5 Rules and procedures on school discipline


48645.5 Readmission; contact with juvenile justice system


48660-48666 Community day schools


48853.5 Foster youth


48900-48927 Suspension and expulsion


48950 Speech and other communication


48980 Parental notifications


49073-49079 Privacy of student records


52052 Numerically significant student subgroups


52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan


CIVIL CODE


47 Privileged communication


48.8 Defamation liability


CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE


1985-1997 Subpoenas; means of production


GOVERNMENT CODE


11455.20 Contempt


54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE


11014.5 Drug paraphernalia


11053-11058 Standards and schedules


LABOR CODE


230.7 Discharge or discrimination against employee for taking time off to appear in school on behalf of a child


PENAL CODE


31 Principal of a crime, defined


240 Assault defined


241.2 Assault fines


242 Battery defined
312/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process BP  5144.1


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/935897/5 5/6


243.2 Battery on school property


243.4 Sexual battery


245 Assault with deadly weapon


245.6 Hazing


261 Rape defined


266c Unlawful sexual intercourse


286 Sodomy defined


288 Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14


288a Oral copulation


289 Penetration of genital or anal openings


417.27 Laser pointers


422.55 Hate crime defined


422.6 Interference with exercise of civil rights


422.7 Aggravating factors for punishment


422.75 Enhanced penalties for hate crimes


626.2 Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission


626.9 Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995


626.10 Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns


868.5 Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE


729.6 Counseling


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18


921 Definitions, firearm


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20


1415(K) Placement in alternative educational setting


7961 Gun-free schools


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42


11432-11435 Education of homeless children and youths


COURT DECISIONS
313/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process BP  5144.1


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/935897/5 6/6


T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4th 1267


Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 421


Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v. Sacramento County Board of Education and
Kenneth H. (2001) 85 Cal.App.4th 1321


Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 118


Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1991) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807


John A. v. San Bernardino School District (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS


84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001)


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 348 (1997)


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997)


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997)


Management Resources:


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS


Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January 2014


WEB SITES


CSBA: http://www.csba.org


California Attorney General's Office: http://www.oag.ca.gov


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-
data-summary.pdf


U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Healthy Students:
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oshs


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


adopted: June 13, 2018 Soquel, California


314/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Uniform Complaint Procedures BP  1312.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/1055311/1 1/7


Santa Cruz City Schools |  BP  1312.3  Community Relations


Uniform Complaint Procedures   


The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with
applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board encourages early
resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal process,
the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the
accompanying administrative regulation.


Complaints Subject to the UCP


The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the following
complaints:


1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations governing adult
education programs, After School Education and Safety programs, agricultural vocational education, American
Indian education centers and early childhood education program assessments, bilingual education, peer
assistance and review programs for teachers, career technical and technical education and training programs,
child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, compensatory education, consolidated
categorical aid programs, Economic Impact Aid, English learner programs, federal education programs in Title
I-VII, migrant education, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, school safety plans, special education
programs, State Preschool Programs, Tobacco-Use Prevention Education programs, and any other district-
implemented program which is listed in Education Code 64000


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)


(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)


(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)


(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)


(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)


(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)


(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)


(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners)


(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)


(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)


(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning)


(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program)


(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)


2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) against any student, employee, or other person participating in district programs and


315/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Uniform Complaint Procedures BP  1312.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/1055311/1 2/7


activities, including, but not limited to, those programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit
from any state financial assistance, based on the person's actual or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity,
color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital
status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity,
gender expression, or genetic information, or any other characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220,
Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one
or more of these actual or perceived characteristics (5 CCR 4610)


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)


3. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirement to provide reasonable accommodation to
a lactating student on school campus to express breast milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other
breastfeeding-related needs of the student (Education Code 222)


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)


4. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring students to pay fees,
deposits, or other charges for participation in educational activities (5 CCR 4610)


(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)


(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)


5. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with legal requirements related to the implementation of the
local control and accountability plan (Education Code 52075)


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)


6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging district noncompliance with any
legal requirement applicable to the student regarding placement decisions, the responsibilities of the district's
educational liaison to the student, the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school
or district, school transfer, or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements
(Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2)


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)


7. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, a former juvenile court
school student, or a child of a military family as defined in Education Code 49701 who transfers into the district
after his/her second year of high school, alleging district noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the
student regarding the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district or the
grant of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2)


(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)


(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)


(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)


8. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirements of Education Code 51228.1 and 51228.2
that prohibit the assignment of a student in grades 9-12 to a course without educational content for more than
one week in any semester or to a course the student has previously satisfactorily completed, without meeting
specified conditions (Education Code 51228.3)


316/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Uniform Complaint Procedures BP  1312.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/1055311/1 3/7


(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment)


9. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the physical education instructional minutes requirement
for students in elementary school (Education Code 51210, 51223)


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)


10. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the complaint process or
anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy


11. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy


The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of the allegations,
offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is acceptable to all parties. ADR such as mediation
may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However, mediation shall
not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a
party to the mediation would feel compelled to participate. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the
use of ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations.


The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the confidentiality of the
parties involved shall be protected as required by law. For any complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or designee
shall keep the identity of the complainant, and/or the subject of the complaint if he/she is different from the
complainant, confidential when appropriate and as long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained.


(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)


(cf. 5125 - Student Records)


(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)


When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district shall refer the non-
UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if appropriate, resolve the UCP-
related allegation(s) through the district's UCP.


The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and knowledge of
current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines specified in this policy and the
accompanying administrative regulation.


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the investigations of those
complaints in accordance with applicable law and district policy.


(cf. 3580 - District Records)


Non-UCP Complaints


The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the specified agency:
(5 CCR 4611)


317/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Uniform Complaint Procedures BP  1312.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/1055311/1 4/7


1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department of Social Services,
the County Protective Services Division, and the appropriate law enforcement agency.


(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)


2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program shall, for licensed
facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-exempt facilities, be referred to
the appropriate Child Development regional administrator.


3. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the Legal, Audits and Compliance Branch of the California
Department of Education.


Any complaint alleging employment discrimination or harassment shall be investigated and resolved by the
district in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment.


Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities
conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or teacher vacancies and misassignments
shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with the procedures in AR 1312.4 - Williams Uniform
Complaint Procedures. (Education Code 35186)


(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)


Legal Reference:


EDUCATION CODE


200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination


222 Reasonable accommodations; lactating students


8200-8498 Child care and development programs


8500-8538 Adult basic education


18100-18203 School libraries


32280-32289 School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures


33380-33384 California Indian Education Centers


35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures


44500-44508 California Peer Assistance and Review Program for Teachers


48853-48853.5 Foster youth


48985 Notices in language other than English


49010-49013 Student fees


49060-49079 Student records


49069.5 Rights of parents


49490-49590 Child nutrition programs


49701 Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children318/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Uniform Complaint Procedures BP  1312.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/1055311/1 5/7


51210 Courses of study grades 1-6


51223 Physical education, elementary schools


51225.1-51225.2 Foster youth, homeless children, former juvenile court school students, and military-connected
students; course credits; graduation requirements


51226-51226.1 Career technical education


51228.1-51228.3 Course periods without educational content


52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan, especially:


52075 Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan requirements


52160-52178 Bilingual education programs


52300-52462 Career technical education


52500-52616.24 Adult schools


54000-54029 Economic Impact Aid


54400-54425 Compensatory education programs


54440-54445 Migrant education


54460-54529 Compensatory education programs


56000- 56865 Special education programs


59000-59300 Special schools and centers


64000-64001 Consolidated application process


GOVERNMENT CODE


11135 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state


12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE


104420 Tobacco-Use Prevention Education


PENAL CODE


422.55 Hate crime; definition


422.6 Interference with constitutional right or privilege


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2


11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5


319/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Uniform Complaint Procedures BP  1312.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/1055311/1 6/7


3080 Application of section


4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures


4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20


1221 Application of laws


1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act


1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972


6301-6576 Title I basic programs


6801-7014 Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students


7101-7184 Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act


7201-7283g Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs


7301-7372 Title V rural and low-income school programs


12101-12213 Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29


794 Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42


2000d-2000e-17 Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended


2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964


6101-6107 Age Discrimination Act of 1975


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28


35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34


99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act


100.3 Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin


104.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34


106.8 Designation of responsible employee for Title IX


106.9 Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex


110.25 Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age
320/567







2/6/2019 GAMUT Online : Santa Cruz City Schools : Uniform Complaint Procedures BP  1312.3


http://www.gamutonline.net/district/santacruzcity/DisplayPolicy/1055311/1 7/7


Management Resources:


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS


Sample UCP Board Policies and Procedures


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS


Dear Colleague Letter: Title IX Coordinators, April 2015


Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013


Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010


Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, or Third
Parties, January 2001


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS


Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002


WEB SITES


CSBA: http://www.csba.org


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov


Family Policy Compliance Office: http://familypolicy.ed.gov


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/ocr


U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


adopted: June 13, 2018 Soquel, California


321/567







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Branciforte Middle School 


Address:  315 Poplar St. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062-1131 


Principal:  Amy Spiers 


Phone Number: (831) 429-3883 ext. 3111 


E-mail Address: cobrien@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: 831-429-3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


322/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................3 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................4 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................5 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................7 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................8 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .......................................................................................................9 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 ...........................................................................................9 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ....................................................................................................................9 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 ......................................................................................9 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .......................................................................................................9 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................10 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................10 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........10 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................10 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................11 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................12 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................12 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................13 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................14 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................14 


 


323/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Branciforte Middle 
School office, and online at sccs.net. 
 
 


324/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Branciforte Middle School Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
 School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Amy Spiers Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Molly O'Neil Teacher from Branciforte Middle School 


Lisa Orozco Parent whose child attends the School 


Teo Lopez Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


Casey O'Brien Other 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan 1/16/2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan 2/1/2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan 2/13/2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan 2/20/2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review 3/1/2019 


 


325/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the 
Branciforte Middle School campus and at school-related functions. Data presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 9 39 31 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 1 3 0 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) 9% 13% 13% 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
5 3 0 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
4 8 9 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
6 13 4 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement no data no data 3 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
Suspensions: Our suspensions for 17-18 improved (declined) slightly, but are still up significantly from 15-16. This year 
we are having regular student support team meetings to discuss ways to support our students with Tier 2/3 behaviors, 
as well as focusing more on restorative practices to support our students and keep them in their classes while still 
addressing their behaviors. 
Expulsions: Last year our site had 0 expulsions, an improvement from the following year.  As stated above in 
Suspensions, we are working hard to identify student behavior concerns and hope to be able to continue to keep our 
expulsion numbers low. 
Chronic Absenteeism: Our chronic absentee rate remained consistent (13%) over the past two years, but is still higher 
than preferred.  Again, our student support team is examining absentee data regularly and checking in with students 
and families to help the students with truancy issues. Appropriate referrals can be made to the district Student 
Attendance Review Board for additional support and accountability. 


326/567







Bullying and Harassment: Last year we had zero instances of bullying and harassment. Our Positive Behavior 
Intervention Supports (PBIS) team, counselors, administration, and staff have worked hard to implement school wide 
behavior expectations and we have adopted a zero-tolerance philosophy around bullying. 
Substance Abuse: Our data from 2017-18 was down significantly compared to 2016-17. Our counseling staff and 
administration works with students and stakeholders by providing education and referrals to help educate around 
student substance abuse. 


 


327/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Branciforte Middle School is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and 
programs provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
Branciforte is a creative and stimulating learning community built on a foundation of respect and integrity, where 
individuals are safe, known well, and cared for, where everyone contributes and values the contributions of others, 
where everyone learns every day, and where scholarship leads to academic excellence. 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. 
Branciforte Middle School prepares students to be self-disciplined and responsible citizens who can meet the challenge 
of living in an ethnically and socio-economically diverse community. Branciforte Middle School promotes caring and 
nurturing relationships and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other 
community agencies. Branciforte Middle School stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares students to 
handle conflict, anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Branciforte Middle School discipline policy 
provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California Education Code and district policies. School-
wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule infractions provide students with clear 
expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to build protective factors leading to 
student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Branciforte Middle School implements 
programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning using research-based strategies. 
Branciforte Middle School implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that 
promote high expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Branciforte Middle School that provide a safe learning environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
PBIS, School Clubs, Rainbow Alliance, Counseling Services, AAA, RtI/MTSS, Orientation, BTV, Assemblies, SCIL, Family Life 
Curriculum 
 


328/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


329/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Branciforte Middle School will provide all students and staff with emergency/disaster preparedness training in a variety 
of procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures 11/17/18 


Lock Down Procedures 9/15/18 


Code Red Procedures 9/15/18 


Shelter in Place Procedures 9/15/18 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures 10/15/18 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
"Re-entry" meetings are conducted for all suspensions with the intent of moving forward in a positive fashion. 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 


330/567







10


Strategies and programs unique to Branciforte Middle School that provide a safe school environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
PBIS, School Clubs, Rainbow Alliance, Counseling Services, AAA, RtI/MTSS, Orientation, BTV, Assemblies, SCIL, Family Life 
Curriculum 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 


Districtwide Safety Collaboration Meeting 1/17/19; Countywide School Safety Plan Collaboration  12/12/18 
 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Branciforte Middle School that prevent bullying for all students, including specifically 
for LGBTQ students. 
PBIS, School Clubs, Counseling Services,  RtI/MTSS, Orientation, BTV, Assemblies, SCIL, Family Life Curriculum,  PBIS, 
School Clubs, Counseling Services, AAA, RtI/MTSS, Orientation (Beekeepers), BTV, Assemblies, SCIL, FTE for 
Connectedness, After school sports, Trauma Informed Classrooms. 


331/567







Specific programs and supports for our LGBTQ students include a robust and visible Rainbow Alliance (Gay Student 
Alliance), All-gender bathrooms, counseling services, Whole student-body recognition of day-of-silence, assemblies that 
promote anti-bullying and acceptance. 
 
 
 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
California Healthy Kids Survey Summary of Key Indicators of School Climate and Well Being 
The following data are the key safety and school connectedness indicators from the 2016-17 California Healthy Kids 
Survey. The 
percentages represent the district responses for 7th grade. 
School Environment Scales (Numbers represent % of High/Moderate/Low responses) 
Total school supports - 42/49/8 
Caring adults in school - 38/53/9 
High expectations-adults in school - 55/41/4 
Meaningful participation at school - 20/54/27 
School Connectedness - 62/32/6 
Perceived Safety at School - Very safe 21%, Safe 43%, Neither safe nor unsafe 30%, Unsafe 5%, Very unsafe 1% 
The areas of greatest need under perceived safety were "Experienced any harassment or bullying" with 31% of students 
experiencing one or more instances in the past 30 days, "Had mean rumors or lies spread about you" with 31% of 
students 
experiencing one or more instances in the past 30 days, and "Been made fun of, insulted, or called names" with 32% of 
students 
experiencing one or more instances in the past 20 days. 
 
The Branciforte Social Emotional Health Survey (SEHS) for 2018 provided more current feedback around 
Social/Emotional and Connectedness data for our site. 
 
Data to celebrate: 
The information provided will be shown as percent of 6th/7th/8th with responses indicating "Pretty much true" and 
"Very much true." 
At my school, there is a teacher or some other adult who always wants me to do my best: 91/94/81 
My family members really help and support one another: 81/88/81 
I have a friend my age who helps me when I'm having a hard time: 78/79/74 
 
Data to address: 
The information provided will be shown as percent of 6th/7th/8th with responses indicating "Neither disagree or agree," 
"Disagree," and "Strongly disagree." 
I am happy to be at this school: 33/33/43 
I feel safe at my school: 37/31/35 


332/567







12


 
 
 
 
PBIS, School Clubs, Counseling Services, AAA, RtI/MTSS, Orientation (Beekeepers), BTV, Assemblies, SCIL, FTE for 
Connectedness, After school sports, Trauma Informed Classrooms 


 
 
School Counselor(s), School Social Worker, School Psychologist, Behaviorist, School Therapist, District Nurse, SRO, 
Administration and Outside Agencies as needed, provide Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3 supports to Branciforte families and 
students. 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Branciforte Middle School that create a positive school climate for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
At Branciforte Middle School, there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and support by 
and for the whole school . This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as expected 
behavior and interactions between students and staff. Other supports in place to enhance school climate include the 
implementation of Positive Behavior Intervention and Support, School Clubs, Counseling Services, AAA, RtI/MTSS, 
Orientation (Beekeepers), BTV, Assemblies, SCIL, FTE for Connectedness, school sports, and Trauma Informed 
Classrooms. 
 
Specific programs and supports for our LGBTQ students include a robust and visible Rainbow Alliance (Gay Student 
Alliance), All-gender bathrooms, counseling services, whole student-body recognition of day-of-silence, assemblies that 
promote anti-bullying and acceptance. 
 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Branciforte Middle School that encourage early resolution of complaints for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
Our site leadership and counseling teams immediately address and investigate complaints. All complaints are taken 
seriously in an effort to find resolutions to promote safety for all students. We work in partnership with our district 
administration and follow board policy. Specific efforts are made to ensure that LGBTQ students are supported mentally, 
emotionally, and physically at our site and that they are aware of their rights and available supports. 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 


333/567







13


 
All of the Branciforte teaching staff are trained in Trauma Informed/Brain-based learning to bring strategies to our 
classrooms to support students who have experienced trauma. In specific instances, we provide counseling by our site 
counselor, social worker, and outside agencies, as needed, to support our students who have witnessed or been victim 
to violence. 


 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Branciforte Middle School, the following 
procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
Students arrive on campus in various ways. Walkers have crosswalks available at the corner of Melrose and Poplar. 
There is a four way stop at that corner. There is a crosswalk giving access to the center of campus at Poplar and 
Hammond. Slow School signs are placed in all directions from campus. Bicyclists and skateboarders, once on campus, 
have a bike cage and a skateboard shed to secure their bikes and skateboards. They are encouraged to have heavy-duty 
locks and cables. Our campus supervisor or other school personnel stays at the cage until all students have arrived in the 
morning and is positioned at the cage after school for safety. 
Ecology Action and the regional transportation district working with staff, students, and parents, completed a bicycle 
and pedestrian safety audit on January 30, 2014. Recommendations included improved signage, crosswalk on Morrissey 
Blvd., and improved sidewalk and bicycle lanes in the neighborhood. There is a bus loading and unloading zone on 
Melrose to prevent cars parking in the area of bicycle ingress and egress. 
Students and Adults visiting Branciforte after hours or on weekends are encouraged to follow the same safety 
guidelines. 
 
 
 
  


334/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


335/567







 
 
 
 
 


336/567







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 


Address:  840 North Branciforte Ave. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


Principal:  Steve Hambright 


Phone Number: 831-429-3898, ext. 229 


E-mail Address: shambright@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: 831 429-3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


337/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................3 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................4 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................5 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................7 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................8 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .......................................................................................................9 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 ...........................................................................................9 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ....................................................................................................................9 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 ......................................................................................9 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .......................................................................................................9 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................10 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................10 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........11 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................11 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................11 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................13 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................13 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................14 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................15 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................15 


 


338/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Costanoa 
Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus office, and online at http://sccsbssc.ss8.sharpschool.com/. 
 
 


339/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been 
developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
 School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Steve Hambright Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Dominic Yarbrough Teacher from Costanoa Continuation High 
School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 


Shannon McCord Parent whose child attends the School 


Gail Mabrouk Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


Jasmine Gonzalez Other 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan February 4, 2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan February 6, 2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan February 6, 2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan February 20, 2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review March 1, 2019 


 


340/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the Costanoa 
Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus campus and at school-related functions. Data presented 
include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 1 5 8 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 0 2 1 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) n/a 77% 52% 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
0 0 2 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
0 0 4 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
7 8 5 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement N/A N/A 2 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
The chronic absentee rate dropped nearly 25% from 2016-17 to 2017-18. Our weekly attendance/counseling team 
protocols were revised for 2017-18, likely helping to reduce this rate. Costanoa must continue to hold 
weekly/attendance counseling team meetings to combat chronic absenteeism and reduce the rate even further.  
School staff works closely with the Student Services Department to facilitate appropriate referrals to the Student 
Attendance Review Board (SARB). 
The number of expulsions has remained very low over the past three years. Two of the three expulsions were the 
result of on-campus events. 
The number of suspensions increased in 2017-18, largely due to three disciplinary incidents related to fighting/physical 
harm. Costanoa employs a wide variety of alternative means of correction, as well as a coordinated system of 
Restorative Justice practices which contribute greatly to a low suspension/expulsion rate. 


341/567







 


342/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus is committed to school safety for all students, 
staff, and visitors. Many strategies and programs provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
INSPIRED PURPOSE--We personalize education for every student. 
MISSION--We are a small and diverse community that supports students’ academic and personal growth. Students learn 
through integrated thematic instruction, participate in experiential learning, develop a foundation in positive 
socioemotional practices, and build connections to Cabrillo College. 
 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. 
Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus prepares students to be self-disciplined and 
responsible citizens who can meet the challenge of living in an ethnically and socio-economically diverse 
community. Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus promotes caring and nurturing 
relationships and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other community 
agencies. Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus stresses prevention of violence on 
campus and prepares students to handle conflict, anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Costanoa Continuation High 
School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus discipline policy provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to 
the California Education Code and district policies. School-wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences 
for rule infractions provide students with clear expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as 
well as to build protective factors leading to student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Costanoa Continuation High 
School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus implements programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-
emotional learning using research-based strategies. Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that promote high 
expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that provide a 
safe learning environment for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
All Costanoa teaching staff have received extensive training on positive discipline, trauma-informed school principles 
and practices, and restorative justice tenets and practices. Costanoa students participate in weekly community circles, 
have classroom jobs, and co-create classroom expectations with their teachers. Teachers explicitly teach self-regulation 
strategies to their students and practice them as appropriate. Students are also encouraged to participate in a weekly 
mindfulness class. In a May 2018 survey, 54% of Costanoa students were able to name 3 self-regulation techniques, and 
70% of students were able to name a time when they used a self-regulation technique during the course of the 2017-18 
school year. 
Costanoa students are at the heart of weekly discussions in our attendance/counseling meeting. Both principals, the 
school community coordinator, a district nurse, a district social worker, the school counselor, the mental health 
counselor, and the school psychologist participate in this intervention-seeking, solutions-based approach to supporting 
students with attendance and/or socioemotional issues. Students who receive a second truancy letter are assigned a 
case manager who supports the student to address issues impacting attendance. 
To specifically address support for LGBTQ students, we have hired a mental health counselor who has expertise in 
supporting LGBTQ students. The school registrar is also in the process of establishing a Rainbow Alliance Club that will be 
open to students at all four schools on our site. 
 
 


343/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


344/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus will provide all students and staff with 
emergency/disaster preparedness training in a variety of procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures 8/17/2018 


Lock Down Procedures 8/17/2018 


Code Red Procedures 8/17/2018 


Shelter in Place Procedures 8/17/2018 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures 8/17/2018 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 


345/567







10


Strategies and programs unique to Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that provide a 
safe school environment for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
During a staff meeting in the Fall 2018, the principal provided training focused on the Santa Cruz City Schools' policies 
regarding nondiscrimination and sexual harassment.  To specifically address support for LGBTQ students, we have hired 
a mental health counselor who has expertise in supporting LGBTQ students. The school registrar is also in the process of 
establishing a Rainbow Alliance Club that will be open to students at all four schools on our site. 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Costanoa follows the Board Policy related to dress code. The "Costanoa Rights and Responsibilities" document also 
outlines further dress code restrictions. These restrictions are described here, 


• Clothing that is too revealing of skin or undergarments. Items with references to drugs, alcohol, tobacco, or 
violent, sexual, or disrespectful words or images 


• Gang-related signs, symbols, or excessive colors. Red, blue or otherwise gang trend colors on hats, 
bandannas, shoelaces, gloves, socks, backpacks or belts. 


• Pro sports jerseys. Display of area codes. 
• Hats, beanies, or knit caps associated with specific gangs. 


 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
Costanoa advisors and the principal use an agreement system with students to support those students who are not 
making adequate progress related to attendance, work production or behavior. Any staff member can create a first level 
agreement with a student, but the student's advisor usually does this. 
Attendance: 
Advisor calls home as soon as attendance is a concern. First truancy letter is sent to parent. Advisor calls parent to 
schedule conference to develop a plan of action. If a student gets the second truancy letter, parent and student meet 
with the principal and/or members of the School Attendance Review Team (SART) team. Student creates a first-level 
agreement with advisory teacher outlining needed interventions. Advisory teacher monitors the student's attendance. If 
student receives the third truancy letter, student may be referred to School Attendance Review Board (SARB). 
Attendance agreements last until the end of the school year. 
Lack of Work Production: 
If student is not working to reach at least minimum academic requirements (12.5 credits per quarter), student will 
create a first level agreement with his/her advisor. Student and advisor meet to develop a plan of action (agreement) to 
support student’s work production including a daily progress report if needed. Both advisor and student sign the 
agreement, and parent is contacted in person, by email, or by telephone. If student is not helped by first agreement 
interventions, he/she will create a second level agreement with his/her advisor. Student, parent, and school community 


346/567







coordinator/principal meet to design and sign second level agreement. Student may be removed from an agreement IF 
he/she has been recommended to exit the agreement by the staff member(s) that created the agreement with the 
student. If student is not successful with the second level agreement, the student will create a third and final agreement 
with the principal. If the interventions are not successful and the agreement conditions are not met, an alternative 
education setting that can better meet the student's academic needs will be considered. 
Behavior: 
Follows similar path and guidelines as a lack of work production agreement. 
 
2017-18 SPSA target data indicates that 82% of students on a first agreement did not proceed to a final agreement for 
issues with behavior, attendance, and/or work production. 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 
The Branciforte Small Schools principal attended a 12/12/18 safety plan training provided by Santa Cruz County Office 
of Education. The BSSC principal and assistant principal were also able to review safety plan requirements and discuss 
plan development with other site administrators during Santa Cruz City Schools' leadership meetings. The SCCS 
Director of Student Services led a 90-minutes districtwide administrator safety plan collaboration meeting on 1/17/19. 
Finally, the SCCS Director of Student Services met with Costanoa principal and assistant principal to review plan 
requirements on 1/31/19. 


 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that prevent 
bullying for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
The Costanoa staff responds immediately to all reports of bullying, conducts an investigation, and acts to provide 
support to the victim and aggressor. 
 
 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 


347/567







12


adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
UC-Santa Barbara Socioemotional Health Survey (SEHS) Fall 2018 data 
In September 2018, 37 Costanoa students completed the UCSB SEHS. For the first time since Costanoa began 
administering the survey, many families did not give consent for their child to take it. The results indicate that the 
overwhelming majority of our students feel connected to school. Only 1 of 37 respondents disagreed with the 
statement, "I feel safe in my school." 83% of female and 60% of male students agreed or strongly agreed, while 12% of 
female and 40% of male students "neither disagree nor agree". None of the 27 respondents disagreed with the 
statement, "The teachers at this school treat students fairly." 83% of female and 73% of male students agreed or 
strongly agreed, while 18% of female and 27% of male students "neither disagree nor agree".  24% of female and 20% of 
male students disagreed with the statement, "I feel close to people at this school." This indicates a need to continue our 
implementation of restorative practices, especially community circles. 
 
Costanoa student and parent survey February 2018 data 
During the February 2018 parent/teacher conferences, 61 parents and 59 students completed a staff-created survey 
(English and Spanish) to provide Costanoa staff with feedback on school climate and perceived progress on schoolwide 
learning objectives. For the second consecutive year, 84% of parents feel that their student is safe from violence or 
bullying at CHS; 97% of students feel safe at school always or most of the time, 86% feel supported at school always or 
most of the time, and 91% feel respected at school always or most of the time. It is clear that students and families feel 
that Costanoa continues to provide a safe and supportive school climate. 
 
Attendance data 
CHS attendance rates have continued to hover between 80% and 88% over the past four years. We must continue to 
encourage better attendance among a significant number of students. Anecdotal data provided by counselors and 
advisors also indicates that most CHS students are dealing or have dealt with significant trauma and/or challenges in 
their lives. These trauma and challenges greatly impact some students’ ability to succeed academically and attend school 
regularly. It is CHS’ hope to provide students with more socioemotional learning opportunities so that they are better 
equipped to deal with challenges they face now or will face in the future. 
 
California Healthy Kids Survey Spring 2017 data 
70 Costanoa students took the California Healthy Kids Survey in Spring 2017 (the last administration in SCCS). 84% of 
students felt that the school is safe or very safe. The vast majority of students reported that they have never 
experienced any incidents of harassment on school property (88% based on race, 98% based on religion, 98% based on 
gender, 97% based on being gay, or lesbian, 94% based on a physical or mental disability). Our area of strength was 
school connectedness with 64% of students scoring high. In fact, our school site's rating on this component was the 
highest of any secondary school in the district. 
 
 
 
Costanoa has embarked upon a 3-year implementation of restorative justice practices. Every Costanoa student has 
participated in a community circle facilitated by a teacher(s) in their advisory or other classes. Student participation in 
these circles is meant to foster an increased sense of school connectedness and safety. According to a February 2019 
student survey, more than 90% of students who participated in circles during the first half of the semester indicated 
that their participation in the circles helped them feel like they belonged at Costanoa. The principal and assistant 
principal are implementing conflict resolution based on restorative questions. They are keeping a database to monitor 
effectiveness of this strategy. 
 
Costanoa has hired a school mental health counselor. This counselor has provided direct services (informal check-ins, 
weekly counseling) to more than 20 Costanoa students during the course of the year. The counselor participates in 
weekly attendance/counseling meetings. 


348/567







13


 
Costanoa staff discuss students of concern in weekly staff meetings. During these Team Intervention Planning (TIP) 
discussions for students of concern, staff discuss attempted interventions and identify new interventions and supports 
for students. 
 
Students are recognized for excellent or improved academic, socioemotional, or attendance progress at quarterly 
awards assemblies. 
 


 
 
Costanoa has an experienced, full-time academic counselor on staff. She works closely with many, many students to 
ensure they are making necessary progress to reach academic and career goals. 
 
Costanoa has a part-time school mental health counselor. This counselor has provided direct services (informal check-
ins, weekly counseling) to more than 20 Costanoa students during the course of the year. The counselor participates in 
weekly attendance/counseling meetings. 
 
Our school works closely with the SCCS school resource officer to maintain a safe school environment. The SRO 
maintains regular contact with the principal and observes Code Red drills to provide feedback. 
 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that create a 
positive school climate for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
To specifically address support for LGBTQ students, we have hired a mental health counselor who has expertise in 
supporting LGBTQ students. The school registrar is also in the process of establishing a Rainbow Alliance Club that will 
be open to students at all four schools on our site.  At Costanoa Continuation High School there is ongoing and 
dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and support by and for the whole school . This support is evidenced 
via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as expected behavior and interactions between students and staff. 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Costanoa Continuation High School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that 
encourage early resolution of complaints for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
All student complaints are taken seriously by Costanoa staff. Staff report complaints to the principal or assistant 
principal. The principal(s) immediately commence an investigation to gather details about the nature of the complaint. 
The administrators report back to the individuals involved in the complaint regarding the proposed resolution(s). If any 
outstanding issues are present, the administrators seek the support of district office personnel to assist with the 
resolution of the complaint. LGBTQ student complaints are treated with the same level of seriousness as other student 
complaints. To specifically address support for LGBTQ students at our site, we have hired a mental health counselor who 
has expertise in supporting LGBTQ students. 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 


349/567







14


health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 
Site-based referral process, including immediate collaboration of school staff is in place to support mental health 
support support needed for any reason. 


 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Costanoa Continuation High 
School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus, the following procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the 
school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
Several procedures are in place to ensure the safety of students, parents, and employees who are traveling to and from 
Branciforte Small Schools Campus. Orange cones are placed in the rear parking lot during student drop-off and pick-up 
to ensure an orderly drop-off and pick-up. The campus security supervisor monitors drop-off and pick-up in the rear 
parking lot. The rear parking lot is well-lit during after-school hours and on weekends. The principal, school community 
coordinator, and/or school counselor are present in front of school during student pick-up. Costanoa is also a closed 
campus. 
 
 
  


350/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


351/567







 
 
 
 
 


352/567







 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: DeLaveaga Elementary School 


Address:  1145 Morrissey Blvd. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95065-1498 


Principal:  Robert Greenlee 


Phone Number: (831) 429-3807 ext. 3103 


E-mail Address: rgreenlee@sccs.net 


353/567







 
District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: 831-429-3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


354/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................4 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................5 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................6 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................8 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................9 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .....................................................................................................10 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 .........................................................................................10 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ..................................................................................................................10 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 .....................................................................................10 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .....................................................................................................10 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................11 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................11 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........11 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................11 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................12 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................13 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................13 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................13 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................15 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................15 


 


355/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the DeLaveaga 
Elementary School office, and online at http://delaveaga.sccs.net/. 
 
 


356/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The DeLaveaga Elementary School Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been developed by:  
 


 School Site Council 
X School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Robert Greenlee Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Holly Butler Teacher from DeLaveaga Elementary School 


Stephen Nakazawa Hewitt Parent whose child attends the School 


Steve Huerta Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan January 30, 2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan February 5, 2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan February 6, 2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan February 20, 2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review March 1, 2019 


 


357/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the 
DeLaveaga Elementary School campus and at school-related functions. Data presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 7 9 13 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 0 0 0 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) 10% 13% 14% 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
* * 0 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
* * 13 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
0 0 0 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement N/A N/A 0 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
While we had more total suspensions than prior years, 9 of those 13 suspensions were from a very small number of 
students.  Only 3 students in total were suspended during the 2017-2018, school year. Whenever possible, alternatives 
means for correction are used in lieu of suspension (i.e. parent conferences, intervention by school counselor and/or 
community coordinators, student study team collaboration). 
Our Chronic Absentee Rate was 14% during 2017-2018. This is an area of growth for DeLaveaga Elementary School, and 
we will be focusing on improving our attendance during the 2018-2019 school year. School based teams will continue 
to proactively monitor attendance patterns and provide appropriate interventions and support with the collaboration 
of Counselor, Community Coordinator, Teachers and administration. School staff will continue to work with the 
Student Services Department in considering referrals of applicable students to the Student Attendance Review Board 
(SARB). 


358/567







* Discipline Data from 2015-17 for bullying and fighting was not available due to changes of student information 
systems. Data from 2017-18 will be used as a baseline, and for further data analysis. 


 


359/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
DeLaveaga Elementary School is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and 
programs provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
Enthusiasm, Commitment, and Honor! At DeLaveaga, we believe that every child can learn.  We believe every person 
has value and the potential to achieve their goals.  Families are equal partners who support their children as well as the 
needs of the whole school community.  We believe school should not only be safe, but fun, a place where each student 
wants to go each day.  Our school reflects a diverse world in which all languages, cultures, talents and dreams are 
fostered and valued.  Collaboration and effective practices support learning for all students. The transformative power 
of excellent teaching makes our beliefs become reality and promotes high levels of achievement for all students. 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. 
DeLaveaga Elementary School prepares students to be self-disciplined and responsible citizens who can meet the 
challenge of living in an ethnically and socio-economically diverse community. DeLaveaga Elementary School promotes 
caring and nurturing relationships and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and 
other community agencies. DeLaveaga Elementary School stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares 
students to handle conflict, anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The DeLaveaga Elementary School discipline 
policy provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California Education Code and district policies. 
School-wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule infractions provide students with clear 
expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to build protective factors leading to 
student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. DeLaveaga Elementary School implements 
programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning using research-based strategies. 
DeLaveaga Elementary School implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that 
promote high expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to DeLaveaga Elementary School that provide a safe learning environment for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
At DeLaveaga we follow the Dragon Way--a Positive Behavior Intervention and Support (PBIS) program that promotes 
positive behavior in all areas of the school. In addition, we teach a problem-solving strategy called WITS (Walk Away, 
Ignore, Talk It Out, and Seek Help), for students to work-out their academic, behavioral and social issues. Our school 
counselor has developed lessons for both primary and upper grade classes to teach these skills. We stress to students 
the importance of a Growth MIndset and being optimistic. All of these programs and strategies are implemented school-
wide by teachers, our school counselor, and administration. 
 


360/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


361/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
DeLaveaga Elementary School will provide all students and staff with emergency/disaster preparedness training in a 
variety of procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures Monthly Staff Meetings and Drills 


Lock Down Procedures January 30, 2019 


Code Red Procedures September 11, 2019, Drill on February 19, 2019 


Shelter in Place Procedures November 27, 2018 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures October 9, 2018 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 


362/567







11


Strategies and programs unique to DeLaveaga Elementary School that provide a safe school environment for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
At DeLaveaga we implement a PBIS program entitled "The Dragon Way." This program stresses the importance of being 
Respectful, Responsible, Safe, and Ready to Learn. In addition, we use the Second Step curriculum at all grade levels (TK-
5th). We implement safety drills on a monthly basis (fire, earthquake, Lockdown, etc.), to prepare students to be safe in 
an emergency. Another program that we implement is WITS, where students learn to solve problems. Developing 
Optimism and Growth Mindset is also a focus for this academic year. All of these programs are designed to provide a 
safe school environment. These proactive and innovative programs and practices are inclusive of all groups, including 
our LGBTQ community. 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Our Health Aide/Office has a extra supply of clothing in the event that students need to change inappropriate clothing. 
Parents are also notified if their student is wearing anything inappropriate. 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
The Dragon Way is DeLaveaga's system for teaching and reinforcing appropriate behavior. Assemblies are conducted 
both at the beginning of the year, as well as after Winter Break, to review and reinforce what being Respectful, 
Responsible, Safe, and Ready to Learn looks like in all areas of the school. These school-wide expectations are reinforced 
through the use of Dragon Tickets and Awards Assemblies throughout the year. DeLaveaga Elementary School also 
employs a system of referrals to identify and track minor and major behavior incidents, with appropriate consequences. 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 
District-wide Safety Collaboration on January 17th. The principal also attended the County-wide Safety Collaboration 
on December 12, 2018. 


 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 


363/567







physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to DeLaveaga Elementary School that prevent bullying for all students, including 
specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Many of the same programs we implement that help create a safe school environment also prevent bullying. In 
particular, the Second Step curriculum has lessons that directly address the issue of bullying. Our WITS program (Walk 
Away, Ignore, Talk It Out, and Seek Help) stresses the importance of "Seeking Help," or reporting bullying to school staff. 
We have a full staff of playground supervisor/monitors that oversee recess, lunch, and drop off and pick up times. We 
have provided information to students about bullying and what to do about it. We also seek input and support from our 
parent community to report any bullying incidents to our school office and administration. 
 
 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Using data from the California Healthy Kids Survey (2016-2017), we noted that students felt relatively engaged (52%-
72%) and safe at school (86%). However, an area for improvement has been in the area of meaningful participation, 
where only 24% of students reported feeling like they participated in school in meaningful ways. In addition to the CHKS 
data, we also looked at the most recent Social Emotional Health (SEH) survey data from 2018-2019. Based on this data, 
which shows that over 20% of both 4th and 5th graders feel that, "if they have a problem at school it will get better," we 
will focus our efforts on increasing "Optimism," through school assemblies, classroom lessons, and by sharing ideas and 
resources at staff and grade level meetings. 
 
 
We have the Dragon Way, WITS, and Second Step Curriculum. We have also created a student leadership group that 
increased the level of student participation in school activities from 12 to 35 students! We have Buddy Classes which 
provide upper and lower grade students an opportunity to build relationships with each other. 


 
 
Our school counselor and Bilingual Community Coordinator facilitate our Student Leadership group. Our school 
counselor also delivers lessons that teach social skills, problem-solving and conflict resolution. 


 
Strategies and programs unique to DeLaveaga Elementary School that create a positive school climate for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
In addition to our WITS program, we are promoting the development of Optimism and Growth Mindset this year to 
support the ongoing development of a positive school climate. All programs at DeLaveaga are inclusive of all students. 


364/567







13


At DeLaveaga Elementary School, there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and support 
by and for the whole school. This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as expected 
behavior and interactions between students and staff. 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to DeLaveaga Elementary School that encourage early resolution of complaints for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
At the beginning of each school year we notify parents of the Williams Act and the Uniform Complaint Procedure. We 
make these documents available to parents upon request. In addition, at the beginning of each school year the principal 
communicates to parents his availability to meet with them to answer questions and address concerns. Principal contact 
information is published in monthly bulletins and on the school website. Monthly "Principal Coffees" are held to discuss 
general school questions and concerns. DeLaveaga has a full-time school counselor who is available to meeting with 
individual, small groups, and whole classes to address social emotional issues, including LGBTQ issues. 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 
DeLaveaga Elementary School implements a "Tier", as well as a Student Study Team (SST) process in place which allows 
teachers to efficiently refer students that might benefit from mental heath support/care. Tier meetings are team 
"staffing meeting" that include the school counselor, Intervention Specialist, Classroom Teacher, and school 
administration. SST meetings include the student's parents/guardians. Both processes are designed to develop student 
support plans that include accommodations and interventions so that the student can better access instruction. School 
staff is provided training on the referral process for students needing mental health support/care. 


 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to DeLaveaga Elementary School, the 
following procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
At DeLaveaga Elementary School,  the majority of our students walk, ride their bikes or scooters, or are transported by 
car to and from school. A small number of students arrive by bus, and are met at the bus stop and walked onto campus. 


365/567







We have playground and cafeteria supervision prior to the start of school. At the end of the school day, the bus students 
are supervised and walked to the bus. Students who are pick-up by car, wait in front of the school. A supervisor is 
present from dismissal until 3:00 pm each day, at which time any students that have not be picked-up are brought to the 
office to contact a parent or guardian. 
 
All visitors are required to check-in and sign-in at the front office. All visitors are required to obtain a "Visitor" badge for 
identification purposes. Consideration of restricting campus access on nights/weekends is currently underway, as health 
and safety factors are being analyzed. Community input is being garnered, and a decision will be finalized in March 2019. 
 
 
 
  


366/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


367/567







 
 
 
 
 


368/567







 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Gault Elementary School 


Address:  1320 Seabright Ave. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062-2525 


Principal:  Amariah Hernandez 


Phone Number: (831) 429-3856 


E-mail Address: ahernandez@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: 429-3419Ext 220 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


369/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................3 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................4 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................5 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................7 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................9 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .....................................................................................................10 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 .........................................................................................10 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ..................................................................................................................10 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 .....................................................................................10 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .....................................................................................................10 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................11 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................11 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........11 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................12 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................12 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................14 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................14 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................15 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................16 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................16 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................16 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................16 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................16 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................16 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................16 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................16 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................16 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................16 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................16 


 


370/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Gault Elementary 
School office, and online at http://gault.sccs.net/. 
 
 


371/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Gault Elementary School Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
X School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Amariah Hernandez Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Lacie Wall Teacher from Gault Elementary School 


Christopher Garcia Parent whose child attends the School 


Ebby Dellamora Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall SCPD Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan January 17, 2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan February 4, 2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan February 4, 2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan February 20, 2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review March 1, 2019 


 


372/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the Gault 
Elementary School campus and at school-related functions. Data presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 4 5 7 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 0 0 0 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) 11% 16% 16% 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
n/a n/a 0 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
n/a n/a 7 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
n/a n/a 0 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement n/a n/a 2 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
Since 2015 suspensions have increased slightly from 4 to 7 over three years. While it is the intent of staff to use 
alternative means of correction whenever possible, suspensions do become necessary at times to preserve the safety 
of our students. 
The data representing the low numbers (0) of Bullying/Harassment indicates high levels of success. Through Gault 
Elementary School's continued work with Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS) and restorative justice 
practices, we have found that other avenues besides suspension are more effective when addressing bullying and 
harassment at the elementary level. 
Regarding Chronic Absenteeism, the data indicates an increase of 5% over the past three years.  Efforts to address this 
issue include school based support teams that meet regularly to brainstorm various support measures to assist 
students and families in improving attendance.  Gault's School Counselor, Teachers, and Community Coordinator are 


373/567







actively involved with the monitoring of attendance, and coordinate with district staff when referrals to the Student 
Attendance Review Board are necessary. 


 


374/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Gault Elementary School is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and programs 
provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
Gault Elementary School is a caring community that fosters respect, values diverse cultures and languages, and 
promotes positive school climate through the use of PBIS. Through a meaningful and appropriate curriculum, we work to 
ensure that all students experience continuous growth in academic and social skills in order to become complex 
thinkers, collaborative learners, and clear communicators. We do this through excellence in teaching, parent and 
community partnership, and support from our school district. 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. Gault 
Elementary School prepares students to be self-disciplined and responsible citizens who can meet the challenge of living 
in an ethnically and socio-economically diverse community. Gault Elementary School promotes caring and nurturing 
relationships and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other community 
agencies. Gault Elementary School stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares students to handle conflict, 
anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Gault Elementary School discipline policy 
provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California Education Code and district policies. School-
wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule infractions provide students with clear 
expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to build protective factors leading to 
student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Gault Elementary School implements 
programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning using research-based strategies. 
Gault Elementary School implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that 
promote high expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Gault Elementary School that provide a safe learning environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Gault Elementary School consistently provides opportunities for sustainability and enrichment to our families. We are a 
community school that works with and for our community starting at 7:45 am to 6:00 pm every school day. We are a 
Gold Ribbon school that is proud of our PBIS (Positive Behavior Interventions and Support) program. We have clear 
expectations and guidelines for behavior. At Gault school we live by the motto of " Show Respect, Make a Good Decision 
and Solve a Problem." We have a strong playworks programs that promotes safe, respectful and fun play during recess 
times. Our ASES after school program follows the same consistent expectations and procedures as our daytime school. 
 
Once a month our local food bank delivers food to our school for the community and 'Passion for Produce' delivers food 
twice a month for identified families. In conjunction with 'Food What!' a group of local at risk teens establish a farmers 
market stand that sells produce at a reduced price at Gault. In the Winter we have a coat drive to provide students with 
appropriate winter clothing. We work in conjunction with community partners to provide food, clothing, free vision and 
dental screenings and cleanings. Our school Community Coordinator helps parents connect to various community 
organizations and shelters. Our Community Coordinator and staff organize our very active GPTO and ELAC parent 
community. We provide social emotional support systems with a full time school counselor, and a part-time school 
psychologist. 
 
Over the past two years Gault certificated staff has participated in professional development centered on "Trauma 
Informed" services and mindfulness. Additionally in the Fall of 2018-19, Gault staff participated in gender/LGBTQ 
awareness training provided by the Santa Cruz Safe Schools Project 
 
 


375/567







 
 
 


376/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


377/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Gault Elementary School will provide all students and staff with emergency/disaster preparedness training in a variety of 
procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures 8/17/18 


Lock Down Procedures 10/9/18 


Code Red Procedures 10/9/18 


Shelter in Place Procedures 8/17/18 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures 10//3/18 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 


378/567







11


Strategies and programs unique to Gault Elementary School that provide a safe school environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
At Gault Elementary we use data from our annual Social Emotional Health Survey given to students in grades 3-5 to 
inform our work. Additionally we examine chronic absenteeism data to support all students in feeling safe and 
welcomed at school. Using various data points, we have implemented a variety of TIER 1 strategies for students that 
include Conflict Resolution, reporting vs. tattling, Lifeskills, and "lunch bunch"-where everyone can feel included. Gault 
certificated staff has participated in professional development with Trauma Informed services and mindfulness. 
Additionally in the 2018-19 Fall we participated in gender issue awareness training provided by Santa Cruz Safe Schools 
Project. 
 
 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
See Gault Discipline flow chart, Good to Great Matrix Attachments 
 
At Gault school we view all discipline as a learning experience. On a daily basis we work with students to be safe at 
school so they will have the greatest opportunity to learn. We approach the majority of school discipline by following 
our conflict resolution guidelines, making "I statements" and implementing the use of task tickets that allow students 
with broken school trust gain it back by contributing their time and positive efforts to their school. This can be 
accomplished by students helping in other classes, supporting a community service project or participating in conflict 
resolution. Additionally the Gault principal and staff have an "open door" policy to support positive behaviors at school. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 


379/567







On 1/17/19 Santa Cruz City schools administrators met to collaborate on our school safety plans, additionally on 
1/30/19 Gault ELAC and GPTO parents met to give input as well. 


 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Gault Elementary School that prevent bullying for all students, including specifically 
for LGBTQ students. 
Gault school is proud to be a PBIS school. Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS) is a proactive approach to 
establishing the behavioral supports and social culture needed for all students in a school to achieve social, emotional 
and academic success. At Gault we have full implementation of  PBIS. Our systems and interventions follow the three 
tiers of PBIS. 
 
(Tier 1, Universal) 
Preventing the development of new incidents/ occurrences of problem behaviors by implementing high quality learning 
environments for all students and staff and across all settings (i.e., school-wide, classroom, and non-classroom). 
 
(Tier 2, Targeted) 
Reducing the frequency and intensity of incidents of problem behaviors for students who are not responsive to primary 
intervention practices by providing more focused, intensive, and frequent small group-oriented responses in situations 
where problem behavior is likely 
. 
(Tier 3, Intensive) 
Reducing the intensity, frequency, and/or complexity of existing problem behaviors that are resistant to and/or unlikely 
to be addressed by primary and secondary prevention efforts by providing most individualized responses to situations 
where problem behavior is likely. 
 
Additionally Gault provides a warm and caring environment that greets all students and families each day with a smile.  
Through the use of our school life skills program, we support students in understanding Gratitude, Optimism, 
Compassion, Participation, Grit and Integrity. These life skills help all students feel powerful and support anti-bullying of 
all students. 
 
 
 
 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 


380/567







13


The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
At Gault school our PBIS team spent time examining and analyzing our Gault SEHS survey from the last two years. From 
our initial SEHS survey we developed our Gault lifeskills targeting specific emotional health areas such as Gratitude, 
Optimism, Participation, Grit, Compassion and Integrity. Our initial data showed us that students surveyed scored low in 
gratitude, optimism and in social emotional feelings around sense of belonging. Our team developed a series of Tier 1 
activities, assemblies and supports for students in these specific areas highlighting the skills and practices that are 
needed to have a healthy emotional state. 
 
In our most current SEHS data from the fall of 18-19 
 
92% of 3rd graders reported feeling grateful to come to school 
94% of 4th graders reported feeling grateful to come to school 
90% of 5th reported feeling grateful to come to school 
 
 
73% of 3rd graders reported they never feel lonely at school, with 27% reporting they sometimes feel lonely 
56% of 4th graders reported they never feel lonely at school, with 44% reporting they sometimes feel lonely 
60% of 5th graders reported they never feel lonely at school, with 35% reporting they sometimes feel lonely and 5% 
reporting they often feel lonely. 
 
This data is vast improvement in all areas. At the same time the PBIS team is digging deeper to better understand 5th 
graders reporting loneliness and seeking age appropriate strategies to help students feel that they belong. 
 
 
 
 
 
See Gault Good to Great Matrix Flow chart- attachment 
 
Gault school is proud to be a PBIS school. Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS) is a proactive approach 
to establishing the behavioral supports and social culture needed for all students in a school to achieve social, 
emotional and academic success. At Gault we have full implementation of  PBIS. Our systems and interventions follow 
the three tiers of PBIS. 
 
(Tier 1, Universal) 
Preventing the development of new incidents/ occurrences of problem behaviors by implementing high quality 
learning environments for all students and staff and across all settings (i.e., school-wide, classroom, and non-
classroom). 
 
(Tier 2, Targeted) 
Reducing the frequency and intensity of incidents of problem behaviors for students who are not responsive to primary 
intervention practices by providing more focused, intensive, and frequent small group-oriented responses in situations 
where problem behavior is likely. 
 
 


381/567







14


(Tier 3, Intensive) 
Reducing the intensity, frequency, and/or complexity of existing problem behaviors that are resistant to and/or unlikely 
to be addressed by primary and secondary prevention efforts by providing most individualized responses to situations 
where problem behavior is likely. 
 
Additionally Gault provides a warm and caring environment that greets all students and families each day with a smile. 
 
 
 


 
 
We have a full time elementary counselor that offers a variety of services that include, one to one, small group, social 
skills support, and manages many behavior check in check out cases. Additionally our school counselor is integral in the 
success of our PBIS program supporting school wide and Tier 1,2,3 services. Some students receive Tier 3 mental health 
services thru their IEPs. 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Gault Elementary School that create a positive school climate for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Gault provides a warm and caring environment that greets all students and families with a smile. Through our tiered 
systems we have a school wide focus of 6 identified life skills on which all classrooms focus with a school wide theme. 
We plan school assemblies, events, activities and clubs around these life skills. This year we added a lunchtime running 
club, yoga class and continue our playworks games and activities promoting GRIT and Participation.  At Gault 
Elementary School, there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and support by and for the 
whole school . This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as expected school wide 
behavior and interactions between students and staff. 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Gault Elementary School that encourage early resolution of complaints for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
When students or adults have a concern or complaint, we at Gault Elementary hold an open door policy. Gault teachers, 
counselor, and the principal meet with parents and students to discuss concerns and work together to problem solve. If 
there are specific concerns in academic or social-emotional, referrals can be made to the Tier 1 and Student Study Team. 
We work to seek both immediate and long term results so that students can feel safe at school. 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 


382/567







15


 
When students or staff a have a concern regarding mental health issues, a referral can be made to the school 
counselor, principal, site TIER 1 team or Student Study Team. If there is an immediate or emergency concert on site 
staff are trained in threat assessment. Teh Social Emotional Health Survey (SEHS), administered in the Fall of 2018 
provided our support team with specific data to identify students needing immediate support and/or counseling. 


 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Gault Elementary School, the following 
procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
No transportation services are used at Gault school. 
 
Gault School has participated in the Santa Cruz City Safeschools program. 2nd and 5th grade students participate in 
safety walking and biking assemblies . Additionally, Ecology Action and Santa Cruz City's Schools partnered to create a 
safe route to school map--See attachment 
 
The following are results from the 5th grade presentation. 
Your students demonstrated an average improvement of 17% from the pre-presentation quiz to the post-presentation 
quiz. 
98% of students reported that they would ride more safely. 
73% of students reported that they would ride more often. 
98% of students reported that they thought the rodeo was great or good 
 
 
 
  


383/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


384/567







 
 
 
 
 


385/567







Gault School Discipline Flow Chart 


NO YES


IS THE 
INCIDENT 


MAJOR?


Send student with 
completed office referral 
form to the office.


Principal conferences 
with student and 
determines outcomes. 
The referral is entered 
into Infinite Campus by 
office.


Copy of referral sent to 
parent or phone call 
home by office.


Copy of referral, 
including outcome, is 
returned to teacher for 
filing.


Stage 1 (classroom)
Minor offenses
 Teachable moments
 Strategies to teach behavior
 Teacher uses their classroom 


policies


r


Stage 2
Continuation of behavior
 Parent contact
 Intervention strategies
 Behavior tracking form filled 


out. One copy sent to the office 
for data entry


 Contact ASES or CKC if 
applicable


Stage 3
Escalated ongoing behaviors
 Send student with completed 


office referral form to the office 
attached to previous behavior 
tracking forms


Stage 2 (Playground)
Continuation of behavior
1. Consequences on 


Playground
2. Behavior Tracking Form 


put in envelope outside 
classroom door


Stage 3 (Playground)
Send student with 
completed office referral 
form to the office attached 
to previous behavior 
tracking notification


Stage 1 (Playground)
Teachable Moments
Strategies to Teach 
behaviors
Example/Non-Example





386/567







Gault Good to Great Matrix 
 


 Hallway Cafeteria Courtyard Bathroom Playground  
Make a Good 


Decision 
 Walk 
 Enter library from 


outside door only 
 


 Walk in the 
cafeteria and to 
the playground 
when excused 


 Sit with your class 
and enjoy eating 


 Walking only 
 Low key 


activities 


 Walk to and 
from the 
bathroom 


 Go to the 
bathroom, 
wash your 
hands and 
return to class 


 Water stays in 
the sink or 
toilet 


 Everyone is 
welcome in a 
game 


 Walk your bike, 
skateboard and 
scooters on 
blacktop 


 Follow the posted 
rules 


 


Solve a Problem  If there is a 
problem, use an 
“I” message 


 If there is a 
problem, use an “I” 
message 


 If there is a 
problem, use an 
“I” message 


 If there is a 
problem, use 
an “I” message 


 Walk around a 
game 


 


Show Respect  Respect artwork  Clean up, recycle 
and throw away 
trash when your 
class is excused 


 Listen politely to 
adult instruction 


 Be kind to the 
trees and each 
other 


 Use 
appropriate 
 language 


 Use toilet and 
sink correctly 


 When the bell 
rings stop your 
game, pick up 
equipment and 
return to class 
quickly 


 Listen politely to 
the yard 
supervisors and 
cooperate with 
everyone 


 


387/567







388/567







389/567



Sticky Note

Gault Elementary School







 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Harbor High School 


Address:  300 La Fonda Ave. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062-1431 


Principal:  Tracey Runeare 


Phone Number: 831 429 3810 X1050 


E-mail Address: truneare@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: 831-429-3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


390/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................3 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................4 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................5 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................6 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................8 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .......................................................................................................9 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 ...........................................................................................9 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ....................................................................................................................9 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 ......................................................................................9 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .......................................................................................................9 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................10 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................10 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........10 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................10 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................11 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................13 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................13 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................13 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................15 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................15 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................15 


 


391/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Harbor High School 
office, and online at http://harborhigh.org/. 
 
 


392/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Harbor High School Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
X School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Tracey Runeare Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Katrina Wedding Teacher from Harbor High School 


Tim Roach Parent whose child attends the School 


Rosario Weckler Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


Maribel Ocaranza, Student Other 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan January 16, 2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan January 22, 2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan January 22, 2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan February 20, 2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review March 1, 2019 


 


393/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the Harbor 
High School campus and at school-related functions. Data presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 33 (.04%) 61 (.07%) 45 (.03%) 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 1 (.001%) 8 (.009%) 4 (.005%) 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) 15% 13% 16.8% 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
7 (.008%) 3 (.004%) 4 (.005%) 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
11 (.013%) 30 (.035%) 10 (.012%) 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
17 (.020%) 48 (.056%) 24 (.028%) 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement no data no data 2 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
Suspensions and expulsions, including fighting and physical harm incidents, are continuing to decline since the 2016-
2017 school year.  In addition, after implementing a one-day in-school suspension program for students with a first 
offense for marijuana use or possession during the 2017-2108 school year, our number of incidents for possession 
and/or use of a controlled substance has declined over the last three years.  The in-school suspension program includes 
protocols for social-emotional supports and academic interventions. 
Consistent monitoring of student attendance is a priority for Harbor high School.  Data indicates a slight increase of 
Chronic Absenteeism of 1.8% over three years. Harbor High School staff continues to support students with poor 
attendance through parent outreach, counselor/social worker interventions, and appropriate referrals to the district 
Student Attendance Review Board. 


 


394/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Harbor High School is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and programs 
provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
HHS Mission statement: 
Educating all students to become critical thinkers and globally-minded community members. 
 
HHS Vision Statement 
Where adults and students are respectful and own their learning. Harbor High graduates are college and career ready 
and equipped with the skills needed to become the best version of themselves. 
 
HHS Goals 2018-2019: 
School Connectedness: Build school climate, culture and student ownership of learning 
English Learner Progress: Develop common teaching and assessment practices through collaboration 
Math and Academic Literacy: Challenge and Advance all Learners through Responsive Teaching 
 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. Harbor 
High School prepares students to be self-disciplined and responsible citizens who can meet the challenge of living in an 
ethnically and socio-economically diverse community. Harbor High School promotes caring and nurturing relationships 
and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other community agencies. 
Harbor High School stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares students to handle conflict, anger, and 
other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Harbor High School discipline policy provides 
students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California Education Code and district policies. School-wide 
rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule infractions provide students with clear expectations 
for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to build protective factors leading to student success, 
both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Harbor High School implements programs 
to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning using research-based strategies. Harbor High 
School implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that promote high 
expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Harbor High School that provide a safe learning environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Harbor High has two Campus Supervisors that monitor safety conditions on the school campus, school parking lots, and 
areas surrounding the campus before and after school and throughout the school day.  Our school resource officer 
comes to Harbor High on average 2-3 times per week during Break and Lunch, and/or at the request of site or district 
administrators.  Security cameras are installed campus wide and alert a security company and/or police during after-
school hours and weekends. 
 
Harbor High's Site Safety Committee, which is comprised of an administrator, both Campus Supervisors, the Head 
Custodian, a district facilities representative, the school resource officer, and a classified staff member, meets monthly 
to address current school safety concerns.  In addition, an administrator participates in a monthly district Safety Meeting 
and a monthly Facilities meeting to address resources and supports needed to ensure safety at the site level. 
 
In 2018, after county-wide implementation of a Threat Assessment protocol, Harbor instituted a Threat Assessment 
Team, which includes site counselors, the school psychologist, site administration, district social worker, and school 
resource officer.  Site administration and counselors were also trained on the county Threat Assessment protocol. 


395/567







 
Harbor High Health classes, which all Freshman students take, cover anti-bullying, non-discrimination, sexual 
harassment, sexual orientation and gender expression.  The school also has an active LGBTQ Club.  Staff are trained 
annually during staff meetings in protocols and laws surrounding non-discrimination and harassment. Harbor's campus 
has three all-gender bathrooms available to all students. 
 
 


396/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


397/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Harbor High School will provide all students and staff with emergency/disaster preparedness training in a variety of 
procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures October 10, 2018; February 13, 2019 


Lock Down Procedures January 16, 2019 


Code Red Procedures January 16, 2019 


Shelter in Place Procedures January 16, 2019 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures October 10, 2018; February 13, 2019 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Harbor High teachers and relevant staff are notified of incidents from the past three years through a flag in Illuminate, 
the district's student information system.  Teachers and relevant staff are notified of current behavior events via email, 
after the suspension or expulsion has been enacted.  Teachers and staff may inquire with administrators at any time if 
they have safety concerns about their students. 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 


398/567







10


Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Harbor High School that provide a safe school environment for all students, including 
specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Harbor High Health classes, which all Freshman students take, cover anti-bullying, non-discrimination, sexual 
harassment, sexual orientation and gender expression.  The school also has an active LGBTQ Club.  Staff are trained 
annually in staff meetings in protocols and laws surrounding non-discrimination and harassment . 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 
County-wide school safety collaboration meeting on December 12. 2017.  District-wide safety collaboration meeting on 
January 17, 2019. Site Safety Committee collaboration on January 10, 2019.  School Site Council collaboration on 
January 22, 2019. 


 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 


399/567







 
Strategies and programs unique to Harbor High School that prevent bullying for all students, including specifically for 
LGBTQ students. 
All freshman students take Health, and bullying prevention is part of the curriculum.  In Health class, members of the 
LGBTQ community present on anti-bullying and anti-discrimination. 
 
 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Additional data for positive school climate includes the results from our California Healthy Kids Survey, last administered 
in 2016-2017 to all freshman and junior students.  We will administer the survey again in February, 2019.  Excerpts from 
the 2016-2017 survey are below. 
 
"I feel safe at my school." 
Agree + Strongly Agree: 67%; Disagree + Strongly Disagree: 4% (9th grade) 
Agree + Strongly Agree: 68%; Disagree + Strongly Disagree: 6% (11th grade) 
 
"I feel like I am part of this school." 
Agree + Strongly Agree: 50%; Disagree + Strongly Disagree: 12% (9th grade) 
Agree + Strongly Agree: 55%; Disagree + Strongly Disagree: 17% (11th grade) 
 
Overall School Connectedness Index -- High + Moderate 
96% (9th grade) 
91% (11th grade) 
 
Additional data for positive school climate includes the results from the Social Emotional Health Survey, which was 
administered in October, 2018 to freshman, sophomore, and junior students.  Excerpts from the survey are below: 
 
"I feel like I am part of this school." 
Agree + Strongly Agree: 79%; Disagree + Strongly Disagree: 8% (9th grade) 
Agree + Strongly Agree: 73%; Disagree + Strongly Disagree: 4% (10th grade) 
Agree + Strongly Agree: 74%; Disagree + Strongly disagree: 8% (11th grade) 
 
"I feel safe in my school" -- Agree + Strongly Agree 
Agree + Strongly Agree: 73%; Disagree + Strongly Disagree: 5% (9th grade) 
Agree + Strongly Agree: 77%; Disagree or Strongly Disagree: 11% (10h grade) 
Agree + Strongly Agree: 69%; Disagree or Strongly Disagree: 6% (11th grade) 
 
 
 


400/567







12


Part time Activities Director position 
Full time Athletic Director position 
Full time School Community Coordinator 
District Social Worker and Social Work intern 
“Harbor Pride” apparel and stickers for students and staff 
Link Crew program for incoming Freshman students 
College-going culture support, including a strong AVID program and use of the Organized Binder system 
Classroom and after-school learning center, tutors Tuesday through Friday 
Student Leadership class and Pirate Pride student leadership club 
Student athletic programs and clubs 
Pirate Pride positive recognition for behavior, academic achievement, improvement, and school citizenship 
 
 


 
 
Harbor High’s Counseling and Guidance Department provides a proactive, comprehensive, and developmentally 
appropriate program of planning and support for students' academic and career goals and social-emotional well being. 
Harbor High’s Counseling program partners with parents/guardians, all school staff, community members and other 
stakeholders to teach and reinforce academic and social-emotional goal setting, planning, persistence, self-awareness 
and reflection, and helping self and others. The Harbor High Guidance and Counseling department provides a 
welcoming and safe environment for Harbor students to receive a full range of academic and emotional supports. Our 
Counseling staff is available throughout the day and often during evenings and weekend events to provide academic, 
personal, social and career counseling to students. Harbor High Counseling and Guidance staff includes three full-time 
Counselors, a part-time CTE/ROP Counselor, a School Community Coordinator, a Counseling Secretary, a Registrar and 
an Assistant Principal of Counseling and Guidance. 
 
Harbor takes a proactive approach to establishing the behavioral supports and school culture needed for all students to 
achieve social, emotional, and academic success.  In terms of behavior management, Harbor uses a community 
accountability model where students reflect on their actions and the benefit or harm those actions have caused to the 
community.  Behavior management is focused on ensuring a safe environment where students can learn and thrive 
academically and socially. Educators work with students to create an environment of mutual trust and respect and the 
emphasis is one where students work to repair harm and restore relationships with each other and adults on campus. 
Examples of community accountability practices include student-teacher conferences, student reflection forms, and 
conflict resolutions. The impact of the this approach has been an overall decline in total behavior events over the last 
five years. During the 2017-2018 school year, Harbor administration moved toward in-house suspension for many 
behavior incidents that would have otherwise resulted in out-of school suspension. This transition has allowed more 
students to remain on campus, where they have access to academic and social-emotional supports.  Also, during the 
2018-2019 school year, a team comprised of teachers, a Campus Supervisor, and the AP of Student Services are 
attending a series of training on Restorative Justice practices. In the second semester of the 2017-2018 school year, 
Harbor High leadership created positive behavior referral forms for teachers and staff to recognize students by 
highlighting exemplary behavior or recognizing growth. Harbor’s practices around student attendance are focused on 
interventions that aim to address the root of the attendance issue.  These practices include student and parent 
meetings and consultations with guidance counselors, the school psychologist, district nurse, Special Education case 
managers, and social workers, as appropriate.  The Student Services department includes two Campus Supervisors, an 
Assistant Principal secretary, and an Assistant Principal of Student Services. 
 
 
 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Harbor High School that create a positive school climate for all students, including 
specifically for LGBTQ students. 


401/567







13


In addition to programs stated above, Harbor High has an active LGBTQ student club.  The Campus also has three all-
gender bathrooms. At  Harbor High School there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and 
support by and for the whole school. This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as 
expected behavior and interactions between students and staff. 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Harbor High School that encourage early resolution of complaints for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
Student and family complaints can be communicated in a variety of ways: in-person contact with administration and 
office staff or via email, phone, or mail to site administrators or the district office.  At the site level, the principal is the 
designated person to review complaints.  At the district level, the Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services and 
the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources are the designated people to review complaints. 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 
Teachers and staff submit counseling referrals for students needing social-emotional support.  We have a School 
Community Coordinator and district social worker, who work closely with students and their families to address 
mental-health needs and make to referral to outside agencies as appropriate.  Student Study Team (SST) meetings, 
attendance meetings, and counseling intervention meetings are held to address social emotional concerns for 
students.  Counselors also make appropriate referrals to outside community-based counseling programs. 
 
In 2018, after county-wide implementation of a Threat Assessment protocol, Harbor instituted a Threat Assessment 
Team, which includes site counselors, the school psychologist, site administration, district social worker, and school 
resource officer.  Site administration and counselors were also trained on the Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
Threat Assessment protocol. 
 


 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Harbor High School, the following 
procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


402/567







 
Daily Bus Drop-Off & Pick-up at School: Students arrive/leave by motor vehicle via La Fonda Ave. Students are dropped 
off in school parking lot. Students that walk to school enter through the La Fonda entrance to the school. At least one 
Harbor High Staff member supervises the drop-off/pick-up area in school parking lot during the first ten minutes before 
and after school. 
 
ID Badges:  Visitors must check in with the office to receive a visitors pass which must be visible at all time. 
 
Security Cameras:  Security cameras are in place campus wide and alert a security company of any persons on campus 
during evening and weekend hours. Local law enforcement is contacted if necessary. 
 
Keys: Duplicate set of keys or duplicate master keys that can open every space on campus are available on campus. They 
are stored in a secure location in the main office. 
 
Safe School Requirements: Safe School Requirements are posted in every classroom, the staff room, and locker rooms. 
 
Interpreters on staff are as follows: 
 
Rosario Weckler, Spanish 
Italia Diaz, Spanish 
Juan Lopez Hernandez, Spanish 
Celia Reyes, Spanish 
Joanna Garcia, Spanish 
Teri Virostko, Spanish 
Yesenia Anaya, Spanish 
 
 
 
  


403/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


404/567







 
 
 
 
 


405/567







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Mission Hill Middle School 


Address:  425 King St. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3411 


Principal:  Kat McElwee 


Phone Number: (831)429-3860 


E-mail Address: kmcelwee@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: (831)429-3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


406/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................3 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................4 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................5 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................7 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................8 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .......................................................................................................9 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 ...........................................................................................9 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ....................................................................................................................9 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 ......................................................................................9 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .......................................................................................................9 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................10 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................10 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........10 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................11 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................11 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................12 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................13 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................13 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................14 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................14 


 


407/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Mission Hill Middle 
School office, and online at sccs.net. 
 
 


408/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Mission Hill Middle School Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
X School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Kat McElwee Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Bryan Campbell Teacher from Mission Hill Middle School 


Victoria Sanchez-Toledo Parent whose child attends the School 


Mike Rodriguez Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


Jenny Nixen Other 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan 1/16/2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan 1/28/2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan 1/28/2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan 2/20/2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review 3/1/2019 


 


409/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the Mission 
Hill Middle School campus and at school-related functions. Data presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 22 36 13 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 4 0 1 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) 11% 13% 12% 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
6 10 1 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
7 2 6 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
2 1 0 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement N/A N/A 0 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
In recent years students are most often suspended for fighting, bullying/harassment, or possession/sale of controlled 
substances. The decline in suspension numbers from previous years may be due to the fact that Mission Hill has 
implemented alternative consequences to suspension for many previously suspendable offenses. At Mission Hill, it is 
our belief that the purpose of discipline is to change behavior, not punish, and that there are better means of changing 
behavior than suspension. We want our students to grow and learn from their poor decisions so that such decisions 
are not repeated. As a result, students often receive consequences that are more closely aligned with their offense 
(other than suspension) and that reflect a more restorative justice approach. 
Improving our chronic absenteeism rate is a focus at Mission Hill. This year we have created a MHMS Chronic 
Absenteeism Task Force. The Chronic Absenteeism Task Force will include the Principal, Assistant Principal, Attendance 
Technician, Athletic Director, Campus Supervisor, and School Community Coordinator. We will be meeting 4- 6 times 
during the year. Our goal is to examine the attendance data and determine supports and incentives for families and 
students to improve student attendance. We believe that by continuing to improve our monitoring of attendance data, 


410/567







maintaining a focus on creating strong relationships among students and teachers/staff, and implementing 
intervention programs for at-risk students, our absentee data will improve. A referral process is also in place to 
appropriately refer students to the SCCS Student Attendance Review Board for further support and accountability. 


 


411/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Mission Hill Middle School is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and 
programs provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
All Mavericks are learners who persevere, collaborate, and innovate. We grow into our world with responsibility, 
integrity, and creativity. 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. Mission 
Hill Middle School prepares students to be self-disciplined and responsible citizens who can meet the challenge of living 
in an ethnically and socio-economically diverse community. Mission Hill Middle School promotes caring and nurturing 
relationships and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other community 
agencies. Mission Hill Middle School stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares students to handle conflict, 
anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Mission Hill Middle School discipline policy 
provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California Education Code and district policies. School-
wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule infractions provide students with clear 
expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to build protective factors leading to 
student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Mission Hill Middle School implements 
programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning using research-based strategies. 
Mission Hill Middle School implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that 
promote high expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Mission Hill Middle School that provide a safe learning environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Strategies that continue to be implemented include the MHMS Code of Conduct, Maverick Essentials, Organized Binder 
System, Cell Phone Free campus, Backpack Free classrooms, and the piloting of Positive Behavior Interventions and 
Support (PBIS). In addition, Mission Hill's numerous student support programs include School Clubs such as LGBTQ Club, 
LSU, BSU, and Best Buddies, WAVE After-school Program, OCEAN Orientation, Maverick Mentors, MHTV, Mighty 
Mavericks and Weekly Raffles, Student of the Grading Period, Maverick Essential Excellence Awards and Assemblies, 
Human Health and Development Curriculum, AVID in 6th-8th grades, ELD, Counseling Services, RtI/MTSS, and SCIL 
(Instructional Leadership Team), all of which help us to ensure a safe learning space for all. 
 


412/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


413/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Mission Hill Middle School will provide all students and staff with emergency/disaster preparedness training in a variety 
of procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures 9/18/18 , 2/7/19, 4/22/19, 5/17/19 


Lock Down Procedures 12/17/18, 3/8/19 


Code Red Procedures 12/17/18, 3/8/19 


Shelter in Place Procedures 12/17/18, 3/8/19 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures 10/18/18, 2/12/19 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
At Mission Hill Middle School, when students return from suspension we hold "re-entry" meetings. The purpose of these 
meetings are to set in place positive behavior plans with specific action steps for students to follow to maintain positive 
behavior. These meetings include students, parent(s), counseling, and administration. 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 


414/567







10


 
Strategies and programs unique to Mission Hill Middle School that provide a safe school environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Strategies that continue to be implemented include the MHMS Code of Conduct, Maverick Essentials, Organized Binder 
System, Cell Phone Free campus, Backpack Free classrooms, and the piloting of PBIS. In addition Mission Hill's programs 
include School Clubs such as LGBTQ Club, LSU, BSU, and Best Buddies, WAVE After-school Program, OCEAN Orientation, 
Maverick Mentors, MHTV, Mighty Mavericks and Weekly Raffles, Student of the Grading Period, Maverick Essential 
Excellence Awards and Assemblies, Human Health and Development Curriculum, AVID in 6th-8th grades, ELD, 
Counseling Services, RtI/MTSS, and SCIL (Instructional Leadership Team), all of which help us to ensure a safe learning 
space for all. 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
Understanding that consequences and interventions represent "teachable moments" is fundamental to a positive 
approach to discipline. The goal of progressive consequences and interventions is the teaching of pro-social behavior. 
Progressive consequences seek accountability and behavior change. Prevention of negative behavior occurs by helping 
students learn from their mistakes. Essential to progressive discipline is helping students who have engaged in 
unacceptable behavior to: 1) Understand why the behavior is unacceptable and the harm it has caused, 2) Understand 
what can be done to repair relationships of those harmed, 3) Understand what they could have done differently in the 
same situation, 4) Take responsibility for their action(s), 5) Be given the opportunity to learn pro-social strategies and 
skills to use in the future, and 6) Understand the progression of more stringent consequences if the behavior reoccurs. 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 
Mission Hill Middle School's Assistant Principal attended: 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education Safety Training on School Safety Plans (12.12.18) 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education Safety Training on Threat Assessment (1.16.19) 
Santa Cruz City Schools Safety Plan Collaboration Meeting (1.17.19) 
and will attend: 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education LGBTQ (2.13.19) 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education Code Red (3.13.19) 


415/567







Santa Cruz County Office of Education Drug Recognition (4.10.19) 
Mission Hill Middle School has a school Safety Committee comprised of administration, certificated staff, and classified 
staff that meets at least 5 times during the school year to review school safety, safety procedures and the school Safety 
Plan. 
 


 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Mission Hill Middle School that prevent bullying for all students, including specifically 
for LGBTQ students. 
Strategies that continue to be implemented include the MHMS Code of Conduct, Maverick Essentials, Organized Binder 
System, Cell Phone Free campus, Backpack Free classrooms, and the piloting of PBIS. In addition Mission Hill's programs 
include School Clubs such as LGBTQ Club, LSU, BSU, and Best Buddies, WAVE After-school Program, OCEAN Orientation, 
Maverick Mentors, MHTV, Mighty Mavericks and Weekly Raffles, Student of the Grading Period, Maverick Essential 
Excellence Awards and Assemblies, Human Health and Development Curriculum, AVID in 6th-8th grades, ELD, 
Counseling Services, RtI/MTSS, and SCIL (Instructional Leadership Team), all of which help us to ensure a safe learning 
space for all. 
 
 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
In February 2017, seventh grade students participated in the California Healthy Kids survey.  Some interesting data 
points from the survey include: 
81% of students reported feeling “safe” or “very safe” at school 
78% of students responded “agree” or “strongly agree” to the statement I feel close to people at this school 
73% reported being happy to be at this school 
14% reported feeling sad or hopeless everyday for two weeks or more in the last 12 months 
52% of students reported that they “often” or “sometimes” hear LGBTQ slurs used at school 
42% of students reported that they “often” or “sometimes” hear negative comments being made about someone’s sex 
or gender 


416/567







12


24% of students reported that they “often” or “sometimes” hear negative comments being made about someone’s 
sexual orientation 
26% of students reported that they “often” or “sometimes” hear negative comments being made about someone’s 
gender identity 
This data points to the success of recent safety work but also shows that we still have work to do in supporting students’ 
social language.  Our goal to implement PBIS should help us address this issue. 
 
In October 2018, the Social-Emotional Health Survey (SEHS) was administered to 367 students (109 - 6th grade, 141 - 7th 
grader, 117 - 8th grade).  This survey tool was created at the University of California, Santa Barbara. It measures four 
general student mindsets: Belief in Self (subscales = self-efficacy, persistence, self-awareness), Belief in Others 
(subscales = family coherence/support, peer support, school support), Emotional Competence (subscales = emotional 
regulation, empathy, self-control) and Engaged Living (subscales = gratitude, zest, and optimism). 
The results for the Mission Hill overall data was very positive. The SEHS algorithm shows that students demonstrate the 
four social-emotional strength areas “most of the time”, that students “sometimes” have emotional distress, and that 
most students have a positive connection to school. 
The individual student survey data helps us identify which students might need Tier 2 or Tier 3 social-emotional support.  
Overall the data indicates that 10% of students (2% with very low/low strengths & high distress, 2% with very low 
strengths & moderate distress, 4% with low strengths & moderate distress, and 2% with very low strengths & low 
distress) will benefit by having Tier 2 (peer or small group) or Tier 3 (individual) social-emotional support. 
 
 
 
Overall school strategies that continue to be implemented and promote a positive school climate include the MHMS 
Code of Conduct, Maverick Essentials, Organized Binder System, Cell Phone Free campus, Backpack Free classrooms, 
the piloting of PBIS, and staff focus on student connectedness. 


 
 
The MHMS Counselors, School Social Worker, School Psychologist, Behaviorist, District Nurse, School Resource Officer, 
Administration, RtI Coordinator, Teachers, Staff and outside agencies (as needed) provide Tier 1 (all students), Tier 2 
(additional support) and Tier 3 (more individualized support) strategies and supports to Mission Hill students and 
families. 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Mission Hill Middle School that create a positive school climate for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
At  Mission Hill Middle School, there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and support by 
and for the whole school . This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as expected 
behavior and interactions between students and staff. Mission Hill's programs to strengthen student connectedness 
and support include School Clubs such as LGBTQ Club, LSU, BSU, and Best Buddies, WAVE After-school Program, 
OCEAN Orientation, Maverick Mentors, MHTV, Mighty Mavericks and Weekly Raffles, Student of the Grading Period, 
Maverick Essential Excellence Awards and Assemblies, Human Health and Development Curriculum, AVID in 6th-8th 
grades, ELD, Counseling Services, RtI/MTSS, and SCIL (Instructional Leadership Team), all of which help us to ensure a 
safe learning space for all. 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 


417/567







 
Strategies and programs unique to Mission Hill Middle School that encourage early resolution of complaints for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
Our site Leadership and Counseling teams immediately address and investigate complaints. All complaints are taken 
seriously in an effort to find resolutions to promote safety for all students. We work in partnership with district 
administration and follow Board Policy. Specific efforts are made to ensure that LGBTQ students are supported socially, 
emotionally, and physically at our sites, and that they are aware of their rights and available supports. 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 
Mission Hill teachers have been trained in Trauma Informed Brain Based learning to bring strategies to our classrooms 
to support students that have experienced trauma. In specific instances we provide students counseling with our 
School Counselor, School Psychologist, and outside agencies if needed to support our students who have witnessed or 
been victims to violence. 


 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Mission Hill Middle School, the 
following procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
The students arrive and leave campus via King Street. Students are dropped off either immediately in front of the school 
(white zone) or a nearby street (Kirby/Peyton). About 80% of drop-off or pick-up occurs on King Street in the north-to-
south direction. There are crosswalks at Peyton and Kirby that are utilized by students. At least one Mission Hill staff 
member supervises the drop-off/pick-up area in front of the school for the first ten minutes before and after school. This 
supervision includes bus drop-off and pick up. Students who bicycle, skateboard, or scooter are required to wear 
helmets, lock their wheels, and park them in the bike cage which is locked during school hours. Students and adults 
visiting the school site after hours or on the weekends are encouraged to follow the same safety guidelines. 
 
 
  


418/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


419/567







 
 
 
 
 


420/567







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 


Address:  840 North Branciforte Ave. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


Principal:  Michelle McKinney 


Phone Number: 831.429.3898 ex 228 


E-mail Address: mmckinney@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  kmunro@sccs.net 


Phone Number: 831.429.3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


421/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................3 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................4 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................5 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................7 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................8 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .......................................................................................................9 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 ...........................................................................................9 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ....................................................................................................................9 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 ......................................................................................9 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .......................................................................................................9 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................10 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................10 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........10 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................10 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................11 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................12 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................12 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................13 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................14 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................14 


 


422/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Monarch 
Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus office, and online at 
http://sccsbssc.ss8.sharpschool.com/schools/monarch. 
 
 


423/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus Comprehensive School Safety Plan has 
been developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
 School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Michelle McKinney Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Denise Blair Teacher from Monarch Community Elementary 
School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus 


Tara McCullough Parent whose child attends the School 


Gail Mabrouk Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan February 4, 2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan February 6, 2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan February 6, 2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan February 20, 2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review March 1, 2019 


 


424/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the Monarch 
Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus campus and at school-related functions. Data 
presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 0 0 1 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 0 0 0 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) NA NA 13.2 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
0 0 1 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
0 0 0 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
0 0 0 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement 0 0 0 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
Monarch School has very few suspensions and no expulsions in recent years. As a school community committed to 
Positive Discipline, Trauma Informed practices, and Restorative practices, most behavioral and attendance issues can 
be addressed in a timely manner. 
The chronic absenteeism rate at Monarch School is 0.6 points lower than the Santa Cruz City Elementary average. It is, 
however, 4.2 points higher than the State average. 
Monarch School has very few instances of bullying, harassment, fighting or physical harm in recent years. As a school 
community committed to Positive Discipline, Trauma Informed practices, and Restorative practices, most behavioral 
and attendance issues can be addressed in a timely manner. 
As a small elementary school, substance abuse is very rare, as every student is known well by a team of caring adults at 
the BSS campus. 


425/567







As Positive Discipline, Trauma Informed practices, and Restorative practices are applied at Monarch school, there have 
been no incidents involving law enforcement. 


 


426/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus is committed to school safety for all 
students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and programs provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. 
Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus prepares students to be self-disciplined and 
responsible citizens who can meet the challenge of living in an ethnically and socio-economically diverse 
community. Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus promotes caring and nurturing 
relationships and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other community 
agencies. Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus stresses prevention of violence on 
campus and prepares students to handle conflict, anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Monarch Community Elementary 
School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus discipline policy provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to 
the California Education Code and district policies. School-wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences 
for rule infractions provide students with clear expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as 
well as to build protective factors leading to student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Monarch Community Elementary 
School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus implements programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-
emotional learning using research-based strategies. Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that promote high 
expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that 
provide a safe learning environment for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
1. Restorative Justice 
2. Trauma-informed schools 
3. Positive Discipline training for all families and staff 
4. LGBTQ support- School mental health counselor, Rainbow Alliance Club 
 
 


427/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


428/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus will provide all students and staff with 
emergency/disaster preparedness training in a variety of procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures 8/17/2018 


Lock Down Procedures 8/17/2018 


Code Red Procedures 8/17/2018 


Shelter in Place Procedures 8/17/2018 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures 8/17/2018 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 


429/567







10


Strategies and programs unique to Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that 
provide a safe school environment for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 
Principal attended 12/12/18 training provided by Santa Cruz County Office of Education. Principals and assistant 
principals meeting time in SCCS was allocated to creating these plans. Districtwide collaboration on 1/17/19 


 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that 
prevent bullying for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Administration responds immediately to all reports of bullying, conducts an investigation, and acts to provide support to 
the victim and aggressor. 
 


430/567







 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
The Social Emotional Health Survey is administered every fall semester to students in the fourth and fifth grade at 
Monarch School. The questions are designed to address the following social emotional aspects of student life: 
persistence, gratitude, zest, and optimism. There is also a separate pro social behavior scale. While students generally 
demonstrate positive school climate, this data indicates a need to continue our implementation of restorative practices, 
especially community circles. 
 
In terms of the questions regarding gratitude, over 70% of students surveyed demonstrate feelings of gratitude most or 
all of the time. 
 
In terms of the questions regarding optimism over 53% of students surveyed demonstrate feelings of optimism most or 
all of the time. 
 
In terms of the questions regarding zest over 39% of students surveyed demonstrate feelings of zest most or all of the 
time. 
 
In terms of the questions regarding persistence over 66% of students surveyed demonstrate feelings of persistence most 
or all of the time. 
 
In terms of the questions regarding prosocial behaviors over 76% of students surveyed demonstrate belief that they 
behave positively most or all of the time. 
 
 
 
There are multiple programs, initiatives and areas of school and staff focus that promote a positive school climate. 
Examples are listed below. 
 
1. Community circles/Class Meetings 
2. Positive Discipline 
3. Trauma Informed Schools 
4. School wide parent education on anti-bias practices 
5. Restorative Justice practices 
6. Social/emotional curriculum 
 
Monarch has embarked upon a 3-year implementation of restorative justice practices. Every Monarch student has 
participated in a community circle facilitated by a teacher(s) in their classes. Student participation in these circles is 
meant to foster an increased sense of school connectedness and safety. Students who participated in circles during the 
first half of the semester indicated that their participation in the circles helped them feel like they belonged at 


431/567







12


Monarch. The principal and assistant principal are implementing conflict resolution based on restorative questions. 
They are keeping a database to monitor effectiveness of this strategy. 
 


 
 
1. School counselor - meets with students on rotating schedule related to social and emotional issues like creating and 
maintaining friendships, family issues, etc. 
2. School Resource Officer (SRO) - visits the campus regularly and assists in safety trainings and drills. 
3. Consultants - provide professional development and parent education on topics related to school climate and safety. 
 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that 
create a positive school climate for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
At Monarch School, there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and support by and for 
the whole school. This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as expected behavior and 
interactions between students and staff. 
 
1. LGBTQ-Rainbow Alliance, mental health counselor is an expert in LGBTQ issues. 
2. Consultants presentation on diversity and identity. 
3. Social emotional curriculum on diversity and identity for students. 
4. During a staff meeting in the fall, the principal provides training focused on Santa Cruz City Schools' policies 
regarding nondiscrimination and sexual harassment. To specifically address support for LGBTQ students, we have hired 
a mental health counselor who has expertise in supporting LGBTQ students. The school registrar is also in the process 
of establishing a Rainbow Alliance Club that will be open to students at Branciforte Small Schools. 
 
 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Monarch Community Elementary School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus that 
encourage early resolution of complaints for all students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
Administration works collaboratively with SCCS personnel to field and address all complaints. Depending on severity of 
concern, complaints may be forwarded to SCCS District personnel. 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 


432/567







13


Site-based collaboration is conducted to support any student who has witnessed a violent act and who needs support. 
 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Monarch Community Elementary 
School/Branciforte Small Schools Campus, the following procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the 
school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
Several procedures are in place to ensure the safety of students, parents, and employees who are traveling to and from 
Branciforte Small Schools Campus. Orange cones are placed in the rear parking lot during student drop-off and pick-up 
to ensure an orderly drop-off and pick-up. The campus security supervisor monitors drop-off and pick-up in the rear 
parking lot. The rear parking lot is well-lit during after-school hours and on weekends. The principal, school community 
coordinator, and/or school counselor are present in front of school during student pick-up. Costanoa is also a closed 
campus. 
 
 
  


433/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


434/567







 
 
 
 
 


435/567







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Santa Cruz High School 


Address:  415 Walnut Ave. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3633 


Principal:  Brent Kline 


Phone Number: 831-429-3960 ext. 200 


E-mail Address: bkline@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: 831-429-3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


436/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................3 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................4 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................5 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................6 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................7 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .......................................................................................................8 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 ...........................................................................................8 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ....................................................................................................................8 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 ......................................................................................8 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .......................................................................................................8 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ....................................................................................................................................................9 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 ...................................................................................................9 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ..........9 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ....................................................................................................................................9 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................10 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................11 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................11 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................12 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................14 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................14 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................14 


 


437/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Santa Cruz High 
School office, and online at www.sccs.net. 
 
The vision of SCHS is to nurture life-long learners who demonstrate critical thinking, creativity, integrity and personal 
responsibility as members of our school and greater community. We collaborate to ensure equity to achieve college and 
career readiness for all students. 


438/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Santa Cruz High School Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been developed by:  
 


 School Site Council 
X School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Brent Kline Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Mathew Svoboda Teacher from Santa Cruz High School 


Shawn Coulson Parent whose child attends the School 


Angelica Tolentino Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


Rishi Lal Other 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan 2/5/19 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan 11/29/18 


School Site Council approval of the Plan 2/13/19 


School District Board approval of the Plan 2/20/19 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review 3/1/19 


 


439/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the Santa Cruz 
High School campus and at school-related functions. Data presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 49 47 20 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 5 3 0 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) 15% 13% 12% 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
4 11 5 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
6 3 9 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
19 10 5 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement n/a n/a 0 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
The above data was taken from our current student information system, Illuminate, and other sources such as 
CALPADS/ Data Quest/ CBEDS 
The suspensions are lower this year because of increased support through restorative practices. The chronic 
absenteeism rate has also decreased by a percentage point because of the active work towards informing parents 
about their children's attendance and truancy rates through letters and phone calls. Additionally, appropriate referrals 
are made to the SCCS Student Attendance Review Board (SARB). Substance abuse and bullying incidents have 
decreased, which could be attributed towards our health curriculum and guest speakers from partnering community 
agencies such as Monarch Services and Rainbow Speakers, to address harassment and consent.  We also have two part 
time mental health counselors to address the various challenges our students may be facing. 


 


440/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Santa Cruz High School is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and programs 
provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. Santa 
Cruz High School prepares students to be self-disciplined and responsible citizens who can meet the challenge of living in 
an ethnically and socio-economically diverse community. Santa Cruz High School promotes caring and nurturing 
relationships and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other community 
agencies. Santa Cruz High School stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares students to handle conflict, 
anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Santa Cruz High School discipline policy 
provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California Education Code and district policies. School-
wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule infractions provide students with clear 
expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to build protective factors leading to 
student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Santa Cruz High School implements 
programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning using research-based strategies. 
Santa Cruz High School implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that promote 
high expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Santa Cruz High School that provide a safe learning environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Santa Cruz High School offers a wide variety of clubs and extra curricular activities. These include, but are not limited to 
the Black Student Union, Latino Student Unions, Circle of Friends, Cooking Club, Counseling Services, ASB, Club Congress, 
Ghost Hunters Alliance, Medical Club, Theater Club, Math Club, Peer Tutoring, After School Tutoring, Mock Trial, 
Automotive Club, Bike Club, football, soccer, volleyball, baseball, swimming, softball, lacrosse, track and field, 
cheerleading, golf, tennis, choir, band, jazz band, and color guard.  Specific programs and supports for our LGBTQ 
students include a robust and visible Rainbow Alliance (Gay Straight Alliance), All-gender bathrooms, LGBTQ inclusive 
health and sex ed curriculum, whole student body recognition of day of silence, National Coming Out Day, and school-
wide assemblies that promote consent, anti-bullying and acceptance. 
 
 
 


441/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


442/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Santa Cruz High School will provide all students and staff with emergency/disaster preparedness training in a variety of 
procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures 10/18/18 


Lock Down Procedures 10/9/18 


Code Red Procedures 10/9/18 


Shelter in Place Procedures 10/9/18 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures 10/18/18 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 


443/567







9


Strategies and programs unique to Santa Cruz High School that provide a safe school environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Specific programs and supports for our LGBTQ students include a robust and visible Rainbow Alliance (Gay Straight 
Alliance), All-gender bathrooms, LGBTQ inclusive health and sex ed curriculum, whole student body recognition of day of 
silence, National Coming Out Day, and school-wide assemblies that promote consent, anti-bullying and acceptance. 
 
 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 
Countywide School Safety Plan Coordination and Collaboration on 12/12/18. Districtwide Safety Collaboration meeting 
on 1/17/19. 


 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 


444/567







Strategies and programs unique to Santa Cruz High School that prevent bullying for all students, including specifically for 
LGBTQ students. 
Specific programs and supports for our LGBTQ students include a robust and visible Rainbow Alliance (Gay Straight 
Alliance), All-gender bathrooms, LGBTQ inclusive health and sex ed curriculum, whole student body recognition of day of 
silence, National Coming Out Day, and school-wide assemblies that promote consent, anti-bullying and acceptance. 
 
 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
SEHS Survey Findings: ( pick a 3 data points)  and 
 
School Support ( Q19 - At my school, there is a teacher or some other adult who always wants me to do my best): 49% 
Freshman feel this is very true, 38% Juniors feel this is true. 
 
Self Control (Q36 - I think before I act):  21%Freshman feel this is true, 26% Juniors feel this is true 
 
Emotional Distress (Q56 - In the past month, it was hard for me to cope and I thought I would panic): 15% Freshman 
found this to be true, 36% found this be true 
 
CA Healthy Kids Survey Findings: 
 
School Engagement and Supports: School Connectedness 68% Freshman feel connected, 62% Juniors feel connected. 
 
School Safety and Substance Abuse: School perceived as very safe or safe: 70% Freshman feel safe, 84% Juniors feel safe. 
 
Mental and Physical Health: Current alcohol or drug use: 28% Freshman have used drugs, 48% Juniors have used drug 
 
When comparing the SEHS Survey to the CA Healthy Kids survey there are some correlations.  In the SEHS Survey under 
school findings for Emotional Distress and the CA Healthy Kids survey for Mental and physical healthy shows that 
Freshman have better coping skills and use drugs less as opposed to their Junior counterparts where they are able to 
find it harder to cope and are admitting to more drug and alcohol use.  As a school we are working with Monarch 
Services, Rainbow Speakers and our health curriculum to provide methods and knowledge of positive and sober 
methods to cope with emotional distress. 
 
 
 
Mental Health Counselors 
Social Workers 
Threat Assessment 
Student of the Month 


445/567







11


Monarch Services - Presentations 
Diversity Center Rainbow Speakers - Presentations 
Clubs and Social Groups 
Theater 
Sports: Co-Ed, Boys and Girls 
Safety Plans for high risk students] 
Student Study Teams 
Behavioral Student Study Teams for behavior intervention (Restorative practice) 
 


 
 
Roles of Mental Health- Teachers and students can refer students to counselors, and students can receive counseling 
from a MFT. 
School Counselors - Provide emotional and academic counseling. 
School Resource Officers - Provide support from the local SC Police Department 
School Psychologist - Provide assessment for special education students and testing when warranted, also supports the 
Student Study Team process. 
 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Santa Cruz High School that create a positive school climate for all students, including 
specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Specific programs and supports for our LGBTQ students include a robust and visible Rainbow Alliance (Gay Straight 
Alliance), All-gender bathrooms, LGBTQ inclusive health and sex ed curriculum, whole student body recognition of day 
of silence, and National Coming Out Day, and school-wide assemblies that promote consent, anti-bullying and 
acceptance. At Santa Cruz High School there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and 
support by and for the whole school. This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as 
expected behavior and interactions between students and staff. 
 
 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Santa Cruz High School that encourage early resolution of complaints for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
Specific programs and supports for our LGBTQ students include a robust and visible Rainbow Alliance (Gay Straight 
Alliance), All-gender bathrooms, LGBTQ inclusive health and sex ed curriculum, whole student body recognition of day of 
silence, and National Coming Out Day, and school-wide assemblies that promote consent, anti-bullying and acceptance. 
 
 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 


446/567







12


associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 
Students may report a need to visit with a Mental Health Specialist through a coordinated referral process 
communicated to all students/staff. 


 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Santa Cruz High School, the following 
procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
Santa Cruz High School lies within an urban coastal neighborhood with major roads nearby including Laurel St. and 
Cabrillo Highway. The SCHS campus has multiple entry and exit points. There two primary routes for entering and 
leaving on California St. and Weeks St.. Two secondary routes of entry are from California St. and Myrtle St. via Laurel St. 
and Chestnut Ave. Students, staff and faculty commute daily to SCHS via walking, biking, driving and public 
transportation. The Santa Cruz Metro bus stop is on the corner of California St. and Walnut Ave adjacent to the campus. 
Campus supervisors monitor the safe entry and exit from the school grounds for students. Fencing has been installed to 
secure the inner perimeter of the campus (main building, math building, band room, home economics building, 
cafeteria, trident building, science building and the gymnasium). The auto and wood shop classes, jewelry, photography, 
and computer graphics are not enclosed within the perimeter. During the school day walk through gates will be 
unlocked while drive through portions will remain closed and locked unless access is needed. School personnel will 
provide access when requested. During after school hours and on weekends/holidays, all gates will be locked. This is 
expected to substantially decrease incidents of trespassing on campus and reduce vandalism. Students are reminded 
and encouraged to travel along safe routes to and from school. They are reminded to travel in groups, using main 
thoroughfares. They are told to travel directly from home and back to home from school. Santa Cruz High School is an 
open campus for lunch time and breaks. Students walk down Walnut Ave. and Lincoln Ave. to go to Pacific Ave., 
downtown Santa Cruz for lunch. Students also walk up to the gas station on the corner of Walnut Ave and Cabrillo Hwy. 
In addition, the Santa Cruz Police Department, especially the assigned SRO, are visible each school day. 
 
A. Primary Routes 
1. Walnut Ave: This is the main entry and drop off point in front of the school. There is a parking lot located for staff only 
off of California St. and at the school gym off of Myrtle Ave. 
2. Weeks St.: Another primary route for dropping off students is at the intersection of Taylor and Weeks streets, near 
the back of the SCHS Cafeteria and in front of the adult education building. This is especially a point of entry for student 
drivers, who park on both Taylor and Weeks streets, in the absence of a designated student parking facility. 
 
B. Secondary Route 
1. California Street: Students are often dropped off near the Music Building on California Street. 
2. SCHS Gym: Many students and staff members, especially walkers, use the the gym as and access to the main campus. 
The gym is accessible from Myrtle St. via either Chestnut St. or Laurel St. 
 
C. Bus Routes 


447/567







Santa Cruz High School students who live in Bonny Doon and Davenport use the Santa Cruz Metro bus system to get to 
and from school. Other students who require the bus as transport walk to the Metro Center on Pacific Ave. in downtown 
Santa Cruz to take the bus. 
 
 
 
  


448/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


449/567







 
 
 
 
 


450/567







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


451/567







2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Soquel High School 


Address:  401 Old San Jose Rd. 
Soquel, CA 95073-2213 


Principal:  Gail Atlansky 


Phone Number: 831-429-3908 


E-mail Address: gatlansky@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: 831-429-3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


452/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................4 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................5 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................6 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................8 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures ...................................................................................................................................10 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .....................................................................................................11 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 .........................................................................................11 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ..................................................................................................................11 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 .....................................................................................11 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .....................................................................................................11 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................12 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................12 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........12 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................13 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................13 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................15 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................16 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................16 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................17 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................17 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................17 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................17 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................17 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................17 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................17 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................17 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................17 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................17 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................17 


 


453/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Soquel High School 
office, and online at http://soquel.sccs.net/. 
 
 


454/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Soquel High School Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
 School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Gail Atlansky Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Alyssa Snyder Teacher from Soquel High School 


Erica Sowder Parent whose child attends the School 


Kelly Moker Classified Employee 


Kris Koenig Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


José A. Quevedo Other 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan January 22, 2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan January 23, 2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan January 23, 2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan February 20, 2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review March 1, 2019 


 


455/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the Soquel 
High School campus and at school-related functions. Data presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 38 58 42 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 8 6 3 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) 9% 11% 13.4% 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
13 9 2 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
23 10 11 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
25 16 28 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement n/a n/a 4 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
At Soquel High School, data shows that our suspension rate declined from the previous school year, but we have 
noticed that our number of incidents for substance use had a sharp increase. This increase includes discipline for the 
use of vaping devices that may or may not contain controlled substances. The data also shows that our expulsion rate 
has significantly decreased over the past two years. Our chronic absentee rate has gradually increased but our 
discipline for bullying has decreased notably as well. The data also shows that we basically had our rate for discipline 
for fighting and physical harm remain the same, with only one more event than the previous year. In terms of incidents 
involving law enforcement, we had four incidents last year. We need to note that 17-18 is a baseline year. 
 
 
 


 


456/567







 


457/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Soquel High School is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and programs 
provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
Soquel High is a diverse, creative, and professional learning community that encourages and supports all Knights to 
achieve intellectual and personal excellence, and to be prepared for college, career, and society. 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. Soquel 
High School prepares students to be self-disciplined and responsible citizens who can meet the challenge of living in an 
ethnically and socio-economically diverse community. Soquel High School promotes caring and nurturing relationships 
and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and other community agencies. 
Soquel High School stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares students to handle conflict, anger, and 
other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Soquel High School discipline policy provides 
students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California Education Code and district policies. School-wide 
rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule infractions provide students with clear expectations 
for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to build protective factors leading to student success, 
both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Soquel High School implements programs 
to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning using research-based strategies. Soquel High 
School implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that promote high 
expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Soquel High School that provide a safe learning environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
In an effort to support all students, Soquel High has launched student and faculty-led campaigns that promote inclusivity 
of all students regardless of their cultural, ethnic, language and gender identity as individuals. In addition, the faculty 
formed a Diversity Task Force that meets weekly to evaluate the data and feedback received from students from both 
the California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) and faculty created surveys. This was done to find out how kids feel about 
discrimination/bullying at Soquel High School. Students and selected staff members participated in the National 
Coalition Building Institute (NCBI) training sessions. The Diversity Task force has been meeting with student leaders 
twice a month to practice leading training and activities. The activities derive from the NCBI curriculum presented to our 
student leaders in August of 2018. 
 
Soquel High School also provides a safe learning environment for our LGBTQ students by allocating gender neutral 
restrooms, providing a Gay Straight Alliance (GSA) Club, hosting a National Coming Out Day and the Queer Youth 
Awards. Moreover, the social studies department includes Queer Civil Rights in their curriculum and the English 
Department has access to a selection of novels that cover queer topics. 
 
Soquel High School hosts the central office for the area's school resource officer, a sheriff deputy who is usually at 
school during the week. In addition, we have two Campus Supervisors that monitor our school campus, school parking 
lots, and areas surrounding the campus consistently. All three administrators, school resource officer, head custodian, 
both campus supervisors, and two classified staff members meet weekly to address current school needs, especially any 
safety concerns. In addition, an administrator participates in a monthly district Safety Meeting and a monthly Facilities 
meeting to address resources and supports needed to ensure safety at the site level. Soquel High School also offers 
Health classes, which all Freshman students take, cover anti-bullying, non-discrimination, sexual harassment, sexual 
orientation and gender expression. In addition, faculty and staff are trained annually during staff meetings in protocols 
and laws surrounding non-discrimination and harassment. 
 


458/567







 


459/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


460/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Soquel High School will provide all students and staff with emergency/disaster preparedness training in a variety of 
procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures May 13 & Sept. 23, 2019 


Lock Down Procedures March 18 & Aug. 29, 2019 


Code Red Procedures March 18, 2019 


Shelter in Place Procedures April 22, 2019 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures Feb. 25 and Oct. 17, 2019 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
At Soquel High School, teachers and selected staff are notified through a flag in Illuminate, our student information 
platform. Teachers and staff are notified of current behavior events in person or via email, after a student is suspended 
or expelled. Teachers and staff are invited to request information from administrators at any time if they have safety 
concerns about their students. 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 


461/567







12


Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Soquel High School that provide a safe school environment for all students, including 
specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Students and selected staff members participated in the National Coalition Building Institute (NCBI) training sessions. 
The Diversity Task force has been meeting with student leaders twice a month to practice leading training and activities. 
The activities derive from the NCBI curriculum presented to our student leaders in August of 2018. 
 
Soquel High School also provides a safe learning environment for our LGBTQ students by allocating gender neutral 
restrooms, providing a Gay Straight Alliance (GSA) Club, hosting a National Coming Out Day and the Queer Youth 
Awards. Moreover, the social studies department includes Queer Civil Rights in their curriculum and the English 
Department has access to a selection of novels that cover queer topics. 
 
Soquel High School also offers Health classes, which all Freshmen students take. The required Health curriculum covers 
anti-bullying, non-discrimination, sexual harassment, sexual orientation and gender expression. In addition, faculty and 
staff are trained annually during staff meetings in protocols and laws surrounding non-discrimination and harassment. 
 
 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 
School administrators form across Santa Cruz County collaborated in December 2018, and administrators representing 
each school in the Santa Cruz School District collaborated with the Director of Student Services to complete the 
Comprehension School Safety Plan on January 17, 2019. Additionally Soquel High School's School Site Council 
collaborated on January 23, 2019. 


 


462/567







 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Soquel High School that prevent bullying for all students, including specifically for 
LGBTQ students. 
Students and selected staff members participated in the National Coalition Building Institute (NCBI) training sessions. 
The Diversity Task force has been meeting with student leaders twice per month to practice the facilitation of trainings 
and related activities. The activities derive from the NCBI curriculum presented to our student leaders in August of 2018. 
 
Soquel High School also provides a safe learning environment for our LGBTQ students by allocating gender neutral 
restrooms, providing a Gay Straight Alliance (GSA) Club, hosting a National Coming Out Day and the Queer Youth 
Awards. Moreover, the social studies department includes Queer Civil Rights in their curriculum and the English 
Department has access to a selection of novels that cover queer topics. 
 
Soquel High School also offers Health classes, which all Freshmen students are required to enroll. The required health 
curriculum offers pertinent lessons centered on anti-bullying, non-discrimination, sexual harassment, sexual orientation 
and gender expression. In addition, faculty and staff are trained annually during staff meetings in protocols and laws 
surrounding non-discrimination and harassment. 
 
 
 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 
their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
The last California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) we administered was during the  2016- 17 school year. This survey is 
administered to all freshman and junior students. Some of the data from the 2016-17 survey included below indicates a 
very positive trend at our school. Data points show that, combining the high and moderate scale scores: 
89% of 9th graders and 90% of 11th graders feel that there are caring adults at school 
95% of 9th graders and 93% of 11th graders feel that adults have high expectations at school 
 
In terms of safety: 
3% of 9th graders and 3% of 11th graders feel unsafe (28% of 9th graders and 32% of 11th graders feel neither safe nor 
unsafe) 


463/567







14


 
The Overall School Connectedness index for Soquel High School was: 
96% for 9th graders and 90% for 11th graders 
 
In addition to the CHKS, at Soquel High School we also administered the Socio-emotional Social Emotional Health Survey 
to our 9th - 11th graders.  This comprehensive screening tool allows for effective Universal Screening in multiple areas of 
student well being. 
 
Specific indicators relating to School Connectedness are noted below. 
 
85% of students believe that at school, there is a teacher or some other adult who always wants them to do their best. 
79% of students believe that at school there is a teacher or some other adult who believes that they will be a success. 
 
While data reflects Soquel High School to be an encouraging environment in the area of school connectedness, it will 
serve our students well to increase student perception of adults believing in their success. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Faculty members at Soquel High decided to form a Diversity Task Force to explore ideas to support all students in an 
ever-growing diverse student body. These teachers meet weekly to plan activities that promote inclusion, equity, and 
acknowledgement of our students' identity. The Diversity Task Force also recruited 70 students to collaborate with the 
National Coalition Building Institute (NCBI) to explore the curriculum that supports initiatives that promote a positive 
school climate. 
 
In addition, Soquel High School has added a Part time Activities Director position. Additionally we have a Full time 
Athletic Director position, a part time (.8 FTE) School Community Coordinator, a District Social Worker, and Social Work 
intern. Soquel High School also has a strong Link Crew program for incoming Freshman students, College-going culture 
support, including a strong AVID program, Math Plus class before school and Math support class three times a week 
after school, after-school library supports in the library Tuesday through Friday, Student Leadership class, student 
athletic programs and clubs. 
 
Soquel High’s Counseling and Guidance Department provides a proactive, comprehensive, and developmentally 
appropriate program of planning and support for students' academic and career goals and social-emotional well being. 
Soquel High’s Counseling program partners with parents/guardians, all school staff, community members and other 
stakeholders to teach and reinforce academic and social-emotional goal setting, planning, persistence, self-awareness 
and reflection, and helping self and others. The Soquel High Guidance and Counseling department provides a 
welcoming and safe environment for our students to receive a full range of academic and emotional supports. Our 
Counseling staff is available throughout the day and often during evenings and weekend events to provide academic, 
personal, social and career counseling to students. Soquel High Counseling and Guidance staff includes three full-time 
(two of them bilingual) and one part time counselors, a part-time CTE/ROP Counselor, a Bilingual School Community 
Coordinator, a Bilingual Counseling Secretary, a Registrar and an Assistant Principal of Counseling and Guidance. Soquel 
High takes a proactive approach to establishing the behavioral supports and school culture needed for all students to 
achieve social, emotional, and academic success. Behavior management is focused on ensuring a safe environment 
where students can learn and thrive academically and socially, and where consequences are progressive, providing 
opportunities for students to practice making better choices. 
 
Educators work with students to create an environment of mutual trust and respect and the emphasis is one where 
students work to repair harm and restore relationships with each other and adults on campus. Examples of community 


464/567







15


accountability practices include student-teacher conferences, student reflection forms, and conflict resolution. The 
impact of the this approach has been an overall decline in total behavior events over the last five years. During the 
2017-2018 school year, Soquel High administration moved toward in-house suspension for many behavior incidents 
that would have otherwise resulted in out-of school suspension. This transition has allowed more students to remain 
on campus, and continue access to academic and social-emotional supports. The Student Services department includes 
two Campus Supervisors, an Assistant Principal secretary, and an Assistant Principal of Student Services. 
 
 


 
 
Our school counselors, school resource officer, and social worker work closely with our students, especially our at-risk 
students, by providing counseling, doing welfare checks, and meeting with their families as needed. 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Soquel High School that create a positive school climate for all students, including 
specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Students and selected staff members participated in the National Coalition Building Institute (NCBI) training sessions. 
The Diversity Task force has been meeting with student leaders  twice a month to practice leading training and 
activities. The activities derive from the NCBI curriculum presented to our student leaders in August of 2018. 
 
At Soquel High School, there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and support by and for 
the whole school. This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as expected behavior and 
interactions between students and staff. 
 
Soquel High School also provides a safe learning environment for our LGBTQ students by allocating gender neutral 
restrooms, providing a Gay Straight Alliance (GSA) Club, hosting a National Coming Out Day and the Queer Youth 
Awards. Moreover, the social studies department includes Queer Civil Rights in their curriculum and the English 
Department has access to a selection of novels that cover queer topics. 
 
Soquel High School also offers Health classes, which all Freshmen students take, cover anti-bullying, non-
discrimination, sexual harassment, sexual orientation and gender expression. In addition, faculty and staff are trained 
annually during staff meetings in protocols and laws surrounding non-discrimination and harassment. 
 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Soquel High School that encourage early resolution of complaints for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
Student and family complaints can be communicated in a variety of ways: in-person contact with administration and 
office staff or via email, phone, or mail to site administrators or the district office. At the site level, the principal is the 
designated person to review complaints. At the district level, the Director of Student Services reviews complaints 
involving students, and the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources is the designated person to review complaints 
involving staff. 
 


465/567







16


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 
There is a coordinated process for referring students for mental health care and support. Teachers and staff submit 
counseling referrals for students needing social-emotional support. At Soquel High we have a Bilingual School 
Community Coordinator, a district social worker, and a social work intern who work closely with students and their 
families to address mental-health needs. Referrals to outside agencies are facilitated as appropriate. Student Study 
Team (SST) meetings, attendance meetings, and counseling intervention meetings are held to address social emotional 
concerns for students. Counselors also make appropriate referrals to outside community-based counseling programs. 
After receiving training in May of 2018 in the implementation of a Threat Assessment protocol, Soquel High School 
created a Threat Assessment Team, which includes site counselors, the school psychologist, site administration, district 
social worker, and school resource officer. Site administration and counselors were also trained on the county Threat 
Assessment protocol. 


 
 
Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Soquel High School, the following 
procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
Students who are dropped off/picked up by the school bus daily do this by entering via Old San Jose Rd and then by 
entering the access to the Santa Cruz County classrooms, on the west side of the school. Students arrive/leave by motor 
vehicle via Old San Jose Rd. Students are dropped off in front of the school in the drop off area. Students that walk to 
school enter through the trail close to Soquel Ave. and through the trail by the football stadium. Campus supervisors 
monitor student ingress and egress in the morning and after school. 
 
Visitors must check in with the office to receive a visitors pass which must be visible at all time. Keys: Duplicate set of 
keys or duplicate master keys that can open every space on campus are available on campus. They are stored in a secure 
location in the main office. Bilingual staff members at Soquel High School include Jenny Robles, Viviana Elizondo, Ana 
Martínez, Roxana Jiménez, Solange Nascimento, Luke Dahlen, Ryan Bosson, Ana McGuire, Miguel Valladolid, Rachel 
Díaz, and José Quevedo. 
 
 
 
  


466/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


467/567







 
 
 
 
 


468/567







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 
Part I – Public Components 


2019-2020 
 
 
 


School: Westlake Elementary School 


Address:  1000 High St. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-2596 


Principal:  Clyde Curley 


Phone Number: (831) 429 – 3878 


E-mail Address: ccurley@sccs.net 
 


District: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Superintendent  Kris Munro 


Phone Number: (831) 429-3410 


E-mail Address: sarahmiller@sccs.net 
 


469/567







 
Table of Contents 


 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) .............................................................................................3 


Plan Development and Approval ...................................................................................................................................4 


Current Status of School Crime ......................................................................................................................................5 


School Safety Strategies and Programs ..........................................................................................................................6 


Child Abuse Reporting Procedures .....................................................................................................................................8 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule .......................................................................................................9 


Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 ...........................................................................................9 


Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 ....................................................................................................................9 


Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 ......................................................................................9 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 .......................................................................................................9 


Dress Code – BP 5132 ..................................................................................................................................................10 


Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 .................................................................................................10 


Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees ........12 


Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 ..................................................................................................................................12 


Positive School Climate – BP 5137 ...............................................................................................................................12 


Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 ..................................................................................................................17 


Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act ...............................................17 


Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school .........................18 


Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................................20 


Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting ...........................................................................................20 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness ...........................................................................................20 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process .........................................................................................20 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification ...........................................................................................20 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment .....................................................................................................20 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming ..........................................................................................................................20 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline ...........................................................................................................................................20 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention .........................................................................................................................20 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate .....................................................................................................................20 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................20 


 


470/567







 
Purpose of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan (CSSP) 
 
Sections 32280-32288 of the California Education Code outline the requirements of all schools operating any 
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a Comprehensive School Safety Plan relevant to the 
needs and resources of that particular school. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting the provisions to support California public schools as they develop their 
mandated Comprehensive School Safety Plans that are the result of a systematic planning process, that include 
strategies aimed at the prevention of, and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses. Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 719 & AB 115 and must contain the following 
elements: 
 


• Assessment of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions 
• Child abuse reporting procedures 
• Disaster procedures 
• Suspension and expulsion policies 
• Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils 
• Discrimination and harassment policies 
• School wide dress code policies 
• Procedures for safe ingress and egress 
• Policies enacted to maintain a safe and orderly environment 
• Rules and procedures on school discipline 
• Hate crime reporting procedures 


 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1st every year. In July of every year, the 
school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in the annual School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan Public Version – Part I is available for review at the Westlake 
Elementary School office, and online at http://westlake.sccs.net/traffic_and_safety/school_safety_plan. 
 
 


471/567







 
Plan Development and Approval 
The Westlake Elementary School Comprehensive School Safety Plan has been developed by:  
 


X School Site Council 
 School Safety Planning Committee 


 
Which includes the following members: 
 


Name Membership Role 


Clyde Curley Principal or Principal’s Designee 


Krista Holt Teacher from Westlake Elementary School 


Brianna Donaldson Parent whose child attends the School 


Rossell Boccaletti Classified Employee 


Trevor Kendall Law Enforcement Agency Representative 


 


Key Dates of Plan Development and Approval Date(s) 


Meeting with representative of law enforcement agency to develop the Plan 1/31/2019 


Meeting at the school site to allow members of the public the opportunity to review 
and express opinions about the Plan 2/7/2019 


School Site Council approval of the Plan 2/7/2019 


School District Board approval of the Plan 2/20/2019 


Submission to Santa Cruz County Office of Education for audit review 3/1/2019 


 


472/567







 
Current Status of School Crime 
This section presents data that will be analyzed to assess the current status of school crime committed on the Westlake 
Elementary School campus and at school-related functions. Data presented include: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Incident Type 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 


Suspensions 
(Total #) 2 1 7 


Expulsions 
(Total #) 0 0 0 


Chronic Absentee Rate (%) 8% 11.4% 11.8% 


Discipline for Bullying and 
Harassment 


(Total #) 
0 0 0 


Discipline for 
Fighting/Physical 


Harm (Total #) 
2 1 7 


Discipline for Substance 
Abuse 


(Total #) 
0 0 0 


Incidents involving Law 
Enforcement 0 0 0 


 
 
Findings from the analysis of the data presented above include: 
Suspensions and expulsions over the past three years have been near zero.  The increase in suspensions in 2017-18 
resulted in increased student support such as behavior support aide, student study team, counseling and consultation 
with behaviorists. 
Chronic absentee rate is higher than the state average of 9% and has increased over the past two years.  Absenteeism 
is an area for improvement.  Some actions being taken include monthly reviews of attendance, outreach to families 
that are exhibiting chronic absenteeism, and collaboration with Student Services to improve attendance practices.  
Student Attendance Review Board is utilized as a resource to support families struggling with regular attendance. 
Appropriate referrals are made to the SCCS Student Attendance Review Board with the intent of providing 
collaborative support and needed accountability to students and families. 


 


473/567







School Safety Strategies and Programs 
 
Westlake Elementary School is committed to school safety for all students, staff, and visitors. Many strategies and 
programs provide and maintain a high level of school safety. 
 
School Vision/Mission Statement 
 
Westlake is a place where children are supported to achieve their highest potential academically, physically, socially and 
emotionally. Our school community inspires life long learning. We are problem solvers who celebrate our diverse 
perspectives and experiences. Positivity and optimism are core values that guide our learning. 
 
Positive Behavior Intervention and Support (PBIS) Team Mission Statement: 
The mission of the Westlake PBIS Team is to enhance a positive school culture for students, staff, and community with 
consistent expectations and procedures for school behavior so that all are safe, responsible, respected and celebrated. 
 
 
 
Providing a safe learning environment is a priority for staff, parents, students, and school community members. 
Westlake Elementary School prepares students to be self-disciplined and responsible citizens who can meet the 
challenge of living in an ethnically and socio-economically diverse community. Westlake Elementary School promotes 
caring and nurturing relationships and work cooperatively with parents, students, law enforcement representatives, and 
other community agencies. Westlake Elementary School stresses prevention of violence on campus and prepares 
students to handle conflict, anger, and other threats to safety.  
 
Programs are implemented to prevent drug, alcohol, and tobacco use. The Westlake Elementary School discipline policy 
provides students with behavior guidelines that are aligned to the California Education Code and district policies. School-
wide rules, classroom rules, the dress code, and consequences for rule infractions provide students with clear 
expectations for behavior. The focus is to reduce barriers to learning as well as to build protective factors leading to 
student success, both academically and socially.  
 
Intervention and prevention programs focus on positive youth development. Westlake Elementary School implements 
programs to create a positive school climate and promote social-emotional learning using research-based strategies. 
Westlake Elementary School implements multi-tiered systems of support/response to intervention for students that 
promote high expectations, maintain student engagement in school, and provide systems for student success.  
 


Strategies and programs unique to Westlake Elementary School that provide a safe learning environment for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Westlake uses the Positive Behavior Interventions and Support (PBIS) approach to school discipline.  The Wildcat Ways--
Be Respectful, Be Responsible, Be Safe, and Do Your Personal Best--are taught to all students at the beginning of the 
school year.  Positive behavior is reinforced through daily Cool Cat tickets, weekly student acknowledgements, and 
quarterly assemblies.  Behavior transgressions are monitored using referral forms.  Students needing behavior support 
move through tiers of intervention including small group instruction, individualized instruction, classroom support from 
a behavior aide, and school counseling.  The PBIS Team meets monthly to review and monitor programs.  They research 
solutions to problem behaviors and make recommendations to the teaching staff for additional interventions.  A 
Coordination of Services Team (COST) including the Counselor, Intervention Coordinator, and School Psychologist meet 
weekly to monitor interventions and student progress. 
The Second Step social emotional learning program is taught in all classrooms.  The curriculum builds from kindergarten 
to 5th grade and includes lessons on: skills for learning, empathy, emotion management, and problem solving.  The 
Second Step program provides a common language for all students and staff. 
 
All teaching staff received training on supporting LGBTQ students.  Individual students have been supported through 
personal plans, school counseling, and parent meetings.  Our PBIS program emphasizes the importance of inclusion for 
all students.  Many classroom teachers have voluntarily designated their classrooms as safe spaces for all students. 


474/567







 
A Social Emotional Health Survey is administered to students in 3rd - 5th grade.  The results of the survey are shared 
with staff and actions are determined to support students.  Individual students with high risk factors are also identified 
and supported by the School Counselor. 
 
 


475/567







 
Child Abuse Reporting Procedures 
 
(EC 35294.2 [a] [2]; PC 11166) 
 
All school staff members actively monitor the safety and welfare of all students. Staff members understand their 
responsibility as child-care custodians and will immediately report all cases of known and suspected child abuse 
pursuant to Penal Code Section 11166. District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and 
administrative regulation, are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. 
 
Penal Code 11166. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (d), and in Section 11166.05, a mandated reporter shall make a 
report to an agency specified in Section 11165.9 whenever the mandated reporter, in his or her professional capacity or 
within the scope of his or her employment, has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or 
reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. The mandated reporter shall make an initial report by 
telephone to the agency immediately or as soon as is practicably possible, and shall prepare and send, fax, or 
electronically transmit a written follow up report within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident. 
The mandated reporter may include with the report any non-privileged documentary evidence the mandated reporter 
possesses relating to the incident.  
 
Plans are also completed to assure ongoing monitoring of the student. School staff work closely with police and Child 
Protective Services with follow up actions as needed. Considerable effort is made to maintain the confidentiality of the 
student and employee in all cases of child abuse reporting. Copies of all written reports are maintained in a confidential 
file in the principal’s office. Board Policy 5141.4 addresses Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting and is included in the 
Appendix of the Comprehensive School Safety Plan. 
 
 


476/567







 
Emergency/Disaster Preparedness Training Schedule 
 
Westlake Elementary School will provide all students and staff with emergency/disaster preparedness training in a 
variety of procedures according to the following schedule: 
 


Training Date(s) 


Fire Procedures 9/10/18, 10/2/18, 11/2/18, 12/4/18, 1/8/2019, 2/8/19, 3/5/19, 
5/2/19, 


Lock Down Procedures 10/25/18, 11/29/18, 2/25/19, 4/23/19, 


Code Red Procedures 10/25/18 


Shelter in Place Procedures 10/25/18 


Earthquake Emergency Procedures 10/17/18, 12/17/18, 3/26/19, 5/21/19 
 
 
Procedures for Emergency Use by Public Agency – BP 3516 
As documented in Board Policy 3516, public agencies, including the American Red Cross, have permission to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting 
the public health and welfare. The Board will cooperate with such agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever 
services they deem necessary to meet the community's needs. Board Policy 3516 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Suspension/Expulsion Policies – BP 5144.1 
As documented in Board Policy 5144.1, the school desires to provide students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and promotes 
their learning and development. Rules and regulations set the standards of behavior expected of students and the 
disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. Board Policy 5144.1 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils – BP 5148 
As documented in Board Policy 5148, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in 
accordance with law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. Board Policy 
5148 is included in the Appendix. 
 
 
 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy – BP 5145.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5145.3, the Board of Education desires to provide a safe school environment that allows 
all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, services, 
and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and/or bullying of any student, based on actual or perceived characteristics of 
race or ethnicity, color, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, physical or mental disability, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic identified in Education 
Code 200 or 220, Penal Code 422.55, or Government Code 11135, or based on association with a person or group with 
one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. Board Policy 5145.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 


477/567







10


Strategies and programs unique to Westlake Elementary School that provide a safe school environment for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Westlake Staff are dedicated to creating a welcoming and inclusive learning environment for our community.  All 
teaching staff receive ongoing training on supporting LGBTQ students.  Individual students are supported through 
personal plans, school counseling, and parent conferences as needed.  Our school expectation, rules, and PBIS program 
emphasizes the importance of inclusion for all students.  Many classroom teachers have voluntarily designated their 
classrooms as safe spaces for all students.  The Second Step program teaches empathy, compassion, and skills for 
including others so that all students feel safe and secure. 
 
 
Dress Code – BP 5132 
As documented in Board Policy 5132, the Board of Education believes that appropriate dress and grooming contribute to 
a productive learning environment. The Board expects students to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to 
wear clothes that are suitable for the school activities in which they participate. Students' clothing must not present a 
health or safety hazard or a distraction which would interfere with the educational process. Students are prohibited 
from wearing gang-related apparel when there is evidence of a gang presence that disrupts or threatens to disrupt the 
school's activities. Board Policy 5132 is included in the Appendix. 
 
The Westlake School staff has agreed that children are expected to wear school clothes that preserve a serious learning 
environment at school and ensure the safety of the children. With this in mind, the following restrictions apply:  


• Clothing that exposes undergarments and/or parts of the body (bare torsos, see-through clothing, shorts or 
skirts that are extremely short, low-cut armholes, strapless dresses) are not permitted. 


• Shirts and shoes must be worn at all times while at school. 
• Clothing currently identified as gang attire is not allowed. 
• Hats or hoods may not be worn during class time. 
• Clothes, buttons, or supplies (including backpacks that make reference to tobacco, alcohol, drugs, or are 


obscene, are not allowed.) Words or pictures on clothing, supplies or hats that are obscene, suggestive, 
demeaning to other cultures, drug, and/or gang-related are inappropriate and not allowed. 


• Shoes with spike heels, or shoes with stacked heels higher that one inch are not allowed due to potential 
accidents on the playgrounds, "tennis shoes" are needed for PE and movement classes. 


If your child needs to be excused from physical education on any day due to an injury or illness, please write a note to 
excuse him/her from physical education class.  
 
 
 
Rules and Procedures for School Discipline – BP 5144 
As documented in Board Policy 5144, the Board of Education is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive 
school environment which is conducive to student learning and to preparing students for responsible citizenship by 
fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use 
of effective school and classroom management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention, provision of 
appropriate intervention and support, and parent involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that 
exclude students from instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.  
 
WESTLAKE EXPECTATIONS 
THE WILDCAT WAYS 
 
BE RESPECTFUL 
BE SAFE 
BE RESPONSIBLE 
DO YOUR PERSONAL BEST 


478/567







 
SCHOOL RULES 
Be Safe 
* Stop and walk when bell sounds 
* Run/Kick ball on grass only 
* Use equipment and play structure appropriately 
* Walk scooters, bikes, skateboards on school grounds 
* Walk to and from the bathroom 
* Water stays in the sink or toilet 
* Walk and keep your hands to yourself 
* Sit in designated eating areas until you are dismissed 
* Hold equipment until you are on the playground 
* (MUR) Keep body and hands to yourself while in line 
* Walk into the office 
 
Be Respectful 
* Everyone is welcome in a game 
* Listen to yard supervisors 
* No rough play 
* Treat others as you want to be treated 
* Use appropriate language and a quiet voice 
* Use toilet and sink appropriately 
* Respect privacy 
* Use quiet voices 
* Be respectful of other students’ learning environments 
* Keep walls clean of writing 
* Listen to the yard supervisor 
* Use quiet voices 
* Say please and thank you 
 
Be Responsible 
* Clean up after yourself 
* Sit and eat in designated areas 
* Toys and electronics are to be left at home 
* Go to the bathroom, wash your hands, and walk back to your classroom or recess 
* Pay attention to your line 
* Hold equipment still 
* Hang up backpacks and jackets 
* Clean up, recycle and throw away trash when you are excused 
* Use an office pass during school hours 
* Wait your turn 
 
CONSEQUENCES/INTERVENTIONS 
Re-teach Expectation 
Time Out 
Individualized instruction/Curricular Modification 
Altered setting within the classroom 
Loss of Privileges 
Removal to another classroom 
Behavior referral 
Student/Teacher Conference 


479/567







Peer Mediation/Conflict Resolution 
Letter of Apology 
Restitution/Act of Kindness 
Community Service 
Behavior Contract/Plan 
Office referral 
Parent Contact 
In-school suspension 
Out of school suspension 
 
REWARD SYSTEM 
All students may receive a variety of positive acknowledgements such as Cool Cats, Second Step Awards, Shout Outs and 
classroom incentives. 
Cool Cats are redeemable at the Wildcat Store on Wednesdays, Fridays for Popcorn or Popsicle, and all tickets are 
entered towards a school wide reward such as: Field Day, Extra Recess, Dance Party, or special assembly. 
 
 
Consultation, Cooperation and Coordination with other School Site Councils or School Safety Plan Committees 
 
 
Safety Plan Collaboration and Training offered by Santa Cruz County Office of Education: December 12, 2018 Additional 
training was provided by SCCOE and SCCS Director of Student Services on 1.17.19 


 
 
Bullying Prevention – BP 5131.2 
 
As documented in Board Policy 5131.2, the Board of Education is committed to creating a safe learning and working 
environment for all students and employees. The Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on 
student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from 
physical and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 


No student or groups of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any other student or school 
personnel. Board Policy 5131.2 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Westlake Elementary School that prevent bullying for all students, including 
specifically for LGBTQ students. 
Westlake Staff are dedicated to creating a welcoming and inclusive learning environment for our community.  All 
teaching staff receive ongoing training on the harmful effects of bullying.  Students are taught to be upstanders and 
report bullying to an adult.  Any reports of bullying are investigated thoroughly and whenever possible restorative 
practices are used to develop empathy and compassion.  Victims of bullying are provided with school counseling, parent 
conferences, and protection from repeated bullying. Individual students engaging in bullying behavior are provided with 
school counseling, parent conferences, behavior contracts, and other interventions.  Our school expectation, rules, and 
PBIS program emphasizes the importance of inclusion and respect for all students.  The Second Step program teaches 
empathy, compassion, and skills for including others so that all students feel safe and secure. 
 
 
Positive School Climate – BP 5137 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education desires to enhance student learning by providing an 
orderly, caring, and nurturing educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in 


480/567







13


their school and their achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal 
relationships among students and between students and staff.  
 
The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to, the 
principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship.  The Superintendent or designee 
may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools, such as campus 
beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of 
adult mentors with individual students, recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and 
community involvement in the schools. Board Policy 5137 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Assessment of School Safety and a Healthy School Climate Data 
 
California Healthy Kids Survey Summary of Key Indicators of School Climate and Well Being 
 
Summary of Key Indicators from the 16-17 Administration to 75 Fifth Graders in February 2017 
 
School Engagement and Supports 
 
School connectedness (high) 66% 
 
Academic motivation (high) 45% 
 
Caring adult relationships (high) 54% 
 
High expectations (high) 59% 
 
Meaningful participation (high) 33% 
 
School Safety 
 
Feel safe at school those who report most of the time or all of the time 81% 
 
Been hit or pushed 36% 
 
Mean rumors spread about you 32% 
 
Been called bad names or mean jokes made about you 39% 
 
Saw a weapon at school‡ 11% 


 Brought a weapon to school: No: 100% 
 Saw another kid with a weapon at school: No: 89% 


Disciplinary Environment 
 
Students well-behaved those who report most of the time or all of the time 69% 
 
Students treated fairly when break school rules those who report most of the time or all of the time 71% 
 
Students treated with respect those who report most of the time or all of the time 86% 
 


481/567







14


Lifetime Substance Use 
 
Alcohol or drug use 18% 
 
? Alcohol, one or two sips: 16% 
 
? Alcohol, a full glass: 1% 
 
Cigarette smoking 0% 
 
E-cigarette 0% 
 
Social Emotional Health Survey 
 
This survey is administered annually to 4th and 5th graders. In the fall of 2017, 106, 4th and 5th graders participated. In 
the fall of 2018, 182, 3rd, 4th and 5th graders participated. The survey groups questions into the areas of Persistence, 
Gratitude, Zest, Optimism, Prosocial Behavior, Bullying, and School Belonging. Student responses range on a scale from 
"No, Never" to "Yes, Always". Answers to key questions in each area are reported on below. 
 
Persistence: The act of enduring in the face of difficulty. 
 
Do you keep doing your class assignments even when they are really hard for you? 
 
In 2017: 76% of 4th graders and 92% of 5th graders responded "Yes, most of the time" or "Yes, all of the time"  
 
In 2018: 91% of 4th graders and 86% of 5th graders responded "Yes, most of the time" or "Yes, all of the time"  
 
This indicates that the cohort of 2017 4th graders increased in their self-perception of persistence from 2017 to 2018. 
Overall, the majority of students view themselves as being persistent.  
 
Gratitude: An expression of a student's affirmation and appreciation for the gifts, benefits, and supports received from 
others (family, peers, teachers). 
 
Do you feel thankful to go to your school? 
 
In 2017: 78% of 4th graders and 93% of 5th graders responded "Yes, most of the time" or "Yes, all of the time"  
 
In 2018: 84% of 4th graders and 81% of 5th graders responded "Yes, most of the time" or "Yes, all of the time"  
 
This indicates that the cohort of 2017 4th graders increased in their self-perception of gratitude from 2017 to 2018. 
Overall, the majority of students view themselves as being grateful.  
 
Zest: The degree of enthusiasm and energy with which a student approaches work. 
 
Do you get really excited when you learn something new at school? 
 
In 2017: 49% of 4th graders and 65% of 5th graders responded "Yes, most of the time" or "Yes, all of the time"  
 
In 2018: 43% of 4th graders and 58% of 5th graders responded "Yes, most of the time" or "Yes, all of the time"  
 


482/567







15


This indicates that the cohort of 2017 4th graders decreased in their self-perception of zest from 2017 to 2018. 5th 
graders tend to report feeling more zest in their learning that 4th graders.  
 
Optimism: The tendency to believe that good things are to come and to have a positive outlook. 
 
Do you feel positive that good things will happen to you at school? 
 
In 2017: 75% of 4th graders and 74% of 5th graders responded "Yes, most of the time" or "Yes, all of the time"  
 
In 2018: 72% of 4th graders and 72% of 5th graders responded "Yes, most of the time" or "Yes, all of the time"  
 
This indicates that the cohort of 2017 4th graders decreased slightly in their self-perception of optimism from 2017 to 
2018. 
 
Prosocial Behavior: Average of 4th and 5th: Total: "Yes, often, very often, always" 
 
 2017 2018 
 
Following rules: 89% 94% 
 
Listening: 87% 91% 
 
Nice to others: 97% 99% 
 
Help others: 61% 64% 
 
Bullying Related Items: Average of 4th and 5th Total: "Sometimes, often, very often" 
 
 2017 2018 
 
Been hit or pushed: 13% 7% 
 
Called Names: 16% 8% 
 
School Belonging and Membership: Do you feel like you are a real part of your school? 
 
In 2017:68% of 4th graders and 84% of 5th graders responded "Yes, most of the time" or "Yes, all of the time"  
 
In 2018: 75% of 4th graders and 72% of 5th graders responded "Yes, most of the time" or "Yes, all of the time"  
 
This indicates that the cohort of 2017 4th graders increased slightly in their self-perception of belonging from 2017 to 
2018. 
 
An analysis of CHKS, and SEHS data indicates strength in school connectedness, caring adult relationships, high 
 
expectations, feeling of safety, and being treated with respect. Areas of growth include level of student optimism, 
meaningful 
 
participation, academic motivation, and student behavior. Referral data indicates areas for growth in respect, disruption 
and 


483/567







16


 
physical contact. These are the three areas of highest referral by staff for the 2017-18 school year. Referral data 
indicates that 26% 
 
of referrals come from the playground and 58% from the classroom. A large percentage of referrals occurred around the 
morning 
 
recess time. 
 
The Social Emotional Health Survey indicates that the following are areas of relative strength based on the majority of 
students, 70% or more, responding positively: persistence, gratitude, optimism, prosocial behavior and school 
belonging. Another positive indicators from this data are the decreasing levels of bullying related items. The area of zest 
indicates only half of students feel excited about school and learning. This is an area for focus and consideration. Helping 
others is also an area for focus. 
 
 
 
Westlake uses the Positive Behavior Interventions and Support (PBIS) approach to promote a positive school climate.  
The Wildcat Ways--Be Respectful, Be Responsible, Be Safe, and Do Your Personal Best--are taught to all students at the 
beginning of the school year.  Positive behavior is reinforced through daily Cool Cat tickets, weekly student 
acknowledgements, and quarterly assemblies.  Behavior transgressions are monitored using referral forms.  Students 
needing behavior support  move through tiers of intervention including small group instruction, individualized 
instruction, classroom support from a behavior aide, and school counseling.  The PBIS Team meets monthly to review 
and monitor programs.  They research solutions to problem behaviors and make recommendations to the teaching 
staff for additional interventions.  A Coordination of Services Team (COST) including the Counselor, Intervention 
Coordinator, and School Psychologist meet weekly to monitor interventions and student progress.  The Second Step 
social emotional learning program is taught in all classrooms.  The curriculum builds from kindergarten to 5th grade 
and includes lessons on: skills for learning, empathy, emotion management, and problem solving.  The Second Step 
program provides a common language for all students and staff.   Classroom meetings are used on at least a weekly 
basis to build classroom community, sense of belonging, and to provide opportunities for problem solving.  The staff 
reviews the results of the Social Emotional Health Survey and researches strategies to support students.  The strategies 
developed in the 2018-19 school year focused on developing optimism, gratitude, persistence and school belonging.  In 
the area of optimism the strategies staff planned to include were to highlight successful problem solving and how 
students have made things better at school.  In the area of gratitude the strategies of reflecting on the learning 
experiences they have had, learning about others that are less fortunate, and class meetings focused on appreciating 
the opportunities they do have.  In the area of persistence the strategies of having a growth mind set, drawing 
attention to obstacles that have been overcome, and supporting students with goal setting plans.  In the area of school 
belonging the strategies identified were to have a private method of getting support from a teacher, remind students 
that the adults at school are there to help, and utilize the school counselor for students needing support.  Additional 
programs at Westlake that promote a positive school climate are the community events and partnership with the PTA.  
Events such as the Back to School BBQ, Family Math Night, Spooky Story Night, Movie Nights, International Day, Day of 
Dance, and other assemblies are opportunities for students and families to connect with the school. 


 
 
Concerning counseling services and mental health for the general school population, the school counselor not only acts 
as a liaison between students, their parents and the school but provides services to all students through different levels 
of our tier process. This includes mental health services and referrals, on both a one to one and or group basis. 
Referrals are made by students themselves, teachers, parents, administration staff, the Student Support Team (SST) 
and COST meetings, and/or IEP's. The school counselor is available to all students for general check ins, advocacy 
needs, classroom interventions, curriculum assistance, academic improvement, truancy related issues, classroom 


484/567







17


groups, conflict resolution, parent teacher meetings, referral for outside services, and any mental health emergency 
interventions that might arise. When meeting with a student on a one to one basis, the school counselor meets with 
students for mental health needs and determines if an outside referral is appropriate for long term therapeutic 
intervention. 


 
Strategies and programs unique to Westlake Elementary School that create a positive school climate for all students, 
including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
At  Westlake Elementary School, there is ongoing and dedicated learning about LGBTQ student inclusivity and support 
by and for the whole school . This support is evidenced via staff knowledge of laws and policy, as well as expected 
behavior and interactions between students and staff. Our school counselor also runs the "Lunch Bunch" group to 
encourage positive peer relationships and partakes in classroom activities that focus on mental health education and 
well being.  The counselor also focuses on high needs groups such as our LGBTQ population by creating a safe 
environment for all students. This is achieved by posting and distributing "Safe Place" signs in classrooms, partaking in 
teacher trainings, creating and implementing gender plans, providing one on one support for LGBTQ students, 
advocating for their needs, providing access to a gender neutral bathroom in the nurse's office, and assisting in hosting 
a guest speaker from the Diversity Center to train and educate staff. The counselor also creates a strong working 
relationship with parents, when appropriate, to further support the needs of our LGBTQ students. 


 
 
Uniform Complaint Procedure – BP 1312.3 
As documented in Board Policy 5137, the Board of Education recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility 
to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board 
encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve complaints which may require a more formal 
process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. Board Policy 1312.3 is included in the Appendix. 
 
Strategies and programs unique to Westlake Elementary School that encourage early resolution of complaints for all 
students, including specifically for LGBTQ students. 
 
Complaints are taken seriously and every effort is made to resolve them in a timely fashion.  Complaint forms are 
available in the school office.  Teachers are expected to hold regular class meetings that allow student opportunities to 
voice concerns, complaints, and have opportunities for meaningful participation in how classrooms are run.  A thorough 
investigation of complaints is conducted when received including interviews of parties involved.  Once a thorough 
understanding of the situation is reached, the complainant is notified of the findings and outcomes. 
 
Protocols to Address Mental Health Care of Pupils Who Have Witnessed a Violent Act 
Pupils who have witnessed a violent act at school or at a school-sponsored activity, while going to or coming from school 
or a school sponsored activity, or during a lunch period on or off campus, will need attention to address their mental 
health. Witnessing violence and being a victim of violence at school have been found both positively and significantly 
associated with child psychological trauma symptoms and self-reported violent behavior, even after controlling for the 
effects of various demographic factors. Serious emotional and behavioral consequences can occur for students who are 
merely witnesses to violence (Flannery, D. J., Wester, K. L., & Singer, M. I., 2004).  
 
 
Mental health professionals are available to any student that may have experienced a traumatic event.  Our school 
psychologist, district social workers, School Resource Officer, and school counselor are available to support students.  
There are also outside service agencies such as Youth Services of Santa Cruz and Family Service Agency, Hospice of 
Santa Cruz, and or the Santa Cruz County Department of Mental Health that support students with suicidal ideation. 


 
 


485/567







Procedures for Safe Ingress and Egress of Pupils, Parents, and School Employees to and from school 


In an effort to assure the safety and welfare of students, parents, and visitors to Westlake Elementary School, the 
following procedures should be followed when traveling to and from the school site: 


 Daily Bus Drop-off & Pick-up at School: 
 Students Walking to School: 
 Students and Adults visiting the school site after hours or on weekends:  


 
Getting to School: 
 
In keeping with Westlake’s goal of fostering environmental awareness in our student body, we strongly urge parents and 
guardians to use alternative ways to driving to get children to and from school, such as walking or bicycling. If you must 
drive children to school, please carpool. Emphasize safety in every transportation mode you use. 
 
Crossing Guards: 
 
The Santa Cruz City Schools District, in conjunction with the Police Department, fund the position of a crossing guard, 
upon availability, every school day during arrival and departure times at the west crosswalk, across High Street from 
Moore Street to the Westlake entrance. 
 
Walking: 
 
We recommend parents and guardians accompany kindergarten and primary-grade (1st – 3rd) students if they walk to 
and from school. Consult the walking routes map for Westlake for the best walking route to school from your 
neighborhood and back home from school. Teach children how to cross streets: 


 At intersections 
 In crosswalks when available 
 With pedestrian crossing signal at light-signal controlled intersections. 
 With crossing guard assistance when available. 


Using the Passenger Drop-Off and Pick-Up Zone: 
 
During drop-off and pick-up times, drop children off and pick them up at the white curb of the passenger drop-off and 
pick-up zone, which is along the sidewalk behind the Library Media Center. Keep traffic flowing in this zone. DO NOT 
leave your vehicle parked in the passenger drop-off/pick-up zone. If children are not present for pick-up at time of 
arrival, continue out of the parking lot, park on the street, walk up to find them, or circle the parking lot until they arrive.  
 
Curb Assistant Program: 
 
Westlake partners with its parents to provide curbside assistance, upon availability, in the passenger drop-off/pick-up 
zone. Volunteers open vehicle doors at the white zone curb and assist students in and out of their vehicles. If no curb 
assistants are present during drop-off/pick-up times, please observe the white zone curb regulations. If you are 
interested in volunteering to be a curb assistant, please contact Principal Clyde Curley at 429-3878 or by email at 
ccurley@sccs.net 
 
Passenger Drop-Off/Pick-Up Zone Protocol and Safety: 
 
Please take these safety precautions when dropping off or picking up children at the white zone curb.  
 
Follow the directives of Westlake staff and volunteer curb assistants in the Westlake parking lot. Stop before the 
crosswalk at the entrance to the parking lot to wait for any pedestrians using the crosswalk. Wait in a single file line of 


486/567







cars for available space at the white zone curb. It is best to wait for all vehicles currently at the curb to depart. Drive as 
far as possible along the white zone before dropping off or picking up children. Yield to vehicles attempting to leave the 
white zone curb.  
 
For everyone’s safety, do not double or triple park in the drop-off/pick-up zone. 
 
Visitors: 
 
All visitors are required to sign in at the office, present identification if requested, and wear a visitors badge while on 
campus. Classroom observations by prospective families are available by appointment only. 
 
Additional information about Safe Routes to School can be found at the City of Santa Cruz website: 
http://www.cityofsantacruz.com/government/city-departments/public-works/traffic-engineering/bicycle-pedestrian-
facilities-and-programs/safe-routes-to-school  
 
 
 
  


487/567







Appendix 
Board Policy 5141.4  Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 3516  Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144.1  Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 4158  Employee Security/Teacher Notification 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5145.3  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5132  Dress and Grooming 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5144  Discipline 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5131.2  Bullying Prevention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Policy 5137  Positive School Climate 
 
 
Board Policy 1312.3  Uniform Complaint Procedure 
 
 


488/567







 
 
 
 
 


489/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Tech Task Force Update 
      
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff will present an update on the Tech Task Force’s work to develop a Technology Plan.  The District is 
committed to implementing a 5-Year Technology Plan, which is aligned to our district goals and a 
shared vision for school effectiveness and student learning through the infusion of instructional 
technologies and digital learning resources. The Technology Plan is intended to serve as a guide for 
technology-related decision making, as well as an instrument to monitor and evaluate progress toward 
identified goals and objectives. The ultimate goal for this plan is to create the "essential conditions 
necessary to effectively leverage technology for learning." (ISTE, 2013) 
 
PROCESS AND TIMELINE FOR DEVELOPING TECH PLAN 
Fall/Winter 2018: Student, Parent, & Staff Tech Survey Administration & Analysis 
October 2018: Tech Plan draft to Principals/Assistant Principals 
November 2018: Tech Coach & Tech Task Force Technology Plan Input Meeting 
January 2019: Tech Task Force Final Input 
February 2019: Tech Plan goes to Principals for final input 
March 2019: Tech Plan goes to Board for Approval 
 
This Technology Plan is the result of many hours of communication, collaboration, research, and 
problem solving between a diverse representation of stakeholders, including the Santa Cruz City 
Schools Tech Task Force, which is comprised of district and site administrators, teachers, and 
community members. The purpose of the Tech Task Force is to draft the district Technology Plan and 
evaluate its implementation and impact on student learning.  
 
Plan Duration: March, 2019 - June, 2023  
The Technology Plan will serve as the primary tool to guide the district's acquisition, sustainability, and 
integration of technology to support the district's curricular and instructional goals. This plan will be 
monitored by the department of Curriculum, Instruction, & Assessment, the department of 
Technology, site administrators, and the Tech Task Force. The plan will be reviewed multiple times 
each school year and revised as needed. Any significant modifications to this plan that are indicated as 
a result of regular review will be communicated to both the District superintendent and Governing 
Board on a yearly basis. 
 
Needs Assessment 
Student, parent, and staff Technology Surveys were implemented in conjunction with a grades 3-8 
Computer Science for All National Science Foundation Grant during the 2018-19 school year. In future 


490/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.1. 


years, our district will consider using the Speak Up Survey with students, parents, and teachers, which 
is a nationally normed education technology survey. The results of this year’s surveys are still being 
compiled, but we do have initial data, which has been used to draft the new district 5-Year Technology 
Plan.  
 
Structure of the 5-Year Technology Plan  
There are four major components of the 5-Year Technology Plan, as well as a budget outlining the cost 
of implementing the plan. Within each component, there are goals, an action plan, and metrics for 
evaluating progress made towards meeting the goals. A summary of the plan and each of the four 
major components has been outlined below.  
 
Four Major Components of 5-Year Technology Plan 


1) Curriculum Implementation: Digital Citizenship, Digital Literacy, & Computer Science Curriculum 
2) Instructional Tech Professional Development 
3) Data & Assessment Implementation 
4) Infrastructure, Hardware, Systems, & Policies 


 
1) Curriculum Implementation: Digital Citizenship, Digital Literacy, & Computer Science 
Goals: By the end of our 5 year Tech Plan, all students will… 


● have equitable experience gaining computer skills as outlined by grade span in the articulated 
curriculum chart below. 


● have access to online texts, databases, and other curricular resources as well as the skills to 
navigate them. 


● think critically, behave safely, and participate responsibly in our digital world. 
 


METRICS: 
● Percentage of discipline issues related to misuse of tech, cyber bullying, etc. will decrease. 
● Percentage of underrepresented students in the Computer Science pathway classes will 


increase. 
 


2) Instructional Tech Professional Development 
Goals: By the end of our 5-Year Tech Plan, we will… 


● provide all teachers with an articulated list of grade level technology priority standards.  
● ensure all teachers can use Google Apps for Education (e.g, Google Classroom, Google 


Calendar, Google Drive, etc.).  
● have systematic training (Tech Cadres) for current assessment systems, student data systems 


(e.g., Illuminate, Measures of Academic Progress), and instructional technology. 
● integrate instructional technology into curriculum, assignments, assessments, etc. on a daily 


basis. 
 


METRICS  
● Site administrators regularly incorporate education technology into staff meetings and staff 


professional development sessions. 
● New teacher orientation includes beginning training for Illuminate, Google, etc.  
● A minimum of 50% of teachers have participated in a Tech Cadre and all administrators have 


participated in a Tech Cadre. 
 


491/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.1. 


3) Data & Assessment Implementation 
Goals: By the end of our 5-year Tech Plan, we will… 


● use Measures of Academic Progress assessments in grades 2-10 as a data point to determine 
student growth and progress towards grade level standards proficiency in math and reading.  


● engage all students in grades 2-10 in goal setting using their Measures of Academic Progress 
score as one measure of academic progress. 


● systematically access and analyze classroom, site, and district-wide data. 
● ensure all data extracted from Illuminate reports is accurate. 
● regularly check, analyze, and use data to make instructional, site, and district decisions. 
● regularly send home data reports to parents on their child’s growth/progress. 
● use Illuminate assessments for all grade levels when appropriate. 


 
METRICS: 


● Administrators, teachers, and students are actively using Measures of Academic Progress data 
to monitor progress and set goals before and after each administration. 


● A data calendar exists for both administrators and teachers. It is used to systematize the data 
we look at and when we look at it throughout the year. 


● Data is pulled at least twice each year and analyzed for accuracy. Inaccuracies are resolved 
quickly. 


● Parents receive at least 2 data reports each year in addition to report cards that give 
information regarding their child’s progress and growth in regards to Measures of Academic 
Progress, School Wide Writing, and other district assessments.  
 


4) Infrastructure, Hardware, Systems, & Policies 
Goals: By the end of our 5 -Year Tech Plan, we will… 


● have 21st century technology and the internet capacity to handle this technology in each 
classroom. 


● have 4G Hotspots made available for students who need them for in-home connectivity. 
● have full-time onsite Information Technology support for each site. 
● implement a systematic staff technology refresh plan. 
● build/improve systems for managing student and staff devices centrally (Mobile Device 


Management, Active Directory, remote assistance, etc). 
● have an Information Technology Room at each site (Think Geek Squad) available for staff and 


students by 2020. 
 
METRICS: 


● 1:1 technology in grades 3-12 at each of our schools. 
● SMART 75” TV installed in all classrooms on all sites with screen sharing technology. 
● 10G switched Ethernet connection serving all school sites with redundant links to internet. 
● Upgraded Fiber/Copper Cabling for all school sites. 
● Upgraded Switching. 
● Meraki Access Points for each classroom and common outside areas. 
● Staff devices refreshed according to plan. 


 
 
 
 


492/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.1. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary 
college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 
within the SCCS student community 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 
teaching. 


Description of Tech Related Budget Item Estimated Cost Funding Source 


1.0 FTE K-12 Instructional Technology Coach $120,000/year TBD 


Increasing the internet infrastructure at each site $4,000,000 Plus Bond 


Summer 2019 Chromebook Replacements (2,500 
Chromebooks - 55%) 


$750,000 Lease Revenue 


Summer 2020 Chromebook Refresh (1,000 Chromebooks 
- 25%) 


$300,000 TBD 


Summer 2021 Chromebook Refresh (1,000 Chromebooks 
- 25%) ) 


$300,000 TBD 


Annual Teacher Tech Upkeep & Replacement $138,000 (460 Chromebooks) TBD 


Google Suite Free  None 


Google Classroom & Illuminate Support $12,000 TBD 


Google Diagnostics to maximize system $5,000 TBD 


Fresh Desk: Tech Ticket System $900.00 LCFF Base 


Blackboard (Messaging System) $9,687.00 LCFF Base 


Sharpschool Website CMS (13 websites) $8,120 LCFF Base 


Tech Cadres - Professional Development (20 teachers = 1 
cadre) 


$25,000/year = 1 cadre  
$50,000/year = 2 cadres 


TBD 


Summer Mini Merit PD (20 teachers, week long summer 
training) 


$20,000/summer  TBD 


Increasing Secondary Site Information Technology 
Support to be 1 Information Technology support position 
per site and two for all Elementary Sites 


$300,000 (4 FTE) TBD 


493/567







SCCS 5 Year Tech Plan 
Tech Task Force Board Update


20 February 2019


494/567







Input & Data Gathering to Create 5 Year Tech Plan


● District Tech Coaches/Tech Task Force Input


● Principal Input


● Student, Parent, & Teacher Tech Survey Data


○ Most 4th & 7th Grade Students


○ Need parent data analysis


○ Most teachers still need to take full survey (though 


30% responded to a brief Tech Professional 


Development survey at the beginning of the year)
495/567







4 Major Components of the 5 Year District Tech 


Plan


1. Curriculum Implementation: Digital Citizenship, 


Digital Literacy, & Computer Science Curriculum


1. Instructional Tech Professional Development


1. Data & Assessment Implementation


1. Infrastructure, Hardware, Systems, & Policies


496/567







1) Curriculum Implementation: Digital Citizenship, 


Digital Literacy, & Computer Science Curriculum


GOALS: By the end of our 5 year Tech Plan, all students will…


● have equitable experience gaining computer skills as outlined by grade span 


in the articulated curriculum chart.


● have access to online texts, databases, and other curricular resources as well 


as the skills to navigate them.


● think critically, behave safely, and participate responsibly in our digital world 


found in the Digital Citizenship curriculum. 


497/567







2) Education Technology Professional 


Development
GOALS: By the end of our 5 year Tech Plan, we will…


● provide all teachers with an articulated list of grade level technology priority 


standards. 


● ensure all teachers can use Google Apps for Education (e.g, Google 


Classroom, Google Calendar, Google Drive, etc.). 


● have systematic training (Tech Cadres) for current assessment systems, 


student data systems (e.g., Illuminate, MAP), and instructional technology.


● integrate instructional technology into curriculum, assignments, assessments, 


etc. on a daily basis.


498/567







3) Data & Assessment Implementation


GOALS: By the end of our 5 year Tech Plan, we will…


● use MAP assessments in gr. 2-10 as a data point to determine student growth and 


progress towards grade level standards proficiency in math and reading. 


● engage all students in grades 2-10 in goal setting using their RIT as one measure of 


academic progress.


● systematically access and analyze classroom, site, and district-wide data.


ensure all data pulled in Illuminate reports is accurate.


● regularly check, analyze, and use data to make instructional, site, and district decisions.


● regularly send home data reports to parents on their child’s growth/progress.


● use Illuminate assessments for all grade levels when appropriate.


499/567







4) Infrastructure, Hardware, Systems, & Policies


GOALS: By the end of our 5 year Tech Plan, we will have…


● 21st century technology and the internet capacity to hand this technology in each 


classroom.


● 4g Hotspots made available for students who need them for in-home connectivity


● full-time onsite InformationTechnology support for each site.


● implemented a systematic staff technology refresh plan.


● Built/improved systems for managing student and staff devices centrally (MDM, 


AD, remote assistance, Umbrella, etc).


And...


● By 2020, each site will have an Information Technology Room (Think Geek 


Squad) available for staff and students.
500/567







Major Budget Needs:


● K-12 Instructional Tech Coach 


● Tech Cadres (Professional Development)


● Hardwiring, cabling, switches, etc. for 


reliable internet


● 1 to 1 student access to technology (for sites 


that do not yet have this)


● Technology Support position for each site


Questions?
501/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Resolution # 21-18-19: Final Mitigated Negative Declaration for 
the Branciforte Small Schools Modernization Project  


 
MEETING DATE: February 20, 2019  
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the Final Mitigated Negative Declaration, pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), and authorize the filing of a Notice of Determination regarding the 
Branciforte Small Schools Modernization Project. 
  
BACKGROUND: 
The California Environmental Quality Act is a statute that requires state and local agencies to 
Identify potential significant environmental impacts caused by their project actions. 
1.      If no impacts are foreseeable, then the Project may qualify for a Negative Declaration 


(ND). 
2.      If impacts are foreseeable, the agency may propose ways to avoid or mitigate those 


impacts. This leads to a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND). 
3.      If avoidance or mitigation is not feasible, Projects become subject to and Environmental 


Impact Report (EIR). 
 
CEQA examines 19 areas of potential impact to determine which level of CEQA compliance is 
necessary; ND vs MND vs EIR: 
  
Aesthetics, Air Quality, Agriculture, Biology, Cultural resources, Geology and Soils, Greenhouse 
Gas Emissions, Hazards, Hydrology, Land Use and Planning, Mineral Resources, Noise, 
Population and Housing, Public Resources, Recreation, Traffic, Tribal Cultural Resources, 
Utilities, and Mandatory Findings of Significance. 
  
The Proposed Branciforte Small Schools Modernization Project includes modifications, 
demolition, and additions of minor facilities to support the existing Branciforte Small Schools. 
Modifications will be made to improve technology infrastructure, pedestrian and bicycle access 
from parking lots, student pick-up and drop-off areas, campus security, and expand the play 
field. Demolition will include the removal of nine portable classrooms. Additions to the facility 
will include one shade canopy, new classroom building, new Alternative Family Education 
classrooms (replacement of existing campus), and additional office spaces with no increase in 
student capacity. Based on results from the Cultural Resources Assessment, the District has 


502/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.2 


determined that although the project could have a significant impact on the environment, 
mitigation measures will be employed to ensure all impacts remain less than significant. As a 
result, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) is the appropriate CEQA compliance document 
for this project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The original estimate from School Site Solutions for preparation of the CEQA study for 
Branciforte Small Schools was $26,640, to be paid from Restricted Measure B Bond funds.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


503/567







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION No. 21-18-19 


 


RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FINAL MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION, MITIGATION 
MEASURES, AND MITIGATION MONITORING PLAN PURSUANT TO THE CALIFORNIA 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT; AND AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A NOTICE OF 


DETERMINATION. 
 


WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz City School District (SCCSD) has determined a need for modernization 
of the Branciforte Small Schools to better serve current and future students of the SCCSD; and  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed project includes modifications to technology infrastructure, 
pedestrian and bicycle access from parking lots, student pick-up and drop-off areas, campus 
security, and expand the play field; demolition will include the removal of 9 portable 
classrooms; additions to the facility will include one shade canopy, new classroom building, new 
alternative family education classrooms (replacement of existing campus), additional office 
spaces, no increase in student capacity; the District must comply with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA,) Public Resources Code, Division 13, Sections 21000-21177; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the District, acting as the Lead Agency, as defined in Public Resources Code, Section 
21067, has provided for the preparation of an Initial Study in accordance with CEQA for the 
Project, total acreage of the project site is 4.14 acres, APN 010-041-31, located at 840 N 
Branciforte Ave. in the city of Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz County, California 95062; and, the Initial 
Study determined that a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) should be prepared; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District prepared and circulated a Notice of Completion on January 8, 2019; and 
the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, State Clearinghouse assigned the number 
2019012013 to the Project; and the District completed and circulated a Draft Mitigated 
Negative Declaration for the Project, which was circulated for public review between January 8, 
2019 through February 6, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, comments were not received concerning the Draft MND and the District has 
prepared a Final MND for the Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Education Code Section 17211, the District has conducted a public hearing to 
evaluate the Project on February 20, 2019, and has considered all public comments received in 
regard to the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has completely evaluated the Project Site pursuant to all applicable 
statutory requirements, including school site selection standards found in California Code of 
Regulations (CCR), Title 5, Section 14010, et seq.; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Mitigated Negative Declaration has identified mitigation measures to reduce 
potentially significant impacts to less than significant levels; and Attachment A contains the 
Final MND, including Mitigation Measures, and the Mitigation Monitoring Program prepared 
for the Project in conjunction with the Final MND; and 
 


504/567







WHEREAS, the Final MND was present to the Board of Trustees of the Santa Cruz City School 
District on February 20, 2019, and the Board reviewed and considered the information in the 
Final MND prior to approving the project; and the Final MND reflects the SCCSD’s independent 
judgement and analysis; and the Final MND has been completed in compliance with CEQA and 
CEQA Guidelines; and 
   
NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the Santa Cruz City School 
District (Board) makes the following findings and determinations:   
 


1. The Board approves the Project. 
2. The Board adopts the February 2019 Final Mitigated Negative Declaration, including 


Mitigations and Mitigation Monitoring Plan. 
3. The Board has made the required determinations regarding certain written findings, per 


Education Code Section 17213(a) and/or Public Resources Code Section 21151.8(a)(1); 
4. The Board directs the District to comply with all adopted Mitigation Measures contained 


in the Final MND; and Mitigation Monitoring Plan. 
5. The Board authorizes the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee to prepare a 


Notice of Determination to be filed with the Santa Cruz County Clerk and Governor’s 
Office of Planning and Research, and to take other action necessary to effect the 
purpose of this Resolution.   


 
Motion to approve the Project, and adopt the Final Mitigated Negative Declaration and 
Mitigations, and Mitigation Monitoring Program made by  
 
______ ______________________ , and  seconded by _________________________________ . 


 
APPROVED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City School 
District on this 20TH day of February, 2019, by the following vote: 
 


AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 


 ABSENT OR NOT VOTING:  
             
       ________________________________ 


President of the Governing Board  
of Santa Cruz City Schools 


Attested to: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board 
of Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
Exhibit A:    Final Mitigated Negative Declaration, including Mitigation Measures and Mitigation 


Monitoring Program 


505/567







Final 
Mitigated Negative 


Declaration 


Branciforte Small Schools 
Modernization Project 


Lead Agency: 


Santa Cruz City School District 


133 Mission Street, Suite 100 


Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


February 2019 


School Site  
Solutions, Inc. 


506/567







 
 916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 916.930.0788 F 
 


Table of Contents 
 


1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................................. 1 


 


Appendices  


A Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program 
B State Clearinghouse Letter 
C December 2018 Draft IS/MND


507/567







 916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 916.930.0788 F 
 


 


1 Santa Cruz City School District       Final IS/MND 
Branciforte Small Schools Modernization Project    February 2019 
 


1 Introduction 
Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA; Public Resources Code Section 
21000, et seq. and CEQA Guidelines), the Santa Cruz City School District (SCCSD) prepared an 
Initial Study (IS) to evaluate potential environmental impacts associated with the Branciforte 
Small Schools modernization project of approximately 4.14 acres of land (“the Site”). The Site is 
located at 840 N Branciforte Ave. in the city of Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz County, California 
95062.  It is further identified by Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APN) 010-041-31. 


 


The December 2018 IS determined that the project could have a significant impact on the 
environment unless mitigated; therefore, SCCSD prepared a Draft Initial Study/Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (Draft IS/MND). Eight mitigation measures were identified in the Draft 
IS/MND.  A copy of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the project is provided in 
Appendix A.  


 


On January 8, 2019, to initiate public review of the Draft IS/MND, SCCSD filed a Notice of 
Completion (NOC) for the project with the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (State 
Clearinghouse). The State Clearinghouse identified the project with SCH #2019012013. The 
State and local agency public review period was established between January 8, 2019 through 
February 6, 2019, with copies of the Draft IS/MND available for review at the District Office, 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 and the Santa Cruz Public Library, 224 
Church Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060. The Santa Cruz Sentinel published the Notice of Intent 
(NOI) to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration tentatively on January 8th, 2019. Comments 
were not received during the public review period of this Final MND.  


 


This Final MND was prepared according to CEQA Guidelines and incorporates all comments 
received during the public review period. The purpose of this document is to clarify facts set 
forth in the Draft IS/MND, as necessary, to ensure accuracy.  


 


 


 


508/567







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Appendix A 
Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Plan 


509/567







916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811    916.930.0788 F 
 


Page 1 of 4 
 School Site Solutions, Inc. 


Santa Cruz City School District (SCCSD) 
Branciforte Small Schools Modernization Project 


Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program (MMRP) 
Environmental 


Factors 
Potentially 
Affected 


 
Mitigation Measure 


Responsible 
Party 


Timeline for 
Implementation 


Biological 
Resources 


MM 1)   Migratory Bird Treaty Act  
Any tree removal shall be scheduled prior to the initiation of nesting activity (March) or after 
fledging (August). However, if this timeline is infeasible, the District shall conduct pre-
construction surveys between March 1 and August 15 in potential nesting habitat to identify 
nest sites.  
 
If an active raptor nest is observed within 350 feet of the project site, the District shall contact 
CDFW for guidance and/or establish a 350-foot buffer around the nest tree. If a passerine 
bird nest is observed during surveys, a 100-foot buffer around the nest will be established or 
consultation with CDFW should be conducted for a reduced buffer zone based on nesting 
phenology, site conditions, and recommendation(s) of a biological monitor. Construction 
activities shall be prohibited in the buffer zone until the young have fledged. 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to start of 
Construction 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 2) Historic Alteration Permit 
The District shall apply for a Historic Alteration Permit as required by the Historic 
Preservation Commission. 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to start of 
Construction 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 3) Archaeological Signage 
In accordance with guidelines section §15064.5, the School District will ensure that the 
following language is included in all construction contracts and permits:  
 
“If archaeological resources or human remains are accidentally discovered during 
construction, work will be halted within 50 feet of the find until it can be evaluated by a 
qualified professional archaeologist. If the find is determined to be significant, appropriate 
mitigation measures will be formulated and implemented.” 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to 
construction 


activities 


510/567







916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811    916.930.0788 F 
 


Page 2 of 4 
 School Site Solutions, Inc. 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 4)   Communication of Archaeological Site Deposit Indicators  
All construction personnel involved in site clearing, subsequent grading, and trenching will 
be informed of the potential for subsurface cultural resource unearthing. Indicators of 
archaeological site deposits include, but are not limited to the following: 
Soil that is darker than the surrounding soils, evidence of fire (ash, fire altered rock and earth, 
carbon flecks, concentrations of stone, bone and shellfish, artifacts of these materials and 
animal or human burials 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to any 
ground disturbing 


activities 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 5)   In the Event of Cultural Resources Discovered 
If cultural resources are encountered during Site grading, or construction activities, all work 
shall be halted within 50 feet of the discovery and (SCCSD) shall engage a qualified 
archaeologist to assess and protect the discovery as appropriate. No further soil disturbance 
shall occur within the 50-foot buffer until the preceding assessment has been completed and 
the resource has been recovered. 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to any 
ground disturbing 


activities 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 6)   Paleontological Construction Contracts and Permits Language 
Due to the possibility that significant buried paleontological resources may be found during 
construction activities, the School District will ensure that the following language is included 
in all construction contracts and permits: 
“If paleontological resources are encountered during subsurface construction activities, all 
work within 50 feet of the discovery will be redirected until a qualified paleontologist can 
evaluate the finds and make recommendations. If the paleontological resources are found to 
be significant, they will be avoided by project construction activities and recovered by a 
qualified paleontologist. Upon completion of the recovery, a paleontological assessment will 
be conducted by a qualified paleontologist to determine if further monitoring for 
paleontological resources is required. The assessment will include: 
I) The results of any geotechnical investigation prepared for the project site; 
2) Specific details of the construction plans for the project site; 
3) Background research; and 
4) Limited subsurface investigation within the project site. 
If a high potential to encounter paleontological resources is confirmed, a monitoring plan of 
further project subsurface construction will be prepared in conjunction with this assessment. 
After project subsurface construction has ended, a report documenting monitoring, methods, 
findings, and further recommendations regarding paleontological resources will be prepared.” 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to any 
ground disturbing 


activities 


511/567







916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811    916.930.0788 F 
 


Page 3 of 4 
 School Site Solutions, Inc. 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 7)    Policies and Procedures for Inadvertently Discovered Human Remains  
Because site disturbance may adversely impact undocumented human remains or 
unintentionally discover significant historic or archaeological materials, the following 
policies and procedures for treatment and disposition of inadvertently discovered human 
remains or archaeological materials will apply. If human remains are discovered, it is 
probable they are the remains of Native Americans. 


a) If human remains are encountered, they will be treated with dignity and respect as due 
to them. Discovery of Native American remains is a very sensitive issue and serious 
concern. Information about such a discovery will be held in confidence by all project 
personnel on a need to know basis. The rights of Native Americans to practice 
ceremonial observances on sites, in labs and around artifacts will be upheld. Remains 
should not be held by human hands. Surgical gloves should be worn if remains need 
to be handled. Surgical mask should also be worn to prevent exposure to pathogens 
that may be associated with the remains.  


b) In the event that known or suspected Native American remains are encountered or 
significant historic or archaeological materials are discovered, ground-disturbing 
activities will be immediately stopped. Examples of significant historic or 
archaeological materials include, but are not limited to, concentrations of historic 
artifacts (e.g., bottles, ceramics) or prehistoric artifacts (chipped chert or obsidian, 
arrow points, ground stone mortars and pestles), culturally altered ash-stained midden 
soils associated with pre-contact Native American habitation sites, concentrations of 
fire-altered rock and/or burned or charred organic materials, and historic structure 
remains such as stone-lined building foundations, wells or privy pits. Ground-
disturbing project activities may continue in other areas that are outside the discovery 
locale.  


c) An “exclusion zone” where unauthorized equipment and personnel are not permitted 
will be established (e.g., taped off) around the discovery area plus a reasonable buffer 
zone by the Contractor Foreman or authorized representative, or party who made the 
discovery and initiated these protocols, or if on-site at the time or discovery, by the 
Monitoring Archaeologist (typically 25-50ft for single burial or archaeological find).  


d) The discovery locale will be secured (e.g., 24 hour surveillance) as directed by the 
School District if considered prudent to avoid further disturbances.  


e) The Contractor, Foreman, authorized representative, or party who made the discovery 
and initiated these protocols will be responsible for immediately contacting by 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


During any ground 
disturbing 
activities 


512/567







916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811    916.930.0788 F 
 


Page 4 of 4 
 School Site Solutions, Inc. 


 


telephone the parties listed below to report the find and initiate the consultation 
process for treatment and disposition:  
• The Santa Cruz City School District Assistant Superintendent (831) 429-3410 
• The Contractor’s Point(s) of Contact  
• The Coroner of the County of Santa Cruz (if human remains found)   
(831) 454-2520 
• The Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) in Sacramento 
 (916) 373-3710  
The Coroner has two working days to examine the remains after being notified of the 
discovery. If the remains are Native American the Coroner has 24 hours to notify the 
NAHC.  


f) The NAHC is responsible for identifying and immediately notifying the Most Likely 
Descendant (MLD). (Note: NAHC policy holds that the Native American Monitor 
will not be designated the MLD.)  


g) After notification by the NAHC, the MLD will be granted permission to inspect the 
discovery site if they so choose.  


h) After notification by the NAHC, the MLD may recommend to the Administrator of 
District Support Services the recommended means for treating or disposing, with 
appropriate dignity, the human remains and any associated grave goods. The MLD 
has 48 hours after accessing the Site to make recommendations to the property owner 
as specified in Public Resources Code section 5097.98 (a). The recommendation may 
include the scientific removal and nondestructive or destructive analysis of human 
remains and items associated with Native American burials.  


If the MLD recommendation is rejected by the SCCSD, the parties will attempt to mediate the 
disagreement with the NAHC. If mediation fails then the remains and all associated grave 
offerings will be reburied with appropriate dignity on the property in a location not subject to 
further subsurface disturbance. 


Noise 


MM 8) Noise Suppression Attachments and Minimal Idling 
The contractor shall employ appropriate noise suppression attachments (e.g., mufflers, etc.) 
on all equipment. Equipment idling shall be kept to a minimum and equipment turned off 
when not in use. 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


During 
construction 


activities 


513/567







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Appendix B 
State Clearinghouse Letter 


514/567







515/567







516/567







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Appendix C 
MONTH 2018 Draft IS/MND 


517/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.3 
1DODD_ATJEUB-3D616A9C66774EBDAFCDF469F474FDE5.docx 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Resolution # 22-18-19: Final Mitigated Negative Declaration for 
the Mission Hill Middle School Modernization Project  


 
MEETING DATE: February 20, 2019  
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the Final Mitigated Negative Declaration, pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), and authorize the filing of a Notice of Determination regarding the Mission 
Hill Middle School Modernization Project. 
  
BACKGROUND: 
The California Environmental Quality Act is a statute that requires state and local agencies to 
Identify potential significant environmental impacts caused by their project actions. 
1.      If no impacts are foreseeable, then the Project may qualify for a Negative Declaration 


(ND). 
2.      If impacts are foreseeable, the agency may propose ways to avoid or mitigate those 


impacts. This leads to a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND). 
3.      If avoidance or mitigation is not feasible, Projects become subject to and Environmental 


Impact Report (EIR). 
 
CEQA examines 19 areas of potential impact to determine which level of CEQA compliance is 
necessary; ND vs MND vs EIR: 
  
Aesthetics, Air Quality, Agriculture, Biology, Cultural resources, Geology and Soils, Greenhouse 
Gas Emissions, Hazards, Hydrology, Land Use and Planning, Mineral Resources, Noise, 
Population and Housing, Public Resources, Recreation, Traffic, Tribal Cultural Resources, 
Utilities, and Mandatory Findings of Significance. 
  
The Proposed Mission Hill Middle School Modernization Project includes modifications, 
demolition, and additions of minor facilities to support the existing Mission Hill Middle School. 
Modifications will be made to improve building exteriors, play field, gymnasium, improve 
existing heating system, resurface asphalt, and update campus security. Demolition will include 
the removal of seven classrooms. Additions to the facility will include construction of a new 
cafeteria building, bathrooms, shade structures, and a new classroom building. Seven 
classrooms will be replaced with no net increase to student capacity or number of 
classrooms. Based on results from the Cultural Resources Assessment, SCCSD has determined 


518/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.3 
1DODD_ATJEUB-3D616A9C66774EBDAFCDF469F474FDE5.docx 


that although the project could have a significant impact on the environment, mitigation 
measures will be employed to ensure all impacts remain less than significant. As a result, a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) is the appropriate CEQA compliance document for this 
project. 
  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The original estimate from School Site Solutions for preparation of the CEQA study for Mission 
Hill Middle School $26,161, to be paid from Restricted Measure A Bond funds.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


519/567







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION No. 22-18-19 


 
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FINAL MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION, MITIGATION MEASURES, 
AND MITIGATION MONITORING PLAN PURSUANT TO THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 


ACT; AND AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A NOTICE OF DETERMINATION. 


 


WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz City School District (SCCSD) has determined a need for modernization 
of the Mission Hill Middle School to better serve current and future students of the SCCSD; and  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed project includes modernization, demolition, and the addition of new 
facilities to support the existing 577 students at the Mission Hill Middle School; modernizations 
will be made to improve building exteriors, play field, gymnasium, improve existing heating 
system, resurface asphalt, and update campus security; demolition will include the removal of 7 
classrooms; additions to the facility will include construction of a new cafeteria building, 
bathrooms, shade structures, and a new classroom building; a total of 7 classrooms will be 
replaced with no net increase to student capacity or number of classrooms; the District must 
comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA,) Public Resources Code, Division 
13, Sections 21000-21177; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District, acting as the Lead Agency, as defined in Public Resources Code, Section 
21067, has provided for the preparation of an Initial Study in accordance with CEQA for the 
Project, total acreage of the project site is 6.11 acres, APN 006-221-32, located at 425 King St. in 
the city of Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz County, California 95060; and, the Initial Study determined 
that a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) should be prepared; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District prepared and circulated a Notice of Completion on January 8, 2019; and 
the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, State Clearinghouse assigned the number 
2019012014 to the Project; and the District completed and circulated a Draft Mitigated 
Negative Declaration for the Project, which was circulated for public review between January 8, 
2019 through February 6, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, comments were received concerning the Draft MND and the comments have been 
considered, and the District has prepared a Final MND for the Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Education Code Section 17211, the District has conducted a public hearing to 
evaluate the Project on February 20, 2019, and has considered all public comments received in 
regard to the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has completely evaluated the Project Site pursuant to all applicable 
statutory requirements, including school site selection standards found in California Code of 
Regulations (CCR), Title 5, Section 14010, et seq.; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Mitigated Negative Declaration has identified mitigation measures to reduce 
potentially significant impacts to less than significant levels; and Attachment A contains the 
Final MND, including Mitigation Measures, and the Mitigation Monitoring Program prepared 
for the Project in conjunction with the Final MND; and 
 


520/567







WHEREAS, the Final MND was present to the Board of Trustees of the Santa Cruz City School 
District on February 20, 2019, and the Board reviewed and considered the information in the 
Final MND prior to approving the project; and the Final MND reflects the SCCSD’s independent 
judgement and analysis; and the Final MND has been completed in compliance with CEQA and 
CEQA Guidelines; and 
   
NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the Santa Cruz City School 
District (Board) makes the following findings and determinations:   
 


1. The Board approves the Project. 
2. The Board adopts the February 2019 Final Mitigated Negative Declaration, including 


Mitigations and Mitigation Monitoring Plan. 
3. The Board has made the required determinations regarding certain written findings, per 


Education Code Section 17213(a) and/or Public Resources Code Section 21151.8(a)(1); 
4. The Board directs the District to comply with all adopted Mitigation Measures contained 


in the Final MND; and Mitigation Monitoring Plan. 
5. The Board authorizes the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee to prepare a 


Notice of Determination to be filed with the Santa Cruz County Clerk and Governor’s 
Office of Planning and Research, and to take other action necessary to effect the 
purpose of this Resolution.   


 
Motion to approve the Project, and adopt the Final Mitigated Negative Declaration and 
Mitigations, and Mitigation Monitoring Program made by  
 
______ ______________________ , and  seconded by _________________________________ . 


 
APPROVED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City School 
District on this 20TH day of February, 2019, by the following vote: 
 


AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 


 ABSENT OR NOT VOTING:  
             
       ________________________________ 


President of the Governing Board  
of Santa Cruz City Schools 


           
Attested to: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board 
of Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
Exhibit A:    Final Mitigated Negative Declaration, including Mitigation Measures and 


Mitigation Monitoring Program 


521/567







 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Final 
Mitigated Negative Declaration 


 
Mission Hill Middle School  


Modernization Project 


 


 


 
Lead Agency: 


Santa Cruz City School District 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 


Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


 


February  2019 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


  
   


 School Site Solutions, Inc. 522/567







 
 916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 916.930.0788 F 
 


Table of Contents 
 


1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................................. 1 


2 Comments and Responses to Comments ............................................................................................... 2 


 


Appendices  


A Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program 
B State Clearinghouse Letter 
C December 2018 Draft IS/MND


523/567







 916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 916.930.0788 F 
 


 


1 Santa Cruz City School District       Final IS/MND 
Mission Hill Middle School Modernization Project    February 2019 
 


1 Introduction 
Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA; Public Resources Code Section 
21000, et seq. and CEQA Guidelines), the Santa Cruz City School District (SCCSD) prepared an 
Initial Study (IS) to evaluate potential environmental impacts associated with the Mission Hill 
Middle School modernization project of approximately 6.11 acres of land (“the Site”). The Site 
is located at 425 King St. in the city of Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz County, California 95060.  It is 
further identified by Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APN) 006-221-32. 


 


The December 2018 IS determined that the project could have a significant impact on the 
environment unless mitigated; therefore, SCCSD prepared a Draft Initial Study/Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (Draft IS/MND). Nine mitigation measures were identified in the Draft 
IS/MND.  A copy of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the project is provided in 
Appendix A.  


 


On January 8, 2019, to initiate public review of the Draft IS/MND, SCCSD filed a Notice of 
Completion (NOC) for the project with the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (State 
Clearinghouse). The State Clearinghouse identified the project with SCH #2019012014. The 
State and local agency public review period was established between January 8, 2019 through 
February 6, 2019, with copies of the Draft IS/MND available for review at the District Office, 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 and the Santa Cruz Public Library, 224 
Church Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060. The Santa Cruz Sentinel published the Notice of Intent 
(NOI) to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration tentatively on January 8th, 2019. Comments 
and responses to comments received during the public review period may be found in Section 2 
of this Final MND.  


 


This Final MND was prepared according to CEQA Guidelines and incorporates all comments 
received by the State Clearinghouse and the SCCSD during the public review period. The 
purpose of this document is to clarify facts set forth in the Draft IS/MND, as necessary, to ensure 
accuracy.  


 


This Final MND contains the following sections: 
Section 2 Comments and Responses to Comments 


  


524/567







 916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 916.930.0788 F 
 


 


2 Santa Cruz City School District       Final IS/MND 
Mission Hill Middle School Modernization Project    February 2019 
 


2 Comments and Responses to Comments 
 
COMMENT LETTER 1: Department of Transportation 
Response to Comment 1: The District has read the California Department of Transportation’s comment 
letter of support of local planning and understands that work completed in the State’s right-of-way would 
require an encroachment permit. The Project would not impact any State right-of-way.  


525/567







 916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 916.930.0788 F 
 


 


3 Santa Cruz City School District       Final IS/MND 
Mission Hill Middle School Modernization Project    February 2019 
 


 


526/567







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Appendix A 
Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Plan 


527/567







916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811    916.930.0788 F 
 


Page 1 of 5 
 


School Site Solutions Inc. 


Santa Cruz City School District (SCCSD) 
Mission Hill Middle School Modernization Project 
Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program (MMRP) 


Environmental 
Factors 


Potentially 
Affected 


 
Mitigation Measure 


Responsible 
Party 


Timeline for 
Implementation 


Biological 
Resources 


MM 1) Migratory Bird Treaty Act 
Any tree removal shall be scheduled prior to the initiation of nesting activity (March) or after 
fledging (August). However, if this timeline is infeasible, the District shall conduct pre-
construction surveys between March 1 and August 15 in potential nesting habitat to identify 
nest sites. 


 
If an active raptor nest is observed within 350 feet of the project site, the District shall contact 
CDFW for guidance and/or establish a 350-foot buffer around the nest tree. If a passerine bird 
nest is observed during surveys, a 100-foot buffer around the nest will be established or 
consultation with CDFW should be conducted for a reduced buffer zone based on nesting 
phenology, site conditions, and recommendation(s) of a biological monitor. Construction 
activities shall be prohibited in the buffer zone until the young have fledged 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to start of 
Construction 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 2)      Archaeological Monitoring 
In compliance with the Cultural Resources Assessment performed by Albion in July of 2018, 
the District shall ensure that a qualified archaeologist is present to monitor all ground 
disturbing project activities. Should prehistoric or historic-era deposits or features be 
discovered at any time during construction, the District shall refer to mitigation measure 5) In 
the Event of Cultural Resources Discovered. 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


During ground 
disturbing 
activities 


528/567







916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811    916.930.0788 F 
 


Page 2 of 5 
 


School Site Solutions Inc. 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 3) Archaeological Signage 
In accordance with guidelines section §15064.5, the School District will ensure that the 
following language is included in all construction contracts and permits:  
“If archaeological resources or human remains are accidentally discovered during 
construction, work will be halted within 50 feet of the find until it can be evaluated by a 
qualified professional archaeologist. If the find is determined to be significant, appropriate 
mitigation measures will be formulated and implemented.” 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to 
construction 


activities 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 4)   Communication of Archaeological Site Deposit Indicators  
All construction personnel involved in site clearing, subsequent grading, and trenching will be 
informed of the potential for subsurface cultural resource unearthing. Indicators of 
archaeological site deposits include, but are not limited to the following: 
Soil that is darker than the surrounding soils, evidence of fire (ash, fire altered rock and earth, 
carbon flecks, concentrations of stone, bone and shellfish, artifacts of these materials and 
animal or human burials. 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to any 
ground disturbing 


activities 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 5)    In the Event of Cultural Resources Discovered 
If cultural resources are encountered during Site grading, or construction activities, all work 
shall be halted within 50 feet of the discovery and (SCCSD) shall engage a qualified 
archaeologist to assess and protect the discovery as appropriate. No further soil disturbance 
shall occur within the 50-foot buffer until the preceding assessment has been completed and 
the resource has been recovered. 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to any 
ground disturbing 


activities 


529/567







916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811    916.930.0788 F 
 


Page 3 of 5 
 


School Site Solutions Inc. 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 6)   Paleontological Construction Contracts and Permits Language 
Due to the possibility that significant buried paleontological resources may be found during 
construction activities, the Santa Cruz City School District will ensure that the following 
language is included in all construction contracts and permits: 
“If paleontological resources are encountered during subsurface construction activities, all 
work within 50 feet of the discovery will be redirected until a qualified paleontologist can 
evaluate the finds and make recommendations. If the paleontological resources are found to be 
significant, they will be avoided by project construction activities and recovered by a qualified 
paleontologist. Upon completion of the recovery, a paleontological assessment will be 
conducted by a qualified paleontologist to determine if further monitoring for paleontological 
resources is required. The assessment will include: 
 
I) The results of any geotechnical investigation prepared for the project site; 
2) Specific details of the construction plans for the project site; 
3) Background research; and 
4) Limited subsurface investigation within the project site. 
 
If a high potential to encounter paleontological resources is confirmed, a monitoring plan of 
further project subsurface construction will be prepared in conjunction with this assessment. 
After project subsurface construction has ended, a report documenting monitoring, methods, 
findings, and further recommendations regarding paleontological resources will be prepared.” 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


Prior to any 
ground disturbing 


activities 


Cultural 
Resources 


MM 7)      Policies and Procedures for Inadvertently Discovered Human Remains  
Because site disturbance may adversely impact undocumented human remains or 
unintentionally discover significant historic or archaeological materials, the following policies 
and procedures for treatment and disposition of inadvertently discovered human remains or 
archaeological materials will apply. If human remains are discovered, it is probable they are 
the remains of Native Americans. 


 
a) If human remains are encountered, they will be treated with dignity and respect as due 


to them. Discovery of Native American remains is a very sensitive issue and serious 
concern. Information about such a discovery will be held in confidence by all project 
personnel on a need to know basis. The rights of Native Americans to practice 
ceremonial observances on sites, in labs and around artifacts will be upheld. Remains 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


During any ground 
disturbing 
activities 


530/567







916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811    916.930.0788 F 
 


Page 4 of 5 
 


School Site Solutions Inc. 


should not be held by human hands. Surgical gloves should be worn if remains need to 
be handled. Surgical mask should also be worn to prevent exposure to pathogens that 
may be associated with the remains.  


b) In the event that known or suspected Native American remains are encountered or 
significant historic or archaeological materials are discovered, ground-disturbing 
activities will be immediately stopped. Examples of significant historic or 
archaeological materials include, but are not limited to, concentrations of historic 
artifacts (e.g., bottles, ceramics) or prehistoric artifacts (chipped chert or obsidian, 
arrow points, ground stone mortars and pestles), culturally altered ash-stained midden 
soils associated with pre-contact Native American habitation sites, concentrations of 
fire-altered rock and/or burned or charred organic materials, and historic structure 
remains such as stone-lined building foundations, wells or privy pits. Ground-
disturbing project activities may continue in other areas that are outside the discovery 
locale.  


c) An “exclusion zone” where unauthorized equipment and personnel are not permitted 
will be established (e.g., taped off) around the discovery area plus a reasonable buffer 
zone by the Contractor Foreman or authorized representative, or party who made the 
discovery and initiated these protocols, or if on-site at the time or discovery, by the 
Monitoring Archaeologist (typically 25-50ft for single burial or archaeological find).  


d) The discovery locale will be secured (e.g., 24 hour surveillance) as directed by the 
District if considered prudent to avoid further disturbances.  


e) The Contractor, Foreman, authorized representative, or party who made the discovery 
and initiated these protocols will be responsible for immediately contacting by 
telephone the parties listed below to report the find and initiate the consultation 
process for treatment and disposition:  
• The Santa Cruz City School District Assistant Superintendent  
(831) 429-3410 
• The Contractor’s Point(s) of Contact  
• The Coroner of the County of Santa Cruz (if human remains found)  
(831) 454-2520 
• The Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) in Sacramento 
 (916) 373-3710  


f)  The Coroner has two working days to examine the remains after being notified of the 


531/567







916.930.0736 P 
2015 H Street, Sacramento, CA 95811    916.930.0788 F 
 


Page 5 of 5 
 


School Site Solutions Inc. 


 


discovery. If the remains are Native American the Coroner has 24 hours to notify the 
NAHC.  


g) The NAHC is responsible for identifying and immediately notifying the Most Likely 
Descendant (MLD). (Note: NAHC policy holds that the Native American Monitor will 
not be designated the MLD.)  


h) After notification by the NAHC, the MLD will be granted permission to inspect the 
discovery site if they so choose.  


i) After notification by the NAHC, the MLD may recommend to the Administrator of 
District Support Services the recommended means for treating or disposing, with 
appropriate dignity, the human remains and any associated grave goods. The MLD has 
48 hours after accessing the Site to make recommendations to the property owner as 
specified in Public Resources Code section 5097.98 (a). The recommendation may 
include the scientific removal and nondestructive or destructive analysis of human 
remains and items associated with Native American burials.  


j) If the MLD recommendation is rejected by the SCCSD, the parties will attempt to 
mediate the disagreement with the NAHC. If mediation fails then the remains and all 
associated grave offerings will be reburied with appropriate dignity on the property in 
a location not subject to further subsurface disturbance.  


 


Geology and 
Soils 


MM 8)   Geotechnical Evaluation 
Information regarding fault zoning, ground shaking, ground failure, landslide, and expansive 
soils will be obtained in the Geotechnical study and all recommendations shall be followed as 
outlined in the report. Student housed facilities are to be constructed in the same location as 
facilities to be modified or replaced. The proposed Project would not introduce new hazards 
or exacerbate existing conditions. Improvements to these structures would be achieved with 
potential to lessen pre-existing risks.   


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


 
During 


construction 
activities 


Noise 


MM 9) Noise Suppression Attachments and Minimal Idling 
The contractor shall employ appropriate noise suppression attachments (e.g., mufflers, etc.) on 
all equipment. Equipment idling shall be kept to a minimum and equipment turned off when 
not in use. 


District 
Appointed 


Construction 
Superintendent 


During 
construction 


activities 


532/567







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Appendix B 
State Clearinghouse Letter 


533/567







534/567







535/567







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Appendix C 
MONTH 2018 Draft IS/MND 


536/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.4 
  


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution  # 20-18-19 Authorizing Temporary Cash Loans from the Santa 


Cruz County Treasurer in the 2019-20 Fiscal Year 
 
MEETING DATE: February 20, 2019 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #20-18-19 authorizing temporary cash loans from the Santa Cruz County 
Treasurer in the 2019-20 fiscal year.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Each year, Santa Cruz City Schools needs to borrow cash short term to meet cash flow needs 
during the year, because of the timing of receipt of property taxes.  To date, we have been able 
to accomplish this with inter-fund transfers.  This resolution is done as a contingency in the event 
that there are insufficient cash funds available.  The attached Resolution No. 20-18-19 would 
request the cash flow borrowing of up to $10.3 million from the Santa Cruz County Treasurer 
during the 2019-20 fiscal year.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The District pays the County Treasurer only for the funds actually drawn and for the period of 
time that the funds are drawn at the interest rate that the County Treasurer is earning on the 
County Investment pool.  At the current County Pool interest rate of approximately 1.836%, the 
cost to borrow cash is about $50.30 per day for each $1 million borrowed.  This expense will be 
paid from Unrestricted LCFF base funds. 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


537/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.4 
  


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT  
RESOLUTION # 20-18-19 


 
A RESOLUTION TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE  


COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
TO PROVIDE TEMPORARY CASH LOANS TO 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code section 42620, when a school district does not 
have sufficient money to its credit to meet current expenses of maintenance of the district, the board 
of supervisors of the county shall order, and the auditor and treasurer of the county shall make, a 
temporary transfer from any funds of the county not immediately needed to pay claims against them, 
to the school fund of the amount needed, not exceeding 85% of the amount of money which will 
accrue to the school district during the fiscal year. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz City Schools District has requested temporary cash loan 
financing periodically during the year, in the amount of $10.3 million to cover operating expenses for 
the 2018-19 fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz City Schools District will receive funding during the course of 
the 2019-20 fiscal year from both the state and local property tax sources, and will rely on those funds 
to repay temporary cash borrowing if any;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Education of the Santa Cruz City 
Schools District requests temporary cash flow transfers as needed during the 2019-20 fiscal year to 
cover the District’s current expenses of maintenance of the District, to be repaid by way of a transfer 
made by the County Treasurer of any monies accruing to the District before any other obligation of the 
District is paid from those monies. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the loan or loans shall be subject to interest at the pooled 
treasury rate. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Santa Cruz City Schools District, 
County of Santa Cruz, State of California, this 20th day of February, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: ___________ 
 
Noes: ___________ 
 
Abstain: _________ 
 
Absent: _________ 
 
 
Attest: ________________________________ ____________________________ 
           Secretary to the Board of Trustees  President, Board of Trustees 


 


538/567







AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Tentative Agreement between the Greater Santa Cruz Federation 


of Teachers and Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, 


Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
 
RECCOMENDATION: 
Approve the Tentative Agreement between the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers and 
Santa Cruz City Schools for 2018-19 including Appendix E - Calendar for 2019-20 and 2020-21 
school years, Article XII – Hours of Employment, Article XV – Leaves of Absence, Article XIII – 
Professional Courtesy, Article XVI- Safety and Health. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A Tentative Agreement was reached on February 1, 2019.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
 
 
 


539/567







February 1,2019


Tentative Agreement between GSCFT and SCCS


Leaves: Attached is the article written in collaboration with GSCFT


Calendar: Attached are the calendars for 2019-20 and 2020-21


Summary of calendar changes:
2019-20:


• Generally follows the current calendar (student start date August 21st)


• Last day for students June 4th


• Additional day for either Professional Development (if negotiated) or holiday for
elementary November 1st and secondary March 6


2020-21
Earlier start day (students start date August 12th)
Last day for students May 27
Secondary semester ends before winter break


Additional day for either Professional Development (if negotiated) or holiday
for elementary November 2nd and secondary March 5


Additional vacation day during Febmary Break (Thursday, Friday and
Monday)
Spring Break moved up one week to March 29- April 2 (due to getting our
earlier)


Proposal: Hours of Employment


All unit members (secondary) who are responsible for posting grades to the student
information system will make every attempt to update grades weekly, but not less than


every two weeks. In case of an extenuating circumstance, member will contact site
administrator in writing if unable to update grades with this frequency.


B. Teachers who agree, at the direction of the administrator, to perform substitute duties


during their own preparation period for another teacher shall be paid the negotiated
hourly rate. accme a compensatory preparation period for each preparation period
devoted to substitute duties. Such compensatory time may be taken at a time mutually


convefflent to teacher and principal for purposes of preparation, Compensatory
pfcparation time must bo taken in the school year in which it is accmed. Employees with
ynuscd compensatory preparation time shall not be entitled to payment; thcrcferc, thcije


substitute duties shall be rotated among teachers sharing the same prep period.


E. Clarified language, no content changes.


540/567







In addition to the above times, employees are responsible for other services to the school


community, The services include but are not limited to program development, parent


conferences, committee assignments and site supervision. Certificated staff and site


admmistraiion through a participatory process shall arrange these services. Attendance
at Back to School and Open House is required by all zmit members. In addition unit


members will attend no more than 2 evening meetmg/events per semester. Teachers who
are elected to serve on school site councils may attend evening meetings as needed. Prior to


the first student day, personnel assigned to more than one (1) site shall establish [ittrifig-the
pfe-sefeeeUeaeher-workdays ) the site of primary evaluatioti and reasonable expectations


regarding other duties at the two sites. The combined expectations shall not exceed those


required of an employee at the primary site. Part-time employees shall establish with the site
principal reasonable expectations regarding other duties. Teachers will not be asked to


perform yard duty supervision during the regular site lunch period, except in emergency


situations.


Article Xlll
A. Include Hard of Hearing Teachers to list of Support Services


B. The work year for all counselors, psychologists, speech language pathologist, district


nurses and Hard of Hearing Specialist shall be fifteen (15) additional days per year as
shown on the salary schedule.


Article XVI Safety


G. In order to complete Safety Modules or a similar online safety program related to
safety of employees, bargaining unit members shall be given at least seventy-five (75)


minutes per school year to work on the Safety Modules. This 75 minutes shall be


provided by Site Administrators through either: time during Professional Development
days, or through time at faculty meetings and at the secondary level may also be provided


during PLC time.


The safety modules will be made available to unit members no later than the third (3 )
week of any school year when modules are being used.


If a unit member is required to do additional modules, due to their specialized


assignment, (such as but not limited to CTE and Special Education) they will be given at
least 90 minutes annually to complete modules.


541/567







Elementary School Calendar 2019-2020


2019
July


S I M


J:T̂L
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


w
3
10
17
24
31


T
4
11
18
25


F | S
5
12
19
26


fKey- 3
= Legal/Local Holiday/Breaks


= First/Last Day of school


= Teacher Work Day


Parent Conference Day


4- Holiday: Independence Day


2020
January


S I M


T3
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


w
1
8
15
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


F | S
—3~


10
17
24
31


S I M


5


26


T


6
L3


27


August


w


7


28


T
1
8


15
22
29


F I S
2
9


23
30


19-20 "Teacher Work Days"


21-"First Student Day"


S I M
~JL
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24


w
4
11
18
25


T
5
12
19
26


F | S
6
13
20
27


2- Holiday: Labor Day


s ! M


7
14
21
28


I


T
1
8
15
22
29


>ctober


w
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24
31


F | S
4
11
18
25


S I M


4
11


November


T


5
12
k9


w


6
13
20


~ST


T


7
14
21


; w


F | S


8
15
22


ry


1-LocaVHoliday/PDifNeg.


11- Holiday: Veteran's Day


25 "Teacher Work Day"


26- Parent Conference Day


27 to 29- Holiday: Ttianksgiving
Break


December


S I M
2
9
16
23-


an


T
3
10
17


~w
~w


w
4
11
18


~w


T
5
12
19


~w


F | S
6
13
20


~w~\ 23 to 31- Holiday: Winter Break


180 =StudentDays


1- Holiday; New Year's Day


6-Back to school


20- Holiday Ml King Jr Day


February


S I M


3
10


JL
24


T


4
11
18
25


w


5
12
19
26


T


6
13
20
27


F | S


7
14
21
28


14- Holtday:Lincoln's B'day


17 - Holiday; President's B'day


S I M
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24
31


w
4


11
18
25


T
5
12
19
26


F | S
6
13
20
27


April
S I M


f'~'6


13
20
27


T


~T~~


14
21
28


w
1
T
15
22
29


T
2


T
16
23
30


F I S
3


~w
17
24


6-10: Spring Break


May
S I M


4
11
18


T~W


T


5
12
19
26


w


6
13
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


F | S
1
8
15
22
29


June


S I M
1
8
15
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


w
3
10
17
24


T


11
18
25


s


12
19
26


25- Holiday: Memorial Day


4- "Last Student Day"


5-"Teacher Work Day"


542/567







Harbor High and Soquel High School Calendar 2019-2020


2019 2020
July


S I M
1
8
15
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


w
3
10
17
24
31


T
4
11
18
25


F | S
5
12
19
26


fRey" J
1= Legal/Loca) Holiday/Breaks


= First/Last Day of school


1= Teacher Work Day


IProfessional Development Day


4- Holiday: Independence Day


S I M


w
20
27


T


14
21
28


lanuary


w
1
8
15
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


F | S


10
17
24
31


S I M


5


26


T


6


27


\ugus


w


7


28


T
1
8
15
22
29


F | S
2
9


23
30


19-20 "Teacher Work Days"


21-"Firsl Student Day"


S [ M
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24


w
4
11
18
25


T
5
12
19
26


F | S
6
13
20
27


2- Holiday: Labor Day


S I M


7
14
21
28


I


T
1
8
15
22
29


)ctober


w
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24
31


F | S
4
11
18
25


S I M


4
^|T


18
25


T


5
12
19
26


w


6
13
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


F | S
1
8


15
22
28


11 - Holiday: Veteran's Day


27 to 29- Holiday: Thanksgiving
Break


December


S I M


Tv
ji:
3̂:


T
3
10
17


~S4~


~w


w
4
11
18
25


T I F |S
5 | 6
12
19
26 r m i


20- "Teacher Work Day"


23 to 31" Holiday: Winter Break


180 =StudentDays


1- Holiday: New Year's Day


6- Staff Development Day


7- Back to school


20- Holiday M.L King Jr. Day


February


S t M


3
10
17
24


T


4
11
18
25


w


5
12
19
26


T


6
13
20
27


F | S


7
14
21
28


14- Holiday:Lincoln's B'day


17- Holiday: President's B'day


S I M
2
9


16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24
31


w
4
11
18
25


T
5
12
19
26


F | S
~6—


13
20
27


6" Local/Holiday/PD if Neg.


April
S I M


~6~


13
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


w
1
8
15
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


F | S
3


~w
17
24


6-10: Spring Break


May
S I M


4
11
18


T


5
12
19
26


w


6
13
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


F | S
1
8
15
22
29


June


S I M
1
8


15
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


w
3
10
17
24


T


11
18
25


s


12
19
26


25- Holiday: Memorial Day


4-"Last Student Day"


5-"TeacherWork Day"


543/567







Secondary School Calendar 2019-2020
Santa Cruz High, Mission Hill, Branciforte Middle, Costanoa, ARK, AFE


2019
July


S I M


zT̂
L


22
29


T
2
9


16
23
30


w
3
10
17
24
31


T
4
11
18
25


F | S
5
12
19
26


I Key


November


J
1= Legal/Loca! Holiday/Breaks


= First/Last Day of school


1= Teacher Work Day


I Professional Development Day


4- Holiday: Independence Day


S I M


13
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


2020
anuary


w T
1 I 2
8
15
22
29


23
30


F | S
~3~


'̂24


31


S I M


5


26


T


6


27


Augus


w


7


28


T
1
8


15
22
29


F j S
2
9


23
30


19-20 "Teacher Work Days"


21-"Firet Student Day"


S I M
F~2~


9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24


September


w
4
11
18
25


T
5
12
19
26


F | S
6
13
20
27


2- Holiday: Labor Day


S I M


7
14
21
28


T
1
8
15
22
29


October


w
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24
31


F | S
4


11
18
25


S I M


4
1-i


18
25


T


5
12
19
26


w


6
13
20
"X


T


7
14
21
26


F | S
1
8


15
22
29


11 - Holiday: Veteran's Day


27 to 29- Holiday: TTianksgiving
Break


December


S I M
2
9
16


~n


rw


T
3
10
17


-24-


31


w
4
11
18


~w


T
5
12
19
26


F | S
6
13
20


~^f 23 to 31- Holiday: Winter Break


180 =StudentDays


1 - Holiday; New Year's Day


6- Back to school


•I 6- Teacher Work Day


17- Staff Development Day


20- Holiday M.L King Jr. Day


February


S I M


3
10
17
24


T


4
11
18
25


w


5
12
19
26


T


6
13
20
27


F | S


7
14
21
28


14-Holiday:Lincoln's B'day


17- Holiday: President's B'day


S I M
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24
31


w
4
11
18
25


T
5
12
19
26


F | S
6
13
20
27


6- Local/Holiday/PD ffNeg.


April
S I M


|—6-


13
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


w
1


^~


15
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


F | S
3


10
17
24


6-10: Spring Break


May
S ] M


4
11
18


ff'2^'


T


5
12
19
26


w


6
13
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


F | S
1
8
15
22
29


June


s I ivi
1
8
15
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


w
3
10
17
24


T


11
18
25


s


12
19
26


25- Holiday: Memorial Day


4- "Last Student Day"


5-"Teacher Work Day"


544/567







Elementary School Calendar 2020-2021


2020
July


S I M


6
13
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


w
1
8
15
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


F | S
3
10
17
24
31


[Key"


November


]
1= Legal/Local Holiday/Breaks


I = First/Last Day of school


1= Teacher Work Day


[Parent Conference Day


4- Holiday: Independence Day


2021
January


S I M


11
18
25


T


5
12
19
26


w


6
13
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


F [ S
-t


8
15
22
29


S I M


17
24
31


T


18
25


^ugus


w


19
26


T


6
13
20
27


F | S


14
21
28


10-11 "Teacher Work Days"


12-"First Student Day"


S I M


7
14
21
28


T
1
8
15
22
29


w
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24


F | S
4
11
18
25


7- Holiday: Labor Day


S I M


5
12
19
26


I


T


6
13
20
27


ictober


w


7
14
21
28


T
1
8
15
22
29


F | S
2
9
16
23
30


S I M
2
9
li6


30


T
3
10
H7


w
4
11
18
25


T
5
12
19
26


F | S
6
13
20


~w\


2-Local/Holiday/PDifNeg.


11 - Holiday: Veteran's Day


23 "Teacher Work Day"


24- Parent Conference Day


25 to 27- Holiday; Thanksgiving B\


December


S I M


7
14


^T
28"


T
1
8
15
22


~w


w
2
9
16
23


~w


T
3
10
17
24


"ST


F | S
4
11
18
25 21 to 31- Holiday: Winter Break


180 =StudentDays


1 - Holiday: New Year's Day


4- Back to school


18- Holiday M.L King Jr. Day


February


S I M
1
8
15
22


T
2
9
16
23


w
3
10
17
24


T
4


'11


18
25


5
12
19
26


11- Local/Holiday


12- Holiday: Un coin's B'day


15-Holiday: President's B'day


S ] M
1
8
15
22


~w


T
2
9
16
23
30


w
3
10
17
24
31


T
4
11
18
25


F | S
5
12
19
26


April
S I M


5
12
19
26


T


6
13
20
27


w


7
14
21
28


T
1
8
15
22
29


F j S
f
9
16
23
30


29-31 Spring Break


1-2: Spring Break


May
S I M


3
10
17
24
31


T


4
11
18
25


w


5
12
19
26


T


6
13
20


F [ S


7
14
y 27- Last Student Day


28-"Teacher Work Day"


31- Holiday: Memorial Day


June


S I M


7
14
21
28


T
1
8
15
22
29


w
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24


F | S
4
11
18
25


545/567







Secondary School Calendar 2020-2021


2020
July


S I M


T̂
L


20


JE:


T


7
14
21
28


w
1
8
15
22
29


T
2
9
16
23
30


F j S
-3-


10
17
24
31


2021


|Key^


[= Legal/Loca! Holiday/Breaks


= First/Last Day of school


1= Teacher Work Day


I Professional Development Day


3- Holiday: Independence Day


January


S I M


11
r'Ts"


25


T


51
'12


19
26


w


13
20
27


T


7
14
21
28


F | S


T
-^-


22
29


S I M


17
24
31


T


18
25


i\ugus


w


19
26


T


6
13
20
27


F | S


3
21
28


10-11 "Teacher Work Days"


12-"First Student Day"


February


S I M
1
8


15
22


T
2
9
16
23


w
3
10
17
24


T
4
11
18
25


F | S
5


12
19
26


September


S I M


r~?~


14
21
28


T
1
8
15
22
29


w
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24


F | S
4
11
18
25


7- Holiday: Labor Day


S [ M


5
12
19
26


I


T


6
13
20
27


)ctober


w


7
14
21
28


T
1
8
15
22
29


F | S
2
9
16
23
30


November


S I M
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24


w
4


I 11
18


m


T
5
12
19
^r


F | S
6
13
20


~^~\


11- Holiday: Veteran's Day


25 to 27- Holiday; Thanksgiving B|


December


S I M


7
14


^T
^w~


T
1
8
15


~w
~w_


w
2
9
16


[3E
r^~


T
3
10
17


~w
~w


F | S
4
11
18


~w 21 to 31-Holiday: Winter Break


180 =StudentDays


1 - Holiday: New Year's Day


4- Teacher Work Day


5 - Professional Development Day


6- Back to schoo!


18- Holiday M.L King Jr. Day


11- Local/Holiday


12- Holiday:Lincoln's B'day


15 - Holiday: President's B'day


S I M
1
8
15
22


Oi~


T
2
9
16
23


r~?


w
3
10
17
24
31


T
4
11
18
25


F | S
5
12
19
26


April
S I M


5
12
19
26


T


6
13
20
27


w


7
14
21
28


T
1
8
15
22
29


F | S
~T


9
16
23
30


5" Local/Holiday/PD if Neg.


29-31 Spring Break


1-2: Spring Break


S I M


3
10
17
24
31


T


4
11
18
25


May


w


5
12
19
26


T


6
13
20


F | S


7
14
y 27-Last Student Day


28-"Teacher Work Day"


31- Holiday: Memorial Day


June


S I M


7
14
21
28


T
1
8
15
22
29


w
2
9
16
23
30


T
3
10
17
24


F | S
4
11
18
25


546/567







1 


 
ARTICLE XV - LEAVES OF ABSENCE 


 
Employees are credited with ten (10) days of sick leave for the year on July 1 (pro-rated for part-time 
employees based on FTE).  Sick leave may be carried over to subsequent years and there is no 
maximum on the total accrual.  Unit members who retire under STRS or PERS may have the sick 
leave they have accrued applied as service credit at the time of retirement.  All school employees who 
are vested in STRS or PERS have this option.  Up to (7) days of Sick Leave per year may be used for 
Personal Necessity Leave.  In addition, unit members are granted two (2) days of Annual Leave 
(pro-rated for part-time employees based on FTE).  All leave options included in this agreement are 
listed below. 
 


A. Sick Leave 
B. Personal Necessity 
C. Annual Leave 
D. Healthcare Provider Verification 
E. Bereavement Leave 
F. Extended Sick Leave 
G. Catastrophic Leave 
H. Family Related Leaves: 


a. Pregnancy  
b. CFRA/FMLA 
c. Birth, Adoption or Foster Placement of Child 
d. Parental Leave 
e. Child Rearing 
f. Kin Care 


I. Leave of Absence Without Pay 
J. Partial and Shared Contracts 
K. Industrial Leave (Workers Comp) 
L. Jury Duty 
M. Leave for Public Office 
N. Military Leave 
O. Federation Leave 


  
 
A) Sick Leave 
 


1. Sick leave is earned time used to recover from an injury or illness or other 
reasons permitted by the Education Code. 
 


2. Full-time employees earn ten (10) sick leave days per year at full pay.  Part-time 
employees earn a pro-rata portion of the ten (10) sick leave days at the 


547/567







2 Rev 12-20-18 


percentage (%) of the contracted FTE.  Sick leave may be accumulated without 
limit.  There is no entitlement to cash payment for accumulated sick leave upon 
termination of employment.  
 


3. Certificated employees with assignments that do not provide paid sick time shall 
be credited with twenty-four (24) hours of paid sick leave after working 30 days 
during that school year.  The sick days may be used after the 90th day of 
employment.  These days can only be used for scheduled work days. Unused 
sick leave accrued under this section shall not carry over to the following school 
year. 
 


4. Employees are expected to enter their absences on the AESOP internet portal 
when they are ill, as soon as possible on the first day of illness. Prior approval of 
medical appointment is required unless the medical appointment relates to an 
immediate illness. 
 
A unit member may take five (5) consecutive days of Sick Leave without providing a 
healthcare provider’s written verification  District may require a healthcare 
provider’s (physician, surgeon, dentist, psychologist, nurse practitioner, 
optometrist, chiropractor, social worker).  On the sixth (6th) day of consecutive sick 
leave, an administrator may require a healthcare provider’s written verification. of the 
reason for an employee’s absence if an employee has been on sick leave for five 
(5) or more consecutive days. 
 


5. After all accumulated sick leave has been used, the Superintendent or his/her 
designee, upon the request of the employee, may recommend granting up to ten 
(10) additional days of sick leave with full pay.  An additional ten (10) days may 
be granted by the Board, for a total not to exceed twenty (20) days. 
 


6. Transfer of accumulated sick leave: Any employee new to the District having 
previous experience outside the District but within the State shall have 
transferred with him/her the accumulated sick leave earned in the previous 
district of employment. Forms shall be provided by the District to the employee 
for the purposes of requesting the transfer of his/her accumulated sick leave from 
his/her employer. It is the responsibility of the employee to complete and return 
the form to the Human Resources Office. 
 


7. Employees on leave of absence without pay do not accumulate sick leave. 
 


548/567







3 Rev 12-20-18 


8. Upon retirement, an employee’s unused sick leave, if any, shall be applied as 
service credit according to the California State Teacher Retirement System 
(CalSTRS) regulations. 


B. Sick Leave - Personal Necessity Provision of Sick Leave (Up to Seven Days) 
 


1. Personal necessity is defined as a situation that requires a unit member to be 
absent from work to attend to matters that cannot be accomplished during the work 
day.  When a unit member takes Personal Necessity Leave, the hours used are 
subtracted from their sick leave balance.  Thus, any hours used reduce the sick leave 
balance.  Personal Necessity limits remain constant from year to year.  There is no 
accrual or carry over of this type of leave.    .  absence due to:  Death in the 
immediate family; accident involving the person or property, or the person or 
property of a member of the immediate family; appearance in court as a 
litigant or appearance as a witness under an official order; or unforeseen 
emergency; or taking care of sick children.  An unforeseen emergency is an 
emergency beyond the control of the employee that requires the employee's 
absence during duty hours and cannot be taken care of by someone else.  
Immediate family is defined as:  Mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, 
husband, wife, son, daughter, sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, or any 
relative living in the immediate family of the employee.  The District may 
approve extenuating circumstances, such as very close friends. 


 
2. Employees are allowed seven (7) days per school year for personal necessity 


leave, no more than five (5) days to be used consecutively.  Such leave when taken 
shall be deducted from the accrued sick leave and may not exceed the 
number of days available to the employee. 


 
3. When applying for absence under personal necessity, the reason shall be 


stated on the absence form. 
 
3  4. Advance permission shall be obtained for appearance in court as a litigant 


and appearance as a witness under official order. 
 
C M. Annual Leave Professional Growth/Personal Absence 


 
1. Each employee is authorized up to two (2) days annual personal absence leave 


per school year without loss of pay (pro-rated for part-time employees based on 
FTE).  Such leave is not cumulative, if not used in the year it will not carry over. 


 
2. This leave is intended for the personal and professional needs of the 


employee that make it necessary to be absent from his/her contractual 
responsibilities.  Employees are encouraged to utilize this leave for 


549/567







4 Rev 12-20-18 


meaningful in-service activities such as observations, meetings, workshops 
and conferences. 


 
3. This leave may not be used for vacation, recreation and/or seeking 


employment. 
 
3. Employees must notify their site administrator forty-eight (48) hours prior to 


taking this leave.  Should an emergency arise the forty-eight (48) hour 
notification does not apply.  An Absence Verification form shall be used to 
make this request. 


 
54. This leave is granted upon request of the employee provided sufficient 


substitute coverage is available. 
 


D. In the case that a unit member uses any of the aforementioned leaves: sick leave, personal 
necessity leave or annual leave six (6) or more consecutive days, the unit member shall 
inform their administrator of their planned use of the days in writing.  The administrator 
may require documentation related to the use of the additional days such as healthcare 
provider verification, or verification of legal proceedings, accidents or other unanticipated 
emergencies. 


 
E G. Bereavement Leave 
 


A regular employee who is absent on account of death of an immediate member of 
the family (mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, husband, wife, domestic 
partner, son, daughter, sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild, or any relative 
living in the immediate family of the employee) is entitled to three (3) days of leave, 
or five (5) days if out-of-state travel is required, without loss of pay for each such 
bereavement. Extenuating circumstances, such as very close friends, or significant 
others may be approved by the District. Additional time without pay may be 
granted by the Board of Education upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
or designee and in consultation with the Federation President. 


 
F  L. Leaves of Absence for Extended Sick Leave Illness or Accident 
 


1. When an employee is absent from work on account of an illness or accident, 
she/he shall use all available sick leave.  When sick leave is exhausted, the 
employee may request a leave of absence for medical reasons for up to one (1) 
year, which may be renewed upon application. 


 
2. If the leave is for a period of five (5) months or less, the employee shall  
 receive his regular monthly salary, less the cost of a substitute (Substitute 


Differential Pay).  If it is necessary for the employee to be absent beyond five 


550/567







5 Rev 12-20-18 


(5) months, such additional leave, if granted, shall be without pay. 
 
3. In cases where the unit member is absent due to an extended illness under the 


provisions of Education Code Section 44977, the amount deducted from his/her 
paycheck shall not exceed the maximum long-term substitute rate for the District.  
(Moved from I. Leave of Absence Without Pay) 


 
G  Q. Catastrophic Leave Bank 
 


In accordance with EC 44043.5, the Santa Cruz City Schools District has established a 
catastrophic leave program for certificated employees who suffer from a 
catastrophic illness or injury. 
 
Catastrophic illness or injury means an illness or injury that is expected to  
incapacitate the employee for an extended period of time, requires the employee to 
take time off from work for an extended period of time, and taking extended time 
off work creates a financial hardship for the employee because he/she has exhausted 
all of his/her sick leave, leave provided under the Family and Medical  
Leave Act, and other paid time off. Eligible leave credits may be voluntarily donated 
to a certificated employee for a catastrophic illness or injury if all of the following 
requirements are met: 


 
  1.  The employee must be a certificated unit member. 
 


2. The employee requests that eligible leave credits be donated and provides 
verification of catastrophic injury or illness. as required by the Catastrophic 
Leave Committee.  Participants shall be required to submit a doctor's 
statement indicating the nature of the illness or injury and the probable 
length of absence from work. 


 
3. The employee has exhausted all his/her paid leave credits. 
 
4. No employee may donate sick leave credits unless they have a minimum of 


twenty-five (25) days of accumulated leave and may donate only in excess of 
twenty (20) days up to a maximum of five (5) days.  Donated sick leave 
credits not utilized shall remain in the Bank.  


 
5. The maximum amount of donated leave credit that may be used by an 


individual employee under this section shall be ninety-two (92) days in any 
school year.  An employee may reapply for additional leave credit not to 
exceed a career maximum of one hundred and eighty-four (184) days. 


 
6. Catastrophic leave credits shall not be used for illness or disability, which 


551/567







6 Rev 12-20-18 


qualify the participant for worker's compensation benefits. 
 
7. Credits shall not be considered available leave for purposes of qualifying for 


STRS Disability. 
 
8. Participants who have exhausted regular accrued sick leave, and are absent 


due to an extended illness under the provisions of Education Code Section 
44977 (differential pay), shall be eligible for the Catastrophic Leave Program 
credits.  The District shall pay the participant full pay, and the credits shall be 
charged at one-half (1/2) day of sick leave for each day of service. 


 
9. It is the intent of this provision that sick leave credits would be used on 


consecutive days; however, on a case by case basis the Catastrophic Leave 
Committee can grant on a case by case basis use of credits for intermittent or 
part days may be granted. 


 
10. The Human Resources Division shall maintain on file the Catastrophic Leave 


Bank of Credits.  Credits donated and distributed shall be authorized by the 
Catastrophic Leave Committee before transfers are made into and out of the 
credit bank.  No more than two hundred and fifty (250) days per school year 
can be withdrawn from the Bank. 


 
11. The Catastrophic Leave Committee shall consist of two (2) members 


appointed by the Federation and two (2) members appointed by the District.  
This committee shall be responsible for authorization of all withdrawals from 
the Catastrophic Leave Bank.    Approval of catastrophic leave shall be determined 
by the Federation President and the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
in consultation with their respective teams.  The decisions related to this 
provision are not subject to grievance. 


 
H. Family Related Leaves 
 


A  K. Pregnancy Disability Leave 
 
1. Employees shall be entitled to utilize sick leave, including five (5) 


months of differential pay pursuant to Education Code section 44977 if 
needed, for the period of time that they are temporarily disabled by the 
employee’s pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and recovery therefrom. 


 
2. The period of disability shall be determined and verified in writing by 


the employee’s health care provider.   Certification may be provided by 
using the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing 


552/567







7 Rev 12-20-18 


(DFEH) Certification of Health Care Provider for Pregnancy Disability 
Leave form.  


 
3. A health care provider is a licensed medical or osteopathic doctor, 


physician or surgeon who directly treats or supervises the treatment of 
the employee’s pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and recovery 
therefrom. 


 
4. The employee shall notify the District of the estimated or intended dates 


for her pregnancy leave as soon as is practicable.   
 
5. In cases of unforeseen leave, the employee shall provide medical 


certification as soon as practicable, but no more than 5 consecutive work 
days. 


 
6. The manner of reporting absence for a temporary disability resulting 


from pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth and recovery therefrom, shall be 
the same as the manner of reporting sick leave, except as noted above. 


 
7. Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) shall run concurrently with 


Pregnancy Disability Leave. Refer to section P. 


B  P. Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and California Family Rights Act 
(CFRA) Leave 


 
1.  Employees may request a leave of absence for up to twelve (12) work 


weeks annually pursuant to the FMLA for the following reasons:  
 


a. For incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care or child 
birth. 


b. To care for the employee’s child after birth, or placement for 
adoption or foster care. 


c.       To care for the employee’s spouse, son, daughter or parent who has 
a serious health condition. 


d. For a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to 
perform the employee’s job. 


 
2.   The eligibility requirements for FMLA are: 
 


a. The employee has worked with the District for 12 months. 
b. The employee has worked 1,250 hours in the previous 12 months. 


 


553/567







8 Rev 12-20-18 


3.  Employees may request a leave of absence for up to twelve (12) work 
weeks annually pursuant to the CFRA for the following reasons:  


 
a. The employee’s pregnancy. 
b. The employee’s own serious health condition. 
c. To care for the employee’s child, parent, or spouse who has a 


serious health condition. 
d. For birth, adoption, or foster placement of child. 


 
4.   The eligibility requirements for CFRA are: 
 


a. The employee has worked with the District for 12 months. 
b. The employee has worked 1,250 hours in the previous 12 months. 


The 1,250 hours is not required for birth, adoption, or foster 
placement of child reasons. 


 
C  R. Paid Leave for Birth, Adoption or Foster Placement of Child 


 
1. Employees who are eligible for California Family Rights Act (CFRA) 


Leave are entitled up to twelve (12) weeks of leave with differential pay 
for baby bonding with newborn, adoption or foster placement. 


 
2. Differential pay is the difference between the employee’s regular salary 


and the sum actually paid, or that would have been paid, to a substitute 
to fill the absent employee’s position. 


 
3. While on paid leave for baby bonding with newborn, adoption, or foster 


placement, the employee shall continue to be entitled to District-paid 
contributions towards health and welfare benefits. The employee shall 
be responsible for any employee-paid contributions towards such 
benefits. 


 
4. An employee is not entitled to more than one twelve (12) week 


differential pay period for baby bonding with newborn, adoption or 
foster placement. However, if a school year terminates before the (12) 
week period is exhausted, the employee may take the balance of the 
twelve (12) week period in the subsequent school year. 


 
5. The differential pay period provided by this provision shall not be 


constituted as being in addition to the pay period provided under 
paragraph L2 of this Article XV. 


554/567







9 Rev 12-20-18 


D  S.  Parental Leave 


1. Employees may take up to twelve (12) weeks of parental leave for 
reason of the birth of a child of the employee, or the placement of a child 
with an employee in connection with the adoption or foster care of the 
child.  Eligibility shall be in accordance with the CFRA, except that the 
employee need not have worked 1,250 hours in the past 12 months.   


 
2. The employee may use any remaining differential pay during this leave, 


pursuant to Education Code section 44977.5.  The employee must 
exhaust available sick leave before using differential pay. 


 
3. While on parental leave, the employee shall continue to be entitled to the 


District contributions towards health and welfare benefits.  The 
employee shall be responsible for any employee-paid contributions 
towards such benefits. 


 
4. An employee may not receive more than one 12 week period of 


differential pay within a 12 month period. 
 
5. This leave runs concurrently with baby bonding leave under the CFRA.  


 
E  N. Child Rearing Leave 


 
1. An employee who is a natural or adopting parent may be granted a 


leave of absence for the purpose of rearing her/his infant.  Such leave 
shall be without pay and shall not exceed (2) years in duration for 
faculty requesting full time leave or (4) years in duration for faculty 
requesting partial leave of absence and may include that period of time 
prior to being temporarily disabled from pregnancy. If there is a health 
issue with a minor child, a longer leave may be considered. 


 
2. Extensions of such leave may be granted by the Board of Education. 
 
3. Upon return to service, no employee will be guaranteed a return to 


her/his original position, but will be given an assignment in accordance 
with staffing needs as determined by the District. 


 
F  T.  Kin Care 


 


555/567







10 Rev 12-20-18 


1. An employee may use accrued sick leave up to half of the employee’s 
annual entitlement to attend to a family member’s diagnosis, care, 
treatment of existing health condition or preventative care, or when 
need of employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention 
specified in Labor Code for health, safety, welfare of the employee, or 
his/her child, when the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, 
sexual assault or stalking. 


 
2. Family member is defined as follows: 
 


a. Child (biological, adopted, foster child, stepchild, legal ward, and 
child to whom employee stands in loco parentis) without regard to 
age or dependency status. 


b. Parental (biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal 
guardian of an employee or employee’s spouse or registered 
domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when 
employee was a minor child. 


c. Spouse 
d. Registered domestic partner 
e. Grandparent 
f. Grandchild 
g. Sibling 


 
I  C. Leave of Absence With/ Without Pay 


 
An employee may request a personal leave of absence with or without pay. 


 
1. With Pay.  An employee may be granted a leave with up to full pay, 


including health and welfare benefit coverage, for educational purposes that 
are beneficial to both District and the employee. 


 
1. Without Pay.  An employee may request a personal leave of 


absence without pay.  Leave for up to thirty (30) days without pay 
may be approved by the Superintendent.  Leaves for more than 
thirty (30) days and up to one year without pay may be granted by 
the Board of Education.  The board shall consider leaves for: 
• family medical care 
• up to two (2) years. The board shall consider requests for leaves 


of up to one (1) year for professional growth aligned with 
District goals to support improved classroom practice. 


o  A professional growth plan must be submitted and 


556/567







11 Rev 12-20-18 


approved by the Assistant Superintendent of Human 
Resources before Board approval.  Unit members may 
request professional growth plan form from Human 
Resources. 


• Full time leaves for up to one (1) year and partial leaves for up 
to two (2) years shall be considered for anyone pursuing a 
supplemental credential in a hard to fill area such as math, 
special education, speech and language, bilingual education, etc. 


Employee's medical insurance coverage may be continued at 
employee's expense.  Other benefits, such as credit for column and step 
placement, accrual of sick leave, credit for career increment and credit 
toward seven-year (7) service for sabbatical eligibility, shall be 
discontinued for the duration of the absence. 


 
A leave of absence is a personal privilege approved by the District which may 
be withdrawn by the District or canceled for cause.  Once the leave has been 
granted, the District is free to secure a replacement for the unit member for 
the period of the leave, and is under no obligation to return the person who 
requested the leave prior to the established date of return.  In cases where the 
unit member is absent due to an extended illness under the provisions of 
Education Code Section 44977, the amount deducted from his/her paycheck 
shall not exceed the maximum long-term substitute rate for the District.  
(Moved to F. Extended Sick Leave) 


 
3. Any unit member on leave who fails without good cause to notify the District 


of intent to remain in the service of the District by January 31st, shall be 
deemed to have declined employment and his/her services as an employee of 
the District may be terminated on June 30th of that year, providing that a 
demand for such notification has been served on the unit  
member personally or by certified mail, return receipt requested, not later 
than the preceding January 15th. 


 
4. Upon return to service, no employee other than the Federation President (see 


Article IV. A. 1) will be guaranteed a return to his/her original position, but 
will be given an assignment in accordance with staffing needs as determined 
by the District. 


 
5. All Requests for a leave of absence that commences at the beginning of the 


following school year shall be submitted no later than January 31 of the 
preceding school year. 


 
 
J.   Partial and Shared Contracts     


557/567







12 Rev 12-20-18 


 
1. Definitions: 


 
a. Partial Contract  -  Single contract for one employee for less than one 


hundred percent (100%) of the school day or year.  
 


b. Shared Contract  -  A single contract for a trimester, semester, or year 
shared by two (2) or more employees at the (K-5) elementary level. 


 
2. Partial and Shared Contract Employee: 


 
a. Any employee may request a partial contract by submitting a Leave of 


Absence Request Form written request to his or her administrator, in 
consultation with Human Resources.  If denied, upon employee request, a 
written explanation will be provided. Employees who have a partial 
contract for fifty percent (50%) or more of the school day or year shall 
receive full credit toward advancement on the salary schedule 
providing they work seventy-five percent (75%) of their assignment 
within the calendar year. Upon request, any employee on partial 
contract may be considered for the first full-time position available for 
which they are qualified. Employees who are contracted for less than 
fifty percent (50%) of the school day or year shall receive one half (1/2) 
credit for advancement on the salary schedule, providing they work 
seventy-five percent (75%) of their assignment within the calendar 
year. 


 
b. A shared contract may only be initiated by employees.  The District 


shall grant a shared contract upon mutual agreement between the 
teachers and the administrators involved.  The administrator holds the 
discretion for the schedule/days worked by each part-time employee. 
The terms of the shared assignment may only be changed upon mutual 
agreement between the faculty member(s)  


 and administration. Employees working part time will be required to 
participate at the percentage (%) of the contracted FTE in all 
professional duties and other duties as agreed upon as all other full 
time employees are required to participate. Employees on partial or 
shared contracts will be required to attend Back to School Night and 
Open House. For other duties, attendance is required in proportion to 
employee FTE. Faculty are required to attend additional meetings 
when required by law. Partial contract provisions shall apply in terms 
of advancement on the salary schedule and reinstatement to full-time 
positions. If the shared contract is granted, partial leaves shall be 
granted for up to one (1) year. Any extension of a leave must be 
reapplied for annually, and approval for ongoing leaves will be made 


558/567







13 Rev 12-20-18 


for special circumstances. 
 


c. Employees on partial or shared contracts of at least half-time (1/2) shall 
receive the same fringe benefits as full-time employees but for the 
employee only.  These employees will have the option of purchasing 
the dependent coverage available to full-time employees, subject to the 
requirement of the carrier. 


 
d. Less than half-time (1/2) employees shall have the option to buy into 


the fringe benefit package, subject to the requirement of the carrier. 
 
K D. Industrial Accident Leaves (Workers Compensation) 
 


1. An employee who is absent due to a work-connected illness or injury shall  
 be allowed up to sixty (60) days leave in a fiscal year. 


 
2. The sixty (60) days leave includes days during which the schools are required 


to be in session, or when the employee would have been performing work for 
the District. 


 
3. Industrial accident leave does not accumulate from year to year. 
 
4. Industrial accident leave commences on the first day of absence. 


 
5. An employee on industrial accident leave shall be paid such portion of his/her 


regular monthly salary that, when added to any disability award from 
Workers Compensation, shall result in payment of no more than his/her 
regular monthly salary. 


 
6. When an industrial accident leave overlaps into the next fiscal year, the 


employee shall be entitled to use only the amount of unused leave due for the 
same illness or injury. 


 
7. Upon expiration of industrial leave, an employee may elect to use sick leave 


and may apply that portion of sick leave that, when added to any temporary 
disability award, shall result in payment of not more than the regular 
monthly salary. 


 
8. During any paid industrial leave of absence, the employee may endorse to the 


District the temporary disability award checks received; the District in turn 
shall issue the employee his/her normal salary, less authorized deductions.  If 
this election is not exercised by the employee, the District shall deduct the 
temporary disability award actually paid to and retained by the employee. 


559/567







14 Rev 12-20-18 


 
9. Any employee receiving benefits as a result of industrial accident leave shall, 


during the period of injury or illness, remain in the State of California, unless 
the Board approves leaving the State. 


 
E. Sabbatical Leave 
 


1. Sabbatical leave is designed to permit study and travel that may benefit the 
pupils and/or staff of the District.  Provisions and conditions for such leave 
shall be in accordance with provisions of the Education Code. 


 
2. A sabbatical leave shall not exceed one (1) year and may be granted by the  
 Board of Education to an employee who has completed seven (7) consecutive 


years of teaching or other service requiring certification.  An employee may 
apply for and receive only one (1) sabbatical leave each seven (7) years. 


 
3. A person who desires a sabbatical leave shall submit a statement to the 


Sabbatical Committee outlining the nature of the leave and explaining the 
benefit to the teacher and/or students.  Compensation is to be one-half (1/2) 
the base salary of the employee. 


 
4. The Sabbatical Committee shall be composed of one (1) elementary and one 


(1) secondary teacher, and one (1) elementary and one (1) secondary 
administrator, selected by the Federation and the Superintendent, 
respectively.  The committee will evaluate all sabbatical proposals, offer 
applicants oral interviews and submit recommendations to the 
Superintendent.  The Superintendent will submit committee 
recommendations along with his/her own to the Board of Education. 


 
5. The committee will consider the following criteria: tangible benefits to 


students and/or District, benefit to professional growth of employee, specific 
qualifications of the proposal, cost effectiveness of the proposal to the District, 
length of service in the District. 


 
  6.  If the Board approves the leave request, the employee shall sign an     
   agreement to return to service upon completion of the leave for a period    
  equal to twice the period of leave and a written authorization to deduct     
 from the employee's salary all amounts paid to or on behalf of the  


 employee during his/her sabbatical leave should the employee fail to submit 
the agreed upon transcripts and/or reports upon completion of the sabbatical 
leave.  Compensation shall be paid the employee as if the employee were 
teaching in the District upon presentation of a bond  
indemnifying the Board against loss in the event the employee fails to render 


560/567







15 Rev 12-20-18 


the service following return from leave.  The bond shall be void if failure to 
provide service is caused by death or physical or mental disability of the 
employee.  The Board may waive the bond requirement and accept written 
agreement of assurance in lieu of the bond. 


 
7. Unless otherwise mutually agreed, the employee shall be reinstated in the 


position or a similar position to the one held at the time the leave was 
granted. 


 
8. Upon completion of the leave, and within sixty (60) days following return  
 to duty, the employee is to submit one of the following to the Superintendent: 
 


a. Transcripts of record, if in-residence only. 
 
b. Written report of study on a special problem or research study.  The 


employee is, when requested to do so by the Board or the 
Administration, to make such further reports (written or oral, as may 
be deemed desirable) for the benefit of the pupils, the District, 
or the community.  Such reports shall be specified before the 
commencement of the sabbatical leave. 


 
9. Limitations as to the number of employees on leave at one time:  The number 


of certificated employees on sabbatical leave in the District at one time is to be 
at the discretion of the Board. 


 
10. The District shall continue to pay all health and welfare insurance programs 


during the period of absence. 
 


11. Application for sabbatical leave is to be made by January 15th of the year 
preceding the leave.  The Board will announce sabbatical leaves granted by 
May 15th. 


 
L F. Jury Duty 
 


Leaves of absence with full pay to serve on a jury shall be granted to employees.   
Pay received as a juror, not including mileage reimbursement, is payable to the 
District. 


 
 
M H. Leave Due to Election to Public Office 
 


Any permanent employee elected to the State Legislature, County Board of 
Supervisors, City Council, or to a full-time paid, elected position, such as County 


561/567







16 Rev 12-20-18 


Treasurer, shall be granted a leave of absence for the elected term of office. Within 
six (6) months after expiration of the term of office, the employee shall notify the 
District of his/her intent to return. 


 
I. Leave for Teacher Exchange 
 


1. The District may enter into an agreement with the proper authorities of any 
foreign country, or of any state, territory or possession of the United States, or 
other district within the State, territory or possession or other district within 
this State.  Any such exchange shall be made with the consent of the 
employee to be exchanged. 


 
2. Consideration shall be given to the general qualifications and professional 


status of the exchange employee as compared to the general qualifications 
and professional status of the employee for whom exchanged.  It is not a 
requirement that an exchange employee be a teacher of the same subject or 
grade, or both, as the employee for whom exchanged.  If the service 
authorized is other than teaching, it shall not be a requirement that the service 
be at the same grade level or that the service be exactly the same as the 
employee for whom it was exchanged. 


 
3. No person may be employed as an exchange employee by a school district  


    in the State unless they hold the necessary valid credential or credentials   
   authorizing service in the position in the mutual school districts. 
 


4. An exchange agreement may be made for a period not to exceed three (3) 
years. 


 
5. During the period of exchange leave, the employee shall retain all rights and 


benefits to the permanent classification held prior to the exchange. 
 
6. At the end of the assignment period, the exchange, with the consent of all 


parties, may be made complete and permanent. 
 
7. During the period of exchange leave, the employee may continue all medical, 


dental, vision, and life insurance programs by paying the full premium. 
 
N J. Military Leave of Absence 
 


State and federal laws on granting of leaves of absence and re-employment rights of 
personnel who have served in the U.S. Military Forces shall be observed. 


 
  


562/567







17 Rev 12-20-18 


 
 


O. Federation Leave (Release Time) 
 


1. The District shall grant to the Federation President or his/her designee  
 upon request to the Superintendent ten (10) days release time for the purpose 


of organizational business.  The Superintendent may approve up to ten (10) 
additional days release time for the purpose of organizational  
 business upon request of the Federation President. 


 
2. Cost of substitutes, if any, are to be paid by the Federation. 
 
3. The President of the Federation shall be released from his/her duties to attend 


special or regular meetings of the Board of Education, which are scheduled 
during his/her regular work day upon request by the employee and approval 
of the Superintendent.  No cost of loss of leave time shall be charged to the 
employee. 


 
4. Employees shall notify their supervisor of their intent to be absent prior to the 


absence and shall complete the necessary forms. 
 


563/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM:  2019 CSBA Delegate Assembly 
  
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Take action as appropriate. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Delegate Assembly for Sub-Region 9A currently has one vacancy. The Santa Cruz City 
Schools Board of Education may vote for no more than one Candidate for the CSBA Delegate 
Assembly.  All re-elected and newly elected delegates will serve two-year terms beginning April 
1, 2019 through March 31, 2021.  The next meeting of the Delegate Assembly is on May 18-19, 
2019, in Sacramento. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


564/567







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Board Policy 3515: Campus Security 
      
MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the new Board Policy 3515: Campus Security as submitted for the second and final 
reading.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
The Governing Board is committed to providing a school environment that promotes the safety 
of students, employees, and visitors to school grounds. The Board also recognizes the 
importance of protecting district property, facilities, and equipment from vandalism and theft. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


565/567







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Campus Security 
 


BP 3515  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


The Governing Board is committed to providing a school environment that promotes the safety 


of students, employees, and visitors to school grounds.  The Board also recognizes the 


importance of protecting district property, facilities, and equipment from vandalism and theft. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop campus security procedures which are consistent 


with the goals and objectives of the district's comprehensive safety plan and site-level safety 


plans.  Such procedures shall be regularly reviewed to reflect changed circumstances and to 


assess their effectiveness in achieving safe school objectives. 


 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


 


Surveillance Systems  


 


The Board believes that reasonable use of surveillance cameras will help the district achieve its 


goals for campus security.  Cameras shall not be placed in areas where students, staff, or 


community members have a reasonable expectation of privacy.  Any audio capability on the 


district's surveillance equipment shall be configured so that sounds are not recorded.   


 


(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 


(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure) 


 


Prior to the operation of the surveillance system, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that 


signs are posted at conspicuous locations at affected school buildings and grounds.  These signs 


shall inform students, staff, and visitors that surveillance may occur and shall state whether the 


district's system is actively monitored by school personnel.  The Superintendent or designee 


shall also provide prior written notice to students and parents/guardians about the district's 


surveillance system, including the locations where surveillance may occur, explaining that the 


recordings may be used in disciplinary proceedings, and that matters captured by the camera may 


be referred to local law enforcement, as appropriate. 


 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


 


To the extent that any images from the district's surveillance system create a student or personnel 


record, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the images are accessed, retained, and 


disclosed in accordance with law, Board policy, administrative regulation, and any applicable 


collective bargaining agreements. 


566/567







 


(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32020  Access gates 


32211  Threatened disruption or interference with classes 


32280-32288  School safety plans 


35160  Authority of governing boards  


35160.1  Broad authority of school districts  


38000-38005  Security patrols 


49050-49051  Searches by school employees 


49060-49079  Student records 


PENAL CODE 


469  Unauthorized making, duplicating or possession of key to public building 


626-626.10  Disruption of schools 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION  


Article 1, Section 28(c) Right to Safe Schools 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


New Jersey v. T.L.O. (1985) 469 U.S. 325 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS  


83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 257 (2000)  


75 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 155 (1992) 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Safe Schools:  A Planning Guide for Action, 2002 


NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 


The Appropriate and Effective Use of Security Technologies in U.S. Schools: A Guide for 


Schools and Law Enforcement Agencies, 1999 


WEB SITES  


CSBA: http://www.csba.org  


California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss  


National Institute of Justice:  http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/nij 


 


 


Board Policy: Santa Cruz City Schools, Santa Cruz, CA 


Adopted:    January 16, 2019 


 


 


567/567





		Agenda 02-20-19 FINAL

		Personnel Actions - Certificated 


		Personnel Actions - Classified 


		Purchase Orders, Bids &amp; Quotes 


		8.1.3 Purchase Orders over $2500 list

		Warrant Register 


		8.1.4 vendor warrants list

		Budget Transfers 


		8.1.5 Budget transfers January 2019 report

		Educational Services_ Low Performing Students Block Grant

		Educational Services_Santa Cruz High_ Overnight Field Trip

		8.2.2 BSU Altlanta Trip Itinerary

		Business Services_ Pacific Collegiate School Memorandum of Understanding

		8.2.3. Facility Use Agreement SCCS &amp; PCS 2019 draft

		8.2.3  Exhibit A Facility Use Fee Schedule 070119

		Business Services_ City of Santa Cruz Memorandum of Understanding

		8.2.4. SC City &amp; SCCS Reciprocal Use Agrmt 2019

		Alioto Construction Inspections_ Contract_ Natural Bridges Gym Modernization Phase 2

		8.3.1. Alioto Construction Inspections Contract NB Mod Ph2 w RR

		Earth Systems_ Quote_ Santa Cruz High Sports Complex Upgrades

		8.3.2. Earth Systems Scoreboard Quote Geotechnical Letter Santa Cruz High Sports Complex Upgrades

		Max Builders Inc._ Estimate_ Mission Hill Middle School Mod Phase 1_ Main Building Monterey Peninsula Engineering_ Bid &amp; Contract_ Branciforte Small Schools

		8.3.4. Monterey Peninsula Engineering Contract Site Work at Branciforte Small School New Modular Classroom (PE)

		Moore Twining Associates, Inc._ Proposal_ Santa Cruz High School Modernization Phase 2

		8.3.5. Moore Twining Associates Proposal Geotechnical Engineering Santa Cruz High Mod Ph2(PE)

		M3 Environmental Consulting LLC_ Proposal_ Branciforte Middle School - Music_MPR

		8.3.6. M3 Environmental Contract &amp; Proposal Hazardous Materials Inspection(PE)

		Schreder &amp; Brandt Mfg., Inc._ Bid &amp; Contract_ Bay View Elementary School New Classroom Building &amp; Site Work

		8.3.7. Schreder &amp; Brandt Mfg., Inc. Contract Site Work at Bay View New Modular Classroom (PE)

		CWS Construction Group_ Change Order #1_ Harbor High Student Locker Improvements

		8.3.8. CWS Construction Group Chane Order 1 Harbor Student Locker Improvements

		Andy&apos;s Roofing_ Change Order #4_ Branciforte Middle School Re-Roof

		8.3.9. Andy&apos;s Roofing CO#4 Branciforte Middle School ReRoof

		Public Hearing_ Potential Composition of Trustee Areas Prior to Drawing of Maps

		8.5.1.1. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING #2 Eng 02.20.19

		8.5.1.1. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING #2 SPANISH 02.20.19

		Resolution 19-18-19_ Consideration and Potential Adoption of Establishing Criteria for Developing Trustee Area Boundaries

		8.5.1.3. Resolution 19-18-19 02.20.19

		Harbor High School International Baccalaureate Program Update

		Harbor High IB Board presentation 2_20_19

		School Safety Plans 


		8.5.1.2. 2019-2020 Comprehensive School Safety Plans

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Alternative_Family_Education_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Ark_Independent_Studies_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Bay_View_Elementary_School_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Branciforte_Middle_School_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Costanoa_Continuation_School_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_De_Laveaga_Elementary_School_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Gault_Elementary_School_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Harbor_High_School_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Mission_Hill_Middle_School_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Monarch_Elementary_School_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Santa_Cruz_High_School_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Soquel_High_School_20190213

		2018_Comprehensive_School_Safety_Plan_-_Part_I_Westlake_Elementary_School_20190213

		Tech Task Force Update 


		8.5.2.1. Tech Task Force Update Presentation 02.20.19

		Resolution 21-18-19_ Final Mitigated Negative Declaration_ Branciforte Small Schools Modernization Project

		8.5.3.2 Res. 21-18-19  Adopt Mitigated Negative Dec B40SS Modernization

		8.5.3.2 Mitigated Negative Declaration Final B40 SS modernization

		Resolution 22-18-19_ Final Mitigated Negative Declaration_ Mission Hill Middle School Modernization Project

		8.5.3.3 Res 22-18-19 Adopt Mitigated Negative Dec MHMS modernization

		8.5.3.3 Mitigated Negative Declaration Final MHMS modernization

		Resolution 20-18-19_ County of Santa Cruz Temporary Cash Loans

		8.5.3.4 Res Cash transfers from Co Treasurer 1920

		2018-19 SCCS_GSCFT Tentative Agreement 


		8.5.4.1-Attachment - Tentative Agreement SCCS-GSCFT 2018-19

		2019 CSBA Delegate Assembly Ballot 


		Board Policy 3515_ Campus Security – 2nd and Final Reading

		8.5.1.5. BP 3515 Campus Security




